Public Document Pack

NOTICE OF MEETING

LICENSING COMMITTEE
WEDNESDAY, 24 FEBRUARY 2016 AT 9.30 AM

THE EXECUTIVE MEETING ROOM - THIRD FLOOR, THE GUILDHALL,
PORTSMOUTH

Telephone enquiries to Lucy Wingham 02392 834662
Email: lucy.wingham@portsmouthcc.gov.uk

Licensing Committee Members:

Councillors Julie Swan (Chair), Hannah Hockaday (Vice-Chair), Dave Ashmore, Jennie Brent,
Margaret Foster, David Fuller, Paul Godier, Aiden Gray, Scott Harris, Stephen Hastings,

Lee Mason, Phil Smith, David Tompkins and Gerald Vernon-Jackson

Standing Deputies
Councillors Ryan Brent and lan Lyon

(NB  This Agenda should be retained for future reference with the minutes of this meeting.)

Please note that the agenda, minutes and non-exempt reports are available to view online on
the Portsmouth City Council website: www.portsmouth.gov.uk

Deputations by members of the public may be made on any item where a decision is going to be

taken. The request should be made in writing to the relevant officer by
12 noon of the working day before the meeting, and must include the purpose of the deputation
(eg. for or against the recommendations). Email requests are accepted. Contact: Lucy
Wingham as listed above.

AGENDA
1 Apologies for Absence
2 Declarations of Members' Interests
3 Minutes of the previous meeting held on 15 January 2016 (Pages 1 - 2)

RECOMMENDED that the minutes of the Licensing Policy Committee held on
15 January 2016 be agreed as a correct record and signed by the chair.

4 Town Police Clauses Act 1847 and Part I, Local Government


http://www.portsmouth.gov.uk/

(Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976 - Hackney Carriage and Private Hire
Matters - Draft statement of Licensing Policy (Pages 3 - 320)

Purpose
To receive, recommend for approval and to adopt the draft statement of

licensing policy for the control, supervision and enforcement of the respective
hackney carriage and private hire trades within the City of Portsmouth.
Further, to note and approve the summary of recommendations together with
the scheme of working delegations to the Licensing Committee and
appropriate head of service.

To note the prior consultation on the draft policy and to take into consideration
any received comments from trade representatives, individual licence holders,
members of the public and members alike and to incorporate such relevant
amendment(s) to the policy as the committee consider appropriate.

To recommend to council the formal approval of the statement of licensing
policy for a 3 year period commencing on 2 April 2016 and to seek approval
for the Licensing Committee to retain future responsibility for the control and
administration of the policy.

RECOMMENDATIONS
To the Licensing Committee

1) That the report and draft statement of licensing policy for the control,
supervision and enforcement of the hackney carriage and private hire
trades within the City of Portsmouth together with the scheme of
delegations and relevant appendices be noted and approved (subject
to any final amendments) by the Licensing Committee with effect from 1
April 2016.

2) That the policy be reviewed by the Licensing Committee every 3 years
with the appropriate head of service authorised to make sure minor
typographical and other corrective administrative amendments from
time to time and as required.

To the Council

1) That the council notes and approves the recommendations and
resolutions of the Licensing Committee and resolves to delegate the
hackney carriage and private hire statement of licensing policy together
with the scheme of delegations to the Licensing Committee and
appropriate head of service.

2) That the council delegates approval to the Licensing Committee to retail
overall responsibility for the policy, to include any future amendments,
variations, substitutions or deletions as may be required and after
appropriate consultation.

3) That the policy commence with effect from 1 April 2016.

Members of the public are now permitted to use both audio visual recording
devices and social media during this meeting, on the understanding that it
neither disrupts the meeting or records those stating explicitly that they do not
wish to be recorded. Guidance on the use of devices at meetings open to the




public is available on the Council's website and posters on the wall of the
meeting's venue.




This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda ltem 3

LICENSING COMMITTEE

MINUTES OF A MEETING of the Licensing Committee held on Friday, 15 January
2016 at 9.30 am in the executive meeting room, floor 3 of the Guildhall, Portsmouth.

Present

Councillors  Julie Swan (Chair)
Hannah Hockaday (Vice-Chair)
Dave Ashmore
Jennie Brent
Margaret Foster
Paul Godier
Stephen Hastings
David Tompkins
Gerald Vernon-Jackson

Also in attendance

Councillors lan Lyon and Ryan Brent.
Apologies for Absence (Al 1)
Apologies for absence had been received from Councillors Phil Smith, Aiden Gray,
David Fuller and Ken Ferrett. Councillor Scott Harris had been due to attend but was
delayed at work.
Declarations of Members' Interests (Al 2)
There were no declarations.

Minutes of the previous meeting held on 13 January 2015 (Al 3)

RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting of the Licensing Policy Committee held
on 13 January 2015 be agreed as a correct record and signed by the chair.

Annual review of Licensing Fees (Al 4)

The Licensing Manager introduced the report and explained that it has always been
the aim of the committee to work towards total cost recovery. A revised summary
analysis was circulated to members showing amended figures for total expenditure
and income for 2016/17 and 2017/18.

The Licensing Manager explained that the proposed revised fees to come into
immediate effect for the grant or renewal for a private hire driver licence for a 3 year
period is £257 and for a hackney carriage driver £284, which reflects a saving to the
applicant in terms of the cost associated with the longer period of licensing.

Members sought clarification on the existing and proposed fee increases, the new
3year licences, time allocation and, mandatory and statutory fees.

1
Page 1



The Licensing Manager and the Finance Officer explained that the trade
representatives had been consulted and were in agreement with the proposed
changes, the fees would continue to be looked at annually, time allocation would
change but costs would remain and that the database is a strong and robust way of
time recording.

RESOLVED

a) That the Licensing Committee noted the contents of the report and
determined the level of fee to be adopted,;

b) That the approved fees be implemented with effect from 1 April 2016 unless
otherwise stated within the report; and

c) That the Director of Culture and City Development be given authority to
advertise, (where appropriate) such fees and charges that are subject to any
formal public statutory consultation.

Licensing Act 2003 - Statement of Licensing Policy 2016 - 2021 Approval of
interim measures (Al 5)

The Licensing Manager introduced the report.

RESOLVED that the Licensing Committee recommend to Full Council that it adopts
the existing Statement of Licensing Policy with effect from 26 January 2016 as an
interim measure pending the Council making a final decision on the outcome of the

review and consultation on the Statement of Licensing Policy for the period 2016
until 2021.

The meeting concluded at 11.15 am.

Signed by the chair, Councillor Julie Swan.

2
Page 2



Agenda ltem 4

Portsmouth
CITY COUNCIL

Title of meeting: LICENSING COMMITTEE - 24 FEBRUARY 2016

FULL COUNCIL - 22 MARCH 2016

Subiject: Town Police Clauses Act 1847 and Part Il, Local Government
(Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976
Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Matters - Draft Statement of
Licensing Policy

Report by: DIRECTOR OF CULTURE & CITY DEVELOPMENT

Wards affected: ALL

Key decision: No

Full Council decision: Yes

11

1.2

1.3

Purpose of report

To receive, recommend for approval and to adopt the draft statement of
licensing policy for the control, supervision and enforcement of the respective
hackney carriage and private hire trades within the City of Portsmouth. Further,
to note and approve the summary of recommendations together with the
scheme of working delegations to the Licensing Committee and appropriate
head of service.

To note the prior consultation on the draft policy and to take into consideration
any received comments from trade representatives, individual licence holders,
members of the public and members alike and to incorporate such relevant
amendment(s) to the policy as the committee consider appropriate.

To recommend to council the formal approval of the statement of licensing policy
for a 3 year period commencing on 01 April 2016 and to seek approval for the
Licensing Committee to retain future responsibility for the control and
administration of the policy.

Recommendations

To the Licensing Committee:

1) That the report and draft statement of licensing policy for the control,
supervision and enforcement of the hackney carriage and private hire
trades within the City of Portsmouth together with the scheme of
delegations and relevant appendices be noted and approved (subject to
any final amendments) by the Licensing Committee with effect from 01
April 2016.

Pade 3

www.portsmouth.gov.uk



Portsmouth
CITY COUNCIL

2) That the policy be reviewed by the Licensing Committee every 3 years
with the appropriate head of service authorised to make such minor
typographical and other corrective administrative amendments from time
to time and as required.

To the Council:

1) That the council notes and approves the recommendations and
resolutions of the Licensing Committee and resolves to delegate the
hackney carriage and private hire statement of licensing policy together
with the scheme of delegations to the Licensing Committee and
appropriate head of service.

2) That the council delegates approval to the Licensing Committee to
retain overall responsibility for the policy, to include any future
amendments, variations, substitutions or deletions as may be required
and after appropriate consultation.

3) That the policy commence with effect from 01 April 2016.
Background

The Licensing Committee received a report from the Licensing Manager in
November 2014 and instructed that the head of service "undertake a thorough
review of hackney carriage and private hire policy in respect of drivers, vehicles
and private hire operators". Minute 07/2014 refers.

In the initial preparation of the policy review the head of service has consulted
with and/or has had regard to verbal or written representations received from:

¢ licensed drivers, vehicle proprietors and operators

¢ Recognised hackney carriage and private hire trade representatives
e Adams Morey as the council's nominated vehicle testing and inspection
provider

The Portsmouth Disability Forum via the council's Equalities Advisor
The Chief Officer of Police

The Chief Fire Officer

The Blue Lamp Trust

DVLA and DVSA

Local Insurance brokers

Fleet garages to include Scope Leasing, Outlook and FTVL

The council's Environmental Health Manager

The council's Transport Fleet Manager

Pade 4

www.portsmouth.gov.uk



3.3

3.4

3.5

3.6

3.7

3.8

Portsmouth
CITY COUNCIL

The review also recognises and has taken into consideration, where
appropriate, the Department for Transport "Taxi and Private Hire Vehicle
Licensing - Best Practice Guidance - March 2010" (shown in blue italics in the
policy review papers) together with the Freight Transport Association best
practice (PATN) guide for the inspection of hackney carriage and private hire
vehicles.

The previously expressed views of the committee are contained generically in
the review - having been stated, in general terms, at paragraph 1.7 on page 4 of
the review introduction.

The Licensing Committee met informally on 13 November 2015 to consider the
draft policy. A number of minor amendments were discussed and will be
incorporated within the draft policy. The committee also met informally with
recognised trade representatives on 17 February 2016.

The proposed final amendments are attached as appendix 1C.

The policy was made available for consultation between 29 December 2015 and
05 February 2016 via the following means:

The PCC web via "consultations”

Copies made available in the Licensing Service public reception area
Copies distributed to all licensed private hire operators within the city
Copies distributed to all recognised trade representatives within the city
Copies distributed to all the big "fleet" garages within the city

All drivers, vehicle proprietors and operators have been previously invited to
contribute to the review exercise by way of their respective 2015 and 2016
renewal papers.

Subject to approval, the individual recommendations relating to driver and
vehicle age limits or other specified requirements will not be applied
retrospectively but will normally apply, in general terms, from any approved
commencement date(s).

Any operator, vehicle or driver application (or other matter due for consideration)
which is subsequently received AND is at variance with the adopted policy
guidelines; will nevertheless be considered, on individual merit, using the
guiding principles at paragraphs 3.0 - 3.3 at page 5 of the policy document.

The policy review has considered the question of fees and charges associated
with the hackney carriage and private hire trades. Any proposed variations to
such fees will be the subject of a separate report by the Licensing Manager and
appropriate head of service and subject to any statutory public consultation as
required.

The policy will be kept under review every 3 years.

Pade 5

www.portsmouth.gov.uk



Portsmouth
CITY COUNCIL

4. Reasons for recommendations

4.1 To approve the draft licensing policy in accordance with the previous instruction
and resolution of the Licensing Committee for the head of service to undertake a
thorough review of the hackney carriage and private hire trades. To further
recommend to council the approval of the policy and appropriate delegations to
the Licensing Committee and head of service.

4.2 To provide clear and precise policy directives for applicants, licence holders,
their legal representatives, the Licensing Committee and officers alike.

4.3 To formally delegate approval from full council to the Licensing Committee to
retain overall future responsibility for the policy, to include any future
amendments, variations, substitutions or deletions as may be required and after
appropriate consultation.

5. Equality impact assessment
An EIA has been completed.

6. Legal implications
The legal implications are embodied in the review document.

7. Finance comments
None applicable directly to this report but recommended guiding principles for

"Fees and Charges" are contained within chapter 16 of the policy review
document.

Slgned by ........................................
Appendices:

1. Draft Statement of Licensing Policy for the control, supervision and enforcement of the
hackney carriage and private hire trades to include:

e A) Public Authority Transport Network (PATN) Best Practice Guidance for the
inspection and testing of hackney carriage and private hire vehicles

e B) Conditions of licence for hackney carriage vehicles, private hire operators,
private hire vehicles and private hire drivers together with the hackney carriage
byelaws

e C) Proposed and recommended further amendments to be included within the draft
policy - attached as a separate document

Pade 6

www.portsmouth.gov.uk



Portsmouth
CITY COUNCIL

2. Copies of representations and comments received (redacted where necessary)

3. LGA Taxi and Private Hire licensing - councillors' handbook

Background list of documents: Section 100D of the Local Government Act 1972

The following documents disclose facts or matters, which have been relied upon to a
material extent by the author in preparing this report:

Title of document Location
Nil Nil

The recommendation(s) set out above were approved/ approved as amended/ deferred/
rejected by ... o o

Signed by:

Pade 7

www.portsmouth.gov.uk



This page is intentionally left blank



April 2016

For the control, supervision and
enforcement of the hackney
carriage and private hire trades
within the city of Portsmouth




Contents

Chapter 1: Introduction 3
Chapter 2: Summary of key resolutions 9

Chapter 3: Scheme of delegation and associated responsibilities 14

Chapter 4: Hackney carriages — demand and quantity control 21
Chapter 5: Hackney carriage stands 30
Chapter 6: Trade representatives and consultation 32
Chapter 7: Duration of licences 34
Chapter 8: The test of 'fit and proper’ 40
Chapter 9: Rehabilitation of Offenders Act 1974 54
Chapter 10: Vehicle specification requirements 57
Chapter 11: Vehicle testing requirements 62
Appendix: PATN Vehicle testing guidance 70
Chapter 12: Vehicle age limits 94
Chapter 13: CCTV provision in vehicles 98
Chapter 14: Conditions of licence and byelaws 104
Appendix: Proposed conditions (A-D) and byelaws 107
Chapter 15: Licensing enforcement 125
Chapter 16: Fees and charges 141
Chapter 17: Law Commission proposals 150
Chapter 18: Contact information 152
Chapter 19: References 153
Chapter 20: Glossary of terms 154
Chapter 21: Map of Portsmouth 156
Footnotes & Commentary 157
Page 10

2 * Statement of licensing policy ® Contents




Chapter 1: Introduction

1.0  This review has been prepared by the Director of 1.3 Never more so is this apparent than when
Culture and City Development and follows the dealing with the Portsmouth taxi and private hire
decision of the Licensing Committee in November undertaking. Consultation must be undertaken
2014 to request that the Licensing Manager and respective views heard.

”undertake a,thoroﬁjgﬁ‘, review of hackney carriage Each local authority will have policies and

and private hire policy” (minute 7/2014 refers). conditions reflecting on local working practices
The last major review of the respective hackney and whilst good national practices will be
carriage and private hire trades was undertaken embraced — the composition, supervision and

in 2001. Prior to that, a review was considered by day to day control of the local private hire and
the then Licensing Panel in 1986. hackney carriage fleets is for the city council and

1.2 The Council recognises that all persons, including city council alone to administer.”
those involved in the provision of local transport, It is often said, but not often remembered, that a
should work together to help shape the great licence is a statutory and lawful permission with
waterfront city. The Council aspires to provide safe authority to do something subject to compliance
communities and accordingly recognises that the with conditions, byelaws or regulations. With any
taxi and private hire industry have an important licence comes responsibility and accountability
role to play. — particularly when the public safety is of
The determination of policy and associated paramount concern.
guidelines can be shaped by many elements but an For these reasons, a licence is a privilege which
overriding emphasis of promoting a local policy should be treated as such accordingly.
based on local needs and_ having due regard to 1.4 Portsmouth hackney carriages are the only
local knowIeFige and eV|depce for and from vehicles lawfully permitted to stand and ply
local people is of paramount importance. for the hire from the streets of Portsmouth. No

other vehicles have the authority and privilege to
provide this service in Portsmouth.
Page 11

Chapter 1: Introduction e Statement of licensing policy ® 3




1.5

1.6

4 « Statement of licensing policy ® Chapter 1: Introduction

The importance of the respective trades cannot
be underestimated and this is seen in the
thousands of jobs accepted and undertaken on
a daily basis — whether conveying vulnerable
children and adults to and from school or

on other social services contracts, picking up
passengers from the train stations and Ferry
Port, conveying holiday makers to the airports or
helping to clear the late night economy areas of
revellers night after night after night.

The Council recognises and acknowledges that
the vast majority of licensed taxi and private hire
drivers are extremely hard working and committed
to representing the city, as the local licensing
authority, in a positive and professional manner.

Equally, the Council notes the important role both
private hire operators and vehicle proprietors

play in providing and facilitating modern and
technologically advanced booking services and a
fleet of vehicles in the city.

The respective private hire and hackney carriage
trades play a critical role in providing a 24/7 local
transport provision for residents and visitors alike.

1.7

That said however, the main function of the
Council and Licensing Committee, as the local
licensing authority, is to protect and to have
regard to the public interest.

In recent times members have expressed concern
about the following:

e The number of hackney carriages licensed to

ply for hire and the resulting anecdotal evidence
of “the buying and selling” of plates which
are council property

e Whether the hackney carriage trade should be
subject to numeric control

e The suitability of some drivers by way of
background checks and ability to
communicate in English and to know their
way around the city

® The conduct of some drivers who, on the
evidence, have behaved poorly with examples
of consensual sexual contact with passengers
and the need to establish firmer guidance and
clear disciplinary sanctions to support the concept
of drivers continuing to be “fit and proper”

e The quality of vehicles from both an age and
mechanical suitability point of view and having
regard to the local environmental issues such
as air quality




1.8

2.0

3.0

3.1

3.2

National headlines about the conduct of licensed 3.3 No policy can ever be considered to be an
drivers from Rotherham and Milton Keynes absolute requirement, although the committee
have resulted in recommended changes to the will look to persons to explain, in plain and clear
guidelines on convictions (and conduct) and are terms, why a particular aspect of policy or a
contained within the review proper. There is no directive should not apply to them.
evidence whatso.ever to support any local concern Applicants and licence holders are advised that
about safegqardlng issues but nevertheless the each case will be heard and determined on merit
need tq continue to work cIo.sely with the trade, with the policy used to “guide but not to bind”
the police and partner agencies is paramount. the decision maker — whether this is the Licensing
The Department for Transport — “Best Practice Committee/Sub-Committee or officers acting
Guidance"? features heavily in the review. The under delegated authority and on behalf of the
council recognises and endorses, where possible, head of service.
the guidance but notes that the guidance is “to
assist licensing authorities” with the council
making the final decision(s) on any matters. All 4.0 The council and committee must exercise any
reference to the guidance is shown in blue italics. function with a view to preventing crime and
A link to the guidance is show below. disorder in accordance with section 17 of the
www.gov.uk/government/publications/ Crime and Disorder Act 1998,
taxi-and-private-hire-vehicle-licensing-best- 5.0 The Human Rights Act 1998 provides that
practice-guidance persons are entitled to a fair hearing and this is
recognised as a fundamental right particularly
when consideration of disciplinary action by way
This review will form the foundation and basis of of suspension, revocatllon or‘the non-renewal ,Of
future policy in respect of the hackney carriage a !lcence is under consideration. The Iggal advisor
and private hire undertaking in Portsmouth for will always guide and alert the committee on any
the foreseeable future, but will be subject to human rights matters.
regular review. 5.1  The committee recognises however that a licence
The purpose of policy is to “set the standards” is NOT a personal piece of property for the ,
and to offer informed advice and expectations to purposes ,Of the 19,98 act. but neverthe!ess will 5
applicants, licence holders and their appointed always strive to act in a fair and proportionate way.
representatives alike. 6.0 The Law Commission report and draft bill on taxi
Policy should be made (and based) on evidence law reform has put fgrwarql propqsals for the
in order to formulate any local requirements refo.rm of the respective private hire and hackney
and should not be introduced without prior carriage trade(s). The proposals have no lawful
consultation or on a whim. status at present and the committee is therefore
at liberty to consider and implement the local
Policy directives assist both members and officers policy framework on merit at this time.
in dealing with licensing matters in a uniform L,
and consistent way and ultimately gives guidance A summary of the Comm|55|on s work, for
to those in subsequent appeal situations as to information purposes, is found at Chapter 17.
the underlying rationale behind any individual
decision making process.
Page 13

Chapter 1: Introduction e Statement of licensing policy ® 5



7.0  The City of Portsmouth is situated in the
ceremonial county of Hampshire and is at the
heart of Britain’s southern coastline with long
established direct road and rail links to London,
the Midlands and Wales.

7.1 Portsmouth is undergoing great change with a
£2billion investment plan underway. Elements
such as the Tipner motorway junction and park
and ride are already completed while there is
more to come with new homes, businesses and
jobs to come from the City Deal sites and the
exciting regeneration plans for The Hard.

7.2 Portsmouth has a population of 200,000 in an
area of only 4,196 hectares, which makes it one
of the most densely occupied cities in the country
outside London.

7.3 As the local highway authority the council is
responsible for approximately 458km of vehicular
carriageway in partnership with Colas and Ensign.
Up to 90,000 inbound vehicle movements are
recorded in any one 24 hour period and previous
census data indicates 397 vehicles per 1000
people in Portsmouth.

Traffic growth is predicted to generally rise
between 19% and 55% by 2040.

7.4 Asignificant naval port for centuries, it is home
to the world’s oldest dry dock and to world
famous ships including HMS Victory, HMS Warrior
1860 and the Mary Rose. Major investment
around the harbour has transformed the “great
waterfront city”.

Home to Ben Ainslie Racing and hosting

the preliminary 2015 America’s Cup racing
series, the dynamic waterfront city still has an
important role as a major dockyard and home
base to the Royal Navy.

8.0 The city offers a vibrant mix of entertainment
facilities for residents and visitors alike with
two established theatres, restaurants, cinemas,
concert venues and a variety of pubs and clubs.
The late night economy is well served with
venues in the north located at Port Solent, the
city centre located near the Guildhall and in the
south both at Gunwharf Quays and in Southsea.

Major music festivals are held during the summer
months attracting tens of thousands of revellers.

Page 14=

6 * Statement of licensing policy ® Chapter 1: Introduction




9.0

9.1

9.2

9.3

There are 5 licence types associated with the 9.4 The private hire operator is the “pinnacle”
hackney carriage and private hire trades as follows: and all persons who, in the course of business,
« Hackney carriage vehicle licence (with make prpvision for the invi‘.[ation or acceptance
recognition of the proprietors) of bpokmgs for a private hlre vehlclg mu;t
be licensed. The operator is legally liable if
* Hackney carriage driver licence unlicensed vehicles and drivers are used.*
* Private hire operator licence The operator can be a single person, a
e Private hire vehicle licence partnership or a company. The legal concept is
. . . . the same however (and regardless of size) in that
* Private hire driver licence the operator must be a “fit and proper” person.
A licensed hackney carriage can ply for hire and Advanced modern technology utilising the latest
see.k.customers.from within the city (from ranks, forms of communication, GPS satellite tracking
cruising and. being flagged dqwn) and can also and mobile phone apps is now the norm and
d.o private hire work. The vehicle, dependent on not the exception with operators finding more
size, cannot seat more than 8 passeng.ers. The intuitive ways of encouraging customers to both
ngmber of hackney carriages may be limited. The book and continue to use their particular service
driver must be licensed. provision. The 1976 act has been woefully left
Conversely, a private hire vehicle can only pick up behind with the rapid advance of technology as
pre-booked fares (up to 8 passengers) given, in operators can now command global audiences
advance, by a licensed private hire operator. The via the world wide web let alone those close
operator, vehicle and driver licences are issued by to home. This makes the interpretation and
the same council. The committee cannot limit the enforcement of matters such as “cross border
number of private hire vehicle licences. hirings and plying for hire” sometimes very
Sometimes the public find it difficult to challenging.
understand the legal difference between the Operators in Portsmouth (particularly of recent)
respective trades and see all vehicles as “taxis” have insisted that drivers wear appropriate
and a means of getting home after a night out. It branded clothing to promote both individual
is for this reason, and to support the differences company and the general trade image. This is to
between the trades, that local authorities be supported. Likewise, the airport and specialist
including Portsmouth have policies designed to companies provide a “chauffeur” style service
reflect the difference by way of vehicle colour, with uniformed drivers and high end luxury
the use (or not) of TAXI roof signs and the use of vehicles being utilised.
locally prescribed liveries. 9.5 Vehicle proprietors can supply either the one
The committee can set the maximum fares that vehicle or hundreds of vehicles. For example,
hackney carriages can charge but have no power Scope Leasing, Outlook UK and FTVL are the
to set private hire fares. It is for the individual recognised major vehicle providers to Aqua
operator and the market to determine. Cars Ltd.

9.6 Portsmouth has one of the largest combined
hackney carriage and private hire fleets on the
south coast with over 2600 driver and vehicle
licences issued in 2015. The private hire vehicle
fleet alone comprises over 1000 licensed vehicles.

Page 15

Chapter 1: Introduction e Statement of licensing policy ® 7



9.7

9.8

There are 22 licensed operators working in the
city and providing a 24/7 public service together
with specialist businesses, executive contracts
and/or airport contracts as follows:

e 1st Choice Cars

e Airports Direct Ltd

e Airport Transfers

e Airport Travel

e Apex Airport Cars

e Andicars Portsmouth

e Aqua Cars Ltd

e Beckett Chauffeur Services
e Blue Star

e Breeze Airport Cars

e Citywide Taxis

e Clarks Airport Transfers
¢ Dovecote Executive Travel Services
e Evocatus

e Kals Airways Cars

e Llivingstone

e Marina Cars

e MCA Cars

e North End Cars

e PDS Autos

e Smith’s for Airports

e Uber Britannia Ltd

The local scene is currently dominated by
vehicles and drivers affiliated to the Aqua
Cars Ltd radio circuit.

Equally, Citywide Taxis based at The Hard provide
a comprehensive combined hackney carriage and
private hire service within the city and these two
operators remain “the big two” and duly licensed
by the council.

9.9

/

So far as drivers are concerned, both hackney
carriage and private hire drivers must be licensed
and be “fit and proper” persons. The same
administrative arrangements and processes apply
to help determine the fitness of drivers.

The main difference is that private hire drivers
are governed by conditions and hackney carriage
drivers by byelaws.

10.0 This licensing policy will be reviewed, if required,

by the Licensing Committee every 3 years.

The Licensing Service will recognise and work to
the core “objectives” (shown at the head of each
relevant chapter) at all times and will constantly
have regard to these basic principles.

The day to day upkeep of the policy will

be undertaken by the Licensing Manager

in consultation with the head of service.
Accordingly, the Licensing Manager shall be
authorised to make such minor typographical and
other corrective administrative amendments to
the policy document as required.

Page 16

8 o Statement of licensing policy ® Chapter 1: Introduction




Chapter 2: Summary of resolutions
(As approved by the Licensing Committee on 24 February 2016 under minute 9/2016)

That the scheme of delegation be noted and
adopted by the Licensing Committee and officers
alike.

—_

That Licensing Sub Committee minute 10/1987
be noted and amended.

That the terms of reference, as previously approved
by the committee, be varied so that reference to
“meetings to be held six monthly” be substituted
with “a meeting will be held once a year”.

That the Licensing Manager be authorised to
appoint and remove trade representatives and
that the change to the scheme of delegation be
approved accordingly.

That the changes to the duration of driver and
operator licences contained in the Deregulation
Act 2015 be noted.

That the head of service be authorised to amend
such policy directives, conditions of licence and
application procedures commensurate only with
these proposals; in particular to provide for:

¢ The introduction of a “rolling 3 year licence
period” for hackney carriage and private hire
drivers

e The introduction of a “rolling 5 year licence
period” for private hire operators

e The introduction of DBS checks to coincide
with the renewal dates for both driver and
operator licences

That the head of service be given delegated
authority to grant and renew driver licences
(hackney carriage or private hire) for a period of
less than 3 years but only after having regard to
the circumstances of any one individual case

That the head of service bring forward proposals
to amend/vary fees for driver, vehicle and operator
licences commensurate with these proposals.

2.
2. That the Licensing Committee approve the
scheme of delegation.
3. That the scheme of delegation be reviewed every
3 years. 3.
4.  That the head of service be authorised to amend
such policy directives, conditions of licence and
application procedures commensurate only with
these proposals.
1.
The committee resolved:
1. a) To retain the existing numeric limit (234
vehicles) on the number of hackney
carriages licensed to ply for hire within the
City of Portsmouth and to instruct the head
of service to identify a suitably qualified
independent transport consultant to carry
out a survey on the demand or otherwise
for the services of hackney carriages within
Portsmouth;
b)  That such fees and costs (including staff
costs) arising from the survey to be
determined by the committee and paid
for by the hackney carriage trade by 3
way of “one off” increase in the vehicle '
(proprietor) fees;
)  That the consultant to report back to the
committee with recommended options
4.
Page 17

Chapter 2: Summary of resolutions e Statement of licensing policy ¢ 9




That the contents be noted and endorsed.
That the Licensing Committee approve the:

l. The policy statement and guidelines on the
relevance of convictions at paragraphs 5.2
and 5.4 respectively

Il.  The requirement for applicants for both
hackney carriage and private hire drivers to
have held a full driving licence for 2 years
at paragraph 7.2

. The change to the drug testing
requirements at paragraphs 9.1 and 9.3

IV.  The requirement to adopt a minimum entry
age limit to the trade of 21 at paragraph 10.2

V. The need to establish mandatory NEW
driver training (for both hackney carriage
and private hire drivers) to comprise of:

e English language competency and
proficiency testing at the discretion of
the head of service who will arrange
such local training provision to
commence by 1 July 2016

e Disability and wheelchair awareness
training — mandatory

e Driving assessment training — mandatory
to include eco driving assessment

That the head of service:

a) be authorised to finalise, appoint and to
provide details of available courses and
appropriate training providers with a view
to commencing mandatory training for
new drivers by no later than 1 July 2016.

b)  be authorised to formally request and require
existing hackney carriage and private hire
drivers to complete such disability and
wheelchair awareness training together with
driving assessment training (as the case
may be) following receipt of a complaint or
by way of refresher training as appropriate

(NOTE - all such training to be paid
directly to the service provider by the
applicant or licence holder)

That the head of service be authorised to amend
such policy directives, conditions of licence and
application procedures commensurate only with

a)  the general vehicle specifications shown in
paragraph 4.4 be approved and adopted.

b)  the previous exemption from the standard
vehicle specifications for “stretch limousines”
be retained and that the head of service be
authorised to consider such vehicle applications
on individual merit and provided evidence
of vehicle type approval is received.

That the head of service be authorised to amend
such policy directives, conditions of licence and
application procedures commensurate only with
these proposals.

That the head of service be authorised, if
required, to finalise a revised corporate livery
and specification for both hackney carriages and
private hire vehicles.

these proposals. Page 18

10 « Statement of licensing policy ® Chapter 2: Summary of resolutions




That the PATN (Public Authority Transport
Network — Technical Officer Group) best practice
guidance for the inspection of hackney carriage
and private hire vehicles and reproduced as an
appendix be approved and adopted by the council
for the purposes of complimenting and guiding
the local vehicle testing and inspection criteria.

That the vehicle inspection and testing report
shown at paragraph 4.7 be approved and
adopted and the head of service (in consultation
with the council’s approved vehicle inspectors)
be authorised to amend, vary, add or substitute
to such local testing criteria as considered
appropriate in the future.

That all vehicles presented for initial licensing
(with the exception of temporary use vehicles
which must provide a current MOT) be subject to
inspection and test at Adams Morey, Burrfields
Road, Portsmouth.

i) That all licensed vehicles over 3 years
old be subject to a minimum of 2
vehicle inspections at Adams Morey
per licensing year — the second test to be
approximately 6 months after the first
test and to comprise a “mini” test for the
following:

e Lighting equipment
e Exhaust, Fuel & Emissions
e Vehicle body & structure

i) Should the vehicle fail ANY of the mini test
criteria — a full inspection and test will be
subsequently booked and completed and
at the expense of the vehicle proprietor.

That all licensed vehicles over 5 years old be
subject to a minimum of 2 full vehicle inspections
at Adams Morey Portsmouth per licensing year.

Should the subsequent full test for any vehicle
contain at least 3 failures and/or the imposition
of a red traffic light marker — the vehicle
proprietor will be reported to the committee for
consideration of the suspension or revocation of
the respective vehicle licence.®

10.

That the requirement for proprietors to make
application to “extend a vehicle licence” after 6
years of age be abolished and that committee
minute 37/1991 be rescinded accordingly.

That the head of service be authorised to amend
such vehicle conditions so far as this relates to:

e The need to carry a serviceable fire
extinguisher (not recommended as a
mandatory requirement)®

That the head of service bring forward proposals
in relation to any variations to the fees and
charges associated with the vehicle inspection
and testing regime and commensurate with these
proposals.

That the head of service be authorised to amend
such policy directives, conditions of licence and
application procedures commensurate only with
these proposals.

That minute 23/2006 be rescinded.

That, as a matter of local policy and condition
for both hackney carriage and private hire
vehicle licences; all private hire and hackney
carriage vehicles presented for initial licensing
shall be under 3 years of age on first licensing
and may remain licensed until 8 years of age
and provided the vehicle is mechanically fit and
supported by an evidenced service history in line
with the manufacturer’s guidelines.

That any vehicle presented for a temporary use
licence shall be under 1 year old and provided
the vehicle is mechanically fit and supported

by an evidenced service history in line with the
manufacturer’s guidelines.

That the head of service be authorised to amend
such policy directives, conditions of licence and
application procedures commensurate only with
these proposals.

Page 19

Chapter 2: Summary of resolutions e Statement of licensing policy e 11




1. That the Licensing Committee endorse and 4.  That “airport only” vehicles and vehicles used

approve the mandatory use of in car CCTV mainly for executive account type work be
camera surveillance in both licensed hackney exempted from the requirement to have CCTV
carriage and private hire vehicles (to include installed and the head of service be given
“temporary use” vehicles). delegated authority to grant such exemptions to

2. That any camera system installed in a licensed vehicle proprietors on individual merit.

vehicle shall comply with the technical 5. ) That all existing licensed hackney carriage
specifications referred to in 5.3 and private hire vehicles as appropriate be
fitted with compliant CCTV cameras by

3. That the committee approve the following new
30 September 2017.

condition for both hackney carriage and private
hire vehicle licences: i) That any newly licensed hackney carriage
or private hire vehicle from 1 April 2016
onwards be required to be fitted with
compliant CCTV cameras with immediate

The proprietor shall cause the vehicle to
be fitted with a working and secure digital
CCTV system (to capture both forward and

rear facing colour images in high definition) effect.
and to retain such data for a period of 31 6.  That the head of service be authorised to amend
days. such policy directives, conditions of licence and

application procedures commensurate only with
these proposals.

The installed CCTV to comply with any
code(s) of practice issued by the Information
Commissioner, the requirements of the

Data Protection Act 1988 and any technical
specifications approved by the committee
for the time being in force.

The proprietor shall, within 7 days, give
written notice to the council of the
installation of any CCTV system in the
vehicle to include the make, model and serial
number of the equipment so installed.

The proprietor shall check the system for
malfunctions at least once a month and, if a
repair or download is required, the vehicle
may continue to be used provided any
malfunction is rectified within 24 hours.

The proprietor shall, upon receiving any
enquiry or request from an authorised
officer or Police officer, provide details of
any stored images or audio recordings as the
case may be.

Page 20

12 « Statement of licensing policy ® Chapter 2: Summary of resolutions




1. That the Licensing Committee approve and
adopt the revised conditions of licence for
hackney carriage vehicles, private hire operators,
private hire vehicles and private hire drivers with
immediate effect.

2. That the head of service be authorised to impose
such further “special conditions” on individual
licences, as considered appropriate and
proportionate, and in respect of hackney carriage
vehicles, private hire operators, private hire
vehicles and private hire drivers. But this authority
is NOT to be used to amend or vary any of the
prescribed standard conditions.

3. That the conditions of licence for hackney carriages,
private hire operators, private hire vehicles and
private hire drivers be reviewed every 3 years.

4.  That the use of the current adopted byelaws be
endorsed and noted.

1. That the Licensing Committee note and endorse
the contents.

2. That the Licensing Committee approve the
changes to the local penalty points system and to
come into force with immediate effect.

3.  That the head of service be authorised to amend
such policy directives, conditions of licence and
application procedures commensurate only with
these proposals.

Page 21

Chapter 2: Summary of resolutions e Statement of licensing policy ¢ 13




Chapter 3: Scheme of delega
and associated responsibilities

1.4

Objective:

“To note the delegated powers and responsibilities
to both the Licensing Committee and head of

service alike and to formally re-establish and record
the “working” delegations for the supervision,
control and administration of all hackney carriage
and private hire matters”

1.1 The current scheme of delegations and the
resulting “power to licence” the various functions
under the control of the Licensing Committee are
contained within the council’s constitution made
pursuant to the executive arrangements under
the Local Government Act 2000.

1.2 The discharge of functions can be by: 1.5
e The coundil
e A committee
e A sub committee
e Officer(s)

e Another local authority (by way of agency
arrangement)

e Jointly with another local authority

1.3 The councdil is a statutory body pursuant to
the Local Government Act 1972. As such can
undertake activities and functions for which
there is an expressed statutory power or where
empowered to do so by way of, for example, a
“well-being” power such as prescribed by the
Local Government Act 2000 — which provides
for a council to carry out functions likely to
achieve the promotion of economic, social or
environmental well-being in the area.

Page 22

14 « Statement of licensing policy ® Chapter 3: Scheme of delegation and associated responsibilities

tion

The constitution provides for the Licensing
Committee (currently comprising of 15 members)
to carry out the functions relating to many
licensing and registration matters including the
hackney carriage and private hire undertaking.

Equally, there are other precise statutory
provisions and guidance as, for example, matters
relating to the administration of the Licensing Act
2003 are neatly summarised at section 7 of the
act by the following:

" All matters relating to the discharge by a
licensing authority of its licensing functions
are, by virtue of this subsection, referred to its
Licensing Committee and, accordingly, that
committee must discharge those functions on
behalf of the authority.”

For the purposes of hackney carriage and

private hire matters the constitution specifies the
functions shown below (and which are prescribed
by the functions regulations)” to the Licensing
Committee:

e Power to licence hackney carriages and
private hire vehicles.

As to hackney carriages, the Town Police
Clauses Act 1847 (10 & 11 Vict. c. 89), as
extended by section 171 of the Public
Health Act 1875 (38 & 39 Vict. c. 55), and
section 15 of the Transport Act 1985 (c.
67); and sections 47, 57, 58, 60 and 79

of the Local Government (Miscellaneous
Provisions) Act 1976 (c. 57);

As to private hire vehicles, sections 48, 57,
58, 60 and 79 of the Local Government
(Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976.

e Power to licence drivers of hackney
carriages and private hire vehicles.

Sections 51, 53, 54, 59, 61 and 79 of
the Local Government (Miscellaneous
Provisions) Act 1976.

e Power to licence operators of hackney
carriages and private hire vehicles.

Sections 55 to 58, 62 and 79 of the Local
Government (Miscellaneous Provisions)
Act 1976.



1.6

The executive is prohibited from carrying out

the above functions which are deemed to be
“council” functions.® The executive cannot be
responsible for the imposition of conditions

or the imposition/consideration of any terms

or restrictions subject to which the licence or
permission is held. The executive cannot suspend
or revoke licences nor take enforcement action to
secure compliance.

Finally, the executive cannot set or regulate fees
associated with these licensing functions.

There are however, two areas of taxi licensing
where the Licensing Committee are not expressly
empowered (by either the council’s constitution

In all cases involving the appointment, variation
or revocation of taxi stands, it is important that
the prescribed statutory requirements contained
in the 1976 act are complied with.

The fixing of taxi fares has, however, been
historically approved by the Licensing Committee
and/or via the Members Information Service.

It is therefore recommended, for future
considerations, that the Licensing Committee
continue to receive initial requests from the trade
and other interested parties about future taxi fare
rise proposals and submit a short briefing report
and any recommendation(s) from the committee
to the cabinet for final approval.

or the function regulations) to make binding 1.7 The constitution currently provides for the head
decisions without referral to the cabinet or of service to:
appropriate cabjnet member. These are.the fixing “Approve registrations or to issue licences,
of hackney carriage fares and the appom.tment of certificates in respect of:
hackney carriage stands pursuant to sections 63
and 65 of the 1976 act. They are “executive” and Hackney carriages (including the power to
not “council” functions.? grant but not to refuse the allocation of

. . . , vacant plates).
In practical terms, the Licensing Committee
has historically heard from established trade Hackney carriage proprietors, drivers, private
representatives about matters relating to taxi hire operators, vehicles and drivers”
stands and officers have prepared appropriate There is a corresponding power to the head of
Members Information Service reports for service to suspend both hackney carriage and
consideration - with the highway authority and/ private hire driver licences pursuant to section
or cabinet member for Traffic & Transportation 61 of the Local Government (Miscellaneous
being subsequently invited to approve (or Provisions) 1976.10
otherwise) the appropriate traffic regulation
orders. There is no reason why the Licensing
Committee cannot continue to act as a conduit
for considering and receiving trade requests
for the provision of taxi stands (and their
subsequent variation or revocation) but with
any final report and decisions being made by
the appropriate cabinet member or officers of
the highway authority acting under existing
delegated authority.

Page 23

Chapter 3: Scheme of delegation and associated responsibilities e Statement of licensing policy ® 15




1.8

1.9

2.0

The scheme of delegation from Full Council to 3.0
the Licensing Committee (and subsequently to

officers) ensures that there is no ambiguity and a

clear and transparent decision making process is

in place.”

This is important as it permits applicants, licence
holders and their respective legal advisors to know

that decisions of the committee or officers are
decisions of the council and thus are binding

without any need for referral or subject to any “call 31
in” procedure to another decision making body. '

Accordingly, any subsequent appeal process
against a decision of the committee or an officer
can be instigated quickly following receipt of the
formal decision notice.

The widely accepted working model for any
licensing provision is for the “day to day”
management of licensing matters (together

with routine and non-contentious applications)
being dealt with by officers BUT with matters in
conflict with policy or by their unusual nature

or public interest together with contested
applications being determined by the committee
as appropriate and in accordance with any locally
devolved delegation powers.

The accepted principle therefore is for officers to
generally grant but not to refuse licences'® — with
all contested applications (or those with a public
interest or where representations have been
made) to be put before the Licensing Committee
or a sub-committee for final determination.

This accords with the well-established principles
of administrative law relating to the rules of
natural justice and allows for persons to generally
present their case, in person, and to be heard
before members make a final determination.

Page 24

16  Statement of licensing policy ® Chapter 3: Scheme of delegation and associated responsibilities

Historically, the Licensing Service was, for

many years, aligned with the former Director

of Corporate Services/City Solicitor but more
recently became a function under the control of
the Head of Health, Safety & Licensing.

That has changed with the service (from 2015)
now reporting to the Director od Culture and City
Development and the team have now re-located
to a new purpose built lower ground floor office.

As a result of the recent changes (and having
regard to the fact that the committee has asked
for a total review of the taxi and private hire
licensing undertaking), the Licensing Manager
has asked for a formal written scheme of those
existing delegated functions (to reflect on the
particular work of the committee and reporting
officers) to be endorsed and approved by the
committee.

This will enable applicants, licence holders and
their legal representatives to be absolutely clear
about the responsibilities given to members and
officers alike.

Accordingly, the Licensing Committee is asked to
approve the scheme of delegation as shown on
pages 17-20.




Full Licensing

Matter to be dealt with Sub-Committee Officers

Committee

1 Determination of all policy matters relating to the ' In all cases'?
hackney carriage and private hire undertaking

To include determining the number of hackney
carriages licensed to ply for hire within the city
AND

If mindful of retaining a fixed number of hackney
carriages to appoint appropriate consultants’ to
carry out any future “unmet demand” surveys

2 Determination and approval of all standard In all cases
conditions for operators, vehicles and drivers to
include any variations and amendments.

Determination of “numeric thresholds” against
vehicle proprietors, operators and drivers for the
purposes of a sub-committee appearance resulting
from the penalty points scheme and to vary,
substitute or modify the penalty points scheme

3  Determination and approval of hackney carriage | In all cases
byelaws to include any proposed variations and
amendments for consideration by the Secretary of
State

4 Determination of all fees* and charges in respect In all cases
of the private hire and hackney carriage undertaking
*but for the head of service to authorise such refunds or
amendments to respective operator, vehicle or driver fees as
appropriate.

5  Grant or renewal of hackney carriage vehicle In all cases
licence to include a temporary use licence

6  Refusal to grant, renew, suspend* or revoke a In all cases
hackney carriage vehicle licence including a
temporary vehicle licence
*under section 60 of the 1976 act

7  Grant or renewal of hackney carriage driver In all cases
licence
8 Refusal to grant, renew or to revoke* a hackney In all cases

carriage driver licence
*put see 24 post

9  Grant or renewal of private hire operator licence In all cases

10 Refusal to grant, renew, suspend or revoke a In all cases
private hire operator licence

11 Grant or renewal of private hire vehicle licence to In all cases
include a temporary use licence

Page 25

Chapter 3: Scheme of delegation and associated responsibilities e Statement of licensing policy ® 17




Full Licensing

Matter to be dealt with Sub-Committee Officers

Committee
12 Refusal to grant, renew, suspend* or revoke a In all cases
private hire vehicle licence including a temporary
vehicle licence
*under section 60 of the 1976 act
13 Grant or renewal of private hire driver licence In all cases
14 Refusal to grant, renew or to revoke* a private In all cases
hire driver licence
*put see 24 below
15 Grant or refusal/revocation of a notice of exemption In all cases and

16

17

18
19

20

21

22

23

for hackney carriage or private hire driver from
carrying guide, hearing or assistance dogs on
medical grounds — Disability Discrimination Act 1995
as amended

Determination of whether a vehicle is deemed
“silver” or not and to refuse to grant or renew or
to suspend a respective hackney carriage or
private hire vehicle licence on these grounds
accordingly

Determination of passenger seating capacity for a
hackney carriage or private hire vehicle

Design of private hire operator paper licences

Design of hackney carriage and private hire vehicle
paper licences, windscreen licence discs, licence
plates and all internal notices

Design of hackney carriage and private hire driver
paper licences and their respective badges

Design of approved internal and external corporate
livery for both hackney carriage and private hire
vehicles and to grant or refuse permission for any
other external or internal sign(s)

Design and content of all hackney carriage and
private hire application forms to include any other
required form(s) or notices commensurate with
the provisions of the 1847 and 1976 acts.
‘Content’ includes the receipt of any further
information that the Licensing Manager considers
appropriate in order to determine whether a
person is “fit and proper”.

Suspension* of hackney carriage or private hire
vehicle licences pursuant to section 68 of the 1976
act

*with the sub-committee considering vehicle suspensions

Page 26

18 o Statement of licensing policy ® Chapter 3: Scheme of delegation and associated responsibilities

pursuant to section 60 of the 1976 act

subject to
satisfactory medical
enquiry and reports
being received

In all cases

In all cases

In all cases

In all cases

In all cases

In all cases but in
consultation with
corporate

communications

In all cases

In all cases



Full Licensing

Matter to be dealt with Sub-Committee Officers

Committee

24 Suspension of hackney carriage or private hire In all cases
driver licences pursuant to section 61 of the 1976
act and/or to revoke, with immediate effect, an
existing hackney carriage or private hire driver
licence having regard to the “interests of public
safety” 14

25 Determination of application for exemption from In all cases
the requirements to have CCTV in a private hire
vehicle — NO EXEMPTION FOR HACKNEY
CARRIAGES

26 Determination of application for plate and/or livery In all cases
exemption for private hire vehicles — NO
EXEMPTION FOR HACKNEY CARRIAGES

27 The grant or renewal, after consideration on If necessary In all cases
individual merit, of a hackney carriage or private
hire driver licence for a limited duration

28 The imposition of special conditions for private In all cases but not
hire operator, private hire vehicle, hackney carriage to amend the
vehicle or private hire driver licences as appropriate standard

conditions for the
time being in force

29 The refusal to grant or renew a hackney carriage In all cases BUT
or private hire driver licence in certain only by reason of:
EXCEPTIONAL circumstances 1. Evidenced

repeated
knowledge
test failure

2. Evidenced poor
communication
skills

3. Evidenced
medical
concerns'®

4. Failure of
prescribed
driving and or
other
competency tests
as prescribed

Page 27

Chapter 3: Scheme of delegation and associated responsibilities e Statement of licensing policy ® 19




Matter to be dealt with

Full Licensing

Sub-Committee Officers

30 Fixing of hackney carriage fares'®

31

32

33

34

35

36

Appointment of hackney stands (to include
proposed variations and revocations to such
stands)1”?

To determine and appoint hackney carriage and
private hire trade representatives and to rescind
any appointment if appropriate®

Any changes to the committee’s prescribed vehicle
mechanical and cosmetic inspection testing report
for hackney carriage and private hire vehicles'®

Penalty points scheme — power to issue points

Consideration of any disciplinary action against
licence holders for reaching the appropriate
penalty points “thresholds”

To instruct the City Solicitor to commence
proceedings?® for any offences and/or to offer a
simple caution or attendance by an applicant or
licence holder at any training course(s)

That the scheme of delegation as specified in 4.0
above be noted and adopted by the Licensing
Committee and officers alike.

That the Licensing Committee approve the
scheme of delegation.

Committee

To receive trade
proposals and to
make such
recommendations
to the cabinet as
appropriate

To receive trade
proposals and to
make such
recommendations
to the cabinet
member for
Traffic &
Transportation as
appropriate

If necessary

In all cases

In all cases

In all cases and
after discussion
with the council’s
appointed vehicle
testing contractor

In all cases

In all cases

3. That the scheme of delegations be reviewed
every 3 years.

4.  That the head of service be authorised to amend
such policy directives, conditions of licence and
application procedures commensurate only with
these proposals.

Page 28

20 » Statement of licensing policy ® Chapter 3: Scheme of delegation and associated responsibilities




Chapter 4: Hackney carriages —

demand and quantity control

Objective

“To determine the number of hackney carriages

licensed to stand and ply for hire within the City of
Portsmouth together with such quantity and/or
quality controls as may be appropriate”

1.1

The committee has previously expressed concern
about hackney carriage plates (which remain the
property of the council) changing hands for tens
of thousands of pounds.

The trade say they are entitled to sell and pass

on the “goodwill and business” associated with
the previous long term use of a hackney carriage
plate and that the transfer of a proprietorship
interest in a licensed vehicle is lawful 2" They
warn against the consequences of an “open
door” policy of de-restricting taxi vehicle numbers
with a resultant loss in business.

On the other hand, issuing further licences could
allow new blood to enter the trade and thus
increase freedom of choice for the travelling
public. Both the Department for Transport

“best practice” guidance and the report into the
regulation of the UK taxi industry by the Office
of Fair Trading support this view.

Any appeal against the refusal to grant a hackney
carriage licence is direct to the Crown Court.

1.2

1.3

This area of law has received much judicial
scrutiny. The control (or otherwise) of hackney
carriage numbers must be based on a local
determination of local issues and focusing on
local evidence of unmet demand for the distinct
services of hackney carriages.

“Unmet demand” evidence should realistically
be based on empirical independent survey data
and not just on the anecdotal views of local
trade representatives (or drivers) although the
committee should give due regard to their
representations and work related experiences.

In this context the committee are currently in a
potentially weak bargaining position in justifying
the refusal of any new hackney carriage licences
as the last recorded survey to assess the demand
for hackney carriages within the city was
undertaken in 2006 and is now 9 years old.??

The committee should consider the detailed
Department for Transport best practice
guidance?®? reproduced at paragraphs 3.0-3.7
together with the report from the Office of Fair
Trading?4.

Equally, the extracts shown in paragraphs 1.4-1.5
(as amended) are taken from the “Options for
Change” review considered by the committee in
2001 and remain as pertinent now as they did 14
years ago.

Page 29

Chapter 4: Hackney carriages — demand and quantity control e Statement of licensing policy e 21




1.4

The Town Police Clauses Act of 1847 is still the
primary legislation controlling hackney carriage
vehicles, proprietors and their drivers. By virtue
of Section 37, the committee previously had

an absolute unfettered discretion to determine
the number of hackney carriages that could be
available at any one time to stand or ply for hire
within the city of Portsmouth.

Without exception, such restricted practices

of quantity control introduced a “monopoly”
scenario with plates only being made available
by a culture of “buying and selling”. Inevitably,
waiting lists from applicants desirous of
obtaining a coveted hackney carriage plate were
commonplace with the committee receiving
multiple enquiries from potentially suitable
applicants in the rare event of a plate becoming
available. Waiting lists and registers were kept
for this purpose but quickly became strained and
out of date due to persons moving away, family
arguments over proprietorship details becoming
apparent and ultimately with persons on the list
passing away. The lists became almost impossible
to manage and, as a consequence, were
discontinued and destroyed in the early 1980s.

1.5

Strict quantity control measures on vehicle
numbers also attracted hard and inflexible

local conditions of licence and policy directives
requiring, for example, full time driving, owners
having no other work interests and a requirement
for proprietors to personally drive their own
vehicles.

Anecdotal evidence of proprietors “disguising”
the truthfulness of their interest (or otherwise) in a
licensed vehicle were apparent — particularly where
a “one person one plate” policy was in force.

However, Section 16 of the Transport Act 1985
qualified the absolute discretion to limit the
number of taxi licences by requiring the local
authority to be satisfied “... that there is no
significant unmet demand for taxi services

... within the area. The burden shifted to the
committee to be satisfied as to the demand or
otherwise rather than the applicant to show
evidence of demand when submitting an
application.

This does not mean that a council MUST limit
numbers if satisfied that demand is met but

acts to forbid, by statutory instruction, local
authorities from restricting vehicle numbers if not
satisfied that there is no significant demand for
the services of taxis.

22 « Statement of licensing policy ® Chapter 4: Hackney carriages — demand and quantity control




Ironically, Part Il of the Local Government
(Miscellaneous) Provisions Act 1976 (the licensing
code for private hire vehicles) specifically prohibits
the local authority from controlling private hire
vehicle numbers.

This change in the law had immediate and
significant implications to local authorities

and hackney carriage plate holders alike. The
Department of Transport issued advice (Circular
3/85) to local authorities on the grant of taxi
licences summarised in the following terms:—

“District councils may wish to review their policy
on the control of taxi numbers in the light of this
new section. A limitation of taxi numbers can
have many undesirable effects — an insufficiency
of taxis either generally or at particular times

or in particular places, insufficient competition
between the providers of taxi service, detrimental
customer satisfaction and prices for “transfer” of
taxi licences from one person to another which
may imply an artificial restriction of supply.”

The circular gave a clear indication that district
councils should not rely on the assertion of local
taxi licence holders that demand was already
catered for as they had evidence only of demand
which they satisfied. The circular stated that it
was for the committee to examine the evidence
of unmet demand using local knowledge and
circumstances. Councils were encouraged to
consider whether persons had given up trying

to use taxis because of an inadequacy of service
or whether there would be a latent demand

in parts of the local authority that had not

been adequately served. In other words, those
that might wish to use taxis may not have
demonstrated their demand since there had been
no opportunity of having it satisfied.

Equally, the circular advised that general
overcrowding at designated taxi stands was not
in itself evidence of unmet demand but rather
that the provision of taxi stands was too limited.

The circular accepted that an immediate policy of
“deregulation” could lead to an abandonment
of quality control with an initial oversupply of
taxis before market forces could bring about an
appropriate equilibrium.

Page 31

Chapter 4: Hackney carriages — demand and quantity control e Statement of licensing policy e 23

1.6

As a consequence there have been a number of
court decisions on the question of demand for
the services of hackney carriages:—

“If demand for the services of hackney carriages

is met a local authority can still issue licences.

The licensing authority can adopt a reasonably
broad approach in asking itself whether or not it
is satisfied that there is no significant demand for
the services of hackney carriages within its area to
which the licence would apply which is unmet”.
“The authority in my view is entitled to consider
the situation in relation to the area as a whole
and is also entitled to consider the position from

a temporal point of view as a whole”. “It does not
have to condescend into detailed consideration

as to what may be the position on every limited
area of the authority in relation to a particular
time of the day” R -v- Great Yarmouth Borough
Council ex parte Sawyer 1988.

“If an assessment of the number of hackney
carriages to meet a significant unmet demand
has been approved, and the committee grant up
to that number, it may refuse further applications
provided it is satisfied afresh as to the absence
of any further demand” Ghafoor -v- Wakefield
District Council 1990.

“A local authority does not have to show that
demand is satisfied at all times and may, for
example, conclude there is no significant unmet
demand where there are sufficient taxis — except for
periods during which existing drivers are reluctant
to work anti-social hours” R -v- Brighton Borough
Council ex parte Bunch 1989.

Case law has also established the following
general principles on the question of taxi
deregulation or otherwise:

e Consultation should and must take place

¢ |f unmet demand exists then licences, on
application, must be granted

e Commercial considerations are not, in
themselves and in isolation, relevant grounds

e |f unmet demand is met licences can still be
issued subject to any decision(s) being
reasonable

¢ Additional licences could be issued in batches
and subject to such local criteria as determined
(points system, lottery etc).




Hackney Carriage numbers in Portsmouth

Increase
gradually
from

234

150

Number of licensed Hackney Carriages

1990 — 1994
(All new vehicles
mandatory
wheelchair accessible)

Year

Page

24 » Statement of licensing policy ® Chapter 4: Hackney carriages — demand and quantity control




Date Number of Taxi Plates & Comments

Prior to 1975
1975-1978
1986
April/May 1987

October 1988

January 1990

June 1996

October 1997

August 2001

November 2003
June 2004
January 2005
March 2005

August 2006
October 2006

85
100 (increase in 15 plates over the 3 year period 1975 to 1978)
Further 50 hackney carriage plates issued to bring the number up to 150

Survey of unmet demand carried out by Lewis Corner of Sussex University known as the
“Corner” survey. Concluded that there was no evidence of significant unmet demand but
also recommended issue of new licences based on “quality control”. 150 vehicle licence limit
however, still maintained.

Portsmouth City Council -v- Brown. Crown Court appeal against decision to refuse to grant
hackney carriage vehicle licence. Court ruled that “services of hackney carriages” meant only
the distinct services that a hackney carriage could provide i.e. standing and plying for hire.
Evidence, in this case, that the use of a London style cab (wheelchair accessible) to facilitate
“contract” bookings for persons with mobility problems was NOT deemed relevant for the
distinct and unique service of a hackney carriage plying for trade from the street. Appeal
dismissed and 150 vehicle limit still maintained.

150 vehicle licence limit removed completely by the committee. “Quality control” policies
introduced to permit the grant of new taxi licences to vehicles meeting the then
Metropolitan Police Public Carriage Office specification. Vehicles to be wheelchair
accessible and not over 4 years old on first licensing. Previous policy of “one person one
plate” rescinded. Committee also clearly recognised that a “mixed fleet” of saloon style
cars and purpose built wheelchair accessible vehicles was desired and would offer the
public a wide and varied choice of vehicle types.

Vehicle fleet gradually increases from 150 to 234 vehicles.

Committee resolves to defer issue of new hackney carriage vehicle licences after considering
representations from interested parties (Minutes 36 and 47 of 1996 refer) and further
resolved to commission a survey.

Committee consider survey report from MCL consultants. Survey proper carried out in May/
June 1997. Agree to refuse the grant of further hackney carriage licences (Minute 32/97
refers).

“Options for Change” review of the hackney carriage and private hire undertaking. The
committee agree to retain the 234 numerical limit subject to further review in 2002 (minute
37/2001 refers).

Office of Fair Trading report published — recommends quantity regulation should be removed.
Department of Transport write to all local authorities with restricted number policies asking
for a review of policy and to publish review outcome by 31 March 2005.

Application for grant of a hackney carriage licence by Mr H deferred by the Licensing
Committee pending consideration of a further survey. Minute 8/2005 refers.

Committee resolve to commission a survey into the demand for the services of hackney
carriages and to increase the hackney carriage fees accordingly to pay for the survey. Minute
15/2005 refers.

Transport Planning International Ltd conduct unmet demand survey in Portsmouth.
Licensing Committee receive report of TPl Ltd who concluded that there is no significant
unmet demand for hackney carriages in Portsmouth at this time. Consultant’s also say the
committee has discretion to keep the limit at 234 vehicles, issue a limited further number as
though fit or to remove the numeric limit.

Committee resolve to retain the existing numeric limit of 234 vehicles. Minute

Page 33

Chapter 4: Hackney carriages — demand and quantity control e Statement of licensing policy e 25

23/2006 refers.




3.0 Best Practice Guidance

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

The best practice guidance on quantity restriction 3.6
for taxi licences is shown in paragraphs 3.2-3.8

below?5:

The present legal provision on quantity
restrictions for taxis outside London is set out

in section 16 of the Transport Act 1985. This
provides that the grant of a taxi licence may be
refused, for the purpose of limiting the number
of licensed taxis ‘if, but only if, the [local licensing
authority] is satisfied that there is no significant
demand for the services of hackney carriages
(within the area to which the licence would
apply) which is unmet’.

Local licensing authorities will be aware that, in 3.7

the event of a challenge to a decision to refuse a

licence, the local authority concerned would have
to establish that it had, reasonably, been satisfied
that there was no significant unmet demand.

Most local licensing authorities do not impose
quantity restrictions; the Department regards
that as best practice. Where restrictions are
imposed, the Department would urge that the
matter should be reqularly reconsidered. The
Department further urges that the issue to be
addressed first in each reconsideration is whether
the restrictions should continue at all. It is
suggested that the matter should be approached
in terms of the interests of the travelling public

— that is to say, the people who use taxi services.
What benefits or disadvantages arise for them

as a result of the continuation of controls;, and
what benefits or disadvantages would result for
the public if the controls were removed? Is there
evidence that removal of the controls would
result in a deterioration in the amount or quality
of taxi service provision?

In most cases where quantity restrictions are
imposed, vehicle licence plates command a
premium, often of tens of thousands of pounds.
This indicates that there are people who want to
enter the taxi market and provide a service to the
public, but who are being prevented from doing
so by the quantity restrictions. This seems very
hard to justify.

Page 34

26 » Statement of licensing policy ® Chapter 4: Hackney carriages — demand and quantity control

If a local authority does nonetheless take the view
that a quantity restriction can be justified in
principle, there remains the question of the level
at which it should be set, bearing in mind the
need to demonstrate that there is no significant
unmet demand. This issue is usually addressed by
means of a survey; it will be necessary for the
local licensing authority to carry out a survey
sufficiently frequently to be able to respond to
any challenge to the satisfaction of a court. An
interval of three years is commonly reqarded as
the maximum reasonable period between
surveys.

As to the conduct of the survey, the Department’s
letter of 16 June 2004 set out a range of
considerations. But key points are:

the length of time that would-be customers
have to wait at ranks. However, this alone is an
inadequate indicator of demand, also taken into
account should be...

waiting times for street hailings and for
telephone bookings. But waiting times at ranks
or elsewhere do not in themselves satisfactorily
resolve the question of unmet demand. It is also
desirable to address...

latent demand, for example people who have
responded to long waiting times by not even
trying to travel by taxi. This can be assessed by
surveys of people who do not use taxis, perhaps
using stated preference survey techniques.

peaked demand. It is sometimes argued that
delays associated only with peaks in demand
(such as morning and evening rush hours, or pub
closing times) are not ‘significant’ for the purpose
of the Transport Act 1985. The Department does
not share that view. Since the peaks in demand
are by definition the most popular times for
consumers to use taxis, it can be strongly arqued
that unmet demand at these times should not
be ignored. Local authorities might wish to
consider when the peaks occur and who is being
disadvantaged through restrictions on provision
of taxi services.




3.8

consultation. As well as statistical surveys, 4.0
assessment of quantity restrictions should include
consultation with all those concerned, including

user groups (which should include groups

representing people with disabilities, and people

such as students or women), the police, hoteliers,
operators of pubs and clubs and visitor attractions,

and providers of other transport modes (such as

train operators, who want taxis available to take

passengers to and from stations);

publication. All the evidence gathered in a
survey should be published, together with an
explanation of what conclusions have been
drawn from it and why. If quantity restrictions are
to be continued, their benefits to consumers and
the reason for the particular level at which the
number is set should be set out.

financing of surveys. It is not good practice

for surveys to be paid for by the local taxi trade
(except through general revenues from licence
fees). To do so can call in question the impartiality
and objectivity of the survey process.

Quite apart from the requirement of the 1985
Act, the Department’s letter of 16 June 2004
asked all local licensing authorities that operate
quantity restrictions to review their policy and
justify it publicly by 31 March 2005 and at least
every three years thereafter. The Department
also expects the justification for any policy of
quantity restrictions to be included in the Local
Transport Plan process. A recommended list of
questions for local authorities to address when
considering quantity controls was attached to the
Department’s letter. (The questions are listed in
Annex A to this Guidance.)

The Department of Transport letter dated 16 June
2004 requested that councils review local policy
to restrict hackney carriage vehicle licences and to
make that review public. The letter stated:

¢ In the Government Action Plan for Taxis and
Private Hire Vehicles, restrictions should only
be retained where there is shown to be a clear
benefit for the consumer;

e Councils should publicly justify their reasons
for the retention of restrictions and how
decisions on numbers have been reached; and

e That unless a specific case can be made, it is
not in the interests of consumers for market
entry to be refused to those who meet the
application criteria.

e However, local authorities remain best placed
to determine local transport needs and to
make the decisions about them in the light of
local circumstances.

¢ |f Councils retain quantity restrictions then a
review should be undertaken of such policies
on a triennial basis.

Page 35

Chapter 4: Hackney carriages — demand and quantity control e Statement of licensing policy e 27




5.1

5.2

53

If the committee are of a view, after consultation
with the trade and all interested parties, that
they DO NOT wish to retain the fixed limit on
the number of hackney carriages plying for hire
within the city — then members can make this
decision immediately and without the need for
further survey(s).

There would be an absolute need however to
impose QUALITY restrictions on the grant of any
new hackney carriage licences together with a
demonstrable need for any applicant to produce
evidence of a vehicle to be licensed.?®

The recommended quality control measures are 54
likely to be similar to those previously imposed after

the previous de-regulation in 1990 and include:

e The provision of a suitably constructed or adapted
fully wheelchair accessible vehicle having a
minimum nearside loading access for wheelchair
users and to meet the EC whole vehicle type
approval standards for vehicles in the M1
category or to be VCA compliant and approved

e The proprietor (or company) making the
application to either live within Portsmouth or
within 5 miles of the boundary or have their
office within Portsmouth

* The vehicle to meet with any local technical
specifications and/or vehicle conditions of
licence for the time being in force

Page 36

28 » Statement of licensing policy ® Chapter 4: Hackney carriages — demand and quantity control

The introduction of further hackney carriage
licences based on the above criteria would
NOT see an immediate and dramatic increase
in vehicle numbers. It is likely that some private
hire proprietors would apply for a hackney
carriage licence and thus reduce the existing
private hire fleet.

Nevertheless, it is accepted that the taxi fleet
would increase. The comparative increase in
vehicle numbers between 1990 and 1996
represented 14 per year until the limit was
“capped” again in 1996.

The advantages of removing numeric restrictions
would allow the market to operate freely with no
barriers and promotes:

* Benefits to customers
e Reducing waiting times
e (Creating more consumer choice

e Stops a culture of creating a premium for
taxi licences with a resultant “buying and
selling” scenario




55

5.6

5.7

5.8

The disadvantages are that the existing trade
may suffer from a gradual over supply with a
consequence of taxis “chasing fewer and fewer
jobs” leading to friction and disputes at the ranks.

There would be a need to justify any locally

set quantity control policies by the commission
of independent surveys say every 3 years
(recommended best practice) and at an on-
going cost to the existing taxi trade. The survey
fees should not be met by the tax payer and
best guess estimates for a new survey is a fee of
between £25000 and £35000 triennially.

The question of restricting (or otherwise) the
number of hackney carriages in the city is likely to
promote passionate and compelling arguments
for and against.

The existing hackney carriage trade say that the
work has “dried up” and there has been no fare
rise application for 5 years. They also say that
persons have not come forward to apply for a
hackney carriage licence since 2005. This could
however be because person(s) are aware that
the committee is not issuing hackney carriage
vehicle licences and have been reluctant to come
forward accordingly.

Some drivers have asked about the issue of
further plates and suggested that market forces
should prevail with a corresponding culture

of expansion of the taxi fleet subject to strict
quality controls. Other persons have reported to
the committee that the “buying and selling of
plates” is wrong and should be tackled. 7 This is
the shared view of your reporting staff.

The committee is in breach of the recommended
good practice guidance and cannot, at this
time, just rely on the anecdotal say so of the

taxi trade about demand or otherwise without
commissioning a further survey on demand.

This would have an immediate impact on the
licensing fees levied against hackney carriage
proprietors who would need to pay, on average,
an extra £128 each to finance a survey coming in
at a mean average cost of £30000.

6.1

The committee cannot continue in supporting a
restricted numbers policy without making some
fundamental decisions.

There are no formal recommendations put
forward as this is a matter for determination after
having considered all the available local evidence
and after taking legal advice.

The committee had previously noted the
views expressed at paragraph 5.8. The
committee were mindful of considering the
deregulation of the Hackney carriage fleet
and invited the trade representatives and
any other interested parties to give reasons
why the status quo should remain.

After careful consideration, the committee
resolved:

1. a) To retain the existing numeric limit
(234 vehicles) on the number of
hackney carriages licensed to ply for
hire within the City of Portsmouth
and to instruct the head of service

to identify a suitably qualified
independent transport consultant to
carry out a survey on the demand or
otherwise for the services of hackney

carriages within Portsmouth;

b)  That such fees and costs (including
staff costs) arising from the survey to
be determined by the committee and
paid for by the hackney carriage trade
by way of “one off” increase in the
vehicle (proprietor) fees;

)  That the consultant to report back to
the committee with recommended
options

Page 37

Chapter 4: Hackney carriages — demand and quantity control e Statement of licensing policy e 29




Chapter 5: Hackney carriage stands

Objective

“To review the provision of hackney carriage stands

2.1

and to bring any future proposals to the attention
of the highway authority and appropriate cabinet
member as quickly as possible”

1.1 Section 63 of the 1976 act permits the council
to appoint, vary or to revoke hackney carriage
stands situated either on the public highway
or, with the consent and permission of the
landowner, on private land — including railway
premises. 2.2

1.2 Stands may be appointed for all or part of the
day and the number of carriages permitted may
vary from stand to stand.

1.3 Before appointing a stand formal notice must be
given to the Chief Officer of Police together with
a public notice giving persons 28 days to make
representations.

1.4 A stand cannot be appointed so as to prevent
access to public service vehicle pick up points, to
impede access to a station or depot or without 23
the consent of the highway authority.

1.5 The power to “appoint” stands also includes the
power to vary and/or revoke a stand.

The Licensing Committee is not empowered

to appoint, vary or to revoke hackney carriage
stands and cannot make binding decisions
without referral to the appropriate cabinet
member for final determination. This is because
the appointment of stands is an executive, not a
council function.

The chapter on “scheme of delegation and
associated responsibilities” provides more
information on the delegated powers and
responsibilities.

The appointment (or otherwise) of taxi stands has
historically been after receipt of a trade request
and following the emergence of an area that has
contributed to the late night economy or where a
large commercial pub/club has become popular.

It will not be possible to appoint a stand

in every requested area or location and
experience has shown that areas of
popularity within the city do change with
a resultant loss of business at an appointed
stand — which falls into subsequent disuse.

Conversely, there are other areas where the
provision of taxi stand space is limited due to
other road traffic usage (like Albert Road by the
Kings Theatre) and evidence of “over ranking” in
this very busy area takes place.

“Unofficial” stands are also used — Goldsmith
Avenue on football match days and Park Road
at night to service the Gunwharf Quays stand.
Licensing staff do, on occasion, enforce the
byelaws and the Police have issued fixed penalty
tickets to drivers for obstruction offences. It is
difficult however to provide staff resources to
constantly tackle evidence of over ranking which
is not seen as a high priority enforcement issue.

The council has arranged, via partnership
procedures with Colas, for the trade representatives
to receive immediate notification of any planned/
scheduled road works that might impact on the
ability to use a designated taxi stand.

The information on the currently appointed
stands is shown via the link at the end of this
paragraph but is not up to date. The changes
resulting from the Ferry Port, Palmerston Road
and Hard Interchange improvements have yet to

30 » Statement of licensing policy ® Chapter 5: Hackney carriage stands




4.0

4.1

5.0

5.1

5.2

be incorporated and some other stands have now
been revoked due to historical non-use.

www.portsmouth.gov.uk/ext/business/
licensing/taxi-licensing-general-information-
and-fees.aspx

The conduct of drivers whilst waiting at stands

is reqgulated by the byelaws. In particular drivers
must face their vehicles in the same direction,
move the vehicle forward when other vehicles
move and stay with the vehicle when “first turn”.

There is nothing at law to prevent potential
passengers from negotiating with drivers “down
the line” to seek the best fare but practice and
etiguette generally recommends that drivers refer
passengers to the first available vehicle for hire.

It is an offence for a person to cause or permit
any other vehicle to wait on any stand. In
practice, the council’s civil enforcement officers
are the first line of defence in ensuring that
persons comply although licensing staff do react
to trade complaints as and when — particularly
when “works” or other utility vehicles are
blocking access to a stand.

The use of “temporary” stands is not legally
recognised in the 1847 or 1976 acts. A stand is
either appointed and in use or is not.

However, this is of some concern to the taxi trade
representatives who say that they are left in a
weak bargaining position and not often given
early notice or consulted when major city events
are being planned or taking place. They point to
the America’s Cup and Victorious events together
with smaller (but still high profile) events such as
the Southsea Food Festival.

Likewise, the redevelopment of Palmerston

Road, The Ferry Port and The Hard Interchange
has led to apparent trade frustration that their
needs were not considered at an early stage. This
concern also echoes the private hire trade who
have a legitimate and rightful expectation to have
designated “pick up and drop off points” for pre-
booked customers attending and leaving large
scale events.

There is some merit in the respective trade
concerns and, as a result, the cabinet member
for Traffic and Transportation has introduced the
Transport Liaison Group with attendees drawn

The trade say that the process of appointing
stands can be very slow and cite the possibility
of relocating the Liquid & Envy stand from its
present position in Stanhope Road with the
matter still outstanding after 2 years.

It will not be possible for the council to accede to
every trade request relating to taxi stand provision
within the city but the adoption of the following
good practice administrative principles will assist in
the consideration of all future taxi stand matters:

e The trade representatives to continue to
receive updates from Colas about road works
and closures affecting taxi stands in the city

e The City Centre Management and Events
teams as appropriate shall liaise with
appointed hackney carriage and private hire
trade representatives prior to any events
taking place and shall positively consider the
use of temporary taxi stands (with dolly stops)
together with private hire drop off/pick up points

e The trade representatives to be on the
circulation list for any SAG meetings and so far
as this relates to the planning of major events
such as Mutiny in the Park, Victorious and the
America’s Cup

e Any formal trade request for a new or varied
taxi stand to be submitted, in writing, in the
first instance to the Licensing Manager who
shall discuss the matter with the highway
authority and report back to the trade within
14 working days with an initial determination

o |f refused, the trade to receive a written
response, with reasons, from the Licensing
Manager on behalf of the council

e |f agreed in principle, the Licensing Manager
and officers of the highway authority to
prepare a report and recommendation to the
appropriate cabinet member within 28
working days of the initial agreement

¢ Once the matter has been referred to (and
approved by) the appropriate cabinet member
— the Licensing Manager and/or highway
authority to give formal public notice with an
intention, subject to no objections being
received, to have the stand in operation or
varied within 4 months

from the hackney carriage and private hire tracigaqe 39

Chapter 5: Hackney carriage stands e Statement of licensing policy ® 31




Chapter 6: Trade representatives and consultation

1.1

1.2

1.3

Any person, partnership, trade association

or company involved in the hackney carriage

or private hire business will have a legitimate
expectation of being consulted about matters
of policy, conditions of licence and other
administrative or supervisory functions that may
or will have a future impact on their working
environment.

This does not mean that the committee must
condescend into giving notice about every
change or proposal but, in the interests of good
administrative law?® and the rules of natural
justice, the committee will invite and hear the
representations of those affected by proposal(s)
before making any final decision(s).

Where the law requires the committee (or
officers) to formally consult and to give proper
public notice — this will be done together

with notices displayed in the Licensing Service
public area and given to recognised trade
representatives for distribution.

2.0

2.1

The committee has recognised the need to
consult with trade representatives and, as a
result, formally approved the introduction of a
consultative group in 1987 — minute 10/1987
refers.

In particular, the committee, at that time,
instructed officers to request the following
information from those persons apparently
representing the respective trades:

e Does the organisation have a formal
constitution governing such matters as the
election of a committee and can you provide
a copy?

e What arrangements are made to inform
members of current items of interest and to
obtain their views?

e \Who does your organisation represent and can
you supply a list of members?

As a result, the following trade representatives
were appointed:

e Mr A Brodie and E Baldwin representing the
Portsmouth Hackney Carriage Owners
Association

e Mr C Dixon representing Citywide Taxis
e Mr C Holman representing Streamline Taxis Ltd

e Mr B Tondeur representing the Independent
Hackney Carriage Proprietors

e Mr W Brown and Mr R Tanner representing
the Portsmouth Private Hire Association

e Mr L Firth representing other private hire
operators

32 « Statement of licensing policy ® Chapter 6: Trade representatives and consultation




2.2 The committee resolved to recognise the above 3.3 Trade representatives and operators meet with
trade representatives (2 persons on behalf of the Licensing Manager on matters of shared
each organisation to attend meetings) and to interest — for example preliminary meetings to
meet twice a year to discuss items of interest. discuss the annual licensing budget and any

2.3 The committee retained a final veto power proposals relating to fees.
on the appointment and recognition of either For matters concerning the use and management
organisations or persons representing the of the highway — the cabinet member for Traffic
respective trades. & Transportation has taken the lead with the

establishment of the Transport Liaison Group
(TLG) to discuss matters affecting all those in the

3.1 The use of the Consultative Group has waned local passenger transport environment including
over the last 10 years. The officers representing taxi, private hire, bus and cycle user groups.
the respective hackney carriage and private hire Equally, licensing staff have arranged, via Colas,
trades have also changed. for notified road works/closures and other safety
The current trade representatives are: alerts to be automatically sent to the trade

representatives as a matter of norm.
e Aqua Cars Ltd
o _ , 4.0 All this points towards an acceptance that the
* Chris Dixon qnd Viv Young representing the need for the Consultative Group to meet by
hackney carriage trade way of formal 6 monthly meetings has now
e Forhad Mahmud and Shahed Uddin also diminished (for the reasons set out above) but
representing the hackney carriage trade that the committee should retain the power to
e Citywide Taxis call the group together once a year if required.

3.2 In practice, established trade representatives are
immediately alerted by licensing staff about any 1. That Licensing Sub Committee minute 10/1987
proposals affectlng' thg trade qnd use modgrn be noted and amended.
means of communication to disseminate this
information quickly to members. 2. That the terms of reference, as previously

, , , approved by the committee, be varied so that
Trade representatives are given every opportunlty reference to “meetings to be held six monthly”
to attend and speak at committee hearings and be substituted with “a meeting will be held once
regularly do so. a year”.
Trade members can (and do) make immediate 3. That the Licensing Manager be authorised to
contact with either Llcen.smg Committee _ appoint and remove trade representatives and
mem'bers or ward councillors .by way of email that the scheme of delegation be amended
to raise or request the resolution of matters of accordingly.
concern.

Page 41

Chapter 6: Trade representatives and consultation e Statement of licensing policy ¢ 33




Chapter 7: Duration of licences

Objective

“To recognise the defined licensing periods for

drivers, vehicles and operators and to consequently
review administrative procedures associated with
the grant or renewal of such licences” 15

1.1 Generally speaking, licences, permits,
registrations and other statutory permissions for
persons usually have a renewal or end date and
do not last indefinitely.??

1.2 Things change. Personal and business decisions
can influence and have an impact on future
plans. People holding a licence may subsequently
be convicted of a criminal offence that will have 2.1
an impact on the ability to continue to hold that
licence. As persons get older they may experience
medical or other general health and well-being
problems. They may also just move away from 29
the area.

Licensed and recognised business premises may
move location and either expand or down size
— recognised personnel at a business may also
change.

All these matters can have an influence on the
duration of a licensing period.

1.3 People do not always tell the council immediately
about changes in their personal circumstances
that might have a significant impact on any
subsequent licensing renewal process.

1.4 The renewal process for licences (particularly
driver licences) is, unfortunately, a guaranteed
“vetting” method in finding out and updating all
those things that have changed in the previous
12 months.

Anecdotally, over 30% of the information
provided by licence holders at renewal is different
to that held on current records. This can relate

to changes in address, telephone or other
contact details, name changes, new convictions, 2.4
endorsements or cautions and finally to the

current disclosure of a previously underlying

medical condition.

2.3

Page 42

34 « Statement of licensing policy ® Chapter 7: Duration of licences

The council still needs to establish, at renewal,
that there are no germane or valid reasons to

suggest that a person is not still deemed to be
“fit and proper” to hold a respective hackney

carriage or private hire driver licence.

For all the above reasons, the council, as the local
licensing authority, has historically exercised an
extremely cautious view of “extending” licensing
periods over and above a period of 1 year at a
time for both drivers and operators.

However, the council recognises that the law has
changed and that longer licensing periods for
certain licensing functions are now the norm.

Section 43 of the 1847 act provides that a
hackney carriage vehicle licence shall be in force
“for one year only from the day of the date of
such licence”.

Section 48 of the 1976 act equally provides that
a licence for a private hire vehicle “shall remain in
force for such period not being longer than one
year”.

For the purposes of “temporary use” vehicle
licences (which are used as a substitute when the
main vehicle is off the road due to accident or
mechanical repair) — the respective acts are silent
on their use but, as a matter of local policy, the
committee would expect to issue a temporary
vehicle licence for usually no more than 31 days.

This provision should be seen as an emergency
exemption and to arbitrarily extend the
temporary use period indefinitely would negate
the whole purpose of the temporary permission
and therefore extensions beyond 31 days are
unlikely to receive approval unless in exceptional
circumstances.

The 1976 act permits for vehicle inspections and
testing to take place up to 3 times in any one
period of 12 months.

The 1976 act also permits driver licences for both
private hire and hackney carriage to remain in
force for up to 3 years (or for such lesser period)
as the committee may be specified.



2.5

2.6

2.7

2.8

For the reasons expressed in 1.1-1.5 above, it has
been the longstanding policy of the council to

grant driver licences for a period of 1 year only. 3.1 The Department for Transport guidancg“ does
not support the view of annual driver licences
Private hire operator licences could, by law, and states “it is not necessarily good practice to
remain in force for up to 5 years (or for such lesser require licences to be renewed annually”
period) as the council specified. Again, the local _
Portsmouth policy for operator licences has been 3.2 ;onversely, the guidance ac;epts that an annual
to grant licences for periods of 1 year at a time. licence may be more a.ttractlve due to the lower
fee and if a person is likely to move away or get
Informal discussions with operators and another job.
trade representatives (as part of the previous _ , ,
transformation programme) in the last year or 3.3 For ope.rator Ilcen”ces, the guidance is c!ear jthat
so had led to an initial officer view that operator > year ||cence”s ~ "may well be appropriate in the
licences could be granted and renewed for a average case
period of up to 3 years and this was to be put 3.4 Itis agreed that operator licences should be
before the Licensing Committee for consideration. granted or renewed for a longer licensing period
A word of caution should be exercised in relation than 1 year.
to the “renewal” of respective driver, vehicle and 3.5 There are local reservations however about the
operator licences. Sections 60, 61 and 62 of the concept and practical implications of driver
1976 act envisage a “renewal” or the “grant licences lasting for a statutory minimum period
afresh” of a licence that is coming to an end. of 3 years — but the council accepts that, with
There has been a historical informal practice proper due diligence procedures in place, we
to recognise, and to renew, “late renewals” — sho.uld be.able to manage any changes to licence
particularly for driver licences and sometimes periods without an.y.detrlm.ental |mp§ct on the
for vehicle licences. This cannot be regarded as control and supervision of licensed drivers.
satisfactory as the individual driver circumstances
may have changed significantly.
The “renewal” process is designed to minimise
the need for persons to comply again with
the original requirements used to determine
the overall fitness of an applicant. This
includes the knowledge test, medical and DBS
requirements. To permit “late renewals” without
consideration of the overall general licensing
requirements would effectively nullify the power
of the committee to require persons to provide
information in support of their continued fitness
to drive.
For these reasons, and due to case law?3?,
the council will only accept and process
any renewal application received on or just
before a current licence is due to expire or, in
exceptional cases, within 2 days after the expiry
of the respective licence.
Page 43

Chapter 7: Duration of licences e Statement of licensing policy ® 35



4.1 The 2015 act has significantly changed, by
statutory instruction, the licensing periods for
both drivers and operators.

4.2  The changes are:

e For hackney carriage and private hire
drivers — now a prescribed 3 year licence
period

e For private hire operators - now a
prescribed 5 year licence period

4.3  The changes come into force on 1 October 2015.32

4.4 The relevant explanatory note to this part of the
2015 act states:

“Subsection 2 changes the law in such a way as
to establish a standard duration of 3 years for
taxi and private hire vehicle driver licences. The
section specifies that a licence may be granted
for a period of less than 3 years but only in the
circumstances of an individual case, not because
of a blanket policy.”

4.5 \Vehicle licences (hackney carriage and private
hire) are NOT affected by the changes and will
remain licensed for periods of up to 1 year.

5.0 Whilst the default position is for the grant or
renewal of 3 yearly driver licences — there may be
justifiable reasons to grant (or renew) individual
driver licences for shorter periods due to:

e Medical conditions (such as diabetes) which
require the production of a yearly consultant’s
report on continued fitness to drive to the
group 2 vocational standard

* Persons granted a licence (or having a licence

renewed) “on probation and/or warning” by the

Licensing Sub Committee and subject to strict
criteria such as completing a driving assessment
or providing monthly reports and monitoring for
good behaviour for a shorter period of time

e Those persons with say a limited permission to

stay or work in the UK

e Those applicants or drivers requesting a
shorter duration licence for personal reasons
— (see paragraph 1.2)

e Any other reasonable and individual
circumstances

5.1

6.1

6.2

6.3

Page 44

36 * Statement of licensing policy ® Chapter 7: Duration of licences

It is recommended that the head of service be
given delegated authority to grant and renew
driver licences for a period of less than 3 years
but only after having regard to the circumstances
of any one individual case.

Good and proper reasons, consistent with 5.0
previous for restricting any licence duration
should be recorded.

For many years the Licensing Service has operated
a "fixed year” renewal cycle for operators,
vehicles and drivers. This practice has long been
accepted by the trade and whilst it has caused
“pressure points” for the Licensing Service at
various times of the year — the system has worked
reasonably well.

All hackney carriage licences expire on 30 April
annually.

All private hire licences expire on 31 January
annually.

There is however, pressure on staff to “turn
around” renewal applications almost on demand.
Staff goodwill is pushed to the limit and the
public areas in licensing can become very busy

at these peak periods. Other licensing matters
are dealt with “as and when” during the

peak demand periods for drivers, vehicles and
operators.

An analysis of the 2014 Q Flow figures for the
Licensing Service is shown opposite. These are the
total figures and therefore including Licensing Act
2003 enquiries as well. However, the majority of
enquiries are taxi and private hire related.




Q flow for licensing service

6.5

Number of customers seen

Jun

Total customers for year 11,270

Average for calendar month 939

Jul

2014 by month

6.4 There will always be a demand for both new (and 6.6  However, it is recognised that the use of say

renewal applications) to be dealt with in person an automated “on line” renewal system for
as original documents including some of a highly future years could be beneficial and should be
sensitive nature (criminal record checks, driving explored. Equally, the use of “on line” diaries and
licences, medicals, vehicle registration documents automated booking facilities for driver knowledge
and insurances etc) are required to be produced tests, drug screens and vehicle inspections should
in support of applications. also be explored.
Applicants are NOT encouraged to send such This would all be subject to IT provision, audit
documents through the post nor should compliance and general security requirements
licensing staff be required to keep or retain these being put into place.
docgme_nts pending consideration of any one There may be cost implications in updating
application type. computer software to facilitate any secure on line
Equally, new drivers are required to undertake a renewal application process and this would also
supervised in house knowledge test and will also need to fit with corporate priorities.
t?e subject to drug screening and interview by The concept of on line renewals (and payments)
licensing staff. should however be positively considered and for
New vehicles must be inspected (and this reason it is contained as a statement of intent
photographed) by licensing staff prior to first in this policy review.
licensing and plating. It is likely, in any event, that the traditional
The service is dominated by a demand and need procedure of “sending out renewal papers” to
to have “face to face” personal contact with licensed drivers, vehicle proprietors and operators
applicants and licence holders alike. will cease as part of a drive to cut down on

administrative processes, paperwork and ultimately

to save costs to the licensing undertaking.

Page 45

Chapter 7: Duration of licences e Statement of licensing policy ® 37




7.0

7.1

From October 2015 any new driver and operator
licences will normally be granted for their
respective longer licensing periods and therefore
will expire on a “rolling” basis rather than all on a
fixed end date.

On next renewal, existing driver licences will
normally be “extended” for 3 year periods in line
with the Deregulation Act 2015.

It is likely that DBS checks will be “moved”
administratively to coincide with the next renewal
date for any individual 3 year driver licence.

For vehicles however, the concept of a yearly
licence with publicly displayed and “colour coded”
windscreen licence discs is more appropriate and
thus the fixed expiry dates of 31 January and 30
April for the respective private hire and hackney
carriage fleets should be retained for the time
being. The need to retain the vehicle licence expiry
date on the plate may be discontinued.

Page 46

38 ¢ Statement of licensing policy ® Chapter 7: Duration of licences

8.0

8.1

Of paramount importance (and with the
introduction of longer licensing periods) is the
requirement for drivers to REPORT IMMEDIATELY
any changes whatsoever in their circumstances
that might affect their continued “fit and
properness” to continue to hold a licence.

The council cannot rely on section 57 of the
1976 act as this requires applicants to provide
information to determine whether a licence
should be granted or renewed and does not
compel those persons already licensed to provide
information to the committee mid-term during a
licensing period.

Accordingly, the conditions of licence for private
hire drivers will be amended to require:

1. The driver shall notify the council within 24
hours of any changes to:

e Their name, address, telephone or email
contact details

e Any medical condition that might affect
an ability to drive professionally to the
group 2 vocational standard

e Their driving licence so far as this relates
to the imposition of penalty points,
any other endorsements, fines or
disqualifications

e Their Disclosure & Barring Service
enhanced check certificate so far as
this relates to the imposition of any
convictions, cautions, reprimands or
warnings

e Their right to work or reside in the UK.

2. The driver shall notify the council within 24
hours of any arrest, detention or charges
being preferred against them.

Similar conditions will apply to operators
and vehicle proprietors.

8.2 The committee and/or officers will put into place

formal mandates and procedures to ensure, either
by way of electronic check or by way of a formal
declaration, the production of driver licence and
other relevant information and will use appropriate
checking services for this purpose.




9.0

A zero tolerance view will be taken towards
licensed drivers failing to notify the council
at any time of:

e Any change in an existing medical
condition (or new condition) that might
interfere with an ability to drive
professionally to the group Il vocational
standard

e The imposition of any new driving
endorsement, fine, penalty points, short
“totting up” ban or other driving sanction
prescribed by law

e Any new conviction, caution, reprimand
or warning received

And there will be a presumption in favour
of a hearing before the Licensing Sub
Committee to determine whether the driver
is still deemed to be a fit and proper person
and any consequential action against the
respective hackney carriage or private hire
driver licence.

That the changes to the duration of driver and
operator licences contained in the Deregulation
Act 2015 be noted.

That the head of service be authorised to amend
such policy directives, conditions of licence and
application procedures commensurate only with
these proposals; in particular to provide for:

® The introduction of a “rolling 3 year licence
period” for hackney carriage and private
hire drivers

¢ The introduction of a “rolling 5 year licence
period” for private hire operators

e The introduction of DBS checks to coincide
with the renewal dates for both driver and
operator licences

That the head of service be given delegated
authority to grant and renew driver licences
(hackney carriage or private hire) for a period of
less than 3 years but only after having regard to
the circumstances of any one individual case and
consistent with 5.0 above.

That the head of service bring forward proposals
to amend/vary fees for driver, vehicle and operator
licences commensurate with these proposals.

Page 47

Chapter 7: Duration of licences e Statement of licensing policy ® 39




Chapter 8: The test of ‘fit and proper’

e 1.3
Objective:

“To protect the welfare, safety and interests of both

the travelling public and all other road users by
ensuring that licences are only granted or renewed
to persons who are judged to be fit and proper.”

1.1 The 1847 act is silent on the need to examine or
indeed to have regard to the “fitness” of those
proprietors and drivers of licensed hackney carriages
plying and standing for hire within the city.

Revocation or suspension of the respective

hackney carriage licences is still permissible

under section 50 of the 1847 act for persons 1.4
convicted of two offences contrary to the act or
byelaws; but, generally speaking, the question

of determining whether a person or operator is

judged to be “fit and proper” is a concept found

only in the 1976 act.

1.2 Sections 51 and 59 of the 1976 act prescribe
that the council shall NOT grant a private hire or
hackney carriage driver licence unless satisfied
that the applicant is a “fit and proper” person.

The same test is found at section 55 and in
respect of private hire operators.

1.5

Page 48

40 » Statement of licensing policy ® Chapter 8: The test of fit and proper’

For vehicle proprietors, the council may grant or
renew licences having regard to the fitness of
the vehicle and after taking into consideration
any locally approved policy guidance on vehicle
specification, vehicle age limits and such like.

However, the question of the “fitness” of the
individual vehicle proprietor(s) should not, in the
committee’s view, be overlooked or minimised.
Just because vehicle owners may not have direct
day to day contact with the public and are not
subject to routine vetting by way of criminal
background checks — does not mean that they
play a lesser or insignificant part in the overall
licensing process.

Vehicle proprietors (both hackney carriage and
private hire) have a lawful duty to ensure that
drivers are both properly licensed and insured

to drive their vehicles. The vehicle itself must be
licensed, maintained properly (and to a standard
that meets the expectations of the committee
by way of any prescribed testing criteria) and the
proprietor must ensure that all documents are
kept and made readily available for inspection.

All this points towards a positive presumption
that vehicle proprietors must also be seen to be
“fit persons” and that any evidence of general
criminality or non-compliance with either the
1847 or 1976 acts will be considered seriously.*?

There is no exact definition of “fit and proper”
and each case stands to be considered on
individual merit with the public protection and
welfare at the heart of any deliberations.

The law was summarised by the then Lord Chief
Justice in the following way:

“The objectives of the licensing regime
are plainly intended, among other things,
to ensure so far as possible, that those
licensed to drive private hire vehicles are
suitable persons to do so, namely that
they are safe drivers with good driving
records and adequate experience, sober,
mentally and physically fit, honest, and
not persons who would take advantage
of their employment to abuse or assault
passengers”.34



1.6 Case law?® has also established the following
general principles to assist and determine the
overall test of “fit and proper”:

spent convictions, cautions or reprimands
etc and where it is in the interests of
justice to do so

e The burden is on the applicant or ¢ The committee does not have to

licence holder to establish that they are
fit and proper

The Licensing Committee and/or officers
will seek to establish the facts and merits
of any particular case on the civil burden
of the “balance of probabilities” and thus
can consider evidence notwithstanding
any acquittal or not guilty verdicts reached
from any previous criminal proceedings

The determination of “fit and proper” is
not akin to criminal proceedings and the
use of hearsay is admissible (although the
legal advisor will caution the committee
as to the weight of evidence to be
attached to such background third party
evidence) as appropriate to the case in
question

2.0

Private hire and hackney carriage drivers
are part of the “exempted” professions so
far as the Rehabilitation of Offenders Act
1974 (as amended) is concerned and the
committee may consider evidence of

conclude that there is a reasonable
chance of a conviction when considering
evidence of misconduct against an
applicant or licence holder who has, or is,
the subject of pending criminal matters

¢ Personal circumstances are not
relevant considerations

¢ The committee cannot go behind (or
review the merits of) previous criminal
convictions

Should the committee refuse to grant, suspend,
revoke or refuse to renew a driver licence there is
a right of appeal to the Magistrates’ Court.

Any “notice of decision” following a committee
hearing will clearly advise persons of the reasons
for any decision(s) taken together with their
respective appeal rights.

Page 49

Chapter 8: The test of ‘fit and proper’ e Statement of licensing policy ¢ 41




3.0 Best Practice Guidance™

3.1

It is not surprising that the best practice guidance
provides much information about the licensing of
drivers as shown in paragraphs 3.1-3.10:

Acceptance of Driving Licences from other
EU Member States

“Sections 51 and 59 of the Local Government
(Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976 as enacted
stated that an applicant for a taxi or private hire
vehicle (PHV) driver’s licence must have held a full
ordinary GB driving licence for at least 12 months
in order to be granted a taxi or PHV driver’s
licence. This requirement has subsequently been
amended since the 1976 Act was passed.

The Driving Licences (Community Driving Licence)
Regulations 1996 (SI 1996 No 1974) amended
sections 51 and 59 of the 1976 Act to allow full
driving licences issued by EEA states to count
towards the qualification requirements for the
grant of taxi and PHV driver’s licences.

Since that time, a number of central and eastern
European states have joined the EU and the EEA
and the Department takes the view that drivers
from the Accession States are eligible to acquire a
taxi or PHV driver’s licence under the 1976 Act if
they have held an ordinary driving licence for 12
months which was issued by an acceding State
(see section 99A(i) of the Road Traffic Act 1988).
To complete the picture, the Deregulation (Taxis
and Private Hire Vehicles) Order 1998 (SI 1998 No
1946) gave equal recognition to Northern Ireland
driving licences for the purposes of taxi and PHV
driver licensing under the 1976 Act (see section
109(i) of the Road Traffic Act 1988, as amended).

Page 50

42 » Statement of licensing policy ® Chapter 8: The test of fit and proper’

3.2 Criminal Record Checks

A criminal record check is an important safety
measure particularly for those working closely
with children and the vulnerable. Taxi and PHV
drivers can be subject to a Standard Disclosure
(and for those working in “Requlated Activity”

to an Enhanced Disclosure) through the Criminal
Records Bureau. Both levels of Disclosure include
details of spent and unspent convictions, cautions
reprimands and final warnings. An Enhanced
Disclosure may also include any other information
held in police records that is considered relevant
by the police, for example, details of minor
offences, non-conviction information on the
Police National Computer such as Fixed Penalty
Notices and, in some cases, allegations. An
Enhanced Disclosure is for those working in
Regulated Activity and the Government has
produced guidance in relation to this and the
new “Vetting and Barring Scheme”.

In considering an individual’s criminal record,
local licensing authorities will want to consider
each case on its merits, but they should take

a particularly cautious view of any offences
involving violence, and especially sexual attack. In
order to achieve consistency, and thus avoid the
risk of successful legal challenge, local authorities
will doubtless want to have a clear policy for the
consideration of criminal records, for example
the number of years they will require to have
elapsed since the commission of particular kinds
of offences before they will grant a licence.

Local licensing authorities will also want to have a
policy on background checks for applicants from
elsewhere in the EU and other overseas countries.
One approach is to require a certificate of good
conduct authenticated by the relevant embassy. The
Criminal Records Bureau website gives information
about obtaining certificates of good conduct, or
similar documents, from a number of countries.

It would seem best practice for Criminal Records
Bureau disclosures to be sought when a licence is
first applied for and then every three years, even
if a licence is renewed annually, provided drivers
are obliged to report all new convictions and
cautions to the licensing authority.




3.3

3.4

Notifiable Occupations Scheme

Under this Scheme, when an individual comes

to the notice of the police and identifies their
occupation as a taxi or PHV driver, the police are
requested to notify the appropriate local licensing
authority of convictions and any other relevant
information that indicates that a person poses

a risk to public safety. Most notifications will be
made once an individual is convicted however, if
there is a sufficient risk, the police will notify the
authority immediately.

In the absence of a national licensing body for
taxi and PHV drivers, notifications are made

to the local licensing authority identified on

the licence or following interview. However, it

is expected that all licensing authorities work
together should they ascertain that an individual
is operating under a different authority or with a
fraudulent licence.

The police may occasionally notify licensing
authorities of offences committed abroad by
an individual however it may not be possible to
provide full information.

Immigration Checks

The Department considers it appropriate for
licensing authorities to check on an applicant’s
right to work before granting a taxi or PHV
driver’s licence. It is important to note that a
Criminal Records Bureau check is not a Right

to Work check and any enquires about the
immigration status of an individual should be
addressed to the Border and Immigration Agency.
Further information can be found at www.bia.
homeoffice.gov.uk/employingmigrants

More generally, the Border and Immigration
Agency’s Employers’ Helpline (0845 010 6677)
can be used by licensing staff to obtain general
guidance on immigration documentation,
although this Helpline is not able to advise on
individual cases.

The authority can obtain case specific immigration
status information, including whether a licensing
applicant is permitted to work or details of work
restrictions, from the Evidence and Enquiry Unit,
Floor 12, Lunar House, Wellesley Road, Croydon
CR9 2BY . Further details on the procedures
involved can be obtained by contacting the Unit
(020 8196 3011).

Page 51

3.5

3.6

3.7

Medical Fitness

It is clearly good practice for medical checks to
be made on each driver before the initial grant of
a licence and thereafter for each renewal. There
is general recognition that it is appropriate for
taxi/PHV drivers to have more stringent medical
standards than those applicable to normal car
drivers because:

they carry members of the general public who
have expectations of a safe journey; they are on
the road for longer hours than most car drivers;
and they may have to assist disabled passengers
and handle luggage.

It is common for licensing authorities to apply

the “Group 2" medical standards — applied by
DVLA to the licensing of lorry and bus drivers — to
taxi and PHV drivers. This seems best practice.
The Group 2 standards preclude the licensing of
drivers with insulin treated diabetes. However,
exceptional arrangements do exist for drivers with
insulin treated diabetes, who can meet a series
of medical criteria, to obtain a licence to drive
category C1 vehicles (ie 3500-7500 kgs lorries);
the position is summarised at Annex C to the
Guidance. It is sugqgested that the best practice is
to apply the C1 standards to taxi and PHV drivers
with insulin treated diabetes.

Age Limits

It does not seem necessary to set a maximum
age limit for drivers provided that regular medical
checks are made. Nor do minimum age limits,
beyond the statutory periods for holding a full
driver licence, seem appropriate. Applicants
should be assessed on their merits.

Driving Proficiency

Many local authorities rely on the standard car
driving licence as evidence of driving proficiency.
Others require some further driving test to be
taken. Local authorities will want to consider
carefully whether this produces benefits which
are commensurate with the costs involved for
would-be drivers, the costs being in terms of both
money and broader obstacles to entry to the
trade. However, they will note that the Driving
Standards Agency provides a driving assessment
specifically designed for taxis.

Chapter 8: The test of ‘fit and proper’ e Statement of licensing policy ® 43




3.8

3.9

Language Proficiency

Authorities may also wish to consider whether
an applicant would have any problems in
communicating with customers because of
language difficulties.

Other Training

Whilst the Department has no plans to make
training courses or qualifications mandatory,
there may well be advantage in encouraging
drivers to obtain one of the nationally-recognised
vocational qualifications for the taxi and PHV
trades. These will cover customer care, including
how best to meet the needs of people with
disabilities. More information about these
qualifications can be obtained from GoSkills,

the Sector Skills Council for Passenger Transport.
GoSkills is working on a project funded by the
Department to raise standards in the industry and
GoSkills whilst not a direct training provider, can
guide and support licensing authorities through
its regional network of Regional Managers.

Some licensing authorities have already established
training initiatives and others are being developed;
it is seen as important to do this in consultation
with the local taxi and PHV trades. Training can
cover customer care, including how best to meet
the needs of people with disabilities and other
sections of the community, and also topics such

as the relevant legislation, road safety, the use

of maps and GPS, the handling of emergencies,
and how to defuse difficult situations and

manage conflict. Training may also be considered
for applicants to enable them to reach an
appropriate standard of comprehension, literacy
and numeracy. Authorities may wish to note that
nationally recognised qualifications and training
programmes sometimes have advantages over
purely local arrangements (for example, in that the
qualification will be more widely recognised).

Contact details are:

GoSkills, Concorde House, Trinity Park, Solihull,
Birmingham, B37 7UQ.

Tel: 0121-635-5520
Fax: 0121-635-5521

Website: www.goskills.org
Email: info@qgoskills.org

3.10 Topographical Knowledge

4.0
4.0

Page 52

44 » Statement of licensing policy ® Chapter 8: The test of fit and proper’

Taxi drivers need a good working knowledge of
the area for which they are licensed, because
taxis can be hired immediately, directly with the
driver, at ranks or on the street. So most licensing
authorities require would-be taxi-drivers to pass
a test of local topographical knowledge as a pre-
requisite to the first grant of a licence (though
the stringency of the test should reflect the
complexity or otherwise of the local geography,
in accordance with the principle of ensuring that
barriers to entry are not unnecessarily high).

However, PHV/s are not legally available for
immediate hiring in the same way as taxis. To
hire a PHV the would-be passenger has to go
through an operator, so the driver will have an
opportunity to check the details of a route before
starting a journey. So it may be unnecessarily
burdensome to require a would-be PHV driver

to pass the same ‘knowledge’ test as a taxi
driver, though it may be thought appropriate to
test candidates’ ability to read a map and their
knowledge of key places such as main roads
and railway stations. The Department is aware
of circumstances where, as a result of the repeal
of the PHV contract exemption, some people
who drive children on school contracts are being
deterred from continuing to do so on account
of overly burdensome topographical tests.

Local authorities should bear this in mind when
assessing applicants’ suitability for PHV licences.”

The committee generally agrees with the best
practice guidance.



5.0 Policy on the Consideration and
Relevance of Convictions

5.1 The council both as an employer, and as the local
licensing authority responsible for taxi and private
hire matters, is a registered body and receives
information about convictions and cautions etc
recorded against persons from the Disclosure &
Barring Service.

As such, the council has adopted a policy
statement on the recruitment of ex- offenders.

The committee, as the local licensing authority,
has also adopted a policy statement for the
purposes of the hackney carriage and private hire
undertaking.

It should be noted that the function and purpose
however of the Licensing Committee is not to
“recruit” persons but rather to ensure that those
person(s) with previous convictions and seeking
“to apply for and/or to retain a licence” are
considered to be “fit and proper”.

5.2 The policy statement is shown below:

The city council, as the local licensing authority will
make all efforts to prevent discrimination against any
applicant or licence holder or users of the licensing
service, regardless of race, gender, religion, sexual
orientation, age, disability or offending background.

The licensing authority complies fully with the
Disclosure and Barring Service Code of Practice which
is available to view at the link shown below:

www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/
uploads/attachment_data/file/143662/cop.pdf

The licensing authority will receive appropriate
guidance in the relevant legislation, e.g. the
Rehabilitation of Offenders Act 1974 as amended.
The use of “spent” convictions, cautions or other
sanctions may be considered as appropriate and
subject to legal advice.

Having a conviction, community or other order or
caution resulting from a custodial or non-custodial
sentence need not necessarily bar persons from
obtaining or continuing to hold a licence.

The committee will consider the seriousness of the
offence(s), whether isolated or not, the age of the
offender and the sentence imposed by the convicting
court.

Each case will be considered on merit but the
overriding consideration will be the protection and
welfare of the public. The licensing authority will have
regard to the overall convictions policy shown in this
document and will hear the representations of those
persons affected before making any final decisions.

The licensing authority however expects all persons to
make a full and honest disclosure of all previous
convictions together with any outstanding arrest or
charges being brought against them. A serious view
will be taken for non-disclosure.

Should any convictions be revealed following a DBS
check, the person concerned will be asked to attend
for interview with an authorised officer and, if
necessary, the sub-committee will be asked to
consider any contested matter or application.

The licensing authority will not disclose the results of
any DBS checks to third parties and will use the
information solely to determine the fit and properness
of the person concerned. In this respect, the
information will be retained for as long as that person
remains licensed by the council and destroyed
thereafter.

Chapter 8: The test of ‘fit and proper’ e Statement of licensing policy ® 45




5.3 The current Portsmouth policy on the relevance
of convictions3” stems from joint guidance
published in March 1992 by the Department for
Transport and the Home Office.38

This followed the introduction of the then Road
Traffic Act 1991 which, by virtue of section 47,
created a new power for the council to send
details of driver applications to the Police and to
seek the Police views accordingly.??

5.4  The policy is now over 20 years old and in
need of review. The LGA “Taxi and private Hire
Councillors’ Handbook” supports this view.*®

Accordingly, the Licensing Committee has
adopted the following guidelines on criminal
convictions, cautions etc together with guidelines
on the evidence of non-criminal behaviour
amounting to inappropriate conduct by an
applicant or licensed professional driver. The
guidelines are produced opposite.

5.5 Each case will be determined on merit.

The committee will expect persons and/or their
representatives to have read and had regard to the
requirements shown in 1.5, 1.6 and 5.2 above.

5.6 The committee will not, as a matter of
norm, consider “spent” matters except in
those circumstances shown in the chapter
“Rehabilitation of Offenders” and at
paragraph 4.2.

Page 54

46 » Statement of licensing policy ® Chapter 8: The test of fit and proper’




Guideline

Comments

Type of Conviction!

Any violence offence(s) to
include threatening
behaviour, domestic abuse,
harassment and stalking
matters, possession of
offensive weapons, more
serious public order
matters, resisting arrest,
criminal damage, arson etc

Any sexual offence(s) to
include sexual assault,
indecency, indecent
assault, gross indecency
grooming, sexual
trafficking offences, having
or downloading obscene
material, possession of
indecent images, rape

Any dishonesty offence(s)
to include theft, shop
lifting, handling, fraud,
burglary, making false
statements, perjury etc

Any offence(s) against the
1847 or 1976 acts to
include the byelaws and

a breach of conditions
constituting an offence

at law

Any substance abuse
offence(s) and to include
evidence of illicit drug use
either by way of medical
examination or drug test
failure.

Normally a minimum 5 (and up to 10)
year ban from obtaining or holding a
licence.

For convictions of GBH (or with intent),
wounding, manslaughter, murder or any
terrorism linked offences the committee
are unlikely to support an application

Normally a minimum 10 year ban from
obtaining or holding a licence.

For convictions of grooming, sexual
assault, rape and/or offences against
children or vulnerable adults or for
persons on the sex offenders register the
committee are unlikely to support an
application

Normally a minimum 5 (and up to 10)
year ban from obtaining or holding a
licence.

Normally a 1 year ban from obtaining or
holding a licence after date of conviction

Normally a 3 year ban*? from obtaining
or holding a licence and any future
application to include appropriate and
supporting medical reports if necessary

Page 55

Chapter 8: The test of ‘fit and proper’ e Statement of licensing policy ® 47

A particularly serious view will be taken in
relation to offences against Police or other
public servants or against children

Drivers may, by nature of their duties,
convey vulnerable single females late at
night.

Drivers convey vulnerable adults and
children on school and other special needs
contracts on a daily basis — sometimes
supervised and sometimes alone.

Drivers are in an absolute position of trust
with access to lost property left in vehicles,
knowledge of empty properties when
persons are away on holiday and dealing
with customers/tourists that might not be
familiar with the locally prescribed fares

A person who offends against the
licensing code shows a propensity towards
non-compliance with the law

To include, drink, drugs or use of
legal highs




Type of Conviction!

Guideline

Comments

Motoring offence(s) to
include endorsements,
short disqualifications,
totting up disqualifications,
drink drive, no insurance,
driving without due care,
reckless or dangerous
driving, failure to control a
motor vehicle by using a
mobile phone or other
device, failure to comply
with prescribed road traffic
signs, failure to stop or to
report an accident,
defective vehicle and illegal
parking etc

General Inappropriate
Conduct to include that of
a sexual nature,
persistent and justified
complaints (service
requests) against an
individual driver OR due
to any other matters not
specifically mentioned
above and/or where the
reporting officer is not
prepared to support an
application or continued
licensing

Normally a verbal warning for
endorsements and less than 8
penalty points.

If more than 8 current penalty points
endorsed on a driving licence then
refer to Licensing Sub Committee for
determination on merit.

For “one off” short disqualifications
licence may be restored at end of
disqualification by officers subject to a
written warning and compliance with
any directives to attend and pass
approved driving competency tests.

For no insurance, drink driving,
careless driving, failing to stop or
report an accident etc normally a 3
year ban from obtaining or holding a
licence.

For offences of causing death by reckless
or dangerous driving, repeated drink
drive convictions the committee are
unlikely to support an application

Normally a 5 year ban from obtaining
or holding a licence**

Page 56

48 » Statement of licensing policy ® Chapter 8: The test of ‘fit and proper’

A driver is considered to be a
“professional” driver and offences contrary
to the road traffic acts and regulations will
be treated seriously

The committee have previously received
evidence of road traffic incidents involving
licensed drivers in Portsmouth — particularly
towards cyclists and other road users and a
serious view will be taken accordingly*3.

The committee has previously considered
and adjudicated on complaints about
drivers “chatting up” or having consensual
sex with passengers after “stopping
work” 4>

In such cases, and despite no evidenced
criminality or Police investigation leading to
charges, the committee’s view is that such
behaviour is not becoming of a professional
driver and, upon complaint or referral from
another agency, is likely to result in the
revocation of a driver licence.

This includes drivers asking for personal
details from passenger(s), inappropriate
sexual banter (to include the sending and
receiving of texts or other social media)
and/or comments made of an offensive or
discriminatory nature whether verbally, by
text or by way of social media to which
there is public access.

For drivers receiving multiple complaints from
the public, other road users or the trade (and
in any one licensing period) the committee
will take a serious view accordingly.



6.1

The overall concept of what constitutes a “fit
and proper” person cannot be drawn from just
the consideration of an antecedent criminal

There is no immediate need, at law, for the
holder of an EU licence to exchange their driving
licence to one issued by DVLA but some drivers
choose to do so.

history alone. 7.1 The minimum legal requirement is for a person to
o have held a full driving licence for 12 months. It
For example, a person mgy be free from conw;tlon is doubtful that persons are deemed “good and
b|Ut have a m)eﬂ'fil concli(ljtlon (Su?l:S ok;structlve experienced drivers” by virtue of recently passing
> eeP apnoea ‘? wou preyen gm rom their test as driving skills will develop with age,
holding a driver licence notwithstanding that they experience and on-going training
could drive their own motor vehicle and also hold '
a DVLA driver licence. It is all too easy for drivers to slip into bad and
, predictable habits.
They could have a poor understanding of o . .
the geography of the city or be unable to Th.IS is recognised by the Rpad Traffic (New
communicate in English to a satisfactory standard Drivers) Act 1995. New drivers are subject to
thus being unable to read or comprehend road more robust regulation with the revocation of
signs and the like. driver licences by DVLA if 6 or more penalty
They could be a poor driver with evidence of points are imposed within the first “two year
robationary period”.
complaints, previous endorsements and a failure to P . yP . .
pass any prescribed driving or other practical tests. Following revocation, the driver would need to
, obtain a provisional licence and pass both the
All these factors are, in thgmselves, matters that theory and practical tests again.
go to the heart of determining whether, and in
driving experience is relative to the length of time
a person has been lawfully permitted to drive
Sections 51 and 59 of the 1976 act prescribe that and therefore WOUld expect applicahts fqr either
a person applying for either a hackney carriage a hackney carriage or pnvalte hire driver I|.ce.nce
or private hire driver licence must have held a to have held a full driving licence for a minimum
H 47
full driving licence for a period of 12 months period of 2 years.
and be the holder of a licence “at the date of 7.3 The council notes the abolition of the
application” .46 “counterpart” driving licence with effect from
This does not mean that they must have held June 2(.)1 > gnql further notes that Fh.e hegd
a driver licence for a continuous period of 12 of service will introduce such administrative
months prior to submitting an application procedures (including driver mandates) to enable
' appropriate DLC checks to be carried out on both
Driver licences from EU and EEA member states applicants and licence holders alike.
are compatible with the requirements of the
1976 act — see the Best Practice guidance at 3.1
previously.
Page 57

Chapter 8: The test of ‘fit and proper’ e Statement of licensing policy ® 49



8.1

The council notes the advice contained in the
best practice guidance at 3.2 previously and
will ensure compliance with the following
administrative requirements:

e All driver DBS checks will be to an enhanced
level with a formal request for drivers to be
checked, as a matter of local policy, against
the position of “child and adult workforce”42

e Any person who has lived overseas for any
period of time*? since the age of 10 will be
required to provide proof of fitness by way of
a “certificate of good conduct” obtained via
an embassy or other recognised government
agency and to be authorised by an accredited
notary. The certificate must be provided for
both criminal AND motoring matters and be
translated into English. ONLY ORIGINAL
DOCUMENTS WILL BE ACCEPTED*

e DBS checks will be carried out on initial
application and every 3 years to coincide with
the general renewal dates for driver licences

e Basic DBS checks will be required for private
hire operators, upon subsequent renewal, and
may be required for vehicle proprietors (if
deemed necessary)

e Any DBS check or certificate of good conduct
will be rejected if over 3 months old

e There will be a DBS portability presumption at
the discretion of the head of service for any
enhanced check up to 3 months old

e There will be a presumption in favour of the
refusal to grant, suspension or non-renewal of
a driver licence (as the case may be) if a driver
has failed to comply with the requirements to
produce a DBS enhanced check or certificate
of good conduct

* further information on criminal record checks
for overseas applicants can be found via the
following link:

https://www.gov.uk/government/
publications/criminal-records-checks-for-
overseas-applicants

Page 58

50 ¢ Statement of licensing policy ® Chapter 8: The test of ‘fit and proper’

9.1

9.2

9.3

The council notes the best practice guidance at
3.5 above and considers that the current policy of
requiring applicants and drivers to comply with the
group 2 vocational standards has stood the test of
time and offers satisfactory public protection.

The revisions to the conditions of licence to
now require the formal reporting of any medical
condition will be of assistance.

The "At a Glance” guide to medical standards
provided by the DVLA Drivers Medical Group
provides regular updates for medical practitioners
and is available via the following link:

https://www.gov.uk/government/
publications/at-a-glance 3°

The policy in Portsmouth about the general
requirements for medicals is as follows:

e The medical MUST be completed by the
person’s own GP and/or at the practice
having immediate access to that person’s
medical records

e The medical must be completed on first
application, then at 45 and every 5 years®"
until 65 and then annually but with a
presumption of drug testing every 3 years

e A driver must declare any medical condition
that might affect his/her ability to drive

e The committee and officers will use the
appointed Medical Referee for the time being
in force to act as a final arbiter in any cases
of concern??

Of some concern is that evidence of illicit drug
use by a small minority of drivers is still apparent.
For example, the last 23 spot checks undertaken
on drivers by enforcement staff revealed 4
failures. 3 for cannabis use and 1 for cocaine use.

The use of drugs whether prescribed or not is
simply not compatible with professional
driving and is likely to lead to either the
immediate suspension or revocation of a
respective driver licence.

Enforcement staff will remain proactive and carry
out random drug screens on drivers, vehicle
proprietors and operators as appropriate.




10.1

10.2

There will be a presumption in favour of
mandatory drug screening for all drivers

every 3 years. 11.1 A person yvho has no right to reside or vyorl§ in
the UK will not be entitled to make application

The DVLA "At a glance’ medical standards of for a driver, vehicle or operator licence. Close

fitness to drive recommend the refusal to grant, links are maintained with the local visa and

renew or to revoke a vocational licence where immigration staff from the Portsmouth office and

persistent use or dependency on illicit drugs is regular and routine liaison between licensing and

noted and evidenced. immigration staff is encouraged and maintained.

However, for evidence of any illicit drug use Copies of documents provided by applicants in

(or misuse of prescribed drugs) the council will support of any licensing application may be given

normally suspend or refuse a driver licence for to Home Office and/or immigration staff upon

a minimum period of 6 months and/or up to a formal request.

maximum period of 3 years and will only consider o , .

the reinstatement of a driver licence subject Itis Ilke”Iy thqt in the futurg, formal fnq.umes

to the receipt of negative drug screens at the about “the right to work in the UK” wil

expense of the driver. be made on rgspectlve driver and operator
applicants having regard to clauses in the current
Immigration Bill which is before parliament.

Apart from the requirement for a person to have

held a full driving licence for 12 months there are - o

no other requirement in either the 1847 or 1976 12.1 The ability to both speak and write in clear

acts to regulate the age of drivers. Engllsh is essential. Drivers are the first ‘and only
point of contact for passengers who might have

This does not mean that it is unlawful to impose little geographic knowledge of the city and thus

an age limit guideline provided the rationale is are totally reliant on a driver understanding their

sound and non-discriminatory. Some council's journey and onward travel requirements — this is

impose “entry age limits” and some do not.>* particularly so for hackney carriage drivers. The

In practice however, new drivers are subject ability to read and understand road and other

to “vetting” via insurance brokers and their traffic direction signs is essential.

underwriters and local research®* shows that Drivers must be able to write a receipt for

persons under the age of 25 are extremely business travellers upon request.

unlikely to receive acceptance to drive licensed , ,

vehicles for insurance purposes. The prescribed knowledge test.contalns a.number
of modules and an understanding of English

Coupled with the noted requirement for a person is required to both attempt and to pass the

to have held a full driving licence for 2 years individual modules.

— (see 7.2 above), this would indicate that an o ,

appropriate minimum age limit for both hackney Face t.o fac.e contact with initial appl'lcants can

carriage and private hire drivers should be 21. alert licensing staff to .referlar?y appllcant with ,
apparent communication difficulties to the senior

Analysis of computer records for ‘new driver’ staff for interview.

applications in 2014-2015 show 311 applications . o

being received. Of these, 9 drivers were under 25. Should staff be satisfied that an gppllcatlon cannot

It seems that a certain amount of ‘self-regulation’ be suppgrted fqr 'anganG proficiency reason; h

is in place but a policy guideline would re-inforce the applicant W'l_l be. adV'S_Ed to seek and obtam

this position further.cqmmunlcatlon quIIs by Wgy of education
and training and the application will be refused

The committee does not consider that an “upper” under delegated power to the head of service.

age limit for drivers should apply provided

continued medical fitness to drive is maintained.

Page 59

Chapter 8: The test of ‘fit and proper’ e Statement of licensing policy ® 51




13.1 The ability to convey persons both around the city

and to further afield destinations (such as airports
and international ports) is essential. The best
practice guidance at 3.10 indicates that hackney
carriage drivers are more likely to require “local
knowledge” than a private hire driver who will
have advance notification of a booking.

This does not mean however that a test of local
knowledge is NOT required for both hackney
and private hire drivers and the committee
considers that both sides of the trade should
be subject to local knowledge testing by way
of formal examination. This will include adhoc
verbal examination by licensing staff including
undertaking routes within the city.

The previously permitted “exemption” from the
knowledge test for airport drivers will be removed
due to evidenced mis-use and ALL drivers will
therefore need to demonstrate competency in
the prescribed modules.

There are 6 prescribed local modules comprising:

e General knowledge and basic law on hackney
carriage and private hire matters

e Driving theory and highway code

e Building locations, local landmarks and
shortest routes

e Basic numeracy
e Qut of town locations
e Complaints and general rules

e NOTE —the test will be kept under review and
modified as required.

The large private hire operators (Aqua Cars and
Citywide) also undertake knowledge testing as
part of their local compliance criteria.

Drivers have a lawful duty not to prolong, in time
or distance, any journey booked.>®

141

14.2

Page 60

52 « Statement of licensing policy ® Chapter 8: The test of ‘fit and proper’

The best practice guidance at 3.9 is positive
about the advantages of

“encouraging drivers to obtain one of the
nationally recognised vocational qualifications”.

In Portsmouth, there has not been a historic
practice to require either applicants or existing
drivers to obtain formal training and this does
need to be addressed.

Members have expressed a collective desire to see
the introduction of “customer care” training. The
committee’s equalities advisor has also advised
that there is a real need to establish wheelchair
accessibility training — particularly for those
drivers of wheelchair accessible vehicles.*®

Although previous council initiatives such as

the “Pride in Pompey” campaign positively
encouraged drivers to participate in “local”
schemes — the take up, without being mandatory
in nature, was disappointing.

The ability to require applicants and drivers alike
to both participate in, and produce evidence of,
acquired training skills has found judicial favour
as section 57 of the 1976 act permits the council
to ask persons to submit such information as

may be considered reasonably necessary... to
determine whether a licence should be granted.®”




THE BLUE
LAMP TRUST

DRIVER TRAINING FOR BUSINESS

A Charity set up in Hampshire by the Fire and Rescue Service & Police to promote
safety in our community. We are a not-for profit organisation and any profit
generated from our business activities is re-invested into running the Bobby
Scheme and providing grants to local communities.

As an employer you are required to implement safe working practices for
all aspects of your business. This includes employees who drive for work
whether they use company vehicles or their own. As a Director, if you fail
to meet those obligations, you could be exposing yourself to imprisonment
(14 years) if found guilty of Gross Negligence Manslaughter or large fines
(up to 10% of turnover) if the company is convicted of corporate Manslaughter.

For more information on our training please see our website at:
www.bluelamptrust.org.uk - call us now on

or email us at

@ Porerolutions

14.3 The committee and officers have instructed

individual drivers in the past to attend and pass
driver training and awareness courses by way of
improving and dealing with evidence of previous
poor driving skills; and local providers such as the
Blue Lamp Trust®® have found favour in providing
a quick and reliable service.

The Blue Lamp Trust is used as the council’s preferred
assessor for staff driver competency training.

Some of the big fleet private hire vehicle
providers have requested that new drivers from
Eastern Europe attend and pass driver awareness
courses prior to making driver licence applications.

14.4 Finally, the evidence given to the Licensing

Committee in November 2014 about road traffic
accidents in the city and involving Portsmouth
hackney carriages and private hire vehicles would
suggest that the time is right to specify, by local
policy directive, that all new drivers (and, in due
course, existing drivers) attend and complete
approved and prescribed driver training courses.

The trade representatives have already indicated
a complete support for any road safety and
disability awareness training initiatives.

3.

That the contents be noted and endorsed.
That the Licensing Committee approve the:

l. The policy statement and guidelines on the
relevance of convictions at paragraphs 5.2
and 5.4 respectively

Il. The requirement for applicants for both
hackney carriage and private hire drivers to
have held a full driving licence for 2 years
at paragraph 7.2

lll.  The change to the “age related” drug testing
requirements at paragraph 9.1 and 9.3

V. The requirement to adopt a minimum entry
age limit to the trade of 21 at paragraph 10.2

V. The need to establish mandatory NEW driver
training (for both hackney carriage and
private hire drivers) to comprise of:

e English language competency and
proficiency testing at the discretion of
the head of service who will arrange
such local training provision to
commence by 1 July 2016

¢ Disability and wheelchair awareness
training - mandatory

e Driving assessment training - mandatory
to include eco driving assessment

a) That the head of service be authorised to
finalise, appoint and to provide details of
course(s) and appropriate training providers
with a view to commencing mandatory
training for new drivers by no later than
1 July 2016

b)  That the head of service be authorised
to formally request and require existing
hackney carriage and private hire drivers
to complete such disability and wheelchair
awareness training together with driving
assessment training (as the case may be)
following receipt of a complaint or by way
of refresher training as appropriate

(NOTE - all such training to be paid for direct to the
service provider by the applicant or licence holder)

That the head of service be authorised to amend
such policy directives, conditions of licence and
application procedures commensurate only with

Page 61these proposals.

Chapter 8: The test of ‘fit and proper’ e Statement of licensing policy ® 53




Chapter 9: Rehabilitation of Offenders Act 1974

Objectives

1. “To provide applicants and licence holders alike
with information about the rehabilitation
periods for custodial and non-custodial
sentences

To recognise that licensed drivers are a

regulated occupation for the purposes of the
exceptions order AND

To recognise that the council is a judicial
body for the purposes of the act and thus
may take into consideration ‘spent’
convictions or cautions”

1.0 Introduction & Legal Provisions

1.1 Prior to the introduction of the Rehabilitation of
Offenders Act 1974 there were no protections
in place to prevent potential employers from
making negative decisions about a person’s
suitability based on evidenced criminality (even
if a one off offence) that occurred many, many
years previously.

The “checks and balances” were not in favour
of recognising that persons could become
“rehabilitated”.

1.2 The then Local Authorities Conditions of Service
Advisory Board wrote to all local authorities

following the introduction of the act and stated:

“The main purpose of this short but complex
piece of legislation is to ensure that a person
who has been convicted of a criminal offence
in his past and who has since lived on the right
side of the law for a specified period of time is,

so far as possible, freed from the stigma of that
conviction and is treated as if the conviction had

never occurred.”

1.3 The act introduced the concept of defined

rehabilitation periods with the “slate being wiped

clean” with most previous convictions being
deemed “spent” after a period of time.

There were caveats however in respect of
persons convicted for subsequent “either way”
or indictable offences (following an earlier
conviction) which resulted in both the previous
and new conviction being deemed not spent
until the end of the rehabilitation period for
both offences.

Page 62

54 « Statement of licensing policy ® Chapter 9: Rehabilitation of Offenders Act 1974

2.0

3.0

3.1

3.2

The act prescribed for a table of rehabilitation
periods to apply in respect of the sentences
imposed (not the offence type) and also, by
statutory order, prescribed certain regulated
occupations where persons would have to
declare convictions and cautions even if
considered spent.

There has not always been an automatic right
to enquire about, and receive details of, an
applicant’s previous criminal history and up
until 1992 the council relied completely on the
individual declarations made by applicants and
drivers.

Evidence of previous convictions not being
declared was sometimes apparent and, following
extensive lobbying and the introduction of the
Road Traffic Act 1991, — local authorities received
access to police records from April 1992. The
function was then administered by the Chief
Officer of Police.

From 2002, subsequent criminal record enquiries
became a responsibility of the former Criminal
records Bureau (CRB) until the formation of the
Disclosure & Barring Service (DBS) in 2012.

The council is a registered body for the purposes
of receiving information from the DBS. Licensing
staff are all registered “counter signatories” for
the purposes of both processing, receiving and
considering evidence of previous convictions via
enhanced DBS checks. The Licensing Manager
retains the “lead counter signatory” role and

is responsible, on behalf of the service, for
compliance with the DBS codes of practice for
registered bodies.




4.0 Hackney Carriage and Private Hire drivers are 4.2

4.1

a regulated occupation and have been so

since 2002.%? Equally, the council is a “judicial
authority” for the purposes of the act and thus
can ask for, and consider evidence of, spent
convictions where justice cannot otherwise

be done.5°

Accordingly, evidence of previous convictions
(including the consideration of spent convictions
on individual merit) may be used to assess
whether an applicant or driver is considered to
be a fit and proper person for the purposes of
holding (or continuing to hold) a licence. This
test will also be used, as appropriate, for the
consideration of vehicle and operator matters.

Page 63

Chapter 9: Rehabilitation of Offenders Act 1974 e Statement of licensing policy e 55

However, the council will ONLY
receive evidence of, and thus take into
consideration, spent convictions when
satisfied that:

e The overall circumstances of the
application and/or matter under
consideration outweighs the right not to
consider spent convictions

e Any current convictions taken together
with any spent convictions reveal a
pattern of previous repeat offending

¢ OR with evidence of conviction(s) spent or
otherwise, there has been the release of
further information from the Disclosure &
Barring Service in relation to:

The children’s barred information list or
The adult’s barred information list or

Other relevant information disclosed
by the Chief Officer of Police

¢ AND the applicant or licence holder has
been invited to address the committee as
to why, in general terms, any spent
matters should not be considered




5.0 In 2014 the government announced significant 5.2
reforms to the rehabilitation periods for both
custodial and non-custodial sentences and these
new changes came into effect in March 2014.67

5.1 The old (red) and new (green) rehabilitation 53
periods are shown below: '

For custodial sentences

6.0
Sentence Former New

Length Rehabilitation Rehabilitation
Period Period

(Period of sentence

PLUS the buffer
period below
which applies
from the end of
the sentence)

0 -6 months 7 years 2 years

6 — 30 months 10 years 4 years 6.1
30 months —  Never spent 7 years

4 years

Over 4 years Never spent Never spent

For non-custodial sentences

Sentence Former New
Rehabilitation Rehabilitation
Period Buffer period

(Applies from the
end of sentence)

Community 5 years 1 year
order and

Youth

Rehabilitation

Order

Fine 5 years 1 year from date of
conviction

Absolute 6 months None
discharge

Conditional Various — Period of order
discharge, mostly between

referral order, 1 year and

reparation length of the

order, action  order

plan order,

supervision

order, bind

over order,

hospital order Paqe 64

The link to the gov.uk web advice is shown below:

https://www.gov.uk/government/
publications/new-guidance-on-the-
rehabilitation-of-offenders-act-1974

From December 2008, simple cautions,
reprimands and warnings are considered spent
with immediate effect.

Finally, it should be emphasised that the
effect of the 1974 act is to consider the
impact and relevance of any previous
convictions against the need to establish
whether an applicant, driver or other licence
holder is a fit and proper and suitable person
to drive the public on a professional basis OR
to provide a vehicle OR to accept bookings
from the general public. The protection

of the public is the committee’s prime
consideration.

The committee is not seeking to punish a
person twice on the basis of “he’s done the
crime and done his time” — but are carrying
out an important statutory function where
the evidence of previous wrong doing must
be balanced against the need to protect the
travelling public.

The committee and officers alike will also
have regard to the adopted policy guidelines
on the relevance of criminal convictions as
shown elsewhere in the policy document.

56 ¢ Statement of licensing policy ® Chapter 9: Rehabilitation of Offenders Act 1974




Chapter 10: Vehicle specification requirements

Objective:

“To provide the travelling public with access to a

wide range of spacious, safe and comfortable
vehicles”

1.1

1.2

A hackney carriage is defined as a wheeled
carriage, whatever its form or construction, used
in standing or plying for hire in any street within
the prescribed distance.

The carriage must seat fewer than 9 passengers
and is normally recognised as being a motorised
vehicle but equally could be a horse drawn or
other form of non-motorised transport such as a
rickshaw or pedicab.%?

Only a hackney carriage can stand or ply for hire
from a street in Portsmouth. Hackney carriages
can also wait at appointed taxi stands, cruise for
work and be hailed in the street.

The driver must be licensed.

Hackney carriages can also accept private

hire “pre-booked” work (without needing an
operator licence) and it is not unusual to see
hackney carriages affiliated to established private
hire operator radio circuits.

A private hire vehicle is a motor vehicle
constructed or adapted to seat fewer than 9
passengers, other than a hackney carriage or
public service vehicle, which is provided for hire
with the services of a driver for the purposes of
carrying passengers.

All work given to the driver of a licensed
private hire vehicle must be via a licensed
private hire operator.

1.3

1.4

Section 47 of the 1976 act permits the council to
require a hackney carriage to be of such design
or appearance or bear such distinguishing marks
as shall clearly identify it as a hackney carriage.

Section 48 of the 1976 act permits the council to
be satisfied that a private hire vehicle is suitable in
type, size and design.

A hackney carriage or private hire vehicle could
theoretically, by law, be licensed to accommodate
1 passenger — i.e. a pillion on a licensed
motorbike but normally vehicles accommodating
a minimum of 4 passengers have been
recognised at a local level.

The safety concerns and suitability relating to
the use of a motorcycle as a licensed private
hire vehicle could be a valid consideration
notwithstanding that the machine has been
constructed by the manufacturer to a very high
and safe standard.®?

Chapter 10: Vehicle specification requirements ® Statement of licensing policy ¢ 57




1.5

1.6

1.7

Over the years the council has considered
applications (or given suitable advice) for the
consideration of hackney carriage and private hire
vehicle licences in respect of:

e Horse drawn Jersey carriages

e Ford Lincoln Town Cars (stretched limousines)
e Hummers

e Converted JCB digger machine

e Converted Volvo fire appliance

e Converted ambulance

e Piaggio Ape Calessino and Bajaj motorised 3
wheeler tricycles

¢ Pedicabs and rickshaws®4

Vehicles used for hire or reward at separate

fares and with a seating capacity of 9 or more
passengers are recognised as PSV’s and regulated
by the Traffic Commissioners.

It is permissible (particularly so for the licensing
of hackney carriages) to approach a local vehicle
specification policy in a “partial and progressive
way” by implementing policy that affects part of
the licensed fleet only.®®

Equally, the use of all wheelchair accessible
vehicles meeting the former Metropolitan Police
Pubic Carriage Office specification (now Transport
for London) has found favour in some local
authority areas, but not all.

“Split” fleets with a mixture of saloon style and
wheelchair adapted vehicles are popular and this
is the case in Portsmouth.

1.8

1.9

The current hackney carriage fleet comprises 150
saloon, estate, MPV style vehicles and a further
84 fully wheelchair accessible vehicles. The
committee has shown little inclination previously
to enforce and promote a uniform standard
wheel chair accessible fleet and have recognised
that persons travelling short distances may not
wish to do so in a large “people mover” type or
London style vehicle whilst on their own.

The current make-up of the “mixed” vehicle fleet
offers various choices to the travelling public.

There are therefore no proposals to insist on
a fully wheelchair accessible fleet of hackney
carriages in Portsmouth.

The private hire fleet comprises 1034 vehicles®®
with about 30 wheelchair accessible vehicles
being licensed.

The maijority of the private hire fleet comprise

of models from the Skoda and Hyundai ranges
together with a number of larger 6-8 seater models
including the Vauxhall Zafira and Ford Tourneo.

A number of “executive” and airport cars are
used by both the established larger operators and
the smaller specialist niche market operators.

It is generally accepted that most persons with

a disability or restricted movement will phone in
advance for a suitable vehicle. This does not mean
however that there should not be recognition
towards the provision of wheelchair accessible
vehicles nor should their use be discouraged by
way of policy guideline or condition.

Currently Aqua Cars Ltd have over 30
dedicated wheelchair accessible vehicles
operating on their circuit.

58 e Statement of licensing policy ® Chapter 10: Vehicle specification requirements




2.0 Best Practice Guidance

2.1

3.0

The Department for Transport best practice
guidance offers advice to local authorities as
follows®7:

“The legislation gives local authorities a wide
range of discretion over the types of vehicle

that they can license as taxis or PHVs. Some
authorities specify conditions that in practice can
only be met by purpose-built vehicles but the
majority licence a range of vehicles.

Normally, the best practice is for local
licensing authorities to adopt the principle
of specifying as many different types of
vehicle as possible. Indeed, local authorities
might usefully set down a range of general
criteria, leaving it open to the taxi and PHV
trades to put forward vehicles of their own
choice which can be shown to meet those
criteria. In that way there can be flexibility
for new vehicle types to be readily taken
into account.

It is suggested that local licensing authorities should
give very careful consideration to a policy which
automatically rules out particular types of vehicle

or prescribes only one type or a small number of
types of vehicle. For example, the Department
believes authorities should be particularly cautious
about specifying only purpose-built taxis, with the
strict constraint on supply that that implies. But of
course the purpose-built vehicles are amongst those

4.0 Proposed Vehicle Specifications for
Portsmouth

4.1

The current Portsmouth vehicle specifications
have been in place, with minimal modifications,
since 1978. They relate generally to the

age of vehicles, minimum seating capacity,

a requirement for a minimum of 4 doors,
wheelbase and interior seating dimensions
together with ease of access, comfort
considerations and colour.

They are in need of review and clarification.

which a local authority could be expected to license. 4.2 Local vehicle specifications may not always be
Similarly, it may be too restrictive to automatically reflected in any corresponding vehicle conditions
rule out considering Multi- Purpose Vehicles, or to as they are matters that form part of the initial
license them for fewer,oassengers than their seating app“cation and guidance process to potentia|
capacity (provided of course that the capacity of the vehicle proprietors. That said, any requirements
vehicle is not more than eight passengers). should be formulated with due care and the
The owners and drivers of vehicles may want to consideration of such discretionary powers should
make appropriate adaptations to their vehicles to have regard to the underlying statutory provision
help improve the personal security of the drivers. which, in this case, is the design, appearance,
Licensing authorities should look favourably fitness and comfort of the vehicle to be
on such adaptations, but, as mentioned in licensed.
paragraph 35 below, they may wish to ensure 4.3 The committee would expect any vehicle to
that modifications are present when the vehicle is comply with the general specifications together
tested and not made after the testing stage.” with any age limit policy, mechanical inspection
The committee agrees with the general views and testing regime and subsequent conditions
expressed in the best practice guidance and, in of vehicle licence. The hackney carriage byelaws
particular, with the sentiments shown in bold. also offer some guidance as to the vehicle
fittings and fixtures.
Page 67

Chapter 10: Vehicle specification requirements ® Statement of licensing policy ¢ 59




As a prerequisite, the council would expect that
the proprietor of any hackney carriage should
either reside in Portsmouth or within five miles of
the boundary or, if a company, have an operating
base or registered office within Portsmouth.

A proprietor may only hold an interest in one
saloon at any one time.

4.4  The standard vehicle specification for both
hackney carriage and private hire vehicles will
normally be as follows:

1.  The vehicle should meet the EC whole
vehicle type approval standards for
vehicles in the M1 category or be VCA
compliant and approved - Private hire
or hackney carriage wheelchair
accessible vehicles licensed prior to 1
April 2016 may remain in use with a
minimum nearside loading provision
BUT any newly licensed fully wheelchair
accessible private hire or hackney
carriage after this date may be licensed
with either rear, side loading or both.

2. If a hackney carriage, the vehicle shall
be a uniform silver in colour

3. If a private hire vehicle, the vehicle
shall be any colour other than silver

4. The vehicle shall normally be right
hand drive

10.

11.

12.

There should be sufficient doors of
sufficient size to aid entrance and exit
from the vehicle in comfort®®

The vehicle shall have a wheelbase of
at least 2540mm

The back seat shall be at least 1270mm
wide

Any individual seats should be at least
400mm wide®®

The vehicle shall comply with any age
limit guidelines

The vehicle proprietor shall comply
with any approved local livery
requirements for both hackney carriage
and private hire vehicles and so far as
this relates to roof signs for hackney
carriages and all exterior and interior
signage’?

If the currently licensed hackney carriage
is on a designated and recognised
wheelchair accessible plate - it may only
be replaced by a wheelchair accessible
vehicle and complying with the
requirements of 1 above.

The vehicle must not have been “written
off” for the purposes of the industry
recognised categories A, B, C and D.

60 » Statement of licensing policy ® Chapter 10: Vehicle specification requirements




4.5

4.6

4.7

5.0

The council may change, substitute or vary
vehicle specification guidelines at any time
and proprietors should make contact with the
Licensing Service if in any doubt about the
suitability of an individual vehicle.

A person may still however ask the committee
to consider an application for a vehicle that does
not meet the general specifications and have
that matter considered on merit — for example
the previous licensing of left hand drive imported
stretch limousines.

Locally, there has been concern expressed in the
past about licensing smaller MPV type vehicles
(such as the Vauxhall Zafira) for 6 persons as the
rear most seats are not easily accessible and are

smaller than the “standard seating” configuration.

The best practice guidance however warns
against licensing such vehicles for fewer
passengers than their deemed seating capacity
(see 2.1 above) and provided any individual seat
is 400mm wide; there should be a presumption
in favour of recognising the manufacturer’s
recommended seating capacity.

However, any concern about the general

level of comfort and safety associated with a
vehicle could lead to the matter being referred
direct to the committee for consideration and
determination on merit.

1.a)

That the general vehicle specifications
shown in paragraph 4.4 on page 60 be
approved and adopted.

b)  That the previous exemption from the
standard vehicle specifications for “stretch
limousines” be retained and that the head
of service be authorised to consider such
vehicle applications on individual merit and
provided evidence of vehicle type approval
is received.

That the head of service be authorised to amend
such policy directives, conditions of licence and
application procedures commensurate only with
these proposals.

That the head of service be authorised, if
required, to finalise a revised corporate livery and
specification for both hackney carriages and
private hire vehicles.

Chapter 10: Vehicle specification requirements e Statement of licensing policy ¢ 61




Chapter 11: Vehicle testing requirements

, ] 1.5 The 1847 act is silent on the testing and fitness
Objective: of hackney carriages. This is not surprising as, at

“To ensure that licensed hackney carriages and that time, carriages, growlers or hansom cabs (in
private hire vehicles are maintained to the highest their various vyorkmg guises as fast or ponderous
standards and that the public have access to safe, forms of public conveyance) were horse drawn

clean, environmentally friendly and comfortable ahd propr.ietors were perhaps more concerned
vehicles.” with the fitness and stabling arrangements of

the animals and their livery/welfare after a day’s
work. The internal car combustion engine had yet
to be invented.

1.1 Apart from those statutory requirements for vehicle

fitness prescribed under the Road Traffic Acts and 1.6 However, the subsequent byelaws (for both
road traffic regulations — there are no definitive hackney carriages and their drivers) made pursuant
national standards to determine the overall to section 6872 of the 1847 act prescribe, amongst
inspection and fitness regime for both hackney other matters, for hackney carriages that:
carriage and private hire vehicles. In this respect, e “The fittings and furniture generally to be
local variances to both the standard (and frequency kept in a clean condition, well maintained and
of vehicle testing) will inevitably be found. in every way fit for public service” .....and

1.2 National MOT standards are prescribed by law and e “Every proprietor of a hackney carriage vehicle
updated on a regular basis by DVSA. The current shall present his vehicle for annual inspection
MOT inspection standards are contained within at the council’s nominated garage”.

the publication “MOT Inspection Manual — car and

light commercial” — ISBN 978-0-9549352-5-2 1.7  Failure to comply with the byelaws is an offence

at law.

https://www.gov.uk/topic/mot/manuals . L
P 9 P 1.8 The 1976 act’? is more prescriptive in respect

1.3 All vehicles must have an MOT after 3 years of of the inspection and testing arrangements for
age although hackney carriages require an MOT private hire vehicles and prohibits, by statutory
(or an equivalent test) after 1 year.” order, the grant of a private hire vehicle licence

1.4 Itis an offence, under the road traffic unless the council is satisfied that the vehicle is:
regulations, to use a vehicle that is not * in a suitable mechanical condition, safe and
roadworthy or fit for use on the public highway. comfortable.

The Police and partner agencies such as DVSA
are responsible for general enforcement of road
traffic laws but the council, as the local licensing
authority, is ultimately responsible for setting
the local testing criteria and specifications to
regulate the Portsmouth hackney carriage and
private hire fleets.

1.9  Further, section 50 of the 1976 act provides
for the mandatory inspection and testing
(within the area of the council) of both hackney
carriages and private hire vehicles by way of
up to 3 inspections’# in any one period of 12
months BUT does not specify the testing criteria.
Parliament appears to have given local authorities
the discretion to determine local testing and
inspection standards.

1.10 A vehicle licence (hackney carriage and private
hire) may be suspended, revoked or not renewed
if “unfit for use”.

Page 70

62 * Statement of licensing policy ® Chapter 11: Vehicle testing requirements




2.1

2.2

2.3

2.4

2.5

2.6

The current Department for Transport guidance’®
recognises variations between local authorities
for both vehicle testing and vehicle age limits.
Annual testing (as a minimum standard) is
recommended together with more frequent tests
for older vehicles together with an emphasis on
emissions testing.

The council agrees with this view.

The council also agrees that due regard should
be given to both the MOT test requirements and
the PATN guidance — see paragraphs 4.5 and 4.6
post.

The council does not agree that more than

one testing station is required. Portsmouth is

a compact area and the Adams Morey garage
facility is geographically centrally located

within the city. 9 vehicle inspections per day
(together with ad hoc spot check and emergency
appointments) can be accommodated with little
delay apparent.

TSB/07/21/01/54

CERTIFICATE OF EXEMPTION

ISSUED UNDER REGULATIONS 6(4) OF
THE MOTOR VEHICLES (TESTS) REGULATIONS 1981

TO: PORTSMOUTH CITY COUNCIL

| am directed by the Secretary of State for Transport to inform you that he is satisfied that the
granting of a licence in respect of hackney carriages and private hire cars by your authority, in
accordance with the procedures summarised in your communication dated 17TH July 1997

is conditional upon the passing by the vehicle of annual test, within the meaning of the above
Regulations, required by your authority.

This Certificate will cease to have validity if there is a change in procedures mentioned above
and the issue of this certificate is conditional upon the Secretary of state being notified,
without delay, should such a change in procedures be made.

DATE:21 July 1997

CGENCO
A Higher Professional and Technology
Officer in the Department of Transport

Proprietors can licence a new vehicle normally 3.0 The council has received, as the local Iicensing
within 24 hours of making application to the authority, a “Certificate of Exemption” issued by
Licensing Service. the Secretary of State for Transport pursuant to
It is accepted that older vehicles can be in “good the Motor Vehicle (Tests) Regulations 1981,
condition” but that this is not a reason to reject The effect of this is that proprietors of licensed
the consideration or setting of a local age limit hackney carriages and private hire vehicles are
policy. Even younger and “doubled manned” EXEMPTED from the requirement to obtain a
fleet vehicles that are subject to constant 24 separate MOT for their vehicle each year. This
hour public use (with a resulting higher wear/ is because the local taxi and private hire testing
tear and mileage) can be replaced or found to be standards are more prescriptive than those
mechanically defective at a relatively early age. minimum standards for an MOT. The certificate of

. . . . exemption is shown above.
The average mileage for private hire vehicles
recorded on the computer database is 136,091 3.1 As a consequence, there is an on-going annual
with a highest recorded individual mileage of saving to proprietors of the cost of an annual
390,305 miles. MOT test fee.
The average mileage for hackney carriages
recorded on the computer database is 112,209
with a highest recorded mileage of 423,549 miles.

Page 71

Chapter 11: Vehicle testing requirements ® Statement of licensing policy ® 63




4.0

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

Historically (from 1978), the then Central Depot
located on the Eastern Road was responsible as
the “in house” vehicle testing station for both
hackney carriage and private hire vehicles.

Following re-organisation, the testing facilities
were outsourced to Amey Facilities Management
Ltd T/A AFM Southern who continued to trade
from the Central Depot.

AFM Contract Services continued as the fleet
management facilitators for all PCC vehicles (and
taxis) until a seamless transition and transfer of
the taxi testing undertaking to Adams Morey,
Burrfields Road, Portsmouth in January of 2002.

Adams Morey have continued to be the

council’s preferred “one stop shop” facilitator
for hackney carriage and private hire vehicle
testing and, following a comprehensive tender
consultation, were formally approved to carry out
the inspection and testing regime for hackney
carriages and private hire vehicles (including taxi
meters) in August 2013.

4.7

4.8

A dedicated new hackney carriage and private
hire testing and inspection bay received DVSA
approval and came into operation in July 2014.
This includes a larger “pit” bay to inspect stretch
limousines, fire engines and other such vehicles
of an unusual size and weight configuration.

During (and following) the conclusion of

the tender consultation process extensive

negotiations took place with staff from Adams

Morey to determine the locally prescribed

inspection and testing criteria for vehicles Paqe 72

having regard to the latest MOT updates, the
Department for Transport best practice guidance
and the resultant “PATN” (Public Authority
Transport Network) best practice guidance. The
PATN guidance has been recognised, on an ad
hoc basis, by both your reporting officers and
Adams Morey staff and all operators and trade
representatives were advised of the guidance in
February 2012.

It is recommended to formally adopt the PATN
guidance (in line with the best practice guidance)
and with immediate effect.

The PATN guidance is also available via the
following link: http://www.fta.co.uk/export/
sites/fta/_galleries/downloads/vehicle_
testing/Hackney_Carriage_document_0812.
pdf

The current vehicle inspection and testing report
is shown on page 65.

The “traffic light” system was introduced to
enable licensing staff to monitor quickly and
easily evidence of a vehicle showing signs of
deterioration or distress whether mechanically
or cosmetically.

Licensing staff are not qualified mechanics

and rely, as do the committee members, on

the technical advice and expertise offered

by Adams Morey. This traffic light system
enables more spot checks (if necessary) to be
undertaken on vehicles to ensure vehicle fitness
standards are maintained.

64  Statement of licensing policy ® Chapter 11: Vehicle testing requirements




Vehicle inspection and testing report

P=PASS A =ADVISORY F=FAIL

Testable item P A F Reason for failure or advisory*

Front / rear lamps
Headlamps and aim
Stop lamps / fog lamps / reflectors

1 Lighting
equipment

Portsmouth
CITY COUNCIL

Vehicle details

Direction indicators/hazard lamps MBKE ..o
Registration plate lamps MOGEl oo
Steering controls / mechanism
Power steering Reg Mark ......ccooiviiiiiiiiiicece
‘:, S Transmission shafts COlOUN .
£3 Stub axle assemblies
g9 VIN
§ M Wheelbearings PR VN
~ @ Front / rear suspension & shock absorbers CCii e
ESC system condition
ABS warning system/controls Mileage reading........cccccooviiiiiniici
Service brake condition HCV/PHV plate number...........................
Parking brake condition
ﬁ Service brake performance
g Parking brake performance Test type
m Service brake balance D New D Spot check
Tyre type/size
é »g Tyre condition D Annual/month D Retest
-g - Roadwheels
* 2 Notes: 1. Vehicles presented with ‘space saver’ spare tyres fitted to one of the 4 road wheels will not be tested. Traffic ligh
= . . e . . raffic lights
§ 8 2. Vehicles with no spare wheel must have an approved emergency tyre repair kit immediately available. 3. For . .
.E‘E stretch limousines/novelty vehicles the tyre rating and load index must be compatible for the vehicle size, weight Tick as appropriate
== KLl ‘?95'9"' @ = Poor (unsuitable)
Securft‘y of mountings @@ = Average
] Condition
3 Operation @ = Satisfactory
§ SRS malfunction lamp illuminated @ = Excellent (like new)
wv
n Airbag present & operational
© Body condition exterior generally
g Body condition interior generally T e
2 Seats/upholstery/carpets/cleanliness/odour §;§ E;g
; Interior lights/motion door locks/warning lights (inc. $§ g‘g
e all passenger controls/switches & grab handles) =8 Vo
jo Boot for cleanliness, security, water leaks etc
° " ; .
] Doors & designated exits Inspectlon result
§ Registration plates, licence plate & VIN number D .
2 Towbar condition PASS — Stamp white book
B Exhaust system D FAIL - See reasons for failure.
3 » ¥H| Exhaust emissions Note: vehicle must not be used
EXn - R X
Z3t Fuel system & security until all failures have been
S -
=GN Engine noise satisfactorily repaired.
j Mirrors
s Wipers & washars (] FUTURE TESTING - I recommend
2 i that this vehicle is tested every:
3 Windscreen ry:
; Glazing generally / tinting D 12 D 6 D 4 months
5 Driver’s view of road generally
E\Z' §-I All driving controls and horn Authentication stamp
PRI Speedometer
Under bonnet generally
Oil & water leaks
Battery / electrical wiring
Engine & transmission including mounts
Luggage space
TAXI roof sign security, illumination & decals
Livery fitted & in good visual condition
Fire extinguisher present and serviceable
Wheel trims fitted .
Fare chart displayed Signed ..
_ “No smoking’ stickers evident (vehicle examiner)
g Windscreen and interior licence number displayed Date Of PaSS........coovvvvereeereeeieen.
c -
g Byelaws available (HCV only)
o Meter installed — test and seal *Licensed vehicles are subject to higher
= Wheelchair restraints, operation & security ’ar:slziiz:ea:evai":i::l a":’:ia:;;':r;e::e
f; o Wheelchair ramp availability, storage & accessibility Accordingly, in assessing the overalll
2 ‘2 ;3 Wheelchair logo affixed to rear licence plate mechanical condition, any advisory item
= § 2 which would normally pass an MOT could
2SEY result in a test failure and refusal to issue

White copy to PCC Licensing Service Pink copy to vehicle proprietor Blue copy to garage January 2013

RETESTS MUST BE BOOKED WITHIN 10 DAYS VIA ADAMS MOREY, CALL 023 9269 1122

a compliance certificate.

www.portsmouth.gov.uk

5.0 Licensed vehicles are subject to more wear and 5.1
tear associated with constant public use. As a
consequence, mileages are much higher and the
need to maintain a prescribed servicing schedule
in line with the manufacturer’s recommended
guidelines is of paramount importance.

It is pleasing to note that the established

“fleet” operators annexed to Aqua Cars Ltd
and Citywide Taxis generally speaking have their
own dedicated garage and body shop facilities
together with mechanical and administrative staff
—including “night time” managers.

Page 73

Chapter 11: Vehicle testing requirements e Statement of licensing policy ® 65




6.0

6.1

For the first time ever there has been a systematic
and thorough analysis of the vehicle testing
results for the whole of 2014 in order to identify
trends associated with mechanical inspections for
both hackney carriage and private hire vehicles.

Quarterly meetings between Licensing and Adams
Morey staff have taken place to ensure both
compliance with the tender “Key Performance
Indicators” and to “drill down" the test results
with a view to using the empirical data available
to recommend and/or to identify possible future
initiatives and policy changes for consideration.

The test results for the calendar year 2014 are
as follows:

61.75% 66.5%

1142 private hire vehicle
inspections with a
61.75% failure rate

298 hackney carriage
inspections with a
66.5% failure rate

By vehicle age, the results were:

Failure rate of vehicles
between 3-6 years of age

Failure rate of vehicles
between 0-3 years of age

78% 85%

Failure rate of vehicles
over 9 years of age

Failure rate of vehicles
between 6-9 years of age

Recent analysis of the received 2015 test results
show an overall failure rate for both hackney

carriage and private hire vehicles of 64% for the
year.

6.2

6.3

6.4

Page 74

The failure rates, by vehicle age, have increased
year on year as follows.

0-3 years 46%
3-6 years 72%
6-9 years 74%
9+ years 87%

The generic vehicle inspection and testing report
(at 4.7) has 62 prescribed testable items grouped
into 10 core areas. Each testable item is denoted
with a “pass, advisory or fail”.

An in depth analysis”® of the vehicle inspection
records for each month during 2014 provided the
following recorded failure results:

M Lighting equipment 55%
B Exhaust, Fuel & Emissions 23%
M Vehicle body & structure 19%
Steering & Suspension 17%
I General items 15%
Driver’s view of the road 11%
Brakes 11%
M Tyres & Wheels 8%
Seat belts 3%
B Wheelchair accessible vehicles 0.25%

It is disappointing to note that 55% of the
recorded failures were for lighting matters. All
proprietors are aware (apart from spot check
inspections) of their annual vehicle test dates
and any lighting related failures should be the
exception and not the norm.

Equally, the emission failures (23%) are of concern.

66 * Statement of licensing policy ® Chapter 11: Vehicle testing requirements




6.5

6.6

6.7

All new cars must comply with EU vehicle
emission standards which have been in place
since 1994. The 2015 requirements’” are that
new cars registered in the EU should not emit
more than an average of 130 grams of CO2 per
kilometre (g CO2/km).

As a consequence, and also to support the
council’s Air Quality Action Plan together with
recent campaigns against idling engines, there is
a demonstrable need to review both the vehicle
inspection and testing arrangements AND to
consider this in relation to the adoption of locally
prescribed vehicle “age limits”.

The best practice guidance states: “Local
Licensing authorities, in discussion with those
responsible for environmental health issues,
will wish to consider how far their vehicle
licensing policies can and should support any
local environmental policies that the local
authority may have adopted. This will be of
particular importance in designated Air Quality
Management Areas (AQMAs)”.

L—

= e,

f—

6.8 The council’s Transport Fleet Manager has been

asked to contribute to the policy review with
particular regard to vehicle testing and emissions.
He is in favour of retaining vehicle age limits

but IS NOT in favour of vehicle age limits being
dictated and linked directly by CO2 emissions and
comments:

“The Licensing Committee should not
consider imposing an upper limit based on

a vehicle’s publicised CO2 emissions. Since
2002 manufactures have been required

to publicise CO2 data on each model it
produces and it is that data, measured in the
amount of CO2 (Carbon Dioxide) produced
(in grams) per Kilometre travelled, which is
then used to determine the vehicle excise
duty (tax) rate.

This data is produced under strictly
controlled laboratory like conditions and
bears little relation to a vehicles negative
impact on the environment whilst in service.
In addition these tests are not the same as
the emissions tests which are carried out as
a part of the MOT test. While it is certainly
generally true that newer cars will be more
fuel efficient and have less harmful effects
on the environment the publicised CO2
emissions figure when that vehicle has been
in service for 5 years, particularly as a taxi
will not reflect that vehicles negative effect
on the environment.

Page 75

Chapter 11: Vehicle testing requirements e Statement of licensing policy 67




There are many other harmful products of
the internal combustion engine that affect
the environment which the CO2 ‘when new’
figures do not reflect when in service. Diesel
engines on the whole produce less CO2
emissions than their petrol counterparts,
however due to the higher temperatures
they operate at diesels produce a greater
amount of NOx (Nitrous Dioxides) which is
more harmful to local air quality.

To choose or be forced to choosing a

vehicle for life as a taxi based purely on its
publicised CO2 output is therefore to the
detriment of several other important factors.

Maintaining a vehicle is of great importance.
A well maintained older vehicle will
undoubtedly be less harmful to the
environment than a badly maintained newer
vehicle, particularly in high mileage/inner
city journey cycles.

In addition the way a vehicle is driven is of
paramount importance. Again badly driven
newer vehicles (with lower publicised CO2
emissions) will be more harmful to the
environment than a well driven older car.
We have recently undertaken an extensive
training scheme training for over 350 drivers
in ‘eco’ driving techniques and overall
drivers under monitored assessment were
able to produce a drive which was on
average 17.5% more efficient than before
they undertook training. It goes without
saying that a more efficient driver will also
be a safer driver.

Similarly consideration should be given
to efficient vehicle routing and despatch

around the ‘whole life’ sustainability of
hybrid (as in diesel/petrol - electric) vehicles
are it is indisputable that their ‘tailpipe’
emissions are lower and their use should be
encouraged.

Consequently, my advice to the committee
would be:

1.  Vehicle maintenance - proof of regular
periodic servicing and a preventative
maintenance programme including an
established vehicle checking regime.
This could be backed up by increased
roadside testing or twice annual
emissions testing to MOT standards

2.  Driver training — proof of driver
training including ‘eco’ driving
techniques. Refresher training periods
should also be considered

3.  Vehicle routing and despatch - sat nav
systems for cars and route planning
and despatch software for operators

4.  Alternative fuels - may be to offer
some kind of financial incentive for
hybrid or alternative fuelled vehicles?

5. Vehicle age - generally the newer the
vehicle the more efficient it will be

6. CO2 emissions — as described probably
bears little relevance to a vehicle in a
real life application particularly high
mileage/inner city

7.  Engine size — probably the least
relevant, particularly in modern cars
where larger engines can be very
efficient”

processes in order to cut down any 6.9 These views are endorsed by the council’s
wasted journeys. It doesn’t matter how Environmental Health Manager. In particular,
environmentally friendly a vehicle is if the the introduction of a 1 year “entry” age limit
journey is unnecessary or the wrong route for vehicles will compliment the Euro 6 diesel
is chosen then that is more harmful to the standard. There is also a supportive view to
environment than an older vehicle not encourage and licence, for the future, “near
making that journey at all! zero” emitting vehicles and the Environmental
Finally, we have to consider alternative fuels. Health Manager will be encouraged t'o bring
It is unlikely that we in our career lifetime forward proposals and recommendations for
will ever see a fully electrically powered future changes to the vehicle specifications in
vehicle suitable for a taxi application. orde.r to S‘%pport any local air quality measures
However it is likely that hybrids will begin to and initiatives.
play a part. No matter what the arguments

Page 76

68 * Statement of licensing policy ® Chapter 11: Vehicle testing requirements




That the PATN (Public Authority Transport
Network — Technical Officer Group) best practice
guidance for the inspection of hackney carriage
and private hire vehicles and reproduced as an
appendix be approved and adopted by the
Licensing Committee for the purposes of
complimenting and guiding the local vehicle
testing and inspection criteria.

That the vehicle inspection and testing report
shown at paragraph 4.7 be approved and
adopted and the head of service (in consultation
with the council’s approved vehicle inspectors) be
authorised to amend, vary, add or substitute to
such local testing criteria as considered
appropriate in the future.

That all vehicles presented for initial licensing
(with the exception of temporary use vehicles
which must provide a current MOT) be subject to
inspection and test at Adams Morey, Burrfields
Road, Portsmouth.

That all licensed vehicles over 3 years
old be subject to a minimum of 2
vehicle inspections at Adams Morey
per licensing year — the second test to be
about 6 months after the first test and to
comprise a “mini” test for the following:

e lighting equipment
e Exhaust, Fuel & Emissions
e Vehicle body & structure

i)  Should the vehicle fail ANY of the mini test
criteria — a full inspection and test will be
subsequently booked and completed and
at the expense of the vehicle proprietor.

10.

That all licensed vehicles over 5 years old be
subject to a minimum of 2 full vehicle
inspections at Adams Morey Portsmouth per
licensing year.

Should the subsequent full test for any vehicle
contain at least 3 failures and/or the imposition of
a red traffic light marker — the vehicle proprietor
will be reported to the committee for
consideration of the suspension or revocation of
the respective vehicle licence.”®

That the requirement for proprietors to make
application to “extend a vehicle licence” after 6
years of age be abolished and that committee
minute 37/1991 be rescinded accordingly.

That the head of service be authorised to amend
such vehicle conditions so far as this relates to:

e The need to carry a serviceable fire
extinguisher (not recommended as a
mandatory requirement)”?

That the head of service bring forward proposals
in relation to any variations to the fees and
charges associated with the vehicle inspection
and testing regime and commensurate with
these proposals.

That the head of service be authorised to amend
such policy directives, conditions of licence and
application procedures commensurate only with
these proposals.

Page 77

Chapter 11: Vehicle testing requirements e Statement of licensing policy ® 69




Chapter 11: Appendix

Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Vehicles

National inspection standards

[ .
|

Best Practice Guide

August 2012

Produced by Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Inspection Technical Officer Group
Public Authority Transport Network (PATN)

Supported by \'OSI\ %

Vehicle & Operator Services Agency

Delivering safe, efficient, sustainable logistics

70 » Statement of licensing policy ® Chapter 11: Appendix



Contents

-\
L 4 Page
FREIGHT TRANSPORT ASSOCIATION

Foreword 3

FTA best practice guide to inspection of Hackney Carriage and Private

Hire Vehicles Part |: Introduction 4

August 2012 .1 Best practice guide 4

Efgggcg::yHT::; Kingdon 1.2 Application to devolved administrators 4

Design: Tracey Garrett 13 Technical safety issues 4
1.4 Scope of the guidance 4

This best practllce gwdve sets out the proce?dures and lstandatl“ds for.those Is Specification of vehicle types that may be licensed 4

who carry out inspections of hackney carriage and private hire vehicles.

It is recommended that the guide is also made freely available to owners, 1.6 Accessibility 5

proprietors, operators and drivers of hackney carriage and private hire

vehicles, who may find it useful as it details the standards that vehicles are 1.7 Type approval 5

subjected to. The guide also explains the reasons why, a vehicle presented '8 Vehicl ) 5

for inspection has not been issued with a pass certificate. ’ ehicle testing

This guidance deliberately seeks to embrace safety aspects of vehicle 2 Novelty vehicles (stretched limousines) 6

inspections using, as a basic inspection standard, those laid down in the 3 General information 6

MOT Inspection Manual — Private Passenger & Light Commercial Vehicle

Testing issued by VOSA. This best practice guide provides additional testing . .

requirements to those in the MOT Inspection Manual. It is advised that Part 2: Procedures and standards of Inspection 8

local licensing authorities use the best practice guide in conjunction with Section | L q d electrical equi 8

the VOSA MOT Inspection Manual as an advocate to public safety. ection amps, reflectors and electrical equipment

This best practice guide has been developed to provide all local licensing Section 2 Steering and suspension 9

authorities with a benchmark with regard to vehicle inspections and safety. Section 3 Brakes 0
Section 4 Tyres and road wheels 10

For details of how to join FTA contact the

Member Service Centre on 08717 || 22 22* Section 5 Seat belts and supplementary restraint systems Il

*Calls may be recorded for training purposes Section 6 Body, structure and general items Il
Section 7 Exhaust, fuel and emissions |15
Section 8 Driver’s view of the road 14
Section 9 Tricycles and quadricycles 16
Section |0 Additional requirements 16
Section || Ancillary equipment 17
Section |2 Novelty vehicles 19
Appendices
A Trailer inspection form 20
B Definition of motor vehicles 21
C Inspection form 22

2 An FTA best practice guide: Inspection of Hackney Carriage and Private I-péealées79

Chapter 11: Appendix e Statement of licensing policy ® 71




Foreword

The Vehicle and Operator Services Agency (VOSA) is
committed to saving lives, making roads safer; cutting crime and
protecting the environment.

As responsibility for the maintaining of vehicle safety standards
of hackney carriage and private hire vehicles falls to various
local authorities, VOSA, in the pursuit of its objectives, fully
supports the Public Authority Transport Network (PATN) in
its promotion of common standards and best practice within
industry.

VOSA recommends that local authorities consider this guide
when setting technical standards and take the opportunity to
become involved in its continued development such that we all
contribute to a safer environment.

Nigel R Maden

Process Manager Light Vehicles and Vehicle Approval
Vehicle & Operator Services Agency

NIOSN 4

Vehicle & Operator Services Agency

Revision record

Section number Section title Description of change Revision date Revision number
2009 version VOSA foreword November 2009 I
2012 update Revised due to changes to MOT scheme from 2012 August 2012 2

Péd@ mractice guide: Inspection of Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Vechicles 3

72 « Statement of licensing policy ® Chapter 11: Appendix




Part |: Introduction

|.] Best practice guide

This best practice guide has been prepared by the Technical
Officer Group (TOG) to assist Hackney Carriage proprietors
(HC) and Private Hire Vehicle (PHV) drivers/owners and
operators. It is intended for use by local licensing authorities,
vehicle inspectors and local authority authorised officers.

It is intended that this best practice guide will endorse a
minimum national vehicle inspection standard. It will be
appreciated that it is for individual local licensing authorities
to reach their own decisions, both on overall policies and
on individual inspection standards, in the light of their own
operational needs and geographical circumstances.

Various interested parties, including the Department for Transport
(DAT), Vehicle & Operator Services Agency (VOSA), Disabled
Persons Transport Advisory Committee (DPTAC) and the Institute
of Licensing, have been consufted on this best practice guide.

The Technical Officer Group commends the DfT for the
production of the Taxi and Private Hire Vehicle Licensing: Best
Practice Guidance.Vehicle operators, local licensing authorities and
vehicle inspectors are strongly advised to refer to the DfT guide
in conjunction with this best practice guide. More information can
be obtained on the DfT website at www.dft.gov.uk

|.2 Application to devolved
administrations

The Department for Transport (DfT) has responsibility for

HC and PHV legislation in England and Wales and, accordingly,
the guidance that has been published will be directed at local
authorities in England and Wales. Responsibility for HC and PHV
licensing in Scotland and Northern Ireland is devolved, but the
respective administrations have been involved in the preparation

of the licensing guidance and will decide for themselves the
extent to which they wish to make use of or adapt to suit their
OWN pUrposes.

|.3 Technical safety issues

The aim of a local licensing authority is to protect the public.
Local licensing authorities will be aware that the public should
have reasonable access to safe and well maintained HC and
PHVs. For example, it is clearly important that somebody using
a HC or PHV should be confident that the vehicle is safe.

To this end, this best practice guide will detail specific vehicle
safety issues based on expert technical knowledge and
experience of the Technical Officer Group (TOG). This guide

will focus therefore on technical safety issues and make
recommendations towards safe working practices. For example,
the TOG supports the DfT recommendation that there is no
upper age limit for HC and PHVs provided there is documentary
evidence to support a routine maintenance regime.

Local licensing authorities will want to ensure that each of their
various licensing requirements is properly justified by the risk

it aims to address. This is not to propose that a detailed, over-
zealous inspection regime creates difficulties for the HC and
PHV trades but primarily to promote vehicle safety for the
protection of passengers and not for the benefit of operators.

|.4 Scope of the guidance

This guidance deliberately seeks to embrace safety aspects of
vehicle inspections using, as a basic inspection standard, those
laid down in the MOT Inspection Manual — Private Passenger

& Light Commercial Vehicle Testing issued by VOSA. This best
practice guide provides additional testing requirements to those
in the MOT Inspection Manual. It is advised that local licensing
authorities use the best practice guide in conjunction with the
VOSA MOT Inspection Manual as an advocate to public safety.

This best practice guide has been developed to provide all local
licensing authorities with a benchmark with regard to vehicle
inspections and safety.

I.5 Specification of vehicle types that
may be licensed

The legislation gives local authorities a wide range of discretion
over the types of vehicle that they can license as HC or PHVs.

4 An FTA best practice guide: Inspection of Hackney Carriage and Private I-Pgﬂgs 81

Chapter 11: Appendix ® Statement of licensing policy ® 73




Some authorities specify conditions that in practice can only be
met by purpose-built vehicles but the majority license a range of
vehicles.

Normally, best practice is for local licensing authorities to adopt
the principle of specifying as many different types of vehicles as
possible. Indeed, local licensing authorities might usefully specify
only general criteria, leaving it open to the HC and PHV trades
to put forward vehicles of their own choice which can be
shown to meet those criteria. In that way, there can be flexibility
for new vehicle types to be readily taken into account.

It is suggested that local licensing authorities should give very
careful consideration to a policy which automatically rules out
particular types of vehicle or prescribes only one type or a

small number of types of vehicle. For example, the Department
believes authorities should be particularly cautious about
specifying only purpose-built taxis, with the strict constraint on
supply that that implies. But, of course, the purpose-built vehicles
are amongst those which a local authority could be expected to
license. Similarly, it may be too restrictive to automatically rule out
considering Multi-Purpose Vehicles, or to license them for fewer
passengers than their seating capacity (provided of course that
the capacity of the vehicle is not more than eight passengers).

1.6 Accessibility

In addition to their general
conditions, local licensing
authorities will want to consider
the accessibility for disabled
people (including — but not only
— people who need to travel in a
wheelchair) of the vehicles they
licence as Hackney Carriage or
Private Hire vehicles.

Licensing authorities will be aware
that it remains the Department
for Transport's intention to make accessibility regulations for
Hackney Carriage vehicles subject to a Law Commission
review. In the meantime, licensing authorities are encouraged to
introduce HC accessibility policies for their areas.

|.7 Type approval

[t may be that from time to time a local licensing authority will
be asked to license, as a HC or PHV, a vehicle that has been
imported independently (that is, by somebody other than the
manufacturer). Such a vehicle might meet the local licensing
authority’s criteria for licensing, but may nonetheless be uncertain
about the wider rules for foreign vehicles being used in the

UK. Such vehicles will be subject to the ‘type approval’ rules.

For passenger cars up to |0 years old at the time of first GB
registration, this means meeting the technical standards of either:

m European Community Whole Vehicle Type Approval (ECWVTA)
= National Small Series Type Approval (NSSTA) or
= Individual Vehicle Approval (IVA)

Most registration certificates issued since late 1998 should indicate
the approval status of the vehicle. Further information about these
requirements and the procedures for licensing and registering
imported vehicles can be seen at www.businesslink.gov.uk

It is important for local licensing authorities to insist that at
least one of the above ‘type approvals' is produced prior to
any imported vehicle being licensed as a Hackney Carriage
or Private Hire Vehicle. Local authorities are advised to
verify the validity of an IVA certificate by contacting the
VOSA helpline number 0300 123 9000.

Voluntary inspections

Vehicles that are already registered for use in the UK are not
eligible for a statutory approval, however there are situations
where evidence of compliance with the approval standard
would be beneficial or be a requirement. An example would

be a local licensing authority that may require evidence of
compliance for a vehicle that has been modified since original
registration, or where evidence of compliance is being used

as part of a contractual agreement on a modified vehicle. To
facilitate this requirement, a non-statutory voluntary IVA test

is available, and it would be appropriate for local authorities to
accept a ‘basic’ IVA certification as a minimum requirement. The
test criteria applied will be dependent on the vehicle category/
class nominated on the application form VIVA |.The fees are
the same as those appropriate to the particular class of vehicle/
test required, other than VAT is payable. If the vehicle is found
to meet the requirements, a letter of compliance with the
technical standards will be issued and not an Individual Approval
certificate. The letter of compliance is not acceptable for first
licensing/registration purposes.

|.8 Vehicle testing

There is considerable variation between local licensing
authorities on vehicle testing. This best practice guide provides
local licensing authorities with a minimum standard for vehicle
inspections. All HC and PHV must be maintained to no less than
the standards set out in the VOSA publication ‘MOT Inspection
Manual — Private Passenger and Light Commercial Vehicle
Testing', ISBN 978-0-9549352-5-2.

As the term implies, hackney carriage and private hire vehicles
are vehicles used for hire and reward purposes and as such
are subject to much higher annual mileages and more arduous
driving than normal private vehicles. Therefore, in the interests
of passenger and other road user’s safety, a more stringent
maintenance and testing regime is required.

Pérd—é b8t2”actice guide: Inspection of Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Vechicles 5

74 « Statement of licensing policy ® Chapter 11: Appendix




The purpose of the HC and PHYV test is to confirm vehicles meet

these more stringent standards.Vehicles must be submitted fully
prepared for the test. It is not intended that the test be used in
lieu of a regular preventative maintenance programme. If, in the
opinion of the vehicle examiner, the vehicle has not been fully
prepared, the test will be terminated and a further full test shall
be required. It is an offence under the road traffic regulations to
use an unroadworthy vehicle on the public highway.

HC proprietors and PHV drivers/owners and operators failing
to maintain their vehicles in a safe and roadworthy condition
may have their vehicle licence suspended, revoked or their
licensing application refused by the local licensing authority. In
addition, licence holders risk the suspension or revocation of
their driver or operator licences by the local licensing authority.

This best practice guide should be read in conjunction with
Vehicle & Operator Services Agency (VOSA) publication MOT
Inspection Manual — Private Passenger and Light Commercial
Vehicle Testing’, ISBN 978-0-9549352-5-2. This best practice
guide provides a working document for those who inspect,
maintain and prepare vehicles for inspection prior to being
issued with a hackney carriage or private hire licence. Although
detailed in its content the best practice guide is not exhaustive.

However, in assessing the mechanical condition of a vehicle, it
is more likely an item which would ordinarily pass an MOT test
with an advisory note, could fail the HC and PHYV test.

2 Novelty vehicles (stretched
limousines)

This section of the best practice guide offers advice to local
licensing authorities on the requirements for licensing novelty
vehicles. The standard of the test for novelty vehicles will be
at the same standard as for other private hire vehicles. That s,
as a basic inspection standard, those laid down in the MOT
Inspection Manual — Private Passenger and Light Commercial
Vehicle Testing’ issued by VOSA and this best practice guide.
(For the purpose of clarity, novelty vehicles in this guide will refer
to stretch limousines only until such times as further guidance is
obtained on any other such vehicle, ie fire tenders etc.)

A novelty vehicle shall only be registered as a private hire
vehicle if it complies with the following conditions.

m Vehicles with no more than eight passenger seats as indicated
on the V5C. The V5C will state the number of seats and
must be produced to the local licensing authority prior to
the vehicle being licensed or inspected. If the number of
seats differs to what is indicated on the V5C, then contact
VOSA and your local area DVLA office immediately. Failure to
produce a valid and current V5C for the vehicle to be tested
could result in refusal to inspect the vehicle

m Evidence of either European Community Whole Vehicle Type
Approval (ECWVTA) or Individual Vehicle Approval (IVA)
being presented for inspection

m Local licensing authorities may consider; as novelty vehicles
are not factory produced, that a recommended vehicle
maintenance inspection be applied every 10 weeks. The
frequency of maintenance inspections is recommended by
Traffic Commissioners, VOSA and the National Limousine and
Chauffeur Association (NLCA)

m The inspection standards to be applied to novelty vehicles
are the same standards as those applied to other hackney
carriage and private hire vehicles with the following additions:

— Any additional item previously mentioned in this paragraph
with regard to seating capacity, the production of the
relevant documents and frequency of vehicle inspections

— See part 2, section 4 —Tyres and road wheels. Reference in
this section is made to tyre rating to be applied to novelty
vehicles

— See part 2, section 12 —Vehicle Identification Number
(VIN) markings should be checked to ensure compliance,
seating capacities and undue stresses

Local licensing authorities are strongly advised to obtain a
declaration, from the operator of a licensed novelty vehicle,
that the side facing seats will never be used to carry passengers
under |6 years of age, regardless of whether the vehicle is
fitted with or without seat belts.

It is strongly advised that notices forbidding children to be
carried in side facing seats are displayed in prominent positions,
ie on entry to the passenger compartment and on either side
of the passenger compartment. Local licensing authorities may
also require additional outward facing signs adjacent to all
entrance/exit doors to the passenger compartment.

3 General information

Only vehicles complying with the following conditions will
generally be considered for licensing as private hire vehicles.

6 An FTA best practice guide: Inspection of Hackney Carriage and Private H'Péc&cés 83

Chapter 11: Appendix ® Statement of licensing policy ® 75




m Cars fitted with at least four doors and four wheels Statement of undertakings and declaration

In the interests of road and passenger safety, the licensed driver/
owner or operator undertakes to make proper arrangements
so that licensed vehicles are kept in a roadworthy condition at
m Vehicles with adequate space for luggage all times.

= Right-hand drive vehicles — with the exception of stretch
limousines (where applicable)

m Vehicles must be capable of carrying at least four and not
more than eight passengers in addition to the driver

m With the exception of stretch limousines, vehicles will not be
accepted with blacked out windows. Passengers being carried
in the vehicle must be visible from the outside. In exceptional
circumstances, tinted windows may be acceptable

m To allow a thorough examination of a vehicle or any part
thereof, it must be presented for test in a clean condition.
The vehicle presented will fail the test if, in the opinion of
the vehicle examiner, the vehicle is so dirty that it would be
unreasonable for the test to be carried out

m A test will not be carried out unless the licence fee/
examination fee has been paid in advance

Pér&—é b8t4.rac‘tice guide: Inspection of Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Vechicles 7

76 * Statement of licensing policy ® Chapter 11: Appendix



Part 2: Procedures and standards of inspection

This best practice guide sets out the procedures and standards for those who carry out inspections of hackney carriage and private hire vehicles.

[t is recommended that the guide is also made freely available to owners, proprietors, operators and drivers of hackney carriage and
private hire vehicles, who may find it useful as it details the standards that vehicles are subjected to.The guide also explains the reasons
why a vehicle presented for inspection, has not been issued with a pass certificate.

Contents
Page Page
Section | Lamps, reflectors and electrical equipment 8 Section 8 Driver’s view of the road 15
1.9 Electrical wiring and equipment 8.1 Mirrors and view to the rear
[.9  Additional lamps 8.3  Windscreen — view to the front
85  Window glass or other transparent material
Section 2 Steering and suspension 9
2.1 Steering control — steering wheel Section 9 Tricycles and quadricycles 16
2.1 Steering control — steering column
24 Suspension spring units and linkage Section 10 Additional requirements 16
[0.I' Transmission
Section 3 Brakes 10 10.2  QOil and water leaks
10.3 Luggage/load space
Section 4 Tyres and road wheels 10 104 Trailers and towbars
4.1 Tyres — condition
Section || Ancillary equipment 17
Section 5 Seat belts and supplementary restraint systems I I1.I Wheelchair restraint and access equipment
Section 6 Body, structure and general items I 1.2 Fyre e>.<t|ngU|sher
6.1 Vehicle body and condition (exterior) 1.3 First aid kit
6.1 Vehicle body, security and condition (interior) Section 12 Novelty vehicles 19
6.1 Bumper bars 12.1 Seating capacity
6.2 Doors and seats 122 Undue stresses
Section 7 Exhaust, fuel and emissions 14 12.3 Passenger notices
7.1 Exhaust system
7.2 Fuel system — pipes and tanks

Section |
Lamps, reflectors and electrical equipment

1.9  Electrical wiring and equipment

Method of inspection ‘ Reason for rejection

This examination is limited to that part of the electrical system that
can be readily seen without dismantling any part of the vehicle.

a Check all electrical wiring for:

condition

security

position

signs of overheating
heavy oil contamination

b Check all switches controlling all obligatory lights

a  Wiring

 positioned so that it is chafing or clipped to a fuel line or
likely to be damaged by heat so that insulation will become
ineffective

* with clear evidence of overheating

 heavily contaminated with oil

b Switches

¢ Insecurity or malfunction of a switch controlling an
obligatory light

8 An FTA compliance guide: Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Vehicles

Page 85

Chapter 11: Appendix e Statement of licensing policy ® 77




.9 Additional lamps

Method of inspection ‘ Reason for rejection

With the ignition switched on check the following.

Reversing lamps

a The reversing lamps emit a diffused white light when reverse
gear is selected

b The lamps extinguish when neutral gear is selected
¢ The lamps are in good working order and are secure

d The lamps do not flicker when lightly tapped by hand

Reversing lamps

a Fails to operate or does not emit a white diffused light

b Fails to extinguish when neutral or forward gear is selected
¢ Are not in good working order or insecure

d Flickers when tapped lightly by hand

Front fog/driving lamps

e A single front fog lamp emitting a white or yellow diffused
light illuminates only when dipped beam is selected

f A pair of matched fog lamps both emitting a white or yellow
diffused light should illuminate together

g A pair of matched, long-range driving lamps, both emitting a
white diffused light, should illuminate together

Front fog/driving lamps

e Lamp inoperative or operates other than in dipped beam
mode

f  Operate incorrectly

g Operate incorrectly

‘For Hire’ and roof signs

a Correct style and type of sign fitted

b Ensure the sign is securely fastened to the vehicle

‘For Hire’ and roof signs

a Incorrect colour or details shown on sign, ie registration
number; vehicle number etc

b Insecure sign

¢ Condition and security of wiring

d Functional test of signs for illumination

¢ Wiring is not in good condition or is loose or chaffed

d lllumination not consistent across the sign, ie all light bulb(s)
LED(s) illuminated when switched on

Section 2
Steering and suspension

2.1  Steering control — steering wheel

Method of inspection ‘ Reason for rejection

With both hands rock the steering wheel from side to side at right
angles to steering column and apply slight downward and upward

pressure to the steering wheel rim (in line with column). Note the

following.

a Fractures in steering wheel hub

b Fractures in steering wheel rim

¢ Steering wheel spokes loose or fractured
d Jagged edges on steering wheel rim

e. If possible, check the retaining device on steering wheel is
fitted

a Steering wheel hub fractured

b Steering wheel rim fractured

¢ A steering wheel spoke loose or fractured

d Jagged edges on steering wheel rim likely to injure the driver

e. A steering wheel hub-retaining device not fitted

Page 8

6 An FTA compliance guide: Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Vehicles 9

78 o Statement of licensing policy ¢ Chapter 11: Appendix




2.1 Steering control — steering column

Method of inspection ‘ Reason for rejection

a Try to lift the steering in line with the steering column and
note the movement at centre of steering wheel

b While steering wheel is rotated, check for deterioration in
any flexible coupling or universal joint of steering column

¢ Where practical, check any clamp bolts for presence and
security of locking devices. (These may be located in the
engine compartment or under chassis)

a Excessive movement at centre of steering wheel in line with
steering column (end float)

Note: Certain types of steering column might show some
movement not due to excessive wear, eg those fitted with
universal joints or flexible couplings

b A flexible coupling or universal joint deteriorated, worn or
insecure

¢ A coupling clamp bolt or locking device loose or missing

2.4 Suspension spring units and linkages

Method of inspection

Coil springs
a  Welding repairs

Reason for rejection
Coil springs
a Repaired by welding

Section 3
Brakes

No additional inspection requirements

Section 4

Tyres and road wheels

4.1  Tyres — condition

Method of inspection ‘ Reason for rejection

On all the tyres, including spare wheel where fitted, examine
each tyre meets all the requirements laid down in the MOT
Inspection Manual — Private Passenger and Light Commercial’,
ISBN 978-0-9549352-5-2

Note: Where a doughnut tank is fitted in the boot for LPG, the
spare wheel if still carried in the boot must be properly secured.
Alternatively, a spare wheel cage installed to manufacturer's and
British Standards may be fitted to the underside of the vehicle

In accordance with the ‘MOT Inspection Manual — Private
Passenger and Light Commercial Vehicle Testing’, ISBN 978-0-
9549352-5-2

Note: Space saver tyres should only be approved with the support
of a method statement highlighting driver responsibilities with regard
to the maximum permitted speed and that space savers are a
temporary ‘get-you-home tyre’

10 An FTA compliance guide: Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Vehicles P
age 87

Chapter 11: Appendix ® Statement of licensing policy ® 79




Method of inspection ‘ Reason for rejection

Important note: stretched limousines Stretched limousines
In the case of American imported stretched limousines, vehicle More information and guidance can be obtained from:
inspectors will need to be vigilant when inspecting tyres National Limousine & Chauffeur Association on: www.nlca.co.uk

for suitability, and an assessment should be made with the
information detailed on the convertor plate. Most converted
stretched limousines are converted from Ford Lincoln Town Cars
with a number of Cadillac variants also.

In approved ‘stretch’ limousine conversions, the maximum weight
can be in excess of 7,100lbs (3.2 tonnes) and care should be
exercised when determining suitable tyre ratings. Generally
speaking a Ford Lincoln or Cadillac would require a tyre rating
index of at least |07T, which gives a load rating of 2,149Ibs
(975kgs) with a maximum speed of | 18 miles per hour.

Section 5
Seat belts and supplementary restraint systems

No additional inspection requirements

Section 6
Body, structure and general items

6.1 Vehicle body and condition (exterior)

Method of inspection ‘ Reason for rejection

Examine the body thoroughly for security, corrosion, damage, a An insecure or missing body panel, trim, step or accessory
Pgor repair/paint match or sharp edges that are likely to cause b Any sharp edge whatsoever which may cause injury
injury
¢ Heavy scuffing, abrasions or deformation to front and rear bumper

d More than 8 stone chips visible on a bonnet/grill that has
not penetrated to the metal or more than 4 stone chips that
have penetrated to the metal

e More than 8 stone chips on any panel including door edges,
provided the base coat has not been penetrated

f  More than 4 stone chips on any panel where the base coat
has been penetrated to the metal and is untreated

g A single dent of more than 80mm, or more than 3 dents of
not more than 20mm in any one panel

h  More than 4 scratches and or abrasions of more than 50mm
in length in any one panel provided that the base coat has
not been penetrated

i Dull, faded paintwork which has lost its gloss finish or paint
miss-match to a panel(s) to such an extent that it detracts
from the overall appearance of the vehicle

8An FTA compliance guide: Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Vehicles ||

Page 8

80 ¢ Statement of licensing policy ® Chapter 11: Appendix



Method of inspection ‘ Reason for rejection

j

Evidence of poor repairs and or paint finish to a repaired
panel(s) including runs and overspray to adjoining panels/trim
that detracts from the overall appearance of the vehicle

Obvious signs of rust/corrosion of any size particularly those
that are covered by advertising signs

Lack of clearly displayed or omission of ‘No Smoking’ signs

6.1  Vehicle body, security and condition (interior)

Method of inspection ‘ Reason for rejection

a Examine thoroughly the interior for damaged, insecure or
loose fixtures, fittings or accessories

b Dirty, missing and worn trim, carpets, seat belts, mats,
headlining, boot area and inclusion of prescribed items.
Remove mats to inspect carpets underneath for cleanliness
and wear

¢ Examine interior lights, motion door locks and warning lights

d Examine heating, demisting and air condition systems
for correct operation, including passenger compartment
controls where fitted (includes electric front and rear screen
demisters)

e Examine all windows ensuring they allow lowering and rising
easily

f  Examine interior door locks, grab handles/rails safety covers

g Examine grills/partitions for security and condition

h  Examine electrical wiring for condition, security, including
intercom systems

Examine the boot for access, contents, cleanliness and water
ingress

a

Insecure and loose fixtures, fittings or accessories

Missing, dirty, soiled, stained worn or insecure trim, carpets,
headlining, and mats in such a condition that they are likely to
soil or damage passengers' clothing or luggage

An inoperative interior light (all lights must illuminate if

they are part of the manufacturer's standard equipment).
Missing or defective motion switch/lock or warning lamp not
illuminated

A system(s) which does not function correctly, or any part is
missing including vents, controls and switches

An opening window that is inoperative or difficult to open
and or close mechanism broken/missing

Missing, defective or loose door locks, child locks, protective
covers grab handles and rails. Grab handles/rails, which are
rigid to aid the blind and partially sighted, and are worn to
excess

A grill/partition which is insecure or has sharp edge which
may cause injury to passengers or driver

Frayed, chaffing wiring, non-shielded terminals and cables

so routed that they cause a trip hazard, cables that can be
easily disconnected. Intercom system defective, warning light
inoperative and signs illegible/missing

Unable to open, close and or lock boot lid, failure of boot lid
support mechanism, defective seals/evidence of water ingress,
dirty boot and/or carpets, loose items stored in boot (ie
spare wheel tools and equipment etc)

Additional items to be inspected in limousines and novelty vehicles.

j All fixtures and fittings, ie mirror balls, drinks cabinets,
televisions etc must be stored securely and not hinder the
ingress or egress from the passenger compartment

Any fixture or fitting that is loose or insecure or where
walkways are blocked that prevent ease of ingress or egress
from the passenger compartment

12 An FTA compliance guide: Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Vehicles P
age 89

Chapter 11: Appendix e Statement of licensing policy ¢ 81




Method of inspection ‘ Reason for rejection

k A notice identifying the maximum seating capacity to be
displayed in the passenger compartment and clearly visible to
all passengers. It may be necessary to display more than one
sign indicating the maximum seating capacity

Note: Any vehicle presented in a dirty, untidy condition will not be
tested

k  No maximum seating capacity sign or signs displayed. A sign
or signs not clearly visible to all passengers

Mandatory ‘No Smoking’ sign

| Check for presence and display of No Smoking sign

| No Smoking sign missing/not adequately displayed

6.1 Bumper bars

Method of inspection ‘ Reason for rejection

Examine the bumper bars and check the following.

a They are secure to their mountings

b The mountings are secure to the vehicle

¢ There is no evidence of damage

a A loose bumper bar or mounting. A weakened bumper bar
and/or mounting is insecure because of poor repairs

b A fractured mounting bracket. Mounting bolts so worn or
elongated that the bumper bar is likely to detach partially
or completely from the vehicle when in use. A bumper bar
secured by wire or other temporary means is regarded as
insecure and must be rejected

¢ Bumper bars which have jagged edges, cracks, splits or
projections, which may cause injury to persons near the
vehicle. Paint miss-match or fading which is significantly
different to that of the rest of the paintwork

6.2 Doors and seats

Method of inspection ‘ Reason for rejection

Doors and emergency exits

Examine the condition of all doors and emergency exits. Check
door locks, striker plates, handles and hinges for security, wear
and missing and damaged trim/cover plates

Check the presence, condition and correct functioning of all
door stay catches and devices (including sliding doors)

Check markings describing the presence and method of opening
emergency exit(s) are readily visible on or adjacent to the exit
and are legible

Check that seats are secure, clean and not unduly worn

Doors and emergency exits

a A door or emergency exit does not latch securely in the
closed position

b A door or emergency exit cannot be opened from both the
inside and outside the vehicle from the relevant control in
each case

¢ Missing, loose or worn handles, lock or striker plate

d Markings describing the presence and method of opening an
emergency exit missing, illegible or incorrect

e Missing, loose or damaged trim/cover plate

f  Seat cushion(s) stained, torn, holed, worn or insecure. A seat
that does not provide adequate support at base or backrest.
Torn, slashed or badly stained seats are not acceptable

g A door stay catch or device missing, excessively worn or not
fulfilling its function

Page 9

82 « Statement of licensing policy ® Chapter 11: Appendix

OAn FTA compliance guide: Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Vehicles 13




Method of inspection ‘ Reason for rejection

Important note

With the exception of ‘novelty vehicles” only vehicles with
forward and rear facing seats will be accepted.

For more information on seating for novelty vehicles see section
12.1

Accessibility: wheelchair vehicles Accessibility: wheelchair vehicles

Door configurations for wheelchair accessible vehicles

a Single rear door — must open to a minimum of 90 degrees a Door does not open to a full 90 degrees and cannot be
and be capable of locking in place secured in the open position

b Twin rear doors — both must open to a minimum of 180 b Twin doors do not open to a full 180 degrees and cannot be
degrees and be capable of being locked in place. This is to secured in the open position

enable an attendant (driver or guide) to assist the wheelchair
passenger if required

Section 7
Exhaust, fuel and emissions

7.1  Exhaust system

Method of inspection Reason for rejection

Where applicable, check for presence, security and adequacy of | A heat shield missing, insecure or inadequate
grease shields to hot exhausts

7.2 Fuel system — pipes and tanks

Method of inspection ‘ Reason for rejection

a Check that fuel tank filler caps are: a A filler cap missing or unsuitable or in such condition that it

. present would not prevent fuel leaking or spilling

e of the correct type
 secure and seated properly to ensure correct function of

sealing
b Examine pipes to see they are securely clipped to prevent b Damaged, chafed, insecure pipes or pipes so positioned that
damage by chafing and cracking, and are not in a position there is a danger of them fouling moving parts

where they will be fouled by moving parts

¢ Check that no fuel pipe runs immediately adjacent to or in c A fuel pipe immediately adjacent to or in direct contact with
direct contact with electrical wiring or the exhaust system electrical wiring or exhaust system

d Temporary/emergency fuel cap fitted

4 An FTA compliance guide: Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Vehicles P
age 91

Chapter 11: Appendix ® Statement of licensing policy 83




Section 8
Driver’s view of the road

8.1 Mirrors and view to rear

Method of inspection

Reason for rejection

The number and position of all obligatory mirrors must be checked.

Check the condition of each mirror reflecting surface

A mirror reflecting surface deteriorated or broken.

Note: A defective additional external mirror is not a reason for
rejection

8.3 Windscreen — view to the front

Method of inspection ‘ Reason for rejection

Sit in the driver’s seat and check that there is reasonable view of
the road ahead, bearing in mind the original design of the vehicle.

For all air operated wipers examine:

 the condition of any visible piping

e the function of the operating mechanism

* the function of necessary valves to protect the braking
system

Note: Equibment or objects not originally fitted to the vehicle as part
of the original design must not obstruct the designed forward view of
the driver. In particular, objects such as (but not limited to) pennants,
cab decorations and external stone guards/visors should not
interrupt the view through the swept area by the windscreen wipers

The position or size of any object restricts the driver's view of
the road ahead, bearing in mind the original design of the vehicle

Air operated wipers:

° pipes inadequately clipped or supported
e incorrect function of the wipers or leaking components
° incorrect operation of protection valves

8.5 Window glass or other transparent material

Method of inspection ‘ Reason for rejection

a Visually check the condition of all windscreens, internal
screens, partitions, side, rear, roof and door windows for
cracks, surface damage and discolouration

b Check presence and security of all windscreens, side, roof, or
rear windows, or internal screens or partitions

¢ Check for evidence of obvious leaks from all windscreens
and side, rear, roof or door windows

d Check for presence, security and condition of guard rails or
barriers at windows, internal screens or partitions

e Forall vehicles first used before | January 1959. As far as is
practicable, check that glass fitted to windscreens and outside
windows facing to the front is safety glass, except glass fitted
to the upper deck of a double deck bus

f  For all vehicles used on or after | January 1959, as far as
is practicable, check that glass used for windscreens and all
outside windows is safety glass, or safety glazing

a A crack, surface damage or discoloration in glass or other
transparent material that:

e impairs the driver's front, side, or rear view of the road
° presents a danger to any person in the vehicle

b A windscreen or any other outside window missing, or any
windscreen, window, internal screen or partition insecure

¢ Any external window or windscreen is obviously leaking

d A guard-rail or barrier at a window, internal screen or
partition missing, insecure or damaged

e The windscreen and/or any outside window facing to the
front of a vehicle obviously not safety glass fitted to a vehicle
first used before | January 1959

f  Glass used for a windscreen or an outside window is
obviously not safety glass

Page 9

84 « Statement of licensing policy ® Chapter 11: Appendix

2An FTA compliance guide: Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Vehicles |5




Method of inspection ‘ Reason for rejection

g Vehicles first used on or after | June 1978, check that g
windscreens and other windows, wholly or partly, on either
side of the drivers’ seat are made from safety glass displaying
an acceptable safety mark

For vehicles first used on or after | June 1978, that
windscreens and/or other windows wholly or partly on
either side of the drivers seat that are not made from safety
glass display an acceptable safety mark

Note: Marking is not required for safety glass on vehicles first used
before | June 1978

Section 9
Tricycles and quadricycles

No additional inspection requirements

Section 10
Additional requirements

0.1 Transmission

Examine transmission, check for the following.

a Missing or loose flange bolts a A loose or missing flange bolt(s)

b Cracked or insecure flanges b A flange cracked, or loose on the transmission shaft

¢ Wear in shaft and/or wheel bearings ¢ Excessive wear in shaft bearing

d  Security of bearing housings d A bearing housing insecure to its fixing

e Cracks or fractures in bearing housings e A cracked or fractured bearing housing

f  Wear in universal joints f  Excessive wear in a universal joint

g Deterioration of flexible couplings g Deterioration of a transmission shaft flexible coupling

h Distorted, damaged shafts h A damaged, cracked or bent shaft

i Deterioration of bearing housing flexible mountings i Deterioration of a flexible mounting of a bearing housing
j  Clearance between transmission shafts and adjacent j  Evidence of fouling between any transmission shaft and an

components adjacent component

10.2 Oil and water leaks

Method of inspection ‘ Reason for rejection

a Check vehicle for oil and water leaks from any assembly or
component to the ground

b And/or which could be deposited on surrounding bodywork
or onto the exhaust system.

Note: If necessary, the engine can be run at idle speed to
confirm the existence of an oil leak

a An oil or water leak, from any assembly, which deposits fluids
underneath the vehicle whilst stationary

b Leaks which, when the vehicle is moving, could be deposited
upon the surrounding bodywork, exhaust and brake system
so that it would:

° contaminate areas
e could potentially cause a health, safety or fire risk

16 An FTA compliance guide: Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Vehicles P
age 93

Chapter 11: Appendix ® Statement of licensing policy ® 85




10.3 Luggage/load space

Method of inspection ‘ Reason for rejection

Physical separation is not so much an issue as is the safety of
passengers in the event of an accident. The luggage should
therefore be secure and prevented from becoming dislodged in
an accident in such a manner as may cause injury. Such security
can be by means of a sheet or net, which could be anchored to
the floor of the luggage area. Clearly if the luggage compartment
is not physically separated from the passenger compartment
then care will need to be taken so as not to carry any hazardous
items such as fuel cans, detergents or other loose items that
could leak if they become damaged

Load restraint system, if required, not present at time of test

Load restraint system faulty or unserviceable

10.4 Trailers and towbars

Method of inspection ‘ Reason for rejection

Trailers

Where a local licensing authority permits the use of trailers for
the carriage of luggage, then the trailer needs to be presented

for test along with the vehicle that will be authorised to tow it.
The trailer will also need to display the appropriate registration
plate and a licence plate

Note: Trailers presented for inspection should be built by an
approved or recognised trailer manufacturer

An example of a typical trailer inspection sheet can be found at
Appendix A

Trailers

Rejections as indicated on the trailer inspection sheet shown at
Appendix A

Towbars

Where tow bars are fitted checks must be made on the
condition and security to the towing vehicle

Towbars

Rejections as indicated on the trailer inspection sheet shown at
Appendix A

Section 1|
Ancillary equipment

I'l.I Wheelchair restraint and access equipment

Method of inspection ‘ Reason for rejection

Wheelchair restraint

a  Where applicable check condition and operation of
wheelchair restraint

b A system for the effective anchoring of wheelchairs shall
be provided within the vehicle in all spaces designated as
wheelchair spaces

Wheelchair restraint

a A wheelchair restraint is defective, worn or missing.

b Wheelchair anchorage systems and devices do not conform
to European Directive 76/115 EEC (as amended)

Wheelchair access and equipment

A vehicle shall be fitted with either of the following forms of
wheelchair access equipment:

Page 9

86 * Statement of licensing policy ® Chapter 11: Appendix

4An FTA compliance guide: Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Vehicles |7



Method of inspection ‘ Reason for rejection

Ramps

¢ Check that appropriate ramps fitted are securely installed in
the designated storage area. Examine for damage, deformity,
sharp edges etc. and provision of anti-slip covering

Wheelchair lift

d A purpose designed wheelchair lift shall conform to the
LOLER 98 Regulations. A report, confirming that the lifting
equipment is safe to use, shall be presented at the time of
the vehicle inspection. Vehicles presented for inspection with
a wheel chair lift will require a LOLER certificate that is valid
for a period of six months from the date of issue

Note: Passenger lifting equipment will need to be thoroughly examined
by a competent person, in use, at least once every six months

e Any purpose designed wheelchair access ramp that is carried
must be lightweight and easy to deploy. The installed ramp
shall have visible reference to safe working load of 250kgs
and certified to BS 6109

f  Wheelchair access equipment shall be fitted either into the
rear or side access door of the vehicle. Where it is fitted to
a side door this shall be the door situated on the nearside of
the vehicle, ie kerbside when stopped in a normal road

g The aperture of the door into which the access equipment is
fitted shall have minimum clear headroom in its central third of
48 inches (1,220mm).The measurement shall be taken from
the upper centre of the aperture to a point directly below
on either the upper face of the fully raised lift platform or the
upper face of the ramp fully deployed on level ground

h A locking mechanism shall be fitted that holds the access
door in the open position whilst in use

i All wheelchair tracking must be fit for purpose and
structurally sound

Ramps missing, insecurely stored, damaged/deformed, anti-slip
covering in poor condition or missing

Vehicle not presented with a valid or current LOLER
certificate

The installed ramp does not have any visible reference to a
maximum safe working load or certification to BS 6109

Wheelchair access equipment is fitted to the offside access
door of the vehicle

There is not clear headroom in the aperture within the
central third of 48 inches (1,220mm)

No evidence of a suitable locking mechanism to hold the
door open

Damaged or insecure tracking or detritus deposits within the
tracking rails

1.2 Fire extinguisher

Method of inspection ‘ Reason for rejection

a Check the fire extinguisher for presence:

 the expiry date

° seal

° type — water or foam
 approved mark — BS5423 or EN3

b The fire extinguisher must be kept in an accessible position
inside the vehicle. The extinguisher may be carried out of
view, ie in a fastened glove compartment provided there is a
clear sign on the dashboard, stating the location

a

A fire extinguisher is missing or:

e out of date

* broken or missing seal

* no approved marking visible or other non-approved
marking shown

° incorrect type

° in an obviously poor condition or discharged state

Not fitted in an accessible position or its position is not
clearly marked

I8 An FTA compliance guide: Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Vehicles P
age 95

Chapter 11: Appendix ® Statement of licensing policy ® 87




11.3 First aid kit

Method of inspection Reason for rejection

a Check the first aid kit for presence, the expiry date and the
seal is intact. There is no requirement to inspect the contents
of the first aid kit

b The first aid kit must be kept in an accessible position inside
the vehicle. The first aid kit may be carried out of view, ie in
a fastened glove compartment provided there is a clear sign
on the dashboard, stating the location

a A first aid kit is missing, out of date, in a poor or
contaminated condition or the seal has been broken

b The first aid kit is not fitted in an accessible position or its
position is not clearly marked

Section 12
Novelty vehicles (stretch limousines)

12.1 Seating capacity

Method of inspection

[t is strongly recommended that prior to the inspection of a
novelty vehicle the inspector checks the seating capacity on the
V5C to ensure it does not exceed 8 passenger seats

Reason for rejection

If the V5C states more than 8 passengers, then this vehicle
MUST NOT be tested or licensed as a Private Hire Vehicle. The
vehicle should be referred to VOSA for licensing as a passenger
carrying vehicle (PCV)

12.2 Undue stresses

Method of inspection Reason for rejection

Vehicle inspectors should be aware of undue stresses caused
to the steering, brakes and tyres due to the additional weight
imposed on the vehicle at the modification process

Tolerances and wear should be as defined in the VOSA MOT
Inspection Manual — Private Passenger and Light Commercial
Vehicle Testing as follows:

e steering — section 2
* brakes — section 3
e tyres — section 4

12.3 Passenger notices

Driver declaration

Local licensing authorities are strongly advised to obtain a declaration, from the operator of a licensed novelty vehicle, that side facing seats
will never be used to carry passengers under |6 years of age, regardless of whether the vehicle is fitted with or without seat belts

Passenger notices

not be insured

i In addition, notices forbidding children to be carried in side facing seats must be displayed in prominent positions, ie on entry
to the passenger compartment and on the inside of the vehicle on either side of the passenger compartment. In addition, local
licensing authorities may require outward facing signs adjacent to all entrance/exit doors to the passenger compartment

i Further notices should be displayed inside the vehicle, where all passenger can clearly read the notice, advising passengers of the
maximum carrying capacity of the vehicle and a warning to passengers that should the capacity be exceeded then the vehicle will

Page 9

88 ¢ Statement of licensing policy ® Chapter 11: Appendix

6An FTA compliance guide: Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Vehicles |9



Appendices

Appendix A
Hackney Carriage and Private Hire — Trailer inspection form

Hackney Carriage and Private Hire

Space for HA
local authority logo

Trailer inspection sheet

Plate number of towing vehicle

Registration number of towing vehicle

Registered owner of vehicle

Manufacturer's plate showing chassis number

Manufacturer's plate showing maximum weight

Inspection area Description ‘ Pass (v) ‘ Fail (X)
Licence plate Contains details and complies with local licensing authorities’ format
Licence plate Clearly displayed, legible and securely fixed
Licence plate Serviceable — not damaged or defaced
Trailer couplings Check condition and operation and presence of a safety breakaway cable
Tow bar mounting brackets | Check condition and security
Trailer body Check condition of side and rear tailboards
Trailer chassis Check condition
Suspension Check condition and operation
Wheel bearings Check for excessive free play or roughness in bearings
Tonneau cover and fittings Check for condition
Wheels and tyres Check security, condition and wear
Braking system Operates satisfactorily
Lighting All obligatory lights work
Indicators All indicators work
Reflective triangle Check presence and condition
Numberplate Check condition, security of fitting and displayed clearly
Speed restriction notice Check condition and displayed clearly

| hereby certify that the above trailer has been inspected and has/has not* been found to be roadworthy and suitable to be
used as a hackney carriage/private hire* trailer at the time of inspection.

Examined by (name)

Signature Date

*Delete as appropriate

20 An FTA compliance guide: Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Vehicles P
age 97

Chapter 11: Appendix ® Statement of licensing policy ® 89




Appendix B
Definition of motor vehicles

Category Definition
M A motor vehicle with at least four wheels designed and constructed for the carriage of passengers
M Vehicles designed and constructed for the carriage of passengers and comprising no more than eight seats in

addition to the driver’s seat

M2 Vehicles designed and constructed for the carriage of passengers and comprising more than eight seats in
addition to the driver’s seat, and having a maximum mass not exceeding five tonnes

M3 Vehicles designed and constructed for the carriage of passengers and comprising more than eight seats in
addition to the driver’s seat, and having a maximum mass exceeding five tonnes

8An FTA compliance guide: Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Vehicles 21|

Page 9

90 e Statement of licensing policy ® Chapter 11: Appendix



Appendix C
Hackney Carriage and Private Hire — Inspection sheet (front)

Hackney Carriage and Private Hire

Inspection form _Spuceor ErA
ocal authority logo
-

Chassis no Certificate of Compliance serial no Class of inspection (tick)
Vehicle reg mark Make and model Year of manufacture D Hackney Carriage
D Private hire
Plate no Recorded mileage Colour
D Car purchase

Item tested Pass (V) Fail (X) Reasons for failure

Lighting equipment

Front and rear lamps

Headlamps

Headlamp aim

Stop lamps

Rear reflectors

Direction indicators

Steering and suspension

Steering control

Steering mechanism/system

Power steering

Transmission

Wheel bearings

Front suspension

Rear suspension
Shock absorbers
Brakes

Controls/ABS warning system

Condition of service brake system

Condition of parking brake system

Service brake performance

Parking brake performance

Tyres and wheels

Tyre type

Tyre condition (including spare)

Road wheels

Seat belts

Mountings
Condition

General

Driver's view of the road, mirrors

Horn

Exhaust system

Fuel system

Exhaust emissions

Vehicle structuré

Body interiofand luggage space
Fire extiguisher, first aid kit and bulb kit

Meter — test and seal

Licence plates/discs

Roof signhand Fair Hire sign

Body exterior

Doors and'seats

Electrical wiring:and equipment

Speedo

Oil and water leaks

Ancillary equipment

Trailers and tow bars  Yes/No

| hereby certify that the above vehicle has been inspected and has/has not* been found to be roadworthy and suitable to be Authentication stamp
used as a hackney carriage/private hire* vehicle at the same time of inspection.

Signed (Tester/Inspector)

Name in capitals Date

*delete as appropriate

(Sl WARNING: IN MY OPINION, THE VEHICLE IS DANGEROUS TO DRIVE BECAUSE OF THE FOLLOWING DEFECT:

22 An FTA compliance guide: Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Vehicles P
age 99

Chapter 11: Appendix e Statement of licensing policy ® 91




Hackney Carriage and Private Hire — Inspection sheet (back)

If your vehicle has failed the test
please read the following notes

| Your vehicle does not meet the legal requirements.You should have it repaired
without delay and you are not to use the vehicle for hire and reward until such
repairs are carried out.

2 ltis an offence to use on a public road a vehicle of testable age that does not
have a current certificate of compliance, except when:
—  bringing it away from a testing station after it has failed the test

—  taking it to or bringing it away from a place where by PRE
ARRANGEMENT repairs are to be or have been made to
defects for which the vehicle was failed

—  taking it to the testing station for a test booked in

3

a e testing station more than seven

or a retest, fails any subsequent test

An FTA compliance guide: Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Vehicles 23
Page 100

92 o Statement of licensing policy ¢ Chapter 11: Appendix




ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS (current and past contributors)

Don Allison, Transport Manager
Luton Borough Council

Phil Clifford, Fleet & Technical Manager
St Edmundsbury Borough Council

Brendan McNamara, Transport Operations Manager
City of Wakefield Metropolitan District Council

Andy Mair, Head of Engineering Policy
Freight Transport Association

Barry Pearson, Technical Officer
Staffordshire County Council

Simon Smith, Fleet Manager
Luton Borough Council

Derek Rooker, Fleet Engineer
Barnsley Metropolitan District Council

Dave Moyle, Workshops Supervisor
Vale of Glamorgan

Barry Richards, Service Team Manager — Fleet Management
Bath & North East Somerset Council

Kevin Spiers, Transport Workshop Coordinator
Oxford City Council

Ken Stone, Principal Licensing Officer
Liverpool City Council

Dave Colligan, Principal Enforcement Officer
Liverpool City Council

Marten Pleaden, Vehicle Examiner
Walsall Council

Martin Hamer, Principal Licensing Officer
City of Bradford Metropolitan District Council

Paul Dibb, Workshop Manager
City of Bradford Metropolitan District Council

Adam Snape, Fleet Manager
Worcestershire County Council

Jamie Robson, Fleet Services Manager
Worcestershire County Council

Terry Naylor, Supervising Technician

City of Wakefield Metropolitan District Council

Rod Darton, Assistant Director Contact Services

Chichester District Council

John Hoole, Transport Manager
Chichester District Council

Dave Pike, Workshop Foreman
Vale of Glamorgan Council

Keith Miller, Fleet Manager
Milton Keynes Council

Kevin Lewis, Fleet Technical and Compliance Officer

Neath & Port Talbot County Borough Council

Jim Sullivan, Licensing Manager
Neath & Port Talbot County Borough Council

John Webb, Licensing Officer
Salisbury District Council

Paul Stretford, Fleet Group
Wiltshire County Council

Mike Tonks, Transport Manager
Salisbury District Council

Rob Armey, Fleet Inspector
Wiltshire County Council

Tony Milella, Compliance Supervisor
Luton Borough Council

Gary Chapman, Workshop Manager
City of Wakefield Metropolitan District Council

Pete Johnson, Transport Services Manager
City of Wakefield Metropolitan District Council

Freight Transport Association Limited
Hermes House

St John’s Road

Tunbridge Wells

Kent

TN4 9UZ

Chapter 11: Appendix e Statement of licensing policy ® 93

Telephone: 01892 526171
Fax: 01892 534989
Website: www.fta.co.uk

Registered in England Number 391957

©TOG/PATN 08.12/AM




Chapter 12: Vehicle age limits

Objective:

“To prescribe vehicle age limits based on local

empirical evidence and in order to promote public
safety and confidence in the licensed hackney

carriage and private hire fleet.”

1.2

2.1

2.2

2.3

The 1847 act is silent on age limits for hackney
carriages. Likewise, the 1976 act makes no
specific reference to age limits for vehicles but
permits for the imposition of conditions on both

hackney carriage and private hire vehicle licences.

The “fitness” of a licensed vehicle is of
paramount consideration and licences may

be suspended, revoked or not renewed if the
committee is satisfied that a licensed vehicle is
“unfit for use”.

Some council’s impose age limits on vehicles and
some do not.

Vehicle age limits have been applied in
Portsmouth for many, many years. This has been
by way of a local policy directive and as a “pre-
application” requirement for both proprietors of
hackney carriages and private hire vehicles.

Historically, there was an old “split rule” for
“normal” saloon vehicles to remain licensed until
8 years of age (with an entry age of 5 years or
under) and London approved FX type vehicles
being licensed for up to 12 years.8°

Corresponding vehicle licence conditions have
been imposed to reflect on the vehicle age limits
approved by the committee.

Proprietors have a right of appeal to the 3.1
Magistrates’ against conditions imposed on
respective hackney carriage and private hire
vehicle licences.
Page 102

3.0 The current vehicle age limits approved are

as follows:

e For all hackney carriage and private hire
saloons, hatchbacks, estates and multi people
vehicles (MPV’s) - the vehicle must be under 6
years of age on first licensing and can
remain licensed until 8 years of age;

e For suitable adapted fully wheelchair
accessible hackney carriages (including those
meeting the Transport for London and old
PCO specifications) and having a minimum
nearside loading for wheelchair users — the
vehicle must be under 4 years of age on
first licensing and can remain licensed
until 12 years of age - (minute 23/2006
refers).®’

The local vehicle age limit policy directives/
conditions have stood the test of time and have
not been subject to judicial challenge.

However vehicle proprietors have approached
the Licensing Committee direct to seek a further
vehicle licensing period on individual merit. In
some cases the committee have agreed to extend
a vehicle licence — in others, they have not. The
overall mechanical fitness and comfort of the
vehicle (together with the individual vehicle
servicing and maintenance history) have been of
paramount importance to the committee.?

Equally, the committee has chosen, in the past,
to waive the current “entry” 6 year age limit
policy for unique vehicles such as older Lincoln
Town cars (stretched limousines) and converted
Volvo fire appliance vehicles used as “novelty
fun vehicles”. Again, an emphasis of individual
consideration, on merit, has applied.

There is nothing wrong in having clear local
guidelines on vehicle age limits (to aid both
proprietors, officers and members alike) and
accordingly the committee has robustly defended
the use of a local vehicle age limit policy on the
grounds of public safety but have not “closed
their eyes and ears” to hearing a case on merit.23

However, the committee would expect a
proprietor to bring evidence of an exemplary
mechanical and cosmetic history to support any
extension of a vehicle licence.

94 « Statement of licensing policy ® Chapter 12: Vehicle age limits




3.2 Comparative vehicle age limits from other local
authorities in Hampshire is shown below:

Authority

Vehicle age at first

Maximum vehicle age

Portsmouth — saloon style

Portsmouth — wheelchair accessible
Southampton — saloon style
Southampton — wheelchair

accessible
East Hants
Fareham
Test Valley
Basingstoke

New Forest
Rushmoor

Havant
Winchester
Gosport
Hart
Eastleigh

Isle of Wight

licensing
under 6 years
under 4 years
nil

nil

under 5 years
under 2 years
under 5 years
under 3 years

nil

based on EU emission
standards

under 5 years

under 3 years

under 3 years

under 3 years

under 15 years

under 3 years

8 years
12 years
9 years
12 years

no upper age limit
no upper age limit
13 years*

8 years*

nil
no upper age limit
6 years

8 years
7 years

no upper age limit

(under review)
(under review)

officer discretion
*reducing to 10 years

*may cease earlier
depending on test results

officer discretion

officer discretion
officer discretion
6 month licence issued

p— I-]. . F

o — 1 8

Chapter 12: Vehicle age limits ® Statement of licensing policy ® 95




4.1

4.2

5.0

5.1

84

The Department for Transport guidance states...
....... “It is perfectly possible for an older vehicle
to be in a good condition. So the setting of

an age limit beyond which a local authority

will not licence vehicles may be arbitrary and
inappropriate. But a greater frequency of testing
may be more appropriate for older vehicles — for
example, twice yearly tests for vehicles more than
5 years old”.

The council notes but does not entirely agree
with the guidance. In an ideal world, vehicle
proprietors should not have to face barriers to
“renew” existing vehicle licences year after year;
BUT the empirical evidence gleaned from the
analysis of the 2014 vehicle test results shows
that older vehicles have a higher failure rate than
those younger and newer vehicles.

6.0

The results of the 2014 vehicle testing data
analysis showed a test failure rate of 85% for
vehicles aged 9 years and over. Equally, the noted
failure rate for vehicles aged between 6 — 9 years
of 78% is also of concern.

The current age limit policy favours a longer
life for wheelchair accessible hackney carriage
vehicles (up to 12 years) but corresponding
wheelchair accessible private hire vehicles are
only permitted to remain licensed until 8 years.

This anomaly reflected a previous desire to

“recognise” the virtues of the then approved 6.1
“Public Carriage Office purpose built taxis”#®

which were built for the specific demands of

public conveyance and had a purpose built

chassis and running gear. The universally

recognised vehicles were the iconic “London

cab” Fairway and FX range (now the LTI TX

range) and the Metrocab. Other vehicles such as

the Eurotaxi are now PCO (as was) compliant.

Page 104

96 ¢ Statement of licensing policy ® Chapter 12: Vehicle age limits

However, the current 12 year age limit for all
locally approved wheelchair accessible hackney
carriages is NOT based on a recognition of all
these vehicles being “purpose built” and the
differing age limit standard between those
wheelchair hackney carriages and wheelchair
private hire vehicles should be addressed. This
should be to either increase the private hire
wheelchair accessible vehicles (WAV) to 12 years
(if existing policy were to be maintained) or to
reduce both classes of WAV hackney carriage and
private hire vehicles to a similar age.

There should be a drive towards recognising
and licensing a fleet of younger, cleaner and
greener vehicles working in Portsmouth.
The evidence in the “Vehicle Testing
Requirements” chapter supports this stance.

This view is shared by your reporting staff,
the Environmental Health Manager, the
Transport Manager and Adams Morey.

Ironically, the evidence suggests that vehicle
proprietors are presenting newer vehicles for
initial licensing anyway with 40% of new private
hire or hackney carriage vehicles licensed in 2014
being brand new or under 1 year old at first
licensing. This may be due to competitive finance
deals together with a desire to drive a modern
and more fuel efficient vehicle.

As a consequence, it is recommended that vehicle
age limits be retained (and modified) subject to
an individual proprietor’s right to have his/her
case heard before the Licensing Committee (or
sub - committee) on individual merit.




1. That minute 23/2006 be rescinded.

2. That, as a matter of local policy and condition for
both hackney carriage and private hire vehicle
licences; all private hire and hackney carriage
vehicles presented for initial licensing shall be
under 3 years of age on first licensing and may
remain licensed until 8 years of age and
provided the vehicle is mechanically fit and
supported by an evidenced service history in line
with the manufacturer’s guidelines.

3. That any vehicle presented for a temporary use
licence shall be under 1 year old and provided
the vehicle is mechanically fit and supported by
an evidenced service history in line with the
manufacturer’s guidelines.

4.  That the head of service be authorised to amend
such policy directives, conditions of licence and
application procedures commensurate only with
these proposals.

Page 105

Chapter 12: Vehicle age limits ® Statement of licensing policy ® 97




Chapter 13: CCTV provision

e 2.2
Objective:

“To protect the safety and welfare of drivers,
passengers and other road users by requiring the

mandatory provision of CCTV digital camera
recording equipment in licensed hackney carriage
and private hire vehicles”

1.0 The Legal Provisions

1.1 The use of modern digital visual and/or audio
camera recording equipment post-dates the 1976
act and, not surprisingly, there is nothing in the 2.3
taxi or private hire legislation that reflects on this
important and now common aspect of public and
personal protection.

In vehicles

The guidance states “The owners and drivers

of vehicles will often want to install security
measures to protect the driver. Local licensing
authorities may not want to insist on such
measures, on the grounds that they are best

left to the judgement of the owners and drivers
themselves. But it is good practice for licensing
authorities to look sympathetically on — or actively
to encourage — their installation. They could
include a screen between driver and passenger or
ccrv”.

The department has previously produced helpful
guidance in leaflet format for drivers — “Staying
safe — guidance for taxi drivers” and “Staying
safe — guidance for private hire drivers”®7:

1.2 CCTV surveillance camera devices which process ﬁa’ﬁ% Dsswant i
personal data/information must comply with
the principles of the Data Protection Act 1988.
Operators of surveillance cameras must register Staying safe:
with the Information Commissioner and have due guidance for
regard to the current best practice guidance issued PHV drivers
by the Information Commissioner’s Office.2¢ A quick reference guide

1.3 Underpinning the 1988 act are the “data protection
principles”

Equally, regard should also be given to the code
— “Surveillance Camera Code of Practice” and
issued by the Secretary of State pursuant to the
Protection of Freedoms Act 2012.

All data controllers should follow the code

o et e e e e W
1.4 The use of CCTV in licensed vehicles in P bt o it b o o s ek i e e o Wbt ™

T gk o R R ARG CT T AT
P e,

Portsmouth is currently voluntary with no
conditions of vehicle licence or policy directives in
place to permit or control “in car” CCTV systems.
The council has hitherto taken a neutral stance
on the provision of CCTV in licensed vehicles.

2.0 Best Practice Guidance

2.1 The Department for Transport guidance
recognises that the personal security of both
hackney carriage and private hire drivers is a
prime consideration. Councils’ are reminded of
the Crime and Disorder Act 1998 which requires
the committee to consider crime and disorder
reduction measures.

Page 106

98 e Statement of licensing policy ® Chapter 13: CCTV provision in vehicles

b

The department’s staying safe advice in respect of
CCTV was:

“Installing CCTV cameras has been shown to lead
to reduced threats and violence against drivers.
Signs in the vehicle can highlight the presence

of CCTV to passengers. Cameras can be bought
or rented and the cost may be offset by reduced
insurance premiums. They can be useful when
there is a dispute with a passenger — it is not just
your words against theirs”.




3.1

3.2

The use of any form of surveillance system should 3.3
be carefully considered and where necessary

a “privacy impact assessment” should be

conducted by those persons wishing to install

such devices. In terms of “in car systems” — It

is clear that there are benefits to both the

driver (and vehicle owner) as CCTV provides

unequivocal evidence.

Any “blurring or confusion” between the
perceived truth and actual events in any one
particular matter can be established quickly — this
would help not only your reporting staff in dealing
with any complaints but will also allow drivers to
collate good evidence in respect of assaults, racial
(or other abuse) and assist greatly in dealing with
persons making off without payment.

3.4

This became more apparent in 2013 with the
trade expressing concern to both the Police and
the council about racially motivated attacks and
verbal abuse being directed at both hackney
carriage and private hire drivers; and a concern about

persons not paying a cab fare at journey’s end.

3.5
Meetings were held between the council, taxi

trade and the Police to identify the core concerns
and questionnaires were distributed amongst the
trade. Of the 167 returns received 65% of drivers
had experienced a crime against them with over
90% of respondents reporting that making off
without payment was the most common crime.28

This resulted in the council endorsing the
“payment up front” for longer journeys and the “Pay
Your Fare” campaign car stickers as shown below:

PAY YOUR FARE.

all drivers to receive a fare based on time and distance

travelled and reminds passengers:

* Help the driver take the best route by stating clearly the
destination(s) for your journey.

* Always pay your way — if you don’t pay and get caught you
could be fined, go to prison and have a criminal record for life*.

o Fares are set by the council or company operating the vehicle.
If necessary, please ask the driver for a receipt.

* Remember — someone is always watching, and the car may
have CCTV installed.

In an emergency call the police by dialling 999.

*Fraud Act 2006 - Section 11

The continued success or otherwise of such
partnership working can only be enhanced
with the use of robust evidence provided by
CCTV images.

The chief officer of Police supports the use of
CCTV in licensed vehicles.

Hackney carriage and private hire drivers

are vulnerable and one of the few forms of
current local public transport provider that are
not protected by CCTV. Evidence of criminal
behaviour or criminal activity caught on camera
would be both a deterrent and subsequent
benefit in any criminal proceedings.

On occasion, the committee has had to deal, by
way of disciplinary hearings, with drivers allegedly
involved in sexual contact with passengers or
instances of passengers making false statements
about the conduct or actions of drivers —
particularly when a dispute over a fare was at the
heart of any issue. Either way, the use of CCTV
may help bring clarity to such issues.

It is accepted that evidence may be used to
address concerns about the conduct of an
individual driver — particularly when involved in

a road traffic incident with another car, cyclist or
pedestrian. This may result in disciplinary action
by way of suspension, revocation or non-renewal
of a driver licence OR the imposition of penalty
points and an instruction to undertake further
driver awareness training.

The committee is aware of concerns about
personal injury collisions involving licensed
vehicles and other road users in Portsmouth and
members received a report and statistical data
on this subject in November 2014. Although
further enforcement and/or driver training

may help address these concerns — the use of
CCTV to identify and provide empirical evidence
would be helpful to all agencies including the
committee in dealing with the aftermath of road
traffic incidents.

www.portsmouth.go!ﬁ' ge 107

Chapter 13: CCTV provision in vehicles ® Statement of licensing policy ¢ 99




3.6

3.7

4.0

There has been a significant local shift in vehicle
owners using in car CCTV surveillance systems
to thwart spurious insurance and “cash for
crash” claims.

This has led to one well
known taxi insurer offering to
subsidise both the installation
costs and subsequent
insurance premiums for
Portsmouth fleet owners and
individual owner drivers who
install a competent CCTV
system in their vehicle.

The initial costs of any CCTV
system may be recoverable
as an allowable business
expense for tax purposes. It is
understood that a competent
system can be purchased and
installed for about £250.

Locally, the committee and/or officers have
benefitted in their decision making by seeing
actual CCTV footage of incidents relating to®°:

e A night driver seen doing u turns, bumping up
the kerb and doing “figure of 8” manoeuvres
in a licensed vehicle whilst driving in Milton
Road in an apparent bizarre attempt to locate
the source of an unknown “knocking” noise
from the vehicle

e A night driver who pulled the handbrake on
whilst travelling at over 70mph on the M275
(with passengers on board) causing an
accident and slight injuries to the passengers
(see below still image)

Page 108

{2015/02/04 11:19:08

* A hackney driver who failed to give way at a side
road and proceeded to cross a busy junction
hitting an on-coming private hire vehicle travelling
along Winter Road (see below still image)

Licensing staff have dealt with (and continue
to deal with) many complaints about taxi and
private hire drivers where evidence from CCTV
footage would have been extremely helpful

in determining both the facts and weight of
evidence in any one case.

All this points towards an acceptance that the use
(and benefits) of appropriate recording media in
licensed vehicles is fair, proportionate and human
rights compliant and outweighs any “right to
privacy” concerns.

Although it is pleasing to see a voluntary move by
proprietors to installing CCTV (about 150 vehicles
so far), your reporting officers recommend the
formal introduction of a condition for respective
hackney carriage and private hire vehicle licences
to require the mandatory use of
CCTV in most working vehicles.

Whilst the drivers of independent
hackney carriages are the most
vulnerable form of transport
provider (with no immediate
operator radio back up) — all
“town” working cars are subject to
some degree of risk, no matter how
small. Equally, accidents can happen
to any driver and vehicle irrespective
of work type or mode.

100 ¢ Statement of licensing policy ® Chapter 13: CCTV provision in vehicles




4.3
4.4

4.5

5.0

There will be some exceptions to the rule.

The risk of violence, threat or intimidation
however towards an airport or other business
type driver is very small. Accordingly, there
should be a presumption in favour of requiring
all licensed vehicles to have CCTV with the
exception of:

e Airport only vehicles

e \ehicles used mainly for executive account
type work

And that the head of service be authorised to
grant such dispensations to proprietors from the

For this purpose, the “data controller” is deemed
to be the company, organisation or individual
(including those working in partnership) who
have decided to have the CCTV installed in the
vehicle. The data controller will be responsible for
processing and exercising control over personal
information together with how images are
stored and how they should be disclosed. Data
controllers must ensure that any processing of
personal data for which they are responsible
complies with the 1988 act. Failure to do so

risks enforcement action, even prosecution, and
compensation claims from individuals.

requirement to have CCTV on individual merit. 5.1  Evidence of initial registration and annual
renewal with the ICO may be requested b

Should the committee endorse the mandatory any authorised officer y : y
use of in car CCTV cameras by way of formal o -
condition, there should be a presumption in 5.2 The specification (or gwdelmgs) for the use
favour of a “phased in” approach to allow both of "approved” camera surveillance systems
vehicle proprietors and system installers’ time to n Ports-mouth vehicles should be as wide
comply with any new committee directives. as possible. There appears to be no need to

: : . . over subscribe the minutiae of any technical
The coundil considers that_l‘F” proprietors providing guidelines or specification — particularly as this is
n car CCdTV cargera SUIVel ”ance.SrI]-lC;ULbee , a fast moving industry with rapid technological
reglstere las a ata.contro er.W|t the Information advances and changes.
Commissioner’s Office accordingly.

Page 109

Chapter 13: CCTV provision in vehicles ® Statement of licensing policy ® 101




5.3 Recommended guidelines for the use of CCTV in
licensed vehicles (and which appear to be based
on industry best practice) are shown below:

General

All equipment must be designed, constructed and
installed in such a way and from such materials as
to present no danger to the driver or passengers,
including any impact against the equipment in the
event of a collision or danger from the electrical
integrity being breached through vandalism, misuse,
or wear and tear.

Specifications

e The equipment must be permanently wired to the
vehicle power supply

The equipment to have a clear serial or other
unique identification number

The equipment must not obstruct the driver's view
of the road ahead

The camera(s) must record both forward and rear
facing images

Images to be clear, date and time stamped, in
colour and in high definition

There must be no facility to view recorded images
from within the vehicle

The equipment should be removable from the
vehicle when not working and not kept on
permanent display

The equipment must be tamper proof
The equipment must have a built in battery back up

There must be a GPS tracking and positioning
function together with integration with the vehicle
electrics to determine, for example, vehicle speed

There must be an auto record function whether by
ignition switch turn, door opening, person motion
sensor or vehicle in motion sensor and NOT just
activated by the driver alone.

The equipment to have a minimum of 31 days
image recording and storage capacity

If an audio function is provided - this must be set
in the default OFF position AND ONLY ACTIVATED
BY TRIGGER OR PANIC BUTTON FUNCTION?®®

All equipment shall be installed, maintained and
serviced by a competent and/or authorised person

A simple operator user manual shall be provided
on demand

All stored images to be protected with no
unauthorised access and all images shall be
encrypted

Any requested images shall be capable of viewing
and play back using industry standard software

Clear and prominent signs within the vehicle giving
details of the organisation/person/purpose and
contact details should be provided where possible

102 e Statement of licensing policy ® Chapter 13: CCTV provision in vehicles



6.0

The data controller is likely to receive requests
from authorised council officers, the Police,
insurance companies and possibly members of
the public to view any relevant data including
visual or audio and will be responsible for
responding to such requests. Formal requests in
writing or by electronic means and specifying
why the disclosure is required will be made.

Data controllers may charge members of the
public making a request for the disclosure of any
images in line with the ICO current code

of practice.

That the Licensing Committee endorse and
approve the mandatory use of in car CCTV
camera surveillance in both licensed hackney
carriage and private hire vehicles (to include
“temporary use” vehicles).

That any camera system installed in a licensed
vehicle shall comply with the technical
specifications referred to in 5.3.

That the committee approve the following new
condition for both hackney carriage and private
hire vehicle licences:

The proprietor shall cause the vehicle to

be fitted with a working and secure digital
CCTV system (to capture both forward and
rear facing colour images in high definition)
and to retain such data for a period of 31
days. The installed CCTV to comply with any
code(s) of practice issued by the Information
Commissioner, the requirements of the

Data Protection Act 1988 and any technical
specifications approved by the committee
for the time being in force.

The proprietor shall, within 7 days, give
written notice to the council of the
installation of any CCTV system in the
vehicle to include the make, model and

serial number of the equipment so installed.

The proprietor shall check the system for
malfunctions at least once a month and, if a
repair or download is required, the vehicle
may continue to be used provided any
malfunction is rectified within 24 hours.

The proprietor shall, upon receiving any
enquiry or request from an authorised
officer or Police officer, provide details of
any stored images or audio recordings as the
case may be.

That "airport only” vehicles and vehicles used
mainly for executive account type work be
exempted from the requirement to have CCTV
installed and the head of service be given
delegated authority to grant such exemptions to
vehicle proprietors on individual merit.

i) That all existing licensed hackney carriage
and private hire vehicles as appropriate be
fitted with compliant CCTV cameras by
30 September 2017.

i) That any newly licensed hackney carriage
or private hire vehicle from 1 April 2016
onwards be required to be fitted with
compliant CCTV cameras with immediate
effect.

That the head of service be authorised to amend
such policy directives, conditions of licence and
application procedures commensurate only with
these proposals.

Page 111

Chapter 13: CCTV provision in vehicles ® Statement of licensing policy ¢ 103



Chapter 14: Conditions of licence and byelaws

Objective:

“To promote public safety and to maintain high
local standards by the imposition of conditions for
the supervision and control of:

e hackney carriages and their proprietors
e private hire vehicles and their proprietors
e private hire operators

e private hire drivers”

1.1 The 1847 act does not permit the council to
impose conditions on the grant (or renewal) of
either a hackney carriage licence or a hackney
carriage driver licence.

1.2 The 1976 act permits for the imposition of
conditions considered “reasonably necessary” to
regulate the following licence types:

¢ Private hire drivers
e Private hire vehicles
e Private hire operators

e Hackney carriages

1.3

1.4

1.5

2.0

Respective licences are considered granted or
renewed for each (licensing period) subject to

any approved conditions imposed. Proprietors,
operators and drivers have a right of appeal direct
to the Magistrates’ if aggrieved by the conditions
but may only do so within restricted time periods
following the grant or renewal of the licence
under consideration.

It is accepted common ground that conditions
cannot be imposed on hackney carriage drivers
licences and no express power is found in the
1976 act to do so. The council will look to the
local byelaws made pursuant to the 1847 act to
control hackney carriage drivers.??

However, there is nothing to prevent the council
from adopting a policy of requiring hackney
carriage drivers to provide required information
(by way of the renewal process) and to also seek
further information at any other reasonable
time about medical fitness, convictions etc to
determine overall fitness

to drive.

The operator, vehicle and driver conditions
currently imposed by the council are based on
those standard models recommended by the
then Association of District Councils (“ADC") and
originate from guidance published in 1978.

104 « Statement of licensing policy ® Chapter 14: Conditions of licence and byelaws




2.1

2.2

2.3

The conditions are in urgent need of review

both to reflect modern working practices in the
respective hackney carriage and private hire trades
and also to comply with the generally accepted
principles of good administrative law in that®?:

e The conditions should be precise and
enforceable

e The conditions should be clear with an
emphasis on “must”, “shall” and “will”

e The conditions should not duplicate other
statutory requirements or duties

There may be occasion when your reporting
staff would wish to impose “special
conditions” on an individual licence for unique
and individual circumstances (such as the
requirement to carry out medical enquiries)
and to subsequently “remove” those special
conditions once complied with.

At present, the scheme of delegation does not
permit officers to impose such conditions on an
individual licence and permission is sought for an
appropriate scheme of delegation to be put in
place accordingly.

* The conditions should be proportionate, 2.4 The proposed new and revised conditions
justifiable and capable of being met are attached as appendices A, B, C and D

e Standard conditions can be utilised but local respectively. They reflect on the good practice
circumstances can/will dictate local criteria for guidance mentioned in paragraph 2.1 above.
the imposition of special conditions They are guided by the overall concept of “fit and

» proper” and the desire to promote public safety.
Conditions should also normally reflect on any
local policy and/or other directives (such as 2.5 A "less is more” approach has been adopted in
vehicle specification and age limits) approved by order to minimise confusion and jargon to the
the committee. trade. Pages and pages of convoluted and heavily

_ , scripted conditions are hardly likely to be easily
Sometimes there rrJay be Ioc.aI. p(,),hcy matt'ers remembered (or recognised) by either the trade
‘Fhat are seen as a prg—reqwsfte to obtalnlng a or indeed your reporting staff.
licence (such as a vehicle colour or vehicle age on
entry to the trade) and these will be considered 3.0 Abreach of conditions by a licence holder may
as “pre-application” specification requirements not necessarily be an offence at law and may
and expressed as being conditional once a licence be enforced by the use of verbal or written
has been granted. warnings, points or a referral to the committee

o _ , , for consideration of any disciplinary action. An
Itis important that in formulating policy and isolated breach may result in suitable verbal
conditions (and in exercising any discretionary advice being given.
powers) that they should be capable of
withstanding any “Wednesbury unreasonable” 3.1 If the breach (for example an operator failing
test challenge.®? to keep records of vehicles operated by him)

. , is an offence contrary to the 1976 act — then
COﬂdItIOﬂS.ShOU|d also be reviewed on a oroceedings may be commenced by the City
regular basis. Solicitor if recommended by your reporting
The standard conditions must be approved manager and where it is in the public interest to
and adopted by the committee as there is no do so.

Qelegated power tq your repprtlng staff to 3.2 Itis imperative, for the purposes of local
implement or confirm conditions. control and consistency, that drivers, vehicle
Persons likely to be affected by any conditions proprietors and operators understand their
should be given advance opportunity to make respective obligations under the conditions
representation or comment — particularly if there and accept that the council will take strong
is any apparent concern about the vires of the and firm enforcement action to support
conditions under consideration. compliance with the conditions.

Page 113

Chapter 14: Conditions of licence and byelaws e Statement of licensing policy ¢ 105




Portsmouth
CITY COUNCIL

4.5
www.portsmouth.gov.uk
4.6
il o, - Lo i
. .3 i
1‘ d,yti!-HQE- ( .
- F . -y H ‘
with respect to A 1.
"Hackney Carriages in
the City of Portsmoluith
To be kept in vehicle at all times
2.
4.1 The council has adopted byelaws for the control
and supervision of hackney carriages, their
proprietors and drivers. The enabling provision is
contained within section 68 of the 1847 act. The
byelaws were approved by the council in 1970
and subsequently by the Secretary of State in 3.

4.2

4.3

4.4

1971.

The byelaws have been slightly modified to reflect,

for example, the need for vehicles to attend the
council’s nominated garage but overall are based 4.
on the “model” byelaws from 1974.

The current byelaws are attached as an
appendix.

The Department for Transport has issued
guidance to local authorities on the making
(or amending) of byelaws and expects local
authorities to “base their byelaws” on the
prescribed national model. It is not an easy
process to seek and obtain approval to deviate
from the wording of the model byelaws.?*

Page 114

The council has used the byelaws to prosecute
hackney carriage drivers for offences of failing to
remain with a carriage when first turn on a rank,
failing to behave in a civil and orderly manner
and failing to wear a badge.

Alternatively, however, “byelaw offences” have also
attracted the healthy imposition of penalty points
to deal with minor and “one off” breaches —

particularly say with hackney drivers “over ranking”.

Although slightly archaic in wording, the byelaws
remain a useful enforcement tool and, as a
consequence, there are no proposals to consider
any amendments to the current byelaws.

That the Licensing Committee approve and adopt
the revised conditions of licence for hackney
carriage vehicles, private hire operators, private
hire vehicles and private hire drivers and with
immediate effect.

That the head of service be authorised to

impose such further “special conditions” on
individual licences, as considered appropriate and
proportionate, and in respect of hackney carriage
vehicles, private hire operators, private hire
vehicles and private hire drivers. But this authority
is NOT to be used to amend or vary any of the
prescribed standard conditions.

That the conditions of licence for hackney
carriages, private hire operators, private hire
vehicles and private hire drivers be reviewed every
3 years.

That the use of the current adopted byelaws be
endorsed and noted.

106 * Statement of licensing policy ® Chapter 14: Conditions of licence and byelaws




Chapter 14: Appendix

APPENDIX A

Portsmouth

CITY COUNCIL

PRIVATE HIRE OPERATOR’S LICENCE

Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976

PORTSMOUTH CITY COUNCIL being satisfied that the applicant is a fit and proper person and pursuant
to section 55, Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976 hereby grant a licence to
operate private hire vehicles to:

Name of operator(s):
Operator trade name:

Trading address:

Date licence granted:
Date licence expires:

Signed on behalf of the Head of Service
(Authorised Officer)

NOTES

e This licence is issued subject to compliance with the act and any standard/special conditions shown over

e This licence will expire on the date shown unless previously suspended or revoked

e Appeal provisions apply against any conditions attached to the grant of a licence or to the suspension,
revocation or refusal to renew an operator licence

e An authorised officer may request the production of this licence

e Every contract for the hire of a private hire vehicle is deemed to be made with the operator

PORTSMOUTH CITY COUNCIL, Licensing Service,
Civic Offices, Guildhall Square, Portsmouth, PO1 2AL

Telephone (023 9283 4830/023 9268 8519) « Fax (0238283 4811) 4 4 .= Email: Licensing@portsmouthcc.gov.uk
radagc 119

Chapter 14: Appendix e Statement of licensing policy ® 107




Portsmouth

CITY COUNCIL

CONDITIONS OF LICENCE

1. The licence is not transferable to any another person nor does it authorise the operator to operate from any addresses other than that
and/or those specified in the licence.

2. 1) The operator shall notify the council within 24 working hours of any change to the:

Trading name of the operator

Telephone numbers utilised by the operator

The email and world wide web address utilised by the operator

The name and contact details of any staff authorised to act on behalf of the operator for the purposes of
exercising supervision of vehicles and their drivers

2) The operator shall notify the council within 24 hours of any arrest, detention or charges being preferred against them or the
imposition of any conviction, caution, reprimand or warning.

3. 1) The operator shall record and keep the name, address and contact telephone and/or email details of any person(s) making any
complaint about a licensed vehicle or driver (whether hackney carriage or private hire) for a period of 6 months after receipt;

2) The operator shall, at the request of any authorised officer, forward the complaint details referred to in 3(1) above, together with the
details of the relevant vehicle(s) and driver(s) concerned, to the council and within 24 hours of such a request being made;

(3) The operator must notify the council immediately (or on the next available working day if after normal office hours) of any
complaint received and recorded against a licensed vehicle or driver that affects either the public safety or fitness of the vehicle or
driver. Any voice recording of a complaint shall be retained and forwarded to an authorised officer upon request.

4. The operator shall maintain a current and updated record of all vehicles and drivers (private hire and hackney carriage) affiliated to the
operator and shall record as a minimum:

. The registration number, council plate number and any unique call sign given by the operator to that vehicle
. The full name, council badge number and any unique call sign given by the operator to that driver

And shall provide such details about vehicles or drivers to an authorised officer of the council within 24 hours upon such a request
being made.

5.  The operator shall maintain, for a period of 12 months, a record of every booking for a private hire vehicle or hackney carriage vehicle
invited or accepted by him, whether by accepting the same from the hirer or by undertaking it at the request of another operator (from
within the district or elsewhere) and shall produce such records, including transcripts of any phone calls associated with a booking,
within 24 working hours on request to any authorised officer of the council or to any Police Officer.

The records shall contain:-

(a) The time and date the booking was made;

(b) The name and contact telephone details of the hirer;

(c) The time and date of the pick-up address

(d) The destination(s)

(e) The vehicle and driver details allocated to the hiring.

(f) If available, and for a period of 6 months, the Global Positioning Signal (GPS) vehicle tracking movements for the booking

(9) A unique identifier and reference in respect of all bookings for a private hire vehicle accepted by the operator from another
Portsmouth operator OR from a person licensed to operate outside of Portsmouth and bookings passed on to another
operator whether within Portsmouth or elsewhere

6. Any proposed company (or other) operator advertisement (whether for display on or from a vehicle or from a building) shall be
forwarded to the council and approved by an authorised officer, in writing, at least 7 days prior to such advertisements being displayed.

7.  An operator must not refuse the carriage of a passenger in a licensed vehicle by reason of the fact that the passenger is disabled or
requires to have with him/her a wheelchair or other facility of reasonable size for the disabled.

8. The operator shall, when operating under the terms of this licence, have regard to the requirements of the Town and Country Planning
Act 1990 (as amended).

9. The operator shall provide to the council a table of all current fares and charges associated with the hire of a private hire vehicle and
shall further submit any amendment/variations to such table of fares to the Council within 7 days of such changes being made.

PORTSMOUTH CITY COUNCIL, Licensing Service,
Civic Offices, Guildhall Square, Portsmouth, PO1 2AL

Telephone (023 9283 4830/023 9268 8519) - Fax4) 3 . Email: Licensing@portsmouthcc.gov.uk

108 e Statement of licensing policy ® Chapter 14: Appendix




Portsmouth

CITY COUNCIL

10. The operator shall retain any lost property left in a licensed vehicle (and given to him by a driver or owner driver) for a minimum period
of 28 days and arrange for the disposal of same as he sees fit should the property not be claimed by the owner.

TO BE READ IN CONJUNCTION WITH OUR LEAFLET “CONDITIONS OF LICENCE AND ENFORCEMENT”

Portsmouth City Council is committed to complying with the Freedom of Information Act 2000 (FOIA) which applies to all recorded
information that it holds or is held on its behalf. Information that is provided to or held by the City Council will be processed and
disclosed strictly in accordance with the FOIA, the Data Protection Act 1998 or other appropriate legislation.

This authority is under a duty to protect the public funds it administers, and to this end may use the information you have
provided on this form for the prevention and detection of fraud. It may also share this information with other bodies responsible
for auditing or administering public funds for these purposes. For further information go to www.portsmouth.gov.uk and search
for 'National Fraud Initiative.

PORTSMOUTH CITY COUNCIL, Licensing Service,
Civic Offices, Guildhall Square, Portsmouth, PO1 2AL
Telephone (023 9283 4830/023 9268 8519) « Fax (023 g283 4811) Email: Licensing@portsmouthcc.gov.uk

Chapter 14: Appendix ® Statement of licensing policy ® 109




APPENDIX A

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

Please note that this information does not form part of your licence conditions but is provided for
information purposes.

SMOKING

Since 2007 provisions contained in the Health Act 2006 prohibits the smoking
of tobacco or any other substance by any person in a licensed vehicle. The
legislation applies at all times whilst the vehicle remains licensed, thus smoking
remains prohibited when the vehicle is not hired or not for hire.

Every licensed vehicle is required to carry appropriate signage under the
Smoke free (Signs) Regulations 2007.

ASSISTANCE DOGS

The Equality Act 2010 imposes a duty on licensed drivers and operators to convey any guide, hearing or
other assistance dog in a licensed vehicle.

Drivers must:

e carry assistance dogs accompanying disabled people;
e allow the dog to remain with the passenger

Operators must:

e accept bookings made by or on behalf of a disabled person who is accompanied by a guide, hearing
or other assistance dog;

e accept bookings made by a person who will be accompanied in a PHV by such a disabled person;
and

¢ not make an additional charge for carrying the assistance dog

Exemptions

If a driver has a medical condition, such as severe asthma, which is
aggravated by contact with dogs, or is allergic or has an acute phobia to dogs,
it may be possible for them to qualify for an exemption. Please discuss this
with the Licensing Service in the first instance, to whom application for
exemption must be made. The driver will be required to produce conclusive
medical evidence in support of any exemption application.

R S T S A AT
NOTIGE OF EXEMPTION
s e e g e

There is a right of appeal to the Magistrates’ Court against the refusal to issue
an exemption certificate.

Please note that the law does not allow for an exemption to be granted on
religious grounds.

An operator cannot claim an exemption from the above requirements.

PORTSMOUTH CITY COUNCIL, Licensing Service,
Civic Offices, Guildhall Square, Portsmouth, PO1 2AL
Telephone (023 9283 4830/023 9268 8519) » Fax (023 9283 4841) Email: Licensin ortsmouthcc.gov.uk
Pat o

110 e Statement of licensing policy ® Chapter 14: Appendix




APPENDIX B

Portsmouth

CITY COUNCIL

HACKNEY CARRIAGE LICENCE

Town Police Clauses Act 1847
Public Health Act 1875
Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976

PORTSMOUTH CITY COUNCIL pursuant to sections 37 and 40 of the Town Police Clauses Act
1847 hereby grant a licence to use the vehicle specified below as a hackney carriage and
licensed to stand and ply for hire within the said city

Name and address of proprietor(s):

Make and model:

Registration number:
Licence number:

Licensed to carry:

Date of next mechanical test:

Date licence expires:

Signed on behalf of the Head of Service
(Authorised Officer)

NOTES

e This licence is issued subject to compliance with the said acts, byelaws and any standard/special
conditions shown

e This licence is NOT transferable to another vehicle unless a formal application has been submitted and
approved

e This licence will expire on the date shown unless previously suspended or revoked

e Appeal provisions generally apply against any conditions attached to the grant of a licence or to the
suspension, revocation or refusal to renew a vehicle licence

e An authorised officer may request the production of this licence

PORTSMOUTH CITY COUNCIL, Licensing Service,
Civic Offices, Guildhall Square, Portsmouth, PO1 2AL
Telephone (023 9283 4830/023 9268 8519) - Fax (03,9283 481%) # ~» Email: Licensing@portsmouthcc.gov.uk
rFag

cClily

Chapter 14: Appendix ® Statement of licensing policy ® 111




Portsmouth
CITY COUNCIL

CONDITIONS OF LICENCE

1. The vehicle must not be over 3 years old on first licensing and may, at the discretion of the council, remain licensed until 8
years old (plus the remainder of the licensing period for that licensing year) subject to satisfactory mechanical inspection and
testing.

2. The vehicle must be a uniform silver in colour.

3. The proprietor shall ensure that the vehicle is maintained and serviced in accordance with the manufacturer's guidelines and

recommendations and shall keep documentary evidence of such servicing and maintenance records for inspection by an
authorised officer upon request.

4. The proprietor(s) shall notify the council within 24 hours of any arrest, detention or charges being preferred against them or the
imposition of any conviction, caution, reprimand or warning.

5. The proprietor shall keep the interior and exterior of the licensed vehicle clean and comfortable at all times.

6. The vehicle licence plate shall be securely affixed to the rear of the vehicle and kept in public view at all times. The front
windscreen licence disc and interior plate number shall also be on public view. The proprietor shall report any loss in respect of
the vehicle licence, windscreen disc, interior plate number or rear licence plate to the council within 24 hours.

7. 1) The proprietor shall cause the vehicle to be fitted with a working and secure digital CCTV system (to capture both forward
and rear facing colour images in high definition) and to retain such data for a period of 31 days. The installed CCTV to comply
with any code(s) of practice issued by the Information Commissioner, the requirements of the Data Protection Act 1988 and any
technical specifications approved by the council for the time being in force.

2) The proprietor shall, within 7 days, give written notice to the council of the installation of any CCTV system in the vehicle to
include the make, model and serial number of the equipment so installed.

3) The proprietor shall check the system for malfunctions at least once a month and, if a repair or download is required, the
vehicle may continue to be used provided any malfunction is rectified within 24 hours.

4) The proprietor shall, upon receiving any enquiry or request from an authorised officer or Police officer, provide details of any
stored images or audio recordings as the case may be.

8. The vehicle shall exhibit the prescribed local "TAXI" roof sign which shall be illuminated when the vehicle is for hire. The roof
sign shall comply with any specifications approved by the council for the time being in force.

9. 1) No interior or exterior signs, adverts, notices or any other wording shall be publicly displayed from a licensed vehicle without
the prior written consent of the council. A proprietor shall submit any signage for approval and for display from the front doors
only to the council at least 7 days prior to such proposed use and shall NOT display any signage until written approval has been
given by an authorised officer.

2) 9(1) above shall not apply to the following:

e Any prior approved Portsmouth private hire operator windscreen and/or rear window sign stating the trade
name and/or telephone number and www address of the licensed Portsmouth operator.

e Any prior approved Portsmouth private hire operator signage (permanent and not magnetic) or approved
proprietor signage displayed from the front doors of the licensed vehicle only.

e The local mandatory (permanent and not magnetic) display of the council's corporate livery for hackney
carriages as may be from time to time prescribed by the council.

3) A proprietor shall only display on or from the vehicle one set of approved Portsmouth operator signage as required in 9(2)
above at any one time.

10. The vehicle shall be fitted with an accurate clock calendar controlled taximeter incorporating a progressive function. The meter
shall be clearly displayed and maintained in accordance with the byelaws.

11. The proprietor shall ensure that the licensing record "white book" prescribed by the council shall be carried in the vehicle at all
times and made available for immediate inspection by any authorised officer of the council.

PORTSMOUTH CITY COUNCIL, Licensing Service,
Civic Offices, Guildhall Square, Portsmouth, PO1 2AL
Telephone (023 9283 4830/023 9268 8519) « 1) Email: Licensing@portsmouthcc.gov.uk

112  Statement of licensing policy ® Chapter 14: Appendix




Portsmouth
CITY COUNCIL

12. The proprietor shall give not less than 7 days prior written notice to the council of the introduction of any further tariff or table of
fares for the use of a hackney carriage under a contract or purported contract for private hire or any subsequent amendment
thereto.

TO BE READ IN CONJUNCTION WITH OUR LEAFLET “CONDITIONS OF LICENCE AND ENFORCEMENT”

Portsmouth City Council is committed to complying with the Freedom of Information Act 2000 (FOIA) which applies to all recorded
information that it holds or is held on its behalf. Information that is provided to or held by the City Council will be processed and disclosed
strictly in accordance with the FOIA, the Data Protection Act 1998 or other appropriate legislation.

This authority is under a duty to protect the public funds it administers, and to this end may use the information you have provided on this
form for the prevention and detection of fraud. It may also share this information with other bodies responsible for auditing or administering
public funds for these purposes. For further information go to www.portsmouth.gov.uk and search for 'National Fraud Initiative.

PORTSMOUTH CITY COUNCIL, Licensing Service,
Civic Offices, Guildhall Square, Portsmouth, PO1 2AL
Telephone (023 9283 4830/023 9268 8519) Fax ( 9283 48 Email: Licensing@portsmouthcc.gov.uk

Chapter 14: Appendix e Statement of licensing policy ® 113




APPENDIX C

Portsmouth
CITY COUNCIL

PRIVATE HIRE DRIVER’S LICENCE

Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976

PORTSMOUTH CITY COUNCIL pursuant to section 51 Local Government (Miscellaneous
Provisions) Act 1976 hereby grant a licence to the person specified below to act as the driver of any
private hire vehicle licensed by the said council

Name of licence holder:
Address:

Licence number:

Date licence granted:
Date licence expires:

Signed on behalf of the Head of Service
(Authorised Officer)

NOTES

This licence is issued subject to compliance with the said act and standard/special conditions shown over
This licence is NOT transferable and will expire on the date shown unless previously suspended or revoked
An authorised officer may request the production of this licence within 5 days

Appeal provisions apply against any conditions attached to the grant of a licence or to the suspension,
revocation or refusal to renew a driver’s licence

PORTSMOUTH CITY COUNCIL, Licensing Service,
Civic Offices, Guildhall Square, Portsmouth, PO1 2AL

Telephone (023 9283 4830/023 9268 8519) - Fap(_(o_2_3‘92§f %) . Email: Licensing@portsmouthcc.gov.uk
rayc

114  Statement of licensing policy ® Chapter 14: Appendix




Portsmouth
CITY COUNCIL

CONDITIONS OF LICENCE

1. A) The driver shall notify the council within 24 hours of any changes to:

e Their name, address, telephone or email contact details
Any medical condition that might affect an ability to drive professionally to the group 2
vocational standard

e Their driving licence so far as this relates to the imposition of penalty points, any other
endorsements, fines or disqualifications

e Their Disclosure & Barring Service enhanced check certificate so far as this relates to
the imposition of any convictions, cautions, reprimands or warnings

e Their right to work or reside in the UK.

B) The driver shall notify the council within 24 hours of any arrest, detention or charges being preferred
against them.

2. The driver shall be clean and tidy in appearance and shall at all times be dressed in a manner so as not to
cause offence to members of the public. If the operator has provided for drivers to abide by a corporate
"company" clothing policy when working - the driver shall wear such branded clothing.

The driver shall wear appropriate foot wear and no flip flops shall be permitted.
3. The driver shall behave in a civil and orderly manner at all times.

4. The driver shall take all reasonable precautions to ensure the safety and comfort of persons travelling in the
vehicle and shall give assistance in helping persons in and out of the vehicle when requested. Further, the
driver shall give reasonable assistance with loading and unloading of any luggage to and from the entrance
of any house or other place where he collects or sets down any passengers.

5. A) The driver shall keep the interior and exterior of the licensed vehicle clean and comfortable at all times.
The driver shall report immediately to the vehicle proprietor any apparent defect materially affecting the
safety, comfort or roadworthiness of the vehicle.

B) The driver shall, unless previously claimed by the owner, hand any property left in the vehicle within 24
hours to the operator who provided the booking for the vehicle.

6. The driver shall not interfere with any installed CCTV media recording device and shall report immediately to
the vehicle proprietor any apparent defect to the recording media. The driver shall ensure that the recording
media (visual) is switched on at all times when the vehicle is working.

7. The driver shall ensure that the rear licence plate and interior front windscreen licence disc are on public
view at all times and shall report immediately any loss to the vehicle proprietor.

8. The driver shall not carry more passengers than the "licensed to carry” number prescribed both in the
vehicle licence and on the plate.

9. No driver shall refuse to carry a passenger in a licensed vehicle by reason of the fact that that passenger is
disabled or requires to have with them a wheelchair or other facility of reasonable size.

TO BE READ IN CONJUNCTION WITH OUR LEAFLET “CONDITIONS OF LICENCE AND ENFORCEMENT”

PORTSMOUTH CITY COUNCIL, Licensing Service,
Civic Offices, Guildhall Square, Portsmouth, PO1 2AL

Telephone (023 9283 4830/023 9268 8519) - Faxgl23 9283 43144 A Email: Licensing@portsmouthcc.gov.uk
P éqe | £

Chapter 14: Appendix ® Statement of licensing policy ® 115




Portsmouth
CITY COUNCIL

Portsmouth City Council is committed to complying with the Freedom of Information Act 2000 (FOIA) which applies to all recorded
information that it holds or is held on its behalf. Information that is provided to or held by the City Council will be processed and disclosed
strictly in accordance with the FOIA, the Data Protection Act 1998 or other appropriate legislation.

This authority is under a duty to protect the public funds it administers, and to this end may use the information you have provided on this
form for the prevention and detection of fraud. It may also share this information with other bodies responsible for auditing or
administering public funds for these purposes. For further information go to www.portsmouth.gov.uk and search for 'National Fraud
Initiative.

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

Please note that this information does not form part of your licence conditions but is provided for
information purposes.

SMOKING

Since 2007 provisions contained in the Health Act 2006 prohibits the smoking |
of tobacco or any other substance by any person in a licensed vehicle. The :
legislation applies at all times whilst the vehicle remains licensed, thus smoking i
remains prohibited when the vehicle is not hired or not for hire.

Every licensed vehicle is required to carry appropriate signage under the
Smoke free (Signs) Regulations 2007.

ASSISTANCE DOGS

The Equality Act 2010 imposes a duty on licensed drivers and operators to convey any guide, hearing or
other assistance dog in a licensed vehicle.

Drivers must:

e carry assistance dogs accompanying disabled people;
e allow the dog to remain with the passenger

Operators must:

e accept bookings made by or on behalf of a disabled person who is accompanied by a guide, hearing
or other assistance dog;

e accept bookings made by a person who will be accompanied in a PHV by such a disabled person;
and

e not make an additional charge for carrying the assistance dog

Exemptions

If a driver has a medical condition, such as severe asthma, which is NOTICE oF EXEMPTION
aggravated by contact with dogs, or is allergic or has an acute phobia to dogs,
it may be possible for them to qualify for an exemption. Please discuss this
with the Licensing Service in the first instance, to whom application for
exemption must be made. The driver will be required to produce conclusive
medical evidence in support of any exemption application.

There is a right of appeal to the Magistrates’ Court against the refusal to issue
an exemption certificate.

Please note that the law does not allow for an exemption to be granted on

PORTSMOUTH CITY COUNCIL, Licensing Service,
Civic Offices, Guildhall Square, Portsmouth, PO1 2AL

Telephone (023 9283 4830/023 9268 8519) ﬁx %023 931%21) . Email: Licensing@portsmouthcc.gov.uk

116 » Statement of licensing policy ® Chapter 14: Appendix




Portsmouth
CITY COUNCIL

religious grounds.

An operator cannot claim an exemption from the above requirements.

PORTSMOUTH CITY COUNCIL, Licensing Service,
Civic Offices, Guildhall Square, Portsmouth, PO1 2AL

Telephone (023 9283 4830/023 9268 8519) - Faxp923 9283 q%S Email: Licensing@portsmouthcc.gov.uk
rayc

Chapter 14: Appendix e Statement of licensing policy ® 117




APPENDIX D

Portsmouth

CITY COUNCIL

PRIVATE HIRE VEHICLE LICENCE

Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976

PORTSMOUTH CITY COUNCIL being satisfied that the vehicle specified below is suitable
in type, size and design; is mechanically suitable, safe and comfortable hereby grant,
pursuant to section 48 Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976,

a licence to use the said vehicle as a private hire vehicle

Name and address of proprietor(s):
Make and model:
Registration number:

Licence number:

Licensed to carry:

Date of next mechanical test:

Date licence expires:

Signed on behalf of the Head of Service
(Authorised Officer)

NOTES

e This licence is issued subject to compliance with the said act and any standard/special conditions shown

e This licence is NOT transferable to another vehicle unless a formal application has been submitted and
approved

e This licence will expire on the date shown unless previously suspended or revoked

e Appeal provisions generally apply against any conditions attached to the grant of a licence or to the
suspension, revocation or refusal to renew a vehicle licence

¢ An authorised officer may request the production of this licence

PORTSMOUTH CITY COUNCIL, Licensing Service,
Civic Offices, Guildhall Square, Portsmouth, PO1 2AL

Telephone (023 9283 4830/023 9268 8519) -  =Fax (023 9283 A811) - Email: Licensing@portsmouthcc.gov.uk
Fage tZo

118 e Statement of licensing policy ® Chapter 14: Appendix




Portsmouth
CITY COUNCIL

CONDITIONS OF LICENCE

1. The vehicle must not be over 3 years old on first licensing and may, at the discretion of the council, remain licensed until 8
years old (plus the remainder of the licensing period for that licensing year) subject to satisfactory mechanical inspection and
testing.

2. No private hire vehicle licence shall be granted to any vehicle deemed to be silver in colour; and any licensed vehicle must be

maintained in a colour other than silver.

3. The proprietor shall ensure that the vehicle is maintained and serviced in accordance with the manufacturer's guidelines and
recommendations and shall keep documentary evidence of such servicing and maintenance records for inspection by an
authorised officer upon request.

4. The proprietor(s) shall notify the council within 24 hours of any arrest, detention or charges being preferred against them or the
imposition of any conviction, caution, reprimand or warning.

5. The proprietor shall keep the interior and exterior of the licensed vehicle clean and comfortable at all times.

6. The vehicle licence plate shall be securely affixed to the rear of the vehicle and kept in public view at all times. The front
windscreen licence disc and interior plate number shall also be on public view. The proprietor shall report any loss in respect of
the vehicle licence, windscreen disc, interior plate number or rear licence plate to the council within 24 hours.

7. 1) The proprietor shall cause the vehicle to be fitted with a working and secure digital CCTV system (to capture both forward and
rear facing colour images in high definition) and to retain such data for a period of 31 days. The installed CCTV to comply with
any code(s) of practice issued by the Information Commissioner, the requirements of the Data Protection Act 1988 and any
technical specifications approved by the council for the time being in force.

2) The proprietor shall, within 7 days, give written notice to the council of the installation of any CCTV system in the vehicle to
include the make, model and serial number of the equipment so installed.

3) The proprietor shall check the system for malfunctions at least once a month and, if a repair or download is required, the
vehicle may continue to be used provided any malfunction is rectified within 24 hours.

4) The proprietor shall, upon receiving any enquiry or request from an authorised officer or Police officer, provide details of any
stored images or audio recordings as the case may be.

8. The proprietor shall not display on or from the vehicle any roof sign, nor any notice or wording with the words "taxi", "cab", "for
hire" or any other similar wording to suggest to the public that the vehicle is available for immediate public hire.

9. 1) No interior or exterior signs, adverts, notices or any other wording shall be publicly displayed from a licensed vehicle without
the prior written consent of the council. A proprietor shall submit any signage for approval and for display from the front doors
only to the council at least 7 days prior to such proposed use and shall NOT display any signage until written approval has been
given by an authorised officer.

2) 9(1) above shall not apply to the following:

e Any prior approved Portsmouth operator windscreen and/or rear window sign stating the trade name and/or
telephone number and www address of the licensed Portsmouth operator.

e Any prior approved Portsmouth operator signage (permanent and not magnetic) or approved proprietor
signage displayed from the front doors of the licensed vehicle only.

e The local mandatory (permanent and not magnetic) display of the council's corporate livery for the rear
doors of private hire vehicles - "advanced bookings or pre-booked only" as may be from time to time
prescribed by the council and with the exception of airport only vehicles and exceptional prestige vehicles.

3) A proprietor shall only display on or from the vehicle one set of approved Portsmouth operator signage as required in 9(2)
above at any one time.

10. Licensed 7 or 8 seater mini bus/MPV type vehicles may display "all over" Portsmouth operator signage including the trade name
and/or telephone number and www address of the licensed operator together with any wheelchair accessibility provision. This
shall NOT include window adverts or general vehicle wraps.

A proprietor shall submit any "all over" signage for approval to the council at least 7 days prior to such proposed use and shall

PORTSMOUTH CITY COUNCIL, Licensing Service,
Civic Offices, Guildhall Square, Portsmouth, PO1 2AL
Telephone (023 9283 4830/023 9268 8519) » Fax (023 9283 4811) - Email: Licensing@portsmouthcc.gov.uk

Page 127

Chapter 14: Appendix e Statement of licensing policy ® 119




Portsmouth

CITY COUNCIL

NOT display any signage until written approval has been given by an authorised officer.

11.  The proprietor shall keep a copy of the operator's current fare chart (for private hire bookings) in the vehicle and make this
available for public inspection at any time.

12.  The proprietor shall ensure that the licensing record "white book" prescribed by the council shall be carried in the vehicle at all
times and made available for immediate inspection by any authorised officer of the council.

TO BE READ IN CONJUNCTION WITH OUR LEAFLET “CONDITIONS OF LICENCE AND ENFORCEMENT”

Portsmouth City Council is committed to complying with the Freedom of Information Act 2000 (FOIA) which applies to all recorded
information that it holds or is held on its behalf. Information that is provided to or held by the City Council will be processed and disclosed
strictly in accordance with the FOIA, the Data Protection Act 1998 or other appropriate legislation.

This authority is under a duty to protect the public funds it administers, and to this end may use the information you have provided on this
form for the prevention and detection of fraud. It may also share this information with other bodies responsible for auditing or administering
public funds for these purposes. For further information go to www.portsmouth.gov.uk and search for ‘National Fraud Initiative.

PORTSMOUTH CITY COUNCIL, Licensing Service,
Civic Offices, Guildhall Square, Portsmouth, PO1 2AL
Telephone (023 9283 4830/023 9268 8519) « %%2?2%1) . Email: Licensing@portsmouthcc.gov.uk

120  Statement of licensing policy ® Chapter 14: Appendix




Portsmouth

CITY COUNCIL

Byelaws

www.portsmouth.gov.uk

Byelaws

Made under Section 68 of the Town Police Clauses Act
1847; Section 171 of the Public Health Act 1875, by
the Portsmouth City Council with respect to hackney
carriages in the City of Portsmouth.

Interpretation

1. Throughout these byelaws “the Council” means
the Portsmouth City Council and “the district”
means the City of Portsmouth.

Provisions regulating the manner in which the
number of each hackney carriage corresponding
with the number of its licence, shall be displayed.

2. (a) The proprietor of ahackney carriage shall
cause the number of the licence granted to
him in respect of the carriage to be legibly
painted or marked on the outside and
inside of the carriage, or on plates affixed
thereto.

(b) The proprietor or driver of a hackney carriage
shall:-

(i) not wilfully or negligently cause or suffer
any such number to be concealed from
public view while the carriage is standing
or plying for hire;

(i) not cause or permit the carriage to stand

1

Index (by paragraph number)

Interpretation

Licence number to be displayed on carriage

Keep carriage clean, tidy and carry fire extinguisher
Garage testing

Taxi meter to be installed in visible position and
illuminated at night

6. Use of taxi meter
7. Tampering of taxi meter or seals

8. Drivers proceeding to stand(s) and conduct whilst on a
stand

Drivers not to tout for business

10. Drivers to behave in a civil and orderly manner and
ensure safety of persons

11. Don't be late for a hiring

12. Don't carry more passengers than permitted
13. Wear your badge

14. Convey luggage and assist passengers

15. Produce byelaws on request

16. Exhibit table of fares

17. Check carriage for any property left

18. Take any property to nearest Police Station within 48hrs
19. Provide Police with driver details

20. Penalty for breach of byelaws

21. Repeal of previous byelaws

Proprietors and drivers should note that it is an
offence to breach any of these byelaws

Ok wN =~

or ply for hire with any such painting,
marking or plate so defaced that any figure
or material particular is illegible.

Provisions regulating how hackney carriages are
to be furnished or provided.

3. The proprietor of a hackney carriage shall

(a) provide sufficient means by which any person
in the carriage may communicate with the
driver;

(b) cause the roof or covering to be kept
watertight;

(c) provide any necessary windows and a means
of opening and closing not less than one
window on each side;

(d) cause the seats to be properly cushioned or
covered;

(e) cause the floor to be provided with a proper
carpet, mat or other suitable covering;

(f) cause the fittings and furniture generally to be
kept in a clean condition, well maintained and
in every way fit for public service;

(9) provide means for securing luggage if the
carriage is so constructed as to carry luggage;

Page 129

Chapter 14: Appendix ® Statement of licensing policy ® 121




(h) provide an efficient fire extinguisher which
shall be carried in such a position as to be
readily available for use;

(i) provide at least two doors for the use of
persons conveyed in such carriage and a
separate means of ingress and egress for the
driver.

(@) the taximeter shall be fitted with a key, flag or
other device the operation of which will bring
the machinery of the taximeter into action and
cause the word “HIRED” to appear on the face
of the taximeter;

(b) such key, flag or other device shall be capable
of being locked in such a position that the
machinery of the taximeter is not in action

4. In order to enforce compliance with byelaws nos .
2 and 3 inclusive every proprietor of a hackney taanx(?n:r;?érr-]o fare s recorded on the face of the
carriage shall present his vehicle for annual ’
inspection at the Council’s nominated garage and (c) when the machinery of the taximeter is in
on such other occasions as he may be specifically action there shall be recorded on the face
requested in writing or by request of an of the taximeter in clearly legible figures a
authorised officer. If on inspection the Council are fare not exceeding the rate or fare which the
satisfied that any hackney carriage fails to comply proprietor or driver is entitled to demand and
with the requirements of byelaws 2 and 3 they take for the hire of the carriage by distance
may suspend the vehicle licence and require the and time in pursuance of the tariff fixed by the
proprietor forthwith to cease using the hackney Council.
carriage for public hire until the requirement.s’ (d) the word “fARE” shall be printed on the face
of t.he byelaws ha\{e been met to th? Councns' of the taximeter in plain letters so as clearly to
satisfaction and failure to comply with the notice apply to the fare recorded thereon:
shall be an offence. .

5. The proprietor of a hackney carriage shall cause (e) the taximeter shall be so placed that all letters

such carriage to be fitted with a taximeter so
constructed, attached and maintained as to
comply with the following requirements, that is to
say,

illuminated during any period of hiring;

(f) the taximeter and all the fittings thereof shall
be so affixed to the carriage with seals or
other appliances that it shall not be practicable
for any person to tamper with them except by
breaking, damaging or permanently displacing
the seals or other appliances.

Provisions regulating the conduct of the
proprietors and drivers of hackney carriages
plying within the district in their several
employments and determining whether such
drivers shall wear any and what badges.

6. The driver of a hackney carriage provided with a

taximeter shall:-

(@) when standing or plying for hire, keep the key,
flag or other device fitted in pursuance of the
byelaw in that behalf locked in the position in
which no fare is recorded on the face of the
taximeter;

(b) before beginning the journey for which a
fare is charged for distance and time, bring
the machinery of the taximeter into action by
moving the said key, flag or other device, so
that the word “HIRED” is legible on the face of
the taximeter and keep the machinery of the

and figures on the face thereof are at all times
plainly visible to any person being conveyed in
the carriage and for that purpose the letters
and figures shall be capable of being suitably

4

taximeter in action until the termination of the
hiring;

(c) cause the dial of the taximeter to be kept
properly illuminated throughout any part of a
hiring which is during the hours of darkness.
This being the time between half an hour after
sunset to half an hour before sunrise and also
at any other time at the request of the hirer.

A proprietor or driver of a hackney carriage shall
not tamper with or permit any person to tamper
with any taximeter with which the carriage is
provided, with the fittings thereof, or with the
seals affixed thereto.

The driver of a hackney carriage shall, when plying
for hire in any street and not actually hired:-

(a) proceed with reasonable speed to one of the
stands fixed by the Council;

(b) if a stand, at the time of his arrival, is occupied
by the full number of carriages authorised to
occupy it, proceed to another stand;

(c) on arriving at a stand not already occupied
by the full number of carriages authorised to
occupy it, station the carriage immediately
behind the carriage or carriages on the stand
and so as to face in the same direction.

6

Page 130

122 « Statement of licensing policy ® Chapter 14: Appendix




(d)

being on a stand from time to time when any
other carriage immediately in front is driven
off, or moved forward, cause his carriage

to be moved forward so as to fill the place
previously occupied by the carriage driven off
or moved forward;

when his carriage is the first carriage on a
stand, remain with the carriage and be ready
to be hired at once by any person.

Provided that for the purpose of this byelaw
where a driver has reason to believe that there
are persons attending a particular function or
activity in an area not served or not adequately
served by a convenient stand who may wish
to hire a hackney carriage or by reasons of
inclement weather may wish to do so, he may
cruise in that area for a reasonable period

and shall not be deemed on that account to
be in contravention of sub-sections (a) and

(c) of this byelaw. for the purpose of this
clause “cruise” shall mean that the vehicle is
in motion at all times except for picking up
passengers.

9. A proprietor or driver of a hackney carriage, when
standing or plying for hire, shall not, by calling out
or otherwise, importune any person to hire such

person hiring or seeking to hire the carriage:-

(@)
(b)

)

convey a reasonable quantity of luggage;

afford reasonable assistance in loading and
unloading;

afford reasonable assistance in removing it to
or from the entrance of any building, station,
or place at which he may take up or set down
such person.

15. The driver of a hackney carriage shall at all times

carriage and shall not make use of the services of
any other person for that purpose.

10. The driver of a hackney carriage shall behave
in a civil and orderly manner and shall take all
reasonable precautions to ensure the safety of
persons conveyed in or entering or alighting from
the vehicle.

11. The proprietor or driver of a hackney carriage who
has agreed or has been hired to be in attendance
with the carriage at an appointed time and
place shall, unless delayed or prevented by some
sufficient cause, punctually attend with such
carriage at such appointed time and place.

12. A proprietor or driver of a hackney carriage shall
not convey or permit to be conveyed in such
carriage any greater number of persons than the
number of persons specified on the plate affixed
to the outside of the carriage.

13. If a badge has been provided by the Council and
delivered to the driver of a hackney carriage he
shall, when standing or plying for hire, and when
hired, wear that badge in such position and
manner as to be plainly visible.

14. The driver of a hackney carriage so constructed
as to carry luggage shall, when requested by any

Provisions securing the safe custody and re-
delivery of any property accidentally left in
hackney carriages, and fixing the charges to be
made in respect thereof.

17. The proprietor or driver of a hackney carriage shall
immediately after the termination of any hiring or
as soon as practicable thereafter carefully search
the carriage for any property which may have
been accidentally left therein.

18. The proprietor or driver of a hackney carriage

while standing or plying for hire have a complete shall, if any property accidentally left therein by
copy of these byelaws ready to produce and shall any person who may have been conveyed in the
produce the same for perusal and inspection by carriage be found by or handed to him:-

any person hiring such carriage on request.

16.(a)

The proprietor of a hackney carriage shall
cause a statement of the fares fixed by the
Council to be exhibited inside the carriage, in
clearly distinguishable letters and figures.

the proprietor or driver of a hackney carriage
bearing a statement of fares shall not wilfully
or negligently cause or suffer the letters or
figures in the statement to be concealed

or rendered illegible at any time while the
carriage is plying or being used for hire.

(a) carryitassoonas possible andinany event
within 48 hours, if not sooner claimed by or
on behalf of its owner, to the nearest police
station, and leave it in the custody of the
officer in charge of such police station on his
giving a receipt for it;

(b) be entitled to receive from any person to
whom the property shall be re-delivered an
amount equal to five pence in the pound of
its estimated value (or the fare for the distance
from the place of finding to the nearest police
station, whichever be the greater) but not
more than five pounds.

10

Page 131

Chapter 14: Appendix ® Statement of licensing policy ® 123




Furnishing of information

19. Every proprietor of a hackney carriage shall on
request of any police constable furnish the name
and place of abode of any person who was
authorised to drive such carriage at any specified
time within seven days previous to such request
being made.

Penalties

20. Every person who shall offend against any of these
byelaws shall be liable on summary conviction to
a fine not exceeding the statutory amount and
in the case of a continuing offence to a further
fine not exceeding the statutory amount for each
day during which the offence continues after
conviction therefor.

Repeal of Byelaws

21. Thebyelawsrelatingtohackney carriages which
were made by the Council on the 24th May 1938,
14th June 1966 and 30th July 1968, which were
confirmed by the Minister of Health on 25th May
1938 and Secretary of State on 27th October 1966
and 25th September 1968, are hereby repealed.

11

Portsmouth
CITY COUNCIL

Licensing Section, Civic Offices,
Guildhall Square, Portsmouth PO1 2AL

email licensing@Portsmouthcc.gov.uk
Telephone (023) 9283 4830 or (023) 9283 4073

www.portsmouth.gov.uk

You can get this
Portsmouth City
Council information
in large print, Braille,
audio or in another
language by calling

- _J
r h
= Corporate momber of
T
- 4/ Plain English Campaign
ek Committed to clearer cormmurication.
£
N /

©
&
o
I
)
=
@
3
S
2
@
o
S
e
4
k=
3
£
5
3
<3
[=]

Given under the Common Seal of the Lord Mayor
Aldermen and Citizens of the City of Portsmouth this
Seventeenth day of November 1970.

The Common Seal of

The Lord Mayor Aldermen
and Citizens of the

City of Portsmouth

Was hereunto affixed in pursuance of a resolution of
the Council passed at a meeting duly Convened and
held.

(Sgd) J F Blair Lord Mayor

(Sgd) J R Haslegrave Town Clerk and

Chief Executive Officer

The Secretary of Statethisday
confirmed the foregoing byelaws
and fixed the date on which they are
to come into operation as the 25th
dayofJanuary 1971.

(Signed) KP Witney

An Assistant Under Secretary of
State

Home Office
Whitehall
8 January 1971

12

Page 132

124 « Statement of licensing policy ® Chapter 14: Appendix




Chapter 15: Licensing enforcement

Objectives:

“1.

To ensure that the policies, conditions,
byelaws and all other requirements relating
to the hackney carriage and private hire
undertaking are enforced in a firm, fair,
transparent and proportionate way;

To target operators, vehicle proprietors
and drivers (to include those vehicles
and drivers licensed elsewhere and
coming into the city) based on the
principle of “risk assessment” and with
the use of intelligence data recording;

To take strong enforcement action
and consider the use of both criminal
proceedings AND to seek the
suspension or revocation of licences
where evidence that the public safety
and welfare is/has been put at risk;

To work in partnership with other agencies
including the Police, Immigration Enforcement
Service and DVSA;

To offer on-going advice and support to
licence holders”

1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

1.5

1.6

The council, as the local licensing authority,
is responsible for the statutory control and
supervision of both the hackney carriage and
private hire trades.

This supervision is based on the core principle of
ensuring the safety of the travelling public and
other road users.

Licensed drivers and private hire operators are
considered to be professional and responsible
persons who have been vetted to a high standard
and thus are required to be seen and to act in
compliance with any policies, conditions and
statutory requirements for the time being in force.

It is often said, but sometimes not remembered,
that a licence is a privilege and with that privilege
comes accountability and responsibility.

For operators, the council expects that those
running a business inviting and accepting bookings
from the public for the hire of any licensed vehicle
will make the provision and booking service quick
and easy, provide a clearly defined fare structure, an
on time arrival/drop off service, the secure retention
of records of bookings and an ability to deal with
and react to customer feedback (whether good

or bad) in a timely and prompt way. The operator
should encourage and demand high standards of
customer care from drivers at all times.

For vehicle proprietors, the council would
expect the vehicle to be kept in a clean and
tidy condition, well maintained and serviced in
accordance with the manufacturer’s guidelines,
tested regularly and for all documentation to be
in date and readily available.

For drivers, the council would expect a driver

to be clean and tidy, polite and courteous to
passengers and other road users, to have a good
local knowledge and to drive sensibly and with
regard to local road conditions, offer assistance
where necessary and to ensure that, for example,
any property left in a car is returned to the
rightful owner.

age 133

Chapter 15: Licensing enforcement e Statement of licensing policy 125




1.7

1.8

The council would expect that all licence holders
be aware of, and comply with, the licence
conditions and/or byelaws appropriate to the
particular licence type.

If things go wrong, officers or the Licensing
Committee will take enforcement action
commensurate with the risk and to ensure that
the public safety is not compromised.

Enforcement cannot ever be seen as a means to
an end in itself.

Enforcement must be part of the overall licensing
control exercised by the council and will be
secondary to our aim of offering support, advice
and assistance to licence holders.

Equally however, if enforcement is non-existent
then lower standards of conduct might occur
with a likely increase in public concern and
dissatisfaction with the trade. The requirement
to abide by the statutory provisions contained in
both the 1847 and 1976 acts would be pointless
if no enforcement took place.

Licence holders may feel resentful if they see
evidence of non-compliance by other persons
within the trade.

For all these reasons the use of enforcement
powers is considered a responsible part of the
overall licensing control and will be used to:

e Protect the public interest

e Respond and deal with public and trade
complaints received

e Deter future non-compliance and to punish
offenders

e Support the policies of the Licensing
Committee

e Support partnerships with other agencies
including the Police, Immigration Enforcement
Service and HM Revenue & Customs

1.9

Page 134

126 » Statement of licensing policy ® Chapter 15: Licensing enforcement

The licensing staff are appointed as “authorised
officers” for the purposes of carrying out their
respective functions under the 1847 and 1976
acts. It is an offence to obstruct an officer or to
fail to comply with any requirement or request
properly made.

Licensing enforcement staff have been trained
(and have extensive experience) in complying
with the provisions of the Police & Criminal
Evidence Act 1984 (PACE) so far as this relates
to the investigation of offences and conducting
interviews under caution. The PACE codes of
practice are available for inspection and digital
recording media is utilised.

Refresher training is available as part of individual
personal development.

The officers are compliant with their individual
(and joint) responsibilities as both investigating
and disclosure officers for the purposes of the
Criminal Procedures and Investigations Act 1996
and relevant codes of conduct.

The officers are aware of the council’s RIPA policy
and guidelines.




2.1

For many years the council has adopted the
principles and had regard to the then Cabinet
Office Enforcement Concordat. Whilst this now
has been replaced by the Regulators Compliance
Code?® the principles of the former concordat
(together with the “Hampton & Rogers review
principles”)?® have been followed by all council
enforcement staff and not just licensing staff.

These are:

* Proportionality — any recommended action
will relate to the seriousness of the perceived risk

e Consistency — officers will try to act in a similar
way when faced with similar circumstances

e Transparency — we will tell people what the
legal requirements are and how to comply —
for example to make sure licence conditions
are printed on the reverse of respective paper

rules of engagement. Where necessary, “test
purchases” or similar “mystery shopper”
exercises will take place — particularly to detect
offences of plying or standing for hire"°?

These actions are not entrapment and officers
are clearly briefed not to incite, encourage or
to persuade someone to commit an offence.
This form of investigation and evidence
gathering is essential in providing empirical
evidence of any wrong doing

¢ Informative — we will always advise persons
WHY we are taking (or considering) any action
and will send alerts to the trade
representatives®® about proposed future
enforcement initiatives

A link to the Regulators’ Code is shown below:

https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/
system/uploads/attachment_data/
file/300126/14-705-regulators-code.pdf

licences and that copies of the byelaws are 2.2 In determinipg what enfqrcement a'ction to take,
- - o each case will be dealt with on merit but the
readily available and on the web. We will give ) o )
clear advice about any complaints procedure following principles will apply:
should persons be unhappy with any e Minor breaches - if the officer believes the
enforcement action taken matter to be minor, of low risk and the
e Targeting — we will look at those who have off‘end.er s prgpared to putright any wrong

. . doing immediately — verbal or written advice
either an adverse or poor history of . .
compliance and target our resources or warnings may be given
accordingly. Sometimes the overall cost of * Repeated breaches or evidence of continued
carrying out targeted enforcement action wrong doing — would lead to points and/or a
against, say, drivers is not cost recoverable via final written warning/suspension period
the licence fees and the service will therefore being given
have. regargl to the overall costs involved in the « Serious breaches® — would lead to points
consideration of targeted enforcement and/or suspension, proposed revocation,
Targeted enforcement may involve the use of consideration of a simple caution and/or
police officers or council colleagues working criminal proceedings being commenced (if an
in tandem with licensing staff under strict offence at law).

Page 135

Chapter 15: Licensing enforcement e Statement of licensing policy e 127




3.1 The various offences found in both the Town
Police Clauses Act 1847 and Local Government
(Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976 are
reproduced below:

3.2 For the Town Police Clauses Act 1847 -
Hackney Carriage Matters

Section Offence Who is liable

40 Giving false information on application fora HC ~ Any person party to the giving (or not giving) of
proprietors licence information required

44 Failure to notify change of address or to produce  The proprietor concerned
licence for updating

45 Proprietor permitting use of HC without a licence, The proprietor, any person found standing or
plying for hire without a licence, failure to display plying for hire or failing to display the licence
licence number number

47 Driving a HC without a driver licence, lending or ~ Proprietor and driver concerned

parting with a driver licence, HC proprietor
employing unlicensed driver

48 Failure by HC proprietor to hold HC driver licence, Proprietor
failure by HC proprietor to produce HC drivers
licence
52 Failure to display HC plate with “number of Proprietor or driver

persons” denoted, driver refusing to carry full
number (or lesser number) of passengers

53 Refusal to take a fare Driver
54 Charging more than the agreed fare Proprietor, driver or any other person
55 Obtaining more than the legal fare Driver or any person
56 Travelling less than the lawful distance for an Proprietor, driver or any person
agreed fare
57 Failing to wait after receipt of deposit Driver
58 Charging more than the legal fare Proprietor or driver
59 Carrying persons without consent of hirer Proprietor or driver
60 Driving a HC without consent of proprietor Any person
61 Driver of HC drunk, furious driving etc Driver or any other person
62 Leaving HC unattended Driver
64 Driver obstructing other drivers Any driver
68 Byelaw breach Proprietor or driver'%®
Page 136

128 « Statement of licensing policy ® Chapter 15: Licensing enforcement




3.3 For Part Il, Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976
3.4 For Hackney Carriage Matters

Section  Offence Who is liable

49 Failure to notify transfer of HC vehicle licence Proprietor

50(1) Failure to present vehicle for inspection Proprietor

50(2) Failure to advise where vehicle is stored Proprietor

50(3) Failure to report accident damage Proprietor

50(4) Failure to produce HC licence and insurance Proprietor'®1

53(3) Failure to produce HC drivers licence to authorised officer or Police Driver

57 Making false statement or withholding information Any person

58(2) Failure to return plate on revocation, expiry or suspension of HC licence Proprietor

61(2) Failure to surrender drivers licence following suspension, revocation or refusal to renew Driver

64 Permitting any vehicle other than a HC to wait on a HC stand Any person

66 Charging, without prior agreement, more than permitted fare for journey ending Driver
outside the district

67 Charging more than the meter fare when HC is used as a private hire vehicle Driver

69 Prolonging a journey by time or distance Driver

71 Interfering with a taximeter Any person

73(1) (@) Obstruction, failure to comply with requirement, give false or provide false information Any person

3.5 For Private Hire Matters

Section  Offence Who is liable
46(1) (@)  Using an unlicensed PH vehicle Any person
46(1) (b)  Unlicensed PH driver driving a PH vehicle Any person
46(1) (c)  Proprietor of PH vehicle using an unlicensed driver Any person
46(1) (d)  Operating a PH vehicle without an operator’s licence Any person
46(1) (e)  Operating a PH vehicle which is not licensed or a driver is not licensed Any person
48(6) Failure to exhibit PH plate Any person
49 Failure to notify transfer of PH vehicle licence Proprietor
50(1) Failure to present vehicle for inspection Proprietor
50(2) Failure to advise where vehicle is stored Proprietor
50(3) Failure to report accident damage Proprietor
50(4) Failure to produce PH vehicle licence and insurance Proprietor
53(3) Failure to produce PH drivers licence to authorised officer or Police Driver
54(2) Failure to wear PH drivers badge Driver
56(2) Failure by operator to keep record of bookings Any person
56(3) Failure by operator to keep record of PH vehicles operated by him Any person
56(4) Failure to produce operator licence to authorised officer or Police Any person
57 Making false statement or withholding information Any person
58(2) Failure to return plate on revocation, expiry or suspension of PH vehicle licence Proprietor
61(2) Failure to surrender drivers licence following suspension, revocation or refusal to renew Driver
69 Prolonging a journey by time or distance Driver
71 Interfering with a taximeter Any person
73(1) (a—c) Obstruction, failure to comply with requirement, give false or provide false information Any person
Page 137

Chapter 15: Licensing enforcement e Statement of licensing policy 129




Prosecutions are not, and never will be, a first resort 4.1
option unless in the most serious of circumstances.

Failure to comply with some of the provisions in both
the 1847 and 1976 acts cannot be the subject of
criminal sanction — for example a breach of conditions
where no corresponding offence is provided.

For those matters that are subject to summary criminal
proceedings; licensing staff will have regard to an
established “in house” prosecution scoring matrix (and
based on the Code for Crown Prosecutors) in order to
consider whether a prosecution or simple caution is the
most appropriate course of action and will also consider
the following:

4.2

e Has the person ignored previous advice given to help
resolve a problem?

e Has the person blatantly disregarded the law and/or
obstructed an authorised officer?

e |s there a serious risk?

e [sitin the public interest?

¢ |s the offence serious?

e |s there a statutory defence?

e \What explanation has been given?
e What is the history of the offender?

e What is the likelihood of a successful prosecution
and is the evidence (including witness evidence) of a
good standard?

Page 138

Any prosecution will be managed by both a

case officer and supervisor with recourse to
Legal Services for advice where necessary. All
prosecutions must be authorised by either the
Licensing Manager or Principal Officers and on
behalf of the head of service before the matter is
put to the City Solicitor for consideration.19?

Any file will be carefully considered in relation to
the above guidelines.

It is important to note that the consideration of
proceedings and/or a prosecution for offences
can include consideration of offences outside the
remit of the 1847 and 1976 acts. This is because
the council can use those provisions contained
within section 222 of the Local Government

Act 1972 and section 6 of the Prosecuting of
Offences Act 1985.

For example, any investigation into an allegation
of a driver standing or plying for hire contrary to
section 45 of the 1847 act WILL result in officers
making enquiries and seeking evidence from
insurance companies and their underwriters as to
the vires of the insurance covering the use of the
vehicle at the time of the alleged offence(s).

130 e« Statement of licensing policy ® Chapter 15: Licensing enforcement




4.3

4.4

The result is that persons can be (and are)
summonsed for no insurance offence(s) contrary

to section 143 of the Road Traffic Act 1988. 5.1 Simple C?lg[,'ons alre in efg‘jectlllve anqhalt]:crnatlve
Upon conviction these offences carry potentially medans © |spasa V\é en ?a lng wit _O er;czs
both a financial penalty and the mandatory a; '\a/lre .now tf € Su, Ject of guidance issued by
imposition of between 6-8 penalty points on a the Ministry of Justice.
driving licence."3 It is recommended that local authorities should
H 104

The Licensing Committee will formally receive, have regard to the guidance.
from time to time, a report from their officers The head of service has delegated authority via
on the outcome of any prosecutions. It is for the City Solicitor to issue and administer simple
the committee to determine whether they wish cautions.
atierso]:c prew?usly convgtid O]i[ﬁ Ilcetnsmg O:j 5.2 The basic fundamental principles for the
other ofience to appearu erore them c:con5| er consideration of whether to issue a simple
whether they remain a “fit and proper” person. . ,

caution are:
The counC|I.may share deta||§ of_ conwc‘uons « The person is over 18
recorded with partner agencies in appropriate
circumstances and subject to compliance with the * There is sufficient evidence that could
Data Protection Act. have resulted in a prosecution

e The person has admitted their guilt to the

offence(s)
¢ The person consents to accept a simple
caution

5.3 A record will be kept of any simple caution and it
may influence a decision to institute proceedings
against an individual should they break the law in
the future.

5.4 A simple caution is not a conviction but is an
admission of guilt and may be cited in court
should a person subsequently be found guilty of
an offence by a court of law.

5.5 A simple caution is spent immediately but
is subject to the Rehabilitation of Offenders
(Exceptions) Order 1975. If a person works in
a job which is included in a list of notifiable
occupations (for example working with children,
vulnerable groups and/or in a position of trust) —
any current or future employer may be told about
the caution.

5.6 There is no right of appeal against the acceptance
of a simple caution.

Page 139

Chapter 15: Licensing enforcement e Statement of licensing policy ¢ 131




6.0 This guidance (on the way the council will
deal with prosecutions and simple cautions as
shown in 4 and 5 above) will equally apply to
any enforcement action taken in respect of the
following acts:

e licensing Act 2003
e Gambling Act 2005

e Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions)
Act 1982

e Equality Act 2010

7.0 The Use of Injunctions

7.1 There may be rare occasions where a person
does not comply with a formal request and
directive from the council to cease trading or
otherwise comply with the law — whether by
way of breach of notice, suspension, revocation
of a licence or non-compliance with any other
statutory permission.

If the council considers that it is expedient (and

in the public interest) to obtain injunctive relief to
restrain a person from carrying out an activity, it is
permissible to seek an injunction from the courts.
The City Solicitor would be asked to draft the
appropriate summons/order for consideration by
the High Court."%®

Whilst driver licences may be lawfully suspended
or revoked and the driver cannot drive pending
appeal where the “interests of public safety”

is concerned — this does not usually apply to
suspended vehicle or operator licences.

The use of injunctions is rare but could, on
occasion, be a useful enforcement tool.

8.0 Best Practice Guidance™

The best practice guidance states:

“Well-directed enforcement activity by the local
licensing authority benefits not only the public but also
the responsible people in the taxi and PHV trades.
Indeed, it could be argued that the safety of the public
depends upon licensing authorities having an effective
enforcement mechanism in place. This includes actively
seeking out those operators who are evading the
licensing system, not just licensing those who come
forward seeking the appropriate licences. The resources
devoted by licensing authorities to enforcement will
vary according to local circumstances, including for
example any difficulties with touting by unlicensed
drivers and vehicles (a problem in some urban areas).
Local authorities will also wish to liaise closely with the
police. Multi-agency enforcement exercises (involving,
for example, the Benefits Agency) have proved
beneficial in some areas.

Local licensing authorities often use enforcement staff
to check a range of licensed activities (such as market
traders) as well as the taxi and PHV trades, to make the
best use of staff time. But it is desirable to ensure that
taxi and PHV enforcement effort is at least partly
directed to the late-night period, when problems such
as touting tend most often to arise. In formulating
policies to deal with taxi touts, local licensing
authorities might wish to be aware that the Sentencing
Guidelines Council have, for the first time, included
guidance about taxi touting in their latest Guidelines
for Magistrates. The Guidelines, which came into effect
in August 2008, can be accessed through the SGC'’s
web-site - www.sentencing-quidelines.qov.uk.

Some local licensing authorities employ taxi marshals in
busy city centres where there are lots of hirings, again
perhaps late at night, to help taxi drivers picking up,
and would-be passengers queuing for taxis.

As part of enforcement, local licensing authorities will
often make spot checks, which can lead to their
suspending or revoking licences. They will wish to
consider carefully which power should best be used for
this purpose. They will note, among other things, that
section 60 of the Local Government (Miscellaneous
Provisions) Act 1976 provides a right of appeal for the

Page 140

132 e Statement of licensing policy ® Chapter 15: Licensing enforcement




licence-holder, whereas section 68, which is also 9.3 The prescribed considerations for taking action
sometimes used, does not; this can complicate any to suspend, revoke or not to renew a licence
challenge by the licence-holder. include:
Section 52 of the Road Safety Act 2006 amended the e A vehicle being unfit
Local Government (/\/Ii's.ce//aneous Provisions) Act 1976 « A proprietor, operator or driver being
such that /oca{aulthqr/t/es can now suspend or revoke a convicted of an offence contrary to, or has not
taxi or PHV driver’s licence with immediate effect on complied with, the provisions of the 1847 and/
safety grounds. It should be stressed that this power or 1976 acts
can only be used where safety is the principal reason
for suspending or revoking and where the risk justifies * Adriver being convicted of an offence for
such an approach. It is expected that in the majority of dishonesty, indecency or violence
cases drivers will continue to work pending appeal and e The conduct of an operator or any material
that this power will be used in one-off cases. But the change in the circumstances of an operator
key point is that the law says that the power must be
used in cases which can be justified in terms of safety. * Any other reasonable cause
The Department is not proposing to issue any specific The scheme of delegation details the powers
guidance on this issue, preferring to leave it to the available to both the committee and officers
discretion of licensing authorities as to when the power which, generally speaking, are subject to appeal
should be used.” provisions to the Magistrates’ Court.
8.1 The committee notes and agrees with the best 9.4 Written or verbal warnings may be given as
practice guidance. appropriate together with any other instruction
(either by the committee or officers) for licence
holders to attend specified training or refresher
courses such as driver awareness, customer care
9.1 Whilst prosecutions and/or the offer of simple or disability awareness courses.
cautions can be an effective disciplinary sanction These will normally be at the expense of the
leading to the imposition of a criminal record licence holder and failure to comply (or to
— they are not the only form of enforcement pass any prescribed testing criteria) will lead
control available to both the council and officers to consideration of either the subsequent
alike. suspension or revocation of a respective licence.
The 1976 act permits respective hackney carriage 9.5  Suspensions, as a form of short punitive
or private hire vehicle, driver and private hire punishment or to prevent a licensee from
operator licences to be suspended, revoked working whilst non-compliant with a licensing
or not renewed (as the case may be) and after matter (such as an overdue DBS check, overdue
consideration on individual merit. medical or a car being damaged and not
9.2 Sections 60, 61 and 62 of the 1976 specify the roadworthy), are.used regularly and are a useful
grounds for the consideration of such actions enforcement option.
which may be taken following evidenced 9.6 The consideration however of either the revocation
criminality leading to say a conviction or on or non-renewal of a licence is generally delegated
the basis of having a “reasonable cause” for a to the committee for determination.
concern and cons@grmg any eV|.dence on the 9.7 And finally, there will always be a place and a
balance of prob§b|I|t|es and having regard to time for an officer to use discretion and to have
hearsay matters if necessary. “a quiet word in the ear” just to remind a person
to buck up their ideas!!
Page 141

Chapter 15: Licensing enforcement e Statement of licensing policy ® 133




10.1 Introduced by the committee in 1994 and 10.3 Portsmouth was one of the first local authorities

after extensive consultation with the trade, the to introduce this local form of control and the
“penalty points system” has been used as a “fast use of a penalty point’s scheme is now a common
track” and parallel disciplinary code for: form of enforcement.%7
e Licence holders breaching conditions 10.4 There is no financial penalty associated with the
* Non-compliance with the provisions of the scheme and a I|cen§e hqlder may continue to
1847 and 1976 acts lawfully work even if points are awarded. There
. is however a presumption in favour of a hearing
* General unsatisfactory conduct before the sub-committee if the number of points
e Sanctions following receipt of complaints from accgmulatgd exceeds the following in any one
the public, other road users and the trade period of time:
about the conduct of licence holders ° Hackney carriage driver 10 points
10.2 The weight of evidence is assessed on the e Private hire driver 10 points

“balance of probabilities” and after hearing the

explanation or representations of the licence * Hackney carriage vehicle 10 points

holder. The history of the licence holder will be e Private hire vehicle 10 points
tgken |n.to consideration before determining any « Private hire operator 40 points
final action.

The issue of points is a “formal and stepped”
way to deal with enforcement concerns but
does not prejudice the right of authorised
officers to take other action if deemed
necessary. Points may be awarded as a final
(and only) sanction or given together with

a verbal and written warning. Equally, if the
“offence” under investigation is one for which a
prosecution could be instigated — that course of
action may also be considered as appropriate.

Page 142

134  Statement of licensing policy ® Chapter 15: Licensing enforcement




10.5 The sub-committee must consider whether

they have “reasonable cause” to determine, on
individual merit, if a licence holder is a fit and
proper person to continue to hold a respective
driver, vehicle or operator licence. The sanctions
available, and after hearing all the evidence are
wide ranging and could include:

e \erbal warning*

e Written warning*

e Suspension of licence
e Revocation or non-renewal of licence

* |f, on the evidence, a person has previously
received verbal or written warnings — it is unlikely
that the sub-committee would just replicate such
previous action taken but they do retain the
power to do so.

The current points ticket is shown below:

10 10 40
P O I N T S General Breaches Driver | Vehicle [Operator|
Portsmouth 1 | Failure to notify change of address within 7 days 2 2 2
CITY COUNCIL 2 | False declaration on application/renewal of licence| 3 1 2
S I S T E M 3 | Failure to notify motoring or criminal convictions
or to produce certificates of conviction/driving
. . . licence within 7 days 3 3 3
HaCkn ey Ca rr|age/Pr|Vate H Ire 4 | Failure to behave in a civil and orderly manner
Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976 & Town Police Clauses Act 1847 to lcustom(ejrs TndbOtger road users 26 - 2
5 | Failure to display badge or return same at
. . request of authorised officer 4 - -
Incident Details 6 | Dishonoured cheque for payment of licence 1 1 1
SUMAME ..o FOTENAMES ... 7 | Overdue medical examination/drug screen 2 - -
Badge No. HC/PH . Company . 8 | Obstruction of authorised officer 3 3 4
Plate No. HC/PH .ooovooereeoeeor REG NO. oo oo Vehicle Breaches
9 | No fire extinguisher 1 3 -
Date ..o TIME oo 10 | Failure to display vehicle licence plate 1 3 1
LOCANION o111 oo 11 | Failure to exchange defaced vehicle licence plate | 1 2 -
Computer Code: - PP o 12 | Failure to display vehicle licence disc - 2 1
P : or explanation of codes please see overiea 13 | Failure to return vehicle licence plate at request
L) 200 s <[] s e[ 7] &[] of authorised officer - 2 -
14 | Failure to report accident damage within 72 hours| - 3 1
o[ ] o] vl 2] =[] 1wl 5[] s[] 15 | Failure to produce insurance documents at
I e . 5 | Pomiting posrance o
25 D 26 D 27 D 28 D 29 D 30 D 31 D 32 D 17 | Carrying more passengers
than permitted by vehicle licence 2 - -
33 34 35 36 37 38 39
D D D D D D D 18 | No vehicle licensing record book
Points Awarded: ("white book") in vehicle - 2 -
Driver Riamiiziar Oppaia 19 | Refusal to carry passengers without
= ‘ _ reasonable excuse 3 - -
Document Production: (iick as appropriate) 20 | Unauthorised ‘company” window stickers and/or
Please produce within 5 days Driving Licence I:l Insurance I:l failure to display prescribed HCV/PHV vehicle
o identification livery - 2 3
Registration Document D MoT/coc D 21 | Failure to notify transfer of vehicle licence
Notice of warning or to complete works or suspend vehicle licence: interest within 14 days - 3 -
(tick as appropriate) 22 Faﬂure to convey or assist
Warning Given I:l 7 day Notice I:l Suspension of Vehicle Licence I:l Wlth carrymgl of luggage - z . .
o : . ) ; ; 23 | Failure to deliver lost property to Police 2 - -
If the vehicle licence is suspended it must not be used until the suspension notice - -
is lifted. Reasons for any action taken and/or warning given will be shown in the 24 Faylure to cgrry byelgws in vehicle - 3 -
notes below. 25 | Failure to display tariff of fares or to conceal same | 1 3 -
i 26 | Defective taxi meter - 3 -
NOTES: 27 | Defective taxi top light - 1 -
28 | Out of date tax disc - 3 -
29 | Vehicle not clean, well maintained or comfortable 1 4 1
30 | lllegal tyres 1 4 -
31 | lllegal ranking 2 - -
32 | Unattended hackney carriage vehicle on rank 1 - -
33 | Failure to attend mechanical inspection - 6 -
34 | Late cancellation of mechanical inspection - 6 -
35 | Use of vehicle
without current certificate of compliance 6
‘ ' 36 | Standing or plying for hire 3 - 1
S|gned ...... e Slgned‘......................' ....... R s 37 | Overcharging 3 - -
Driver/Proprietor Authorised Officer, Licensing Office, ) tor B h
Portsmouth City Council perator Breaches
Tel: 023 9283 4830 Fax: 023 9283 4811 38 | Breach of special condition on licence - - 4
Email licensing@portsmouthcc.gov.uk 39 | Failure to keep proper records of bookings - - 4
White - Driver/Proprietor, Green - Office Copy HH-40
P h 1472
rage—19

Chapter 15: Licensing enforcement e Statement of licensing policy ® 135




10.6 Feedback from licence holders and licensing staff
(particularly from the enforcement staff) has
resulted in an agreed consensus to review the
“points” attributable for “offences” and to tidy
up the scheme generally. It is many years since
the scheme has been amended.

For example, the owners (and vehicle proprietors)
of the "big fleet” garages argue that it is unfair for
them to receive 4 points (as the vehicle proprietor)
for illegal tyres and the driver only 1 point.

They have dedicated workshop facilities and
drivers are both instructed and encouraged to
return and report any apparent defect at any time.

This is accepted and thus more onus should be
on the driver to take day to day responsibility for
the general roadworthiness of the vehicle and to
check things like oil, water, lights and tyres on a
regular basis.

The proprietor however maintains overall
responsibility for the maintenance of the vehicle.

10.7 Accordingly, committee approval is sought to
modify the penalty points system as follows:

¢ To keep the existing thresholds of 10 points
for drivers and vehicle proprietors and 40
points for operators but to calculate the
accumulation threshold (with a presumption in
favour of a resultant sub-committee hearing)
to be within ANY 12 month period of time
rather than using the “fixed” licensing periods
currently prescribed'®

¢ To modify the wording of some “breaches”
for the purposes of clarity

¢ To add new offence types
¢ To remove some existing offence types

¢ To amend the number of points for particular
offence types

The proposed new model is shown on the
following pages and has been subject to trade
consultation:

136 » Statement of licensing policy ® Chapter 15: Licensing enforcement




Vehicle

Number Description 1D(;I‘I;§:n ts Propr!etor 25?,:?:‘:2
10 Points

General & driver matters

1 Failure to notify change of address or other contact details 2 2 2

2 False declaration on application or renewal of licence 4 4

3 Failure to notify criminal or motoring charges, convictions or 4 4 4
failure to produce documents upon request

4a Failure to behave in a civil and orderly manner to customers or other 6 0 0
road users by reason of abusive/foul language or gestures

4b Failure to behave in a civil and orderly manner to customers or 6 0 0
other road users by reason of threatening behaviour

4c Failure to behave in a civil and orderly manner to customers or 6 0 0
other road users by reason of poor driving

4d Failure to behave in a civil and orderly manner to customers or 10 0 0
other road users by reason of use of violence

5 Failure to display badge or return same at request of 4 0 0
authorised officer

6 Overdue medical, DBS, drug screen 2 0 2

7 Driver smoking in vehicle (to include e-cigarettes) 2 0 0

8 Obstruction of authorised officer 4 4 4

9 Failure to abide by company dress code or to be clean and 4 0 0
tidy in appearance

10 Refusal to carry passengers without reasonable excuse 4 0 0

11 Refusal to carry passenger(s) with wheelchair or by reason of 10 0 10
disability

12 Refusal to carry guide/assistance dog 10 0 10

13 Carrying more passengers than permitted by vehicle licence 6 0 0

14 Overcharging 6 0 0

15 lllegal ranking 4 0 0

16 Standing or plying for hire 4 0 2

17 Unattended hackney carriage on taxi stand 2 0 0

18 Failure to convey or assist with luggage 2 0 0

19 Failure to report lost property 6 0 0

Page 145

Chapter 15: Licensing enforcement e Statement of licensing policy 137




Vehicle

Number Description 1D;I;§:n ts Propr!etor z?opsz,a;:::_:
10 Points

Vehicle matters

20 Failure to properly display vehicle licence plate 4 2 0
21 Failure to display vehicle licence windscreen disc 4 2 0
22 Failure to return licence plate at request of authorised officer 0 4 0
23 Failure to report accident damage within 72 hours 0 4 0
24 Failure to produce vehicle documents to include insurance, 0 6 0

registration document and/or certificate of compliance
25 Permitting no insurance 0 10 0
26 No “white book” in vehicle 0 2 0
27 Unauthorised notices or company window stickers either 0 4 4
inside or outside the vehicle

28 Failure to notify transfer of vehicle licence within 14 days 0 4 0
29 Failure to carry byelaws in vehicle 2 4 0
30 Failure to display tariff of fares or to conceal same 4 2 0
31 Defective and/or unsealed taxi meter 2 4 0
32 Defective TAXI top light 2 2 0
33 Faded TAXI top light or livery 2 2 0
34 Out of date tax 0 6 0
35 Vehicle not clean, well maintained or comfortable 4 2 2
36 lllegal tyres (points for each tyre) 4 1 0
37 Defective CCTV 0 2 0
38 Failure to attend mechanical inspection 0 6 0
39 Late cancellation of mechanical inspection 0 6 0
40 Use of vehicle without a current certificate of compliance 0 10 0

Operator matters
41 Failure to keep proper records of bookings
42 Unathorised vehicle livery

o O
o O
~ b

Page 146

138 ¢ Statement of licensing policy ® Chapter 15: Licensing enforcement




1.1

The Licensing Service uses a central computer
database to record all complaints against licence
holders. These are generically known as “Service
Requests” and are allocated to the enforcement
team to investigate and action.

In 2014 the enforcement team dealt with 411
complaints of which 320 (77%) were in respect
of the hackney carriage or private hire trades as
shown below:

e Hackney carriage driver 113 complaints

e Hackney carriage vehicle 18 complaints

e Private hire driver 144 complaints

e Private hire vehicle 39 complaints

e Private hire operator 6 complaints

Licensing enforcement staff carry out regular
evening work either as part of normal duties, in
response to the receipt of specific complaints and/
or by way of operation orders in partnership with
the Police and other agencies including staff from
Adams Morey and Civil Enforcement colleagues
responsible for parking matters. These orders have
tackled concerns such as plying and standing for
hire, the fitness of vehicles, drivers over ranking
and breaching the byelaws, drug testing on
drivers, prom night limousine checks and the
conveyance of assistance and hearing dogs.

The committee receives update reports on action
taken as appropriate.

Of significance is that the management team
both receive, and have access to, regular reports
on trends associated with the number and type
of service requests together with updates on the
penalty point's scheme.

This allows for “markers” to be placed against
individual cases which can be seen and viewed
by the whole service whether administrative,
enforcement or management. There can be

no doubt about whether an individual driver,
proprietor or operator is cause for concern and
remedial action can be flagged immediately.%°

11.3 The enforcement team has regular staff meetings

to appraise the managers of current trends
associated with complaints. This is particularly
important in the area of safeguarding and there
is a strong team ethic to ensuring that all parties
are alerted to any concerns involving children and
vulnerable adults by way of:

e Regular liaison with the Police licensing unit

e Regular liaison with both Aqua Cars Ltd and
Citywide so far as the administration of
bookings for school and other contract work is
concerned and an absolute presumption that
any complaint about the actions of a driver
involved in contract work is investigated
immediately

e Regular liaison with the council’s Passenger
Transport Officer and Fleet Transport Manager
on safeguarding issues

* An absolute requirement for all DBS checks on
drivers to be to an enhanced level and for
“child and adult workforce” checks to be the
norm

e An understanding that any child protection and
safeguarding issues are raised immediately with
management and, if necessary, referred to the
Multi-Agency Safeguarding Hub (MASH) for
consideration

Page 147

Chapter 15: Licensing enforcement e Statement of licensing policy ¢ 139




12.1

12.2

12.3

Any person aggrieved by the imposition of
penalty points or any other disciplinary sanction
may, in the first instance, contact one of the
principal staff officers to review any particular
case.

The investigation of a person or business by
licensing staff into the merit of any complaint

is not, in itself, a reason for a licence holder

to complain. Staff have a duty to establish the
facts in any one particular case. The evidence
obtained may lead the officer to conclude that
the case against a licence holder is weak or even
potentially unfounded or malicious in nature.
Equally, the evidence may also point to the need
to interview, for example, the licensee under
caution.

This is all part of the process of evidence
gathering and to ensure a fair and balanced
investigation.

However, if a person is subsequently not happy
with any action taken or decision made, the
Licensing Manager can be asked to further review
the case. If still unhappy, a person can resort to
the council’s corporate complaints procedure
which is shown in the link below:

https://www.portsmouth.gov.uk/ext/the-
council/transparency/comment-compliment-
or-complaint.aspx

A person can also seek independent advice or ask
a ward councillor for assistance.

Page 148

That the Licensing Committee note and endorse
the contents.

That the committee approve the changes to the
local penalty points system and to come into
force with immediate effect.

That the head of service be authorised to amend
such policy directives, conditions of licence and
application procedures commensurate with
these proposals.

140  Statement of licensing policy ® Chapter 15: Licensing enforcement




Chapter 16: Fees and charges

1.

2.

1.1

1.2

Objectives:
2.1 The Department for Transport guidance is
“To administer the licensing budget, so far as it silent and gives no advice about fees and their
relates to the hackney carriage and private hire subsequent application.
undertaking, at no cost to the tax payer . .
This is perhaps not surprising as fees are
To review all fees and charges on an annual determined on a local basis and after having
basis and in an open and transparent way” regard to the local overall costs for the
administrative control and supervision of the
respective private hire and hackney carriage
Although not commonly used, section 46 of the trades.
1847 act permits the council to levy “such fee
as may be determined” in respect of a hackney
carriage driver licence. The act is silent on what
the fee may encompass but nevertheless, a fee 3.1 The policy of the Licensing Committee has
charging power is still lawful and permitted under always been to work towards total cost recovery
this section. for the purposes of administering the licensing
However, the main fee charging powers are undertaking.
contained in part Il of the 1976 act. There are, however, caveats to this principle as
Section 53 permits the council to demand and the statutory agthority (an.d fthus the ability to
recover for the grant to any person of a licence levy a fee) falls into four distinct groups:
to drive a hackney carriage or a private hire * Those licences and permits where no fee is
vehicle such a fee as considered reasonable payable — such as charitable collections and
with a view to recovering the costs of issue and busker registrations
administration. * Fees fixed by statute — such as the Licensing
Section 70 permits the council to charge such Act 2003 and permits/notifications under the
fees for the grant of vehicle and operator licences Gambling Act 2005
as may be resqued b_y them from time to t|me. e Discretionary fees subject to a statutory
as may be sufficient in the aggregate to cover in maximum fee — such as licences under the
whole or in part: Gambling Act 2005
The reasonable cost. of carrying out by or on « Discretionary fees set by the council as
behglf of the cognol mspectpns of hackney sufficient to cover costs of administration,
carriages and prlvatg hlre vehicles for the supervision and, where lawfully possible,
PUFPOSES of determining whether any i;fh enforcement costs for non-compliance - such
licence should be granted or renewed; as hackney carriage and private hire, sex
e The reasonable cost of providing hackney establishments, street trading and scrap metal
carriage stands; dealers
e Any reasonable administrative or other costsin 3.2 The council, as the local licensing authority,
connection with the foregoing and with the will always want to work with and promote
control and supervision of hackney carriages local businesses but, in the context of fair and
and private hire vehicles proportionate financial management; would NOT
Any proposed fees considered under section 70 expe;t the costs of thg 'ice”Si”,g undelftaking
are subject to public consultation and notice for a (parfucularly for those mvolved.ln. running a
period of 28 days. business) to fall on, or be subsidised by,
the tax payer.
Page 149

Chapter 16: Fees and charges e Statement of licensing policy e 141




LI DEL
26,603
1,275
26,767
19,542
11,537
3175
1.308
136,341
64,558
200,699

38,706
27.832
66,538

267,437

=

8,446 8,838 43,887 40,687 30,867
542 g50 2,767 2 .64 :
6,569 5,970 29,296 32,894
2.085 49,287 70.884 65,286
3,783 12,602 e
4.410 6,633 14,218
104 85 1,497
28,458 86,723 251,522
2450 2,234 69,242
30,908 88,957 320,764
20,481 32,979 32,166
10,266 19.758 856
30,747 B2.7TT
61,655 141,734

3.3 Equally, persons and those in business licensed
and regulated by the council (and who are
subject to the requirement to pay discretionary
fees) should expect the council to charge fees
based on clear and transparent evidence and
to reasonably justify and identify “on costs”
associated with any particular licence regime.

3.4 Evidence that supports either the increase or
reduction of fees should be acted upon in a
timely manner and all discretionary fees should
be reviewed by the committee (not officers) on a

regular basis.

Separate accounts for hackney carriage and
private hire matters will be maintained and any
budgetary surplus or deficit must be acted upon
when determining fees. It is not permissible

to “cross subsidise” monies from one trading
account to another.’1

3.5 The courts do not support the principle that fees
which exceed cost recovery could be used as a
general revenue raising scheme for non-licensing
matters.112

4.0 Council licensing budgets around the country
have been subject to scrutiny from both taxi and
private hire trade representatives — particularly
where the underlying rationale for justifying costs
has been challenged. This had led, in some cases,
to councils refunding monies to aggrieved parties
and to ring fencing the licensing revenue for

licensing use alone."3

4.1 The then Audit Commission had also been asked,
by way of complaint, to examine council licensing
budgets. In a case involving a local council and
following a complaint about the taxi and private
hire budget, the District Auditor issued a public
interest report pursuant to the Audit Commission
Act 1998 and commented, amongst other things,
that in the case in question:

e There was no licensing time recording
system in place

¢ There was no method to independently
verify the accuracy of staff time allocated
to certain parts of the licensing
undertaking

¢ The council should have kept a better
record of costs and fees

¢ Enforcement costs against drivers and
operators were not recoverable under the
fee raising regime

e Any fees should be sufficient to cover
costs but not to make a surplus

Page 150

142 « Statement of licensing policy ® Chapter 16: Fees and charges




5.0 Adbvice to councils has been further provided by 5.3 The identified costs of administration and the
the Local Government Association publication processing of applications must be established
“Open for Business — Guidance on locally set and “rejected” applications should result in
fees” . 114 refunds where appropriate to the circumstances.

5.1 Councils are reminded that locally set fees are 5.4 Fees should not be used to make a profit or to
a vital means of ensuring that costs can be act as a deterrent to certain business types.
recovered by each and every council, rather than Any surplus should be used to reduce fees for the
relying on subsidy from the local tax payers. next year and any deficit can be tackled by cost

i i 116

5.2 Although the taxi and private hire sectors recovery over a period of time.
are excluded from The Provision of Service
Regulations 2009 (which activated the
provisions of the EU Services Directive 2006), it is
nevertheless considered that compliance with the
principles of the EU Directive® is of paramount
importance particularly in relation to fees being:

e Justified and proportionate

e (lear and objective

e Public and transparent
Wodus Retarence Casagony SubrCalggony Tima Lirts
U 14OesaEHeY U-Licensing. | v HOV-Hackney Camage Vehicles - 0010 B |
U I5023EEH0Y LI~ Licensing w HOY-Hackney Caninge Vehicles - 00:10 2 |
U LAPREME2ES L-Licensing w LAPREM- LA 2003 - Fremias W 00:05 ] B
U 14B2SILAPREM Li-Licansing w LAPREM- LA 200 - Fromises w 0010 20 » |
u LI~ Licensing w» PHDRIV - Frivate Mire Diivers . 00:20 A e |
U LAPREMB2TT U-Licansing v LAPREM- LA 2003 - Fremuses v 00:05 1 ER |
U 14DEsIPHORN U-Ucensing w | PHORIV- Privas Hie Diivers - 0025 50 » |
u Li-Licansing w LAPERS - LA 2003~ Personal - 0020 1 e |
u LI = Licemging = LAFERS - LA 2003 - Farsomal - 00:30 B o
u U-Licensing w LICCOM- Licansing CommieefSub Commites v 0100 12t e |
U 140e734HCDRN Li-Licensing w |HCDRIY - Hackney Casringe Drivars = 00:10 W |
u Li=Licansing w [PHORMN - Prosste Hre Dirvoes * o0 N » I
Hours Worked Totols 5:30 78

An aggregate of the licence fee, to reflect the across the board officer time and "on costs" is a much

fairer distribution in order to determine the fee payable.*

*See 6.2 overleaf

Page 151

Chapter 16: Fees and charges e Statement of licensing policy e 143



55

6.0

6.1

Fees should be calculated to include all
reasonable “on costs” which could include:

e Administration

e |Initial visits

e Third party costs

e Liaison with other persons and the public

e Management costs

® |ocal democracy costs

e Development of policy and web guidance etc
® General advice and guidance

e Reviewing fees

e Additional visits and compliance inspections
together with dealing with complaints (subject
to the legal principles of cost recovery)

The Licensing Committee have resolved to review
fees on an annual basis - minute 15/2008 refers.

As a consequence to a critical examination

and analysis of costs associated with each
component of the hackney carriage and private
hire undertaking (and balanced against officer
time recording) a significant deficit in the hackney
carriage budget was identified.

This has been addressed by the committee
resolving to increase fees for hackney carriage
vehicles, drivers and private hire operators over a
5 year rolling period - minute 3/2015 refers.

The fees are not reproduced here as they are
subject to annual review and possible change.
They can be viewed via the PCC web and at the
following link:

https://www.portsmouth.gov.uk/ext/
business/licensing/taxi-licensing-general-
information-and-fees.aspx

Page 152

144 « Statement of licensing policy ® Chapter 16: Fees and charges

6.2

7.0

7.1

7.2

The Licensing Service uses a dedicated time
recording system to record officer time spent
against a licensing matter - whether generically
or specifically against one driver, vehicle or
operator.""”

The service is getting close to being able to
identify potential individual costs against an
applicant, driver, vehicle proprietor or operator
which could result in future individual billing and
subsequent cost recovery.

This would not, however, be practical or realistic
as some cases could result in a legitimate levied
fee of hundreds of pounds and others would be
significantly less. * see page 143

The trade™"® have previously requested a
“breakdown” of costs associated with any

one particular licence type or application. This
is not an unreasonable request as a guide to
the administrative practices in place will help
to understand the rationale behind such fees
and give your reporting staff an opportunity to
examine and, where possible, streamline future
work processes in order to save costs.

As a note of caution however, the underlying
test is to ensure the overall public safety and
confidence in the licensing regime and thus any
potential cost saving proposals must be balanced
against this fundamental rationale.

Whilst it is not possible to give absolute costings,
- examples based on the average officer times
and on costings for each grant of a licence type
are shown opposite:




Licence type Action Process Officer time
Private Hire  Initial enquiry  Give out and explain:
or Hackney at reception . App“cation form

Carriage e References

Driver e DBS Enhanced check form
e Medical form
® Drug Screen consent

15 minutes
e Geography test
e Check held DVLA licence for one year
¢ Discuss importance of declaring
criminal/motoring matters
e Interview with emphasis on good communication skills
and look for command of English
Applicant Interview and check:
returns with e Application form for completeness and errors
completed e Driving licence and counterpart (subject to review with
application abolition of counterpart in 2015)
e Validity of all documents to support DBS check: e.g.
passport, driving licence, birth certificate, utility bills
¢ Take photograph of applicant 20-30
e Take copies of all documents minutes
e \Validate and countersign DBS check for sending to DBS
direct
e Enter new case on Uniform
e Scan and image all documents
* Interview with emphasis on good communication skills
and look for command of English
Geography Book test:
test (could be o  Take payment
multiple e Monitor progress of test over various modules, check for ~ 2.30 hours
attempts) cheating or odd behaviour (average)
e [f fail, offer and update new test date(s)
e If pass, ensure certificates are printed and scanned
References Check for accuracy - contact and discuss application with .
. . . 15 minutes
referees if required - scan and image.
Medical Check medical completed to group Il standard and certified
certificate by GP with practice stamp - scan and image. If concerns refer 10 minutes
to senior officer and/or council’s appointed Medical Referee.*
Drug screen Book in and take payment. 20 minutes
Undertaken Carry out drug screen. Send away sample for analysis
Drug screen Check results and scan and image. If a failure recorded call ,
. . . . . . 10 minutes
returned applicant in for interview and pass to senior officer.*
DBS check Update case and scan/image. If matters revealed refer to .
. . . . 10 minutes
returned senior officer for interview.*
Grant of Print badge and give out lanyard, print paper licence, give out
licence or advise re byelaws, give out “conditions of licence and .
e . . 15 minutes
enforcement leaflet”. Give overview of legal provisions
applicable to licence type. Scan and image licence to case.
After grant Update and finalise case together with any scanning/indexing. :
i . . 10 minutes
Ensure update complete to facilitate public register.
Total average time: 4.45 hours
Total average cost: £134.34""°

*Senior officer time NOT taken into consideration in this example.
Page 153

Chapter 16: Fees and charges e Statement of licensing policy 145




Licence type Action Process Officer time

Private Hire  Initial enquiry  Give out and explain:
or Hackney at reception e Application form
Carriage e Explain PCC vehicle technical specifications - colour,
Vehicle wheelbase, seating capacity etc
e Discuss importance of proper declarations re proprietor
details - particularly for HCV
e Ensure that applicant provides all necessary documents on

15 minutes

next visit
Applicant Interview and check:
returns with e Application form for completeness and errors and signed
completed by an operator
application e Check validity of all documents to include bill of sale, V5,
insurance

¢ Take photograph of applicant and ensure photographs of
all other proprietors are obtained together with address
and other contact details 30 minutes
e Take copies of all documents
e Enter new case on Uniform
e Book mechanical inspection for new vehicle
e Scan and image all documents
e Take fees
e Inspect vehicle prior to mechanical inspection
e Give out prescribed livery

Mechanical o |[f fail, offer new test date

inspection e |f pass, update case and arrange for certificate of 10 minutes
completed compliance to be printed and scanned

Grant of e Print plate, windscreen licence disc and paper licence

vehicle licence e  Give out or advise re vehicle conditions and/or byelaws,
give out “conditions of licence and enforcement leaflet”.
e Give overview of legal and appeal provisions applicable to
licence type. 30 minutes
¢ Inspect vehicle once plate and livery all fitted and take x 4
photographs of front, rear, nearside and offside
e Scan and image licence to case.
e Image photographs to case.

After grant Update and finalise case together with any scanning/indexing. 10 minutes
Ensure update complete to facilitate public register.

If necessary, consider livery and/or plate dispensation request

- obtain evidence from operator to support request 30 minutes*
Total average time: 1.35 hours
Total average cost: £40.75"%°

*Senior officer time NOT taken into consideration in this example.

Page 154

146 » Statement of licensing policy ® Chapter 16: Fees and charges




Licence type Action Process Officer time

Private Hire  Initial enquiry at  Give out and explain:
Operator reception e Application form
e DBS check form
e Company/partnership details if application likely to be
from a corporate body or persons trading in partnership
e Check proposed premises in Portsmouth 20 minutes
e Discuss importance of declaring criminal/
motoring matters
e Discuss any planning issues for proposed premises
* Interview with emphasis on good communication skills
and look for command of English

Applicant Interview and check:

returns with e Application form for completeness and errors
completed e Check on company directors and or persons acting in
application partnership with validity of all documents to support

ALL DBS checks - passport, driving licence, birth
certificate, utility bills etc

e To include overseas criminal record checks if foreign
nationals identified in application

e Take photographs of applicant(s) 1 hour

e Take copies of all documents

e Validate and countersign DBS checks for sending to
DBS direct

e Check for table of fares

e Enter new case on Uniform

e Scan and image all documents

e Interview with emphasis on good communication skills
and look for command of English

Site visit and Visit proposed business premises
interview e Take photographs
. . . : 2 hours
* Interview applicants and discuss business model (average)
e Check for method of establishing and retaining record 9
of bookings received
References Take up if necessary and carry out company checks if 30 minutes
necessary
Communication  Give 2 weeks to consult re use of premises and to
with Police, City  determine if applicants deemed “fit and proper”
Development e Write to Chief Officer of Police 1 hour
staff and ward e Ward Councillors
councillors e City Development staff
e Update case as responses subsequently received
Drug screen If necessary for all applicants 20 minutes
Undertaken
Drug screen Check results and scan and image. If a failure recorded call .
. . . . . . 10 minutes
returned applicant in for interview and pass to senior officer*
DBS check(s) Update case and scan/image. If matters revealed refer to .
. . . . 10 minutes
returned senior officer for interview*

Grant of licence  Print operator licence and give out “conditions of licence
and enforcement leaflet”. Give overview of legal provisions 15 minutes

applicable to Iiclgwce type.é n and image licence to case.
agé 155

Chapter 16: Fees and charges e Statement of licensing policy 147




After grant Update and finalise case together with any scanning/

indexing. Ensure update complete to facilitate public 10 minutes
register.

Total average time: 5.55 hours
Total average cost: £327.61"%1

*Senior officer time NOT taken into consideration in this example.

8.1 The Licensing Service has, in the last year, been able to process debit and credit card payments from the
respective taxi and private hire trades.

The resultant shift away from enabling receipt of direct “cash” transactions and payments reflects on one
strand of the council’s proposed channel shift working policies.

Page 156

148 » Statement of licensing policy ® Chapter 16: Fees and charges




the following “core” objectives:

To work towards total cost recovery from the
hackney carriage and private hire trades with no
subsidy from the tax payer (in line with the overall
objective)

To continue to provide the Licensing Committee
with reports on the licensing budget and fees

To continue to ensure that budget headings for the
respective hackney carriage and private hire trades
are separately maintained and no cross subsidy will
take place

To critically examine existing departmental
recharges levied to the licensing budget with a view
to their removal or future reduction

To encourage and recommend to the Licensing
Committee that any yearly surplus or deficit be
rolled forward year on year

To encourage and recommend to the Licensing
Committee that the Licensing budget be ring fenced

To recommend increases in fees (with
corresponding supporting rationale provided)
where appropriate

To recommend decreases in fees (with
corresponding supporting rationale provided)
where appropriate

To consult with respective trade representatives and
the trade in general over any proposal affecting
licence fees and to comply with any and all
statutory publishing requirements

To consider introducing fees for “pre application”
licensing advice - subject to legal opinion

To consider fees for section 49 transfers and the use
of private registration plates

To constantly review working practices and processes
with a view to driving down costs to the trade

To ALWAYS instruct the City Solicitor to apply for
(and to provide a breakdown) to ensure full cost
recovery when determining criminal proceedings
and/or defending appeals against decisions of the
committee in the courts

8.2 The Licensing Service will focus on continuing to provide and/or implementing, where possible,

To continue to provide empirical time recording
evidence from the Licensing Service to support any
proposals for fee increases/decreases

To ensure that any licences previously issued are
immediately and considered “null and void” in the
event of cheques offered for payment being
returned

To consider the introduction of private hire operator
fees based on both a flat fee together with a
further fee to reflect the size of the working private
hire fleet associated with a particular company (this
was the previous policy of the council for many
years) as the evidence shows more officer time is
spent dealing with the larger operators than the
“one man bands”

To establish an on line secure payment facility for
applicants, drivers, vehicle proprietors and
operators, 24 hours a day, 365 days a year - subject
to IT and audit advice and approval

To refund, where appropriate plate deposit refunds
to respective private hire vehicle proprietors

To remit such fees and/or changes for operator,
vehicle and driver licences as may be appropriate
and proportionate in respect of an individual case.

In those circumstances where a driver holds a
respective private hire or hackney carriage driver’s
licence and wishes to hold both types of driver
licences simultaneously, to introduce a reduced fee.

Whilst it is considered reasonable and appropriate
to reduce the cost of simultaneously holding both
types of driver licences, the council does not
recognise the concept of a “dual hackney carriage/
private hire driver's licence” as they are granted
under different statutory provisions and subject to
different enforcement criteria.

Page 157

Chapter 16: Fees and charges e Statement of licensing policy ® 149




Chapter 17: Law commission proposals

1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

The Law Commission is the statutory 2.1
independent body created by the Law
Commissions Act 1965 whose purpose is to keep
the law under review and to recommend reform 29
based on the principles that the law is: '
e Fair 23
e Modern
e Simple 2.4
o Effective
The commission carried out a comprehensive 2.5
review of the taxi and private hire industry from
2011 with their final report and draft bill being 2.6
published in 2014. A link to the comprehensive
proposals is shown below:
http://www.lawcom.gov.uk/project/taxi- 2.7
and-private-hire-services/#taxi-and-private-
hire-services-consultation
Some of the recommended proposals put 2.8
forward are already in place (either by way of
current statutory requirement or by way of
existing local requirement) but there are many 29
new recommendations that reflect on the '
significant advances in technology and working
practices since the inception of the 1847 and
1976 acts.
- - 2.10
The draft bill is not law and thus the council is
not bound by the recommendations. It would
be sensible however (and for the purposes of 2.1
this review exercise) for members and officers
to have due regard to the depth of thought 212
and knowledge that forms the backbone of the
proposals which are summarized in 2.1 - 2.30
opposite. 213
2.14
2.15
Page 158

Taxi and private hire licensing to remain a
function of the local authority and the “two tier”
system to be retained

Hackney carriages to be generally defined by a
“there and then” hiring scenario

The taxi and private hire licensing code will apply
to services for commercial gain only

The non-professional use of taxis and private hire
vehicles to be permitted

Wedding and funeral car hire services to remain
exempt from the licensing code

There will be national standards for taxi and
private hire vehicles with the local authority to set
additional local standards for taxis only

Taxi quantity controls to locally remain and based
on a test of “public interest” rather than “unmet
demand” and to be reviewed every 3 years

Private hire services to have national applied
standards with no power for the local authority
to impose local conditions

Stretch limousines and novelty vehicles to include
non-motorized pedicabs/rickshaws etc to be
brought into the licensing system by mandatory
order

Any “standing room” to be assessed to
determine vehicle passenger capacity

No general local authority power to impose
conditions on taxis and private hire vehicles

Private hire vehicles and drivers to work for any
licensed dispatcher

There will be prescribed basic national standards
for drivers and dispatchers

Operators will be called dispatchers and will have
to be “fit and proper”. They will be deemed as
those who send the vehicle and driver and will be
able to sub contract bookings to any dispatcher
in England and Wales

The Secretary of State will have power to
designate specific conditions - with an offence for
non-compliance

150 e Statement of licensing policy ® Chapter 17: Law commission proposals




2.16 The Secretary of State to impose requirements
to recognise the difference between taxis and
private hire vehicles

2.17 The Secretary of State to retain the power to set
private hire licensing fees

2.18 Taxi fares to be regulated by the local authority in
the compellable area with drivers charging more
for journeys ending outside the licensing area if
agreed in advance

2.19 Mandatory disability awareness training for both
taxi and private hire drivers to a standard set by
the Secretary of State

2.20 The Secretary of State to prescribe minimum
standards re convictions, breaches of licence
conditions rendering a person’s right to hold a
licence incompatible with prescribed standards

2.21 A requirement to comply with the relevant
provisions of the Equality Act 2010 by condition

of licence

2.22 A "how to complain” information notice in both
vehicles and on the local authority web pages

2.23 A touting offence to be broadly retained

2.24 Fixed penalties for minor criminal breaches to
licence conditions with an ability for officers to

stop any licensed vehicle and to impound vehicles

used for “touting”

2.25 A power to suspend any licence type immediately

and on public safety grounds

2.26 The local authority to retain the power to
revoke licences and may consider evidence or
recommendations from other local authority
enforcement staff

2.27 A secondary right of internal appeal to the
Local Authority itself against refusal to grant,
suspension, revocation or refusal to renew
respective licences

2.28 Subsequent appeals to the Magistrates’ and to
the Crown Court

2.29 Policy and conditions to be challengeable in the
County Court

2.30 The local authority to promote cost recovery from
licence fees and to provide for and control:

e Administration costs
Inspections and testing costs
e Fares, ranks and taxi quantity control reviews

e Enforcement of taxi and private hire services (to
include licensed and unlicensed activities)

e Suspension and revocation proceedings

e Providing stands for taxis

Page 159

Chapter 17: Law commission proposals e Statement of licensing policy 151




Chapter 18: Contact information

1.0

2.0

3.0

The Licensing Service is part of the Culture and
City Development Directorate. The service reports
direct to the Licensing Committee.

Applicants and licence holders can obtain further
information including application forms and fees
in respect of operators, vehicles and drivers from:

The Licensing Service
Portsmouth City Council
Civic Offices

Guildhall Square
Portsmouth PO1 2AL

Tel: 023 9283 4073

Fax: 023 9283 4811

Email: licensing@portsmouthcc.gov.uk
Web: www.portsmouth.gov.uk

The Licensing Service is located on the lower
ground floor of the Civic Offices. Access to the
office is via Charles Dickens Street.

The opening hours are:
Monday to Friday 0900 until 1600

No appointment is generally necessary but please
phone in advance if you wish to see and speak to
a particular officer.

Limited on-street parking is available and pay and
display car parks are situated nearby.

4.0 The Licensing Service comprises:

Nickii Humphreys (Licensing Manager)
Derek Stone
Ross Lee

Jason Ellam
Kevin Weeks
Les Matthewson
Debra Robson
Karen Bowie
Hazel Maidment
Zoe Gofton
Chris Berry

Lauren Tyler

Together with seconded temporary and apprentice staff
as appropriate

4.1

The staff are all duly appointed as “authorised
officers” for the purposes of carrying out their
respective duties under the 1847 and 1976
acts and so far as this relates to the control and
supervision of the hackney carriage and private
hire undertaking.

GREETHAM STREET

152 e Statement of licensing policy ® Chapter 18: Contact information




Chapter 19: References

Audit Commission Act 1998
“Button on Taxis” - Third Edition

Criminal Procedures and Investigations Act
1996

Crime & Disorder Act 1998
Data Protection Act 1988

Department for Transport - “Taxi and private
Hire Vehicle Licensing” - “Best Practice
Guidance” - March 2010 and “Private Hire
Vehicle licensing” - “A note for guidance” -
August 2011

Disability Discrimination Act 1995

Equality Act 2010

EU Services Directive 2006

Human Rights Act 1998

Law Commissions Act 1965

Legislative and Regulatory Reform Act 2006

Local Authorities (Functions & Responsibilities)
(England) Regulations 2000 as amended

Local Government Act 1972

Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions)
Act 1976

Local Government Act 2000

Page 161

Chapter 19: References ® Statement of licensing policy ® 153

“Options for Change” - A PCC review of
hackney carriage and private hire policy -
August 2001

Police and Criminal Evidence Act 1984
Protection of Freedoms Act 2012
Prosecution of Offences Act 1985
Public Health Act 1875

Rehabilitation of Offenders Act 1974
Road Traffic Act 1988

Road Traffic Act 1991

Road Traffic (New Drivers) Act 1995
Road Safety Act 2006

The Legal Aid, Sentencing and Punishment Act
2012

Town Police Clauses Act 1847
Transport Act 1985




Chapter 20: Glossary of terms

“1847 Act” means the Town Police Clauses Act 1847 and byelaws made thereunder
"1976 Act” means part Il, Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976

“Adams Morey” means the council’s prescribed vehicle testing and inspection station and
situated at Burrfields Road, Copnor, Portsmouth PO3 5NN
means Alere Toxicology Plc, 92 Park Drive, Milton Park, Abingdon
Oxfordshire OX14 4RY

“Authorised Officer” means any officer of the council authorised in writing and acting on behalf
of the appropriate head of service for the time being prescribed and for the
purposes of the following principal statutes; together with any other
statutes, prescribed regulations or statutory instruments for the time being
in force relating to the control and supervision of hackney carriages, their
proprietors and drivers and Private hire operators, vehicles and their drivers.

e The Town Police Clauses Act 1847 (“the 1847 act”)

e The Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976, Part Il (* the
1976 act”)

“Councillors’ Handbook” means the taxi and private hire licensing handbook prepared by the Local
Government Association for councillors in England and Wales and dated
March 2015.

“Drivers Badge” means, in relation to the driver of a hackney carriage, any badge issued
under byelaws made under section 68 of the 1847 act and, in relation to the
driver of a private hire vehicle, any badge issued under section 54 of the
1976 act.

“Drivers Licence” means, in relation to the driver of a hackney carriage, a licence issued under
section 46 of the 1847 act and, in relation to the driver of a private hire
vehicle, a licence issued under section 51 of the 1976 act.

“DVLA" means the Driver & Vehicle Licensing Agency, Swansea SA99 1BU.

“DVSA" means the Driver & Vehicle Standards Agency who have a local enforcement
office at:

DVSA Southampton GVTS
Bottings Industrial Estate
Hillson Road

Botley

Southampton SO30 2DY

“Hackney Carriage” means every wheeled carriage, whatever may be its form or construction,
used in standing or plying for hire in any street within the prescribed
distance and seating less than 9 passengers.

“Hackney Carriage Byelaws"” means the byelaws made pursuant to section 68 of the 1847 act and for the
time being in force in the controlled district of Portsmouth and relating to
hackney carriages, their proprietors and drivers.

"Head of Service” means the recognised chief officer and/or director for the time being
responsible for the Licensing Service.

Page 162

154 « Statement of licensing policy ® Chapter 20: Glossary of terms




“Licensing Committee or means the committee and sub-committee duly appointed by the Full Council
Licensing Sub Committee” to determine all hackney carriage and private hire matters in accordance
with the current scheme of delegation and as prescribed by statute, the
Functions and Responsibilities Regulations (as amended) and the council’s
adopted constitution.

“Licensing Service” means the authorised officers of the Licensing Service for the time being of
Portsmouth City Council and situated at the Civic Offices, Guildhall Square,
Portsmouth PO1 2AL.

“Medical Referee” means the Occupational Health Department, Queen Alexandra Hospital,
Southwick Hill Road, Cosham, Portsmouth PO6 3LY

“Magistrates” means The Portsmouth Magistrates’, The Law Courts, Winston Churchill
Avenue, Portsmouth, Hampshire PO1 2DQ.

“Operate” means in the course of business to make provision for the invitation or
acceptance of bookings for a private hire vehicle.

“Operator licence” means a licence issued under section 55 of the 1976 act.

“PATN Guidance” means the best practice guidance for the minimum inspection and testing
standards in respect of hackney carriages and private hire vehicles as
prepared by the Technical Officers Group of the Public Authority Transport
Network.

“Portsmouth City Council”, means the council and the administrative area comprising of the City of
together with the “prescribed Portsmouth as shown in the reproduced map.

distance”, the “relevant area”

and “controlled district”

“Private Hire Vehicle” means a motor vehicle constructed or adapted to seat fewer than 9
passengers, other than a hackney carriage or public service vehicle, which is
provided for hire with the services of a driver for the purposes of carrying
passengers.

“Proprietor” means those person(s) truly engaged in the keeping, employing or letting to
hire of such carriage. “Proprietor” also includes a part-proprietor and, in
relation to a vehicle which is the subject of a hiring agreement or hire
purchase agreement, means the person in possession of the vehicle under
that agreement.

“Taximeter” means any device for calculating the fare to be charged in respect of any
journey in a hackney carriage or private hire vehicle by reference to the
distance travelled or time elapsed since the start of the journey, or a
combination of both.

“Vehicle Licence” means in relation to a hackney carriage a licence issued under sections 37 to
45 of the 1847 act and in relation to a private hire vehicle means a licence
under section 48 of the 1976 act.

Page 163

Chapter 20: Glossary of terms e Statement of licensing policy ¢ 155




Chapter 21: Map of Portsmouth

(

] ¢
- fﬂfﬁf’*v;ﬁiﬁ
[

= J L
N

Tite: PORTSMOUTH CITY COUNCIL Drg No:
ADMINISTRATIVE AREA
Portsmouth S 1:54000
CITY COUNCIL rreparedfor | ICENSING OFFICE

Prepared by: Gegographic Information Service Peie 01/09/2015 N

Based or reproduced from Ordnance Survey 1:1250 Base Map with the permission of HMSO © Crown copyright reserved.
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. Licence No. 100019671

156 ¢ Statement of licensing policy ® Chapter 21: Map of Ports




Footnotes & Commentary

10.
11.

16.
17.

The local circumstances of licensing control became a
prominent consideration in R (app Newcastle City Council) -v-
Berwick upon Tweed Borough Council 2008. The court
said"the local authority can issue its own conditions and make
its own byelaws. It can make provision for its own inspections
of hackney carriages. Thus the licensing regime is local in
character. In addition it can be seen that most of the provisions
have public safety in mind”

Department for Transport - Taxi and Private Hire Vehicle
licensing - Best Practice Guidance - March 2010 refers

Cherwell District Council -v- Anwar 2011

With the exception of wedding, funeral and pet ambulance
service type activities

Section 60, Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act
1976 refers in relation to the fitness of the vehicle

The adopted byelaws (at number 3) require a hackney carriage
to be provided with a fire extinguisher and the council cannot
dis-apply the byelaw. However, the Fire Authority does NOT
recommend that drivers should tackle vehicle fires and their use
should be advisory only.

Local Authorities (Functions & Responsibilities) (England)
Regulations 2000 as amended

The council adopted the provisions of part Il of the 1976 act
with effect from 01 February 1978 and following a report by the
City Secretary & Solicitor to both the Environmental Health
Committee and to full Council - block council minutes 21 June
1977 and 26 July 1977 refer

Source - Local Authorities (Functions & Responsibilities)
(England) Regulations 2000 as amended and as endorsed by
“Button on Taxis” and the LGA publication “Taxi & Private Hire
Licensing - Councillors’ Handbook” - March 2015

Licensing Committee minute 33/2003 refers

This is never more important and necessary than when
determining licensing matters which are more likely to be
subject to judicial scrutiny either following an appeal or judicial
review

There may be limited but good exceptions to this rule - see the
“delegation of functions” at 4.0

The case of 007 Taxis Stratford Ltd -v- Stratford on Avon
District Council 2010 considered the question of policy - in this
case the cabinet received a report from the Licensing
Committee about taxi policy matters. The council was
unsuccessfully challenged over the vires of the decision making
process which was deemed lawful

By virtue of section 61 2B to the 1976 act (following section
52 of the Road Safety Act 2006). The ability to suspend a
current driver licence is conferred by Licensing Committee
minute 33/2003. However, the question of revocation ONLY in
cases of immediately public safety interests is requested
following the judgement in R (app Singh) -v- Cardiff City
Council 2012. Endorsed by the LGA publication “Taxi & Private
Hire Licensing - Councillors’ Handbook” - March 2015

For example evidence of epilepsy or the taking of anti-
convulsant medication, repeated loss of consciousness or
sudden and unexplained disabling giddiness, eyesight and
other prescribed visual acuity problems, strokes, drug or
alcohol dependency and/or other serious and prescribed
medical conditions affecting the ability to drive to the group 2
vocational standard

Executive function
Executive function

20.

21.

22.
23.
24,
25.

26.
27.

28.

29.

30.
31.

32.

33.
34.

35.

36.

37.

38.
Page 1

If evidence, for example, of any criminal convictions or adverse
conduct becomes apparent and/or there is evidence that the
representative does not have the support of a membership

To include, for example, any “MOT” or other DVSA updates or
new conditions/directives imposed by the committee

An information report in respect of prosecutions will be
referred to the committee for subsequent consideration

Section 49, Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act
1976 and the case of R -v- Weymouth Borough Council ex
parte Teletax (Weymouth) Ltd 1947

Report and conclusions of Transport Planning International Ltd
to the Licensing Committee - October 2006

Department For Transport - Taxi and private hire vehicle
licensing - best practice guidance - March 2010

The regulation of licensed taxi and private hire vehicle services
in the UK - November 2003

Department For Transport - Taxi and private hire vehicle
licensing - best practice guidance - March 2010

Keycabs Ltd T/A Taxifast -v- Plymouth City Council 2007

Email correspondence by an interested party to the Licensing
Service - Ms Katie Mills

R -v- Liverpool Corporation ex parte Liverpool Taxi Fleet
Operators Association 1975 - Lord Denning commenting “The
corporation should be ready to hear persons or bodies whose
interests are affected. It is perhaps putting it a little high to say
that they are exercising judicial functions. They may be said to
be exercising an administrative function but must act fairly”

R -v- North & East Devon Health Authority ex parte Couglan
2001 - "It has to be remembered that consultation is not
litigation: the consulting authority is not required to publicise
every submission it receives or (absent some statutory
obligation) to disclose all its advice. Its obligation is to let
those who have a potential interest in the subject matter know
in clear terms what the proposal is and exactly why it is under
positive consideration, telling them enough (which may be a
good deal) to enable them to make an intelligent response.
The obligation, although it may be quite onerous, goes no
further than this”

That said, and as a recent contra example, from 01 April 2015
personal licences granted under the Licensing Act 2003 now last
indefinitely.

Exeter City Council -v- Sandle 2011

Department for Transport - Taxi and Private Hire Vehicle
Licensing - Best Practice Guidance March 2010

Statutory Instrument 994/2015 refers - “The Deregulation Act
2015 (Commencement No 1 and Transitional and Saving
Provisions) Order 2015".

Norwich City Council -v- Thurtle & Watcham 1981

Lord Bingham of Cornhill in the case of McCool -v- Rushcliffe
Borough Council 1997 and as noted in Leeds City Council -v-
Hussain 2002

Nottingham City Council -v- Farooq 1998, Leeds City Council
-v- Hussain 2002, R -v- Maidstone Crown Court Ex parte Olson
1992, Westminster City Council -v- Zestfair Ltd 1989,
Adamson -v- Waveney District Council 1997

Department for Transport - Taxi and Private Hire Vehicle
Licensing - Best Practice Guidance - March 2010

Licensing Committee minute 41/1994 refers

Joint circulars 2/92 and 13/92 refer

65

Footnotes & Commentary e Statement of licensing policy ® 157




39.

40.
41.

42.

43.

44.

45.

46.
47.

48.

49,

50.

51.

52.

53.

54.

55.

56.

57.

Now the function of the Disclosure & Barring Service (DBS) -
see chapter on Rehabilitation of Offenders

At page 14 of the handbook

The conviction guidelines are, by nature, generalised and
shown in “categories”. It is not possible to list all offence
types nor is it possible to list or categorise each and every area
of “conduct” that might, or might not, be appropriate

As recognised by the DVLA “At a Glance” medical guide on
alcohol or illicit drugs

Source - Licensing Committee minute 7/2014 refers - Police &
Local Authority Road Safety Officer casualty records

Not to include matters relating to the “penalty points system”
which will be dealt with, on merit, and separately from these
guidelines

Confidential Licensing Sub Committee reports refer. A licensed
vehicle is licensed at all times and thus can only ever be driven
by a licensed driver. The fact that the “data box” may be
switched off or the driver was/is “on a break and not receiving
work” is not a mitigating consideration - see Yates -v- Gates
1970 and Benson -v- Boyce 1997

Crawley Borough Council -v Crabb 1996

The crash risks are highest for new and younger male drivers
aged 17 - 20 - source “Fitness to Drive - a guide for health
professionals” - Tim Carter. See also “age limits” at 9.0 below

The council is both the local licensing authority and local
highway authority responsible for transport provision. All
drivers are capable of carrying out sensitive school and other
contract work (“a regulated activity under the workforce
relevancy tests”) on a daily basis. The council’s Transport Fleet
Manager and passenger transport staff estimate over 200 daily
journeys by drivers with children and/or vulnerable adults. For
these reasons the child and adult workforce checks are vital

Not to include holidays or short trips to visit family but with the
final decision on whether to require a certificate of good conduct
to rest with the head of service. The age of 10 recognises the age
of criminal responsibility in England and Wales.

Supplemental reference books are the “Medical Aspects of
Fitness to Drive” published by the Medical Commission on
Accident Prevention and “Fitness to Drive - A guide for health
professionals” by Tim Carter

This policy which requires a medical on first application, next at
aged 45, then every 5 years until 65, then annually but drug
testing should be carried out at more stringent intervals

Currently the Occupational Health Service at QA Hospital,
Southwick Hill Road, Portsmouth

Both Southampton City Council and East Hants District Council
require a driver to be 21

Informal discussions with Citywide Taxis, Aqua Cars Ltd, Scope
Vehicle Leasing, Outlook UK Ltd and Tradex

Section 69, Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act
1976

With anecdotal evidence via the Portsmouth Disability Forum
of drivers not securing wheelchairs, overcharging and generally
being poorly prepared in dealing with persons with either
assistance dogs or using a wheelchair. On a positive note - Aqua
Cars Ltd both encourages and requires drivers of wheelchair
accessible vehicles to undertake local MIDAS training courses.

Darlington Borough Council -v- Kaye 2004 - the introduction

of the Driver Standard Agency (DSA) testing for drivers was
deemed lawful

58.

59.

60.

61.
62.

63.

64.

65.

66.
67.

68.

69.

70.

71.
72.

73

Page 166

The Blue Lamp trust, /o Hampshire Fire & Rescue Service,
Leigh Road, Eastleigh, SO50 9SJ - Telephone 0300 777 0157

The Rehabilitation of Offenders Act 1974 (Exceptions)
(Amendment) order 2002

Adamson -v- Waveney District Council 1997. The council, via
the Licensing Committee will not look at all “spent” matters
and then try to ignore those that are not relevant but rather
will focus ONLY on those spent convictions (if any) that reflect
on the considerations shown in Chapter 9, 4.2

The Legal Aid, Sentencing and Punishment Act 2012 refers

The definition of a hackney carriage is very wide and could
include pedicabs etc. There have been no “licensed” pedicab
hackney carriages plying for trade in Portsmouth (as the
restricted numbers policy applied to ALL types of hackney
carriage whether motorised, horse drawn or people drawn)
and thus applications could not be granted under delegated
authority and without referral to the committee.

Previous surveys have not indicated any demand for these
unigue and quirky forms of public conveyance and their brief
use in Portsmouth in 2010 was by way of pre bookings only.
As they were not a motorised form of transport - the private
hire legislation did not apply to their use.

Chauffeur Bikes Ltd -v- Leeds City Council 2006 and
Department for Transport guidance note July 2012. It is
suggested that any application be considered on its individual
merit

The evidence of previous pedicab use in Portsmouth identified
that the construction and safety of the wheeled trikes was
poor with mechanical failures evident - particularly to the main
front fork assembly. This highlights the need for ANY form of
perceived public transport to be tested and inspected prior to
use.

R -v- Manchester City Council ex p Reid 1989 in which new
licences were granted in favour of wheelchair accessible
vehicles only.

Correct at July 2015 - source licensing computer database

Department For Transport - Taxi and Private Hire Vehicle
Licensing - Best Practice Guidance - March 2010

The adopted byelaws require the vehicle to have at least 2
doors for passengers - byelaw 3(i) refers. A previous
specification requirement for vehicles to seat a minimum of 4
passengers in comfort is considered unreasonable as the
Mercedes CLS (for example) can only realistically seat 3
passengers due to the unique rear seat squab design.

Historically, seating capacities were determined by the “16
inch” (400mm) rule for individual passengers having regard to
the Road Vehicles (Registration & Licensing) Regulations 1971
and used to determine seating capacity for the purposes of
duty payable.

This should be subject to review. The corporate livery is now 14
years old and is likely to need re-branding to take into account
the council’s current image for the great waterfront city. The
mandatory use of bonnet stickers for hackney carriages also
needs further consideration due to both material supply
concerns and to previous quality control issues being raised by
the trade.

Section 47, Road Traffic Act 1988

Approved by the Secretary of State for the Home Office for
commencement in Portsmouth on 25 January 1971

Section 48 of the 1976 act refers

158 o Statement of licensing policy ® Footnotes & Commentary




74.

75.

76.

77.
78.

79.

80.

81.

82.
83.

84.

85.

86.

87.

88.

89.

90.

91.
92.

The ability however to inspect and test vehicles at “all
reasonable times” to ascertain vehicle fitness is permitted
under section 68 of the 1976 act and is used as a means of
carrying out “spot checks” and other ad hoc immediate
enforcement by both authorised officers and police officers.

Department for Transport - Taxi & Private Hire Vehicle Licensing
- March 2010

Source - Adams Morey monthly recorded data for vehicle
inspections in 2014

Source European Union - Climate Action plan

Section 60, Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act
1976 refers in relation to the fitness of the vehicle

The adopted byelaws (at number 3) require a hackney carriage
to be provided with a fire extinguisher and the committee
cannot dis-apply the byelaw. However, the Fire Authority does
NOT recommend that drivers should tackle vehicle fires and
their use should be advisory only.

Source - “Hackney carriage and private licensing - review of
policy” - a report by the City Secretary & Solicitor 30 January
1984 to the Licensing Panel & a further report to the Licensing
Sub Committee - minute 11/1986 refers

Prior to this, the previous age limit policy (for wheelchair
accessible hackney carriages) was to be brand new on first
licensing and to stay licensed until 8 years of age - Licensing
Committee minute 37(20)(v)/2001 refers.

See Licensing Sub Committee minutes 14 and 23 of 2015

In the case of R -v- Hyndburn Borough Council ex parte Rauf &
Kasim 1992, the court held it was possible to impose a
condition about vehicle age limits without being Wednesbury
unreasonable and/or fettering their discretion - PROVIDED the
local authority would give consideration to any application.
The general presumption, as stated earlier in this document, is
that policy is to “guide rather than to bind” the decision
making process.

Department for Transport - Taxi and Private hire Vehicle
Licensing - Best Practice Guidance - March 2010

Now Transport for London

“In the picture - A data protection code of practice for
surveillance cameras and personal information” - October
2014

Source - Department for Transport guidance - December 2008
- Product codes 08DFT 008/009

Source - “Safer Portsmouth Partnership - Crime concerns of
taxi drivers in Portsmouth.” - May 2013

Source - confidential Licensing Sub Committee hearings to
determine whether drivers were deemed to be “fit and
proper” persons.

In the case of Southampton City Council and the Information
Commissioner on appeal reference EA/2012/0171 to the First
Tier Tribunal (19 February 2013), it was concluded that
equipment with continuous blanket audio recording was
disproportionate and not justified under article 8(2) of the
ECHR (right of privacy) and contravened the data protection
first principle.

Wathan -v- Neath Port Talbot County Borough Council 2001

The revised guidance issued by the Secretary of State and in
respect of the Licensing Act 2003 gives clear and useful
“principles” about the imposition of conditions - March 2015

96.

97.
98.

99.

100.
101.

102.

103

105.

106.

Associated Provincial Picture Houses Ltd -v- Wednesbury
Corporation 1948.

Source - Department for Transport Guidance Notes and Model
Byelaws, Buses & Taxis Division - July 2005

Legislative and Regulatory Reform Act 2006 refers -
Department for Business Innovation & Skills, Better Regulation
Delivery Office - Regulators’ Code - April 2014

The Hampton Review - “Effective Inspection & Enforcement”
- March 2005 and the Rogers Review - “National Enforcement
Priorities” - March 2007

Section 45, Town Police Clauses Act 1847 refers

It has been the practice of the enforcement team to give
general notice to the trade representatives of proposed future
ad hoc or co-ordinated enforcement activities together with
the use of targeted operation orders as required for such
activities including plying for hire, illegal ranking and drug
testing.

Although not strictly defined “serious” breaches could include
any acts of dishonesty, making false statements, failing to
comply with officer requests, failing to produce documents
upon request, refusal to take passengers, overcharging, plying
for hire, having no insurance, permitting the use of unlicensed
vehicles or drivers, breach of byelaws etc

A suspension or revocation of a licence could be for evidence
of an arrest, charges or a conviction being recorded for
offences relating to dishonesty, violence, offences of a sexual
nature including abuse and serious road traffic offences
including those leading to a disqualification OR evidence of a
new or underlying serious medical condition that has
worsened - this list is a guide only and not meant to be
exhaustive

Penalty by virtue of section 183, Public Health Act 1875

The penalty for breach of sections 50 (1-4) above is contained
within section 50 (5) of the act and whilst it indicates “any
person who contravenes”, we consider the proprietor has lead
responsibility for compliance with the general provisions of
section 50 to the 1976 act.

In this respect, the licensing management team can consider the
overall quality of any file and offer guidance and, on occasion,
recommend that the offender be given a lesser sanction such as
a final written warning or simple caution.

. Middlesbrough Council -v- Safeer 2001 refers
104.

Ministry of Justice guidance - “Simple Cautions for Adult
offenders” - 08 April 2013. Replaced Home Office guidance
016/2008.

In the matter of Portsmouth City Council and Mitchell (1990)
- the council obtained an injunction to prevent a former
hackney carriage driver from driving who had previously been
declared medically unfit to drive.

Department for Transport - Taxi and Private Hire Vehicle
Licensing - Best Practice Guidance - March 2010

Page 167

Footnotes & Commentary e Statement of licensing policy ® 159



107. The use of a penalty points scheme has been subject to judicial ~ 120. This is based on an average officer hourly rate “on-cost” of
consideration - in the case of R (app Singh) -v- Cardiff City £30.19 and represents only the officer administration cost but
Council 2012 - Mr Justice Singh commented “in my view there does not include the costs associated with computer hardware
is nothing wrong in principle... with the adopting of such a and software for the purposes of the plate and licence disc
policy which seeks, both in fairness to the driver potentially production, plate bracket, disc holders and other sundries,
affected and also to protect the public interest, to have, as it livery costs together with the costs of the council’s nominated
were, a staged process by which the cumulative effect of garage for inspecting and testing vehicles.
incidents of misconduct may well lead ultimately to the This fee does not include the on-going administrative support in
conclusion that in the judgment of the local authority, a person arranging annual plate tests, sending out reminders, checking
is not a proper person to continue to enjoy the relevant on insurance and V5 documentation, dealing with year on year
licence” enforcement operation orders to check on vehicle fitness,

108. The use of a “rolling” 12 month period will mean that any dealing with vehicle suspensions due to accident damage or
points outside of the 12 month period will be considered void mechanical defects, recovering plates following suspension or
and spent non-renewal of same, processing personalised/cherished plate

109. In contrast with the “Casey report” in respect of Rotherham transfers, inspecting and giving approval for vehicle commercial
MBC's hackney carriage and private hire undertaking which advertising, updating the public registers, etc.
revealed concerns about the lack of recording and use of data Again, this fee does NOT include any contested matters
associated with complaints against drivers - February 2015 referred to committee for final determination due to age limit

110. Kelly -v- Liverpool City Council 2003 - the court concluded that challenge or other reason(s) affecting the material safety of the
different charges could be applied for different vehicle test vehicle under consideration. The same principles highlighted
criteria notwithstanding that a licence was not granted. The previously for driver costs should be applied.
court also stated that “the fees charged for the grant of 121. An average officer time cost of £59.03 (equating to the average
licences are not to be used as a revenue raising measure”. hourly costs split between the principal and senior staff) has

111. R -v- Cardiff City Council ex parte Cummings 2014 been used to determine the general costs associated with

112. R -v- Manchester City Council ex p King 1991 and R -v- GLC ex op_erator appllcat|ons. Qven that"operator appllcajtllons are all

Rank Oraanisation 1982 gmquely different (rangmg from “one man bands to
P 9 international organisations such as Uber which took over 37

113. Source - Birmingham, Sefton MB and Bolton council’s and the officer hours to determine and thus would have cost £2184.11)
LGA “Taxi and private Hire Councillors” handbook” at page 8 - the costings as shown above are a generic guide only to the

114. Source - LGA Corporate guidance - “Locally Set Fees” 2014 amount of officer time devoted to each operator application.

115. EU Services Directive 2006/123/EC

116. Hemming -v- Westminster City Council 2013/2015

117. Source - Licensing Uniform database

118. Mr Bruce Hall, general manager and on behalf of Aqua Cars Ltd

119. This is based on an average officer hourly rate “on-cost” of

£30.19* and does not presume a first time pass at the
geography test, any concerns with the DBS Enhanced check,
medical or drug screening concerns and no apparent motoring
or criminal convictions requiring further investigation or
interview. This costing does not take into account any
stationery, specialist badge printing, computer software and
maintenance charges, web advice and updates or if further
officer advice and interview is needed with a view to referral to
the Licensing Sub Committee.

Should a senior officer be involved in interviewing, reporting
and attending a committee the average “on cost” hourly rate
of £69.30** would apply with an average overall case time of
3 hours to include all phone calls, correspondence, interviews
and compilation of committee report together with notices of
hearing and notices of decision and to include appeal rights.
The cost would therefore increase by a further £207.90 giving
a total of £342.24. This figure equally does not include
professional legal and democratic input and advice together
with the cost of any committee hearing to establish the fit and
properness of a driver.

*Average of the divided hourly rate “on costs” for 4 licensing
assistant posts.

** Average of the divided hourly rate “on costs” for the
licensing manager, principal and senior officers.

Page 168

160 » Statement of licensing policy ® Footnotes & Commentary




Page 169

Footnotes & Commentary e Statement of licensing policy ® 161




Portsmouth POrtsmouth

CITY COUNCIL the waterfront city

Licensing Service

Civic Offices

Guildhall Square
Portsmouth Hants PO1 2AL

Telephone: 023 9283 4073
Email: licensing@portsmouthcc.gov.uk
Website: www.portsmouth.gov.uk

A e n aa %7 o v o
‘O a a Ce to clearer
- )

You can get this Portsmouth

City Council information in large

print, Braille, audio or in another
\Ianguage by calling 9283 4073.

J

Produced by: marketing@portsmouthcc.gov.uk Paq e 1 70 ]OOO/ recycled
s o When you have finished with

Published: March 2016 Ref: 136.1 this leao please recyele




Portsmouth

CITY COUNCIL

APPENDIX 1c

TABLE OF AMENDMENTS/CORRECTIONS TO DRAFT POLICY

"The DVLA "At a glance" medical standards of
fitness to drive recommend the refusal to grant,
renew or to revoke a vocational licence where
persistent use or dependency on illicit drugs is
noted and evidenced.

However, for evidence of any illicit drug use (or
misuse of prescribed drugs) the council will
normally suspend or refuse a driver licence for a
minimum period of 6 months and/or up to a
maximum period of 3 years and will only consider
the re-instatement of a driver licence subject to the
receipt of negative drug screens at the expense of
the driver.”

Page | Para | Proposed Amendment/Correction: Reason:

No: No:

12 3.0 Amend final paragraph to delete reference to "24 To ensure that prompt
hours" to now read as follows: action in retrieving data is

undertaken in respect of
"The proprietor shall, upon receiving any enquiry any complaint or criminal
or request from an authorised officer or Police investigation.
Officer.”
In addition, any other subsequent reference to this
wording in the rest of the policy to be amended
accordingly.

17 4.0 Scheme of delegation - point 4 - to add a footnote that | To allow discretion in
the Head of Service be authorised to give such refunds | exceptional circumstances
in respect of operator, vehicle or driver fees as where it is considered
appropriate. appropriate to remit, in

whole or in part, a fee.

50 8.1 2" bullet point - age requirement to reduce from 18 Following feedback from
years to 10 years. Additionally to amend footnote 49 members to recognise and
on page 159 accordingly. align with the age of

criminal responsibility in
England and Wales.
51 9.3 Insert new paragraphs as follows: To recognise that illicit use

of drugs is incompatible
with professional driving
whether or not there is
persistent use or
dependency by an
individual.

Page 171

www.portsmouth.gov.uk




Portsmouth

CITY COUNCIL

51 11.1 | Insert new paragraph as follows: To accord with any
legislation in the future.
"It is likely that, in the future, formal enquiries
about "the right to work in the UK" will be made on
respective driver and operator applicants having
regard to clauses in the current Immigration Bill
which is before Parliament.”
66 6.1 Update to final paragraph to include the vehicle testing | To provide up to date
results data for 2015: analysis.
"Recent analysis of the now received 2015 test
results show an overall failure rate for both
hackney carriage and private hire vehicles of 64%
for the year.
The failure rates, by vehicle age, have INCREASED
year on year as follows:
0 - 3years 46%
3 - 6 years 72%
6 - 9 years 74%
9 + years 87%
149 8.2 To insert a new clause as follows: To allow discretion in
exceptional circumstances
"To remit such fees and/or charges for operator, where it is considered
vehicle and driver licences as may be appropriate | appropriate to remit, in
and proportionate in respect of an individual case." | whole or in part, a fee.
149 8.2 To insert a new clause as follows: As stated in the new clause,
whilst the concept of a "dual
"In those circumstances where a driver holds a licence" is not accepted nor
respective private hire or hackney carriage driver's | legally recognised by the
licence and wishes to hold both types of driver council, it is considered
licences simultaneously, to introduce a reduced reasonable to introduce a
fee. reduced fee in those
circumstances.
Whilst it is considered reasonable and appropriate
to reduce the cost of simultaneously holding both
types of driver licences, the council does not
recognise the concept of a "dual hackney
carriage/private hire driver's licence" as they are
granted under different statutory provisions and
subject to different enforcement criteria."

Page 172

www.portsmouth.gov.uk




Lee, Ross

From: Licensing Shared Email
Sent: 05 February 2016 08:45
To: Lee, Ross

Subject: FW: Draft statement

From: Aklilu Abraha [mailto: =~
Sent: 04 February 2016 17:29
To: Licensing Shared Email
Subject: Draft statement

To whom may concern

1, | amnot agree with one year old car because it could be difficult to buy one year old car for some
people

2, I believe they are enough Hackney carriage because the ranks are not much and there are too much
car in our city

3, | have no comment on this issue

4, | wish to have rank on fraton park area

Because when there is foot ball game people are strangling to get taxi and taxi driver as well difficult to
pickup customers 5, vehicle test No comments 6. | believe it is good because for the. Customers and
driver 7, no comment 8,no comment 9,no comment

Sent from my iPhone

Page 173



Lee, Ross

From: Licensing Shared Email

Sent: 05 February 2016 08:41

To: Lee, Ross

Subject: FW: Review of Licensing Policy

From: nizamahmed( -
Sent: 04 February 2016 23:25

To: Licensing Shared Email
Subject: Review of Licensing Policy

Dear Sir/Madam,

| am a hackney carriage driver under Portsmouth City Council, and have been since 2006. As the
Portsmouth Licensing department are reviewing their policy currently, and after reading the policy
document, | have the following suggestions which will benefit all drivers:

Chapter 4 (Hackney Carriage Demands and Quantity Control)

- In my opinion, there are enough hackney carriage taxi's in Portsmouth City Council, as you can see from
there always being overranking, especially during the weekend in Gunwharf Quays, Albert Road, stations,
the Hard Interchange etc, even though there have been at least 8 or 9 taxi ranks rescinded over the last 6-
7 years. | think that if more taxi's are issued, it will increase the level of chaos in the city and for the
drivers.

Chapter 5 (Hackney Carriage Stands) - Following on from what | mentioned in the previous point, if the
Licensing Department were to allocate more taxi ranks, such as the new Tesco in Fratton Way, Asda in
Fratton, feeder rank in Gunwharf Quays Park Road, more places in Albert Road, and alteration to the
Liquid and Envy rank etc, it will benefit the drivers.

Chapter 8 (The Test of 'Fit and
Proper') - | am very much in agreement with the 'Fit and Proper' test because a driver should be physically
and mentally fit for the job.

Chapter 11 (Vehicle Testing Requirements) - | think that the Vehicle Testing Requirements should remain
the same as it currently is.
Otherwise, drivers will have more financial difficulties.

Chapter 12
(Vehicle Age Limit) - | think that this should also remain the same as it currently is because there is already
an age limit policy in our council so it would be more of a financial burden for a driver.

Chapter 13 (CCTV Provision in Vehicles) - | think that the providing of CCTV cameras should remain
optional, but installing CCTV is more beneficial to drivers and customers.

Page 174



The age limit for drivers should
be 25 instead of 21, in my opinion.

| think it's a good idea if us

taxi drivers contribute £3 a year for taxi marshals and the PCC should contribute more to the taxi marshals
also.

| hope you take my
suggestions and thoughts into consideration. Thank you for your time.

Yours sincerely,

Nizam Ahmed
Hackney Carriage Driver
Plate No. 197,
Badge No. 254

Page 175



Lee, Ross

From: Humphreys, Nickii

Sent: 01 February 2016 17:14

To: Smith-Parkyn, Peter

Cc: Lee, Ross

Subject: RE: Taxi Licensing Meeting my views, taxi plate no 284 - Mr Somir Al

From: ali786:
Sent: 31 January 2016 21:02

Page 176



To: Jones, Donna (Clir)
Subject: Taxi Licensing Meeting my views, taxi plate no 284 - Mr Somir Ali

Dear sir/madam,

Please kindly consider my views on the proposed changes suggested in the proposed licensing changes.
| feel the current policy is fine the way it is.

After reviewing the new suggested licensing policy document | have the following suggestions:

1. | feel the age of the vehicle should not be altered and the proposed change would be too much of a
financial burden/costs on the Hackney carriage owners.

| would like to point out the drivers in Southampton, our closest city and a larger population, have no age
restriction on the vehicle.

2. | believe there is no demand or a need to offer more licenses as the current numbers are sufficient
enough to cater for the demands. Currently there are more available taxis in the taxi rank than actual
customers using the taxis.

3. I think the age of drivers can be increased to 25 as | believe that a more mature driver will provide a
better service to passengers and will tend to have a better knowledge of the local area.

4. | feel the liquid rank should be moved a bit more forward or outside the Liquid door in the one way road
as it's a little bit confusing at the moment.

People also on occasions park their cars overnight on the rank and prevents taxis drivers from using the
rank.

5. | think that the vehicle testing requirements should remain the same as they are already very thorough
and stringent, making them safe and reliable. Any further changes will just cause more financial burden, it
seems that the council wants to just increase the cost of providing a taxi service without considering the
consequences.

6. The issue of providing cctv cameras should remain optional to the driver and if he or she wishes to opt
in to this project then he or she can. It should not be made compulsory to the drivers.

7. 1strongly recommend that the driver of a taxi should have a good level of English vocabulary as he or
she is providing a service which requires a good understanding of the local knowledge and understanding
which in turn will give a better and professional service.

They should all be undertaking an English language test before acquiring a taxi licence.

8. | also belive that every driver should be fit for purpose to carry out the role of a taxi driver which
requires a level of physical and mental ability. They should have a good physical health as they may be

required for long distance jobs, and also previous offences should impact the aquiring of a licence.

9. Carrying a bulb kit and fire extinguisher should be compulsory and to my knowledge all cars already
carry these items and | don't know why you are wasting our time even mentioning this.

Page 177



Thank you and I look forward to hearing from you soon.

Kind regards
Mr Somir Ali

Sent from my iPhone

Page 178



Dear Ross lee

| am glad to see changes | think you should issue more hackney plates let all drivers have freedom to
work at the moment who ever own the plates they are sitting home and making money either
renting plates for £400 to £600 a month or selling for £20,000 to £30,000 which is illegal . | think we
should have hackney plates similar to Southampton council . They issued 100 straight away and they
make draw every year and issue 50 plates to drivers . | always support freedom for Taxi drivers they
are the one work hard and going through all the risks . Taxi is not easy job . Drivers deserve the
hackney plates and to issuing more plates will help to ali the people in Portsmouth who hold the
driving licence to get jobs . To do that There will be lot of jobs created .

If you get survey just get from Taxi drivers not the people own the plates . The owner of the plates
will never be in favour of issuing more plates .

When Fareham council issued unlimited Hackney plates few Hackney plates owner complaint we are
not earning enough ? The replay was from Fareham council if you not earning enough why you doing
Taxi find different job where you can earn enough .

My own experience every driver in Portsmouth earn about £900 and after everything they save £600

Kind regard
Naveed Anjum
Northend cars

30 December 2015

Page 179



Lee, Ross

From: Bruce Hall <I

Sent: 05 February 2016 10:19
To: Lee, Ross

Subject: reveiw

Mr Ross C Lee

Licensing Officer
Portsmouth City Council
Civic Offices

Guildhall Square
Portsmouth

PO1 2AL

Dear Ross

| write to you in regard to the Draft statement of Licensing Policy licensing review, Aqua Cars would like to raise the
following concerns:

Chapter 4

Hackney Carriages- Demand and Quantity Control

Options to retain the 234 Hackney plates or Remove the quantity controls in place, the last unmet demand study
was in 2006 surely PCC should carry out a survey to allow the committee to make a decision given all the facts, as
stated 3.8 “every 3 years thereafter”?

Chapter 6

Trade Representatives and Consultation

3.3 “Trade representatives and operators meet with the Licensing Manager on matters of interests” the example
given regarding annual licensing budget and fees, has always been a bone of contention as the Licensing Manager
gives us as trade representatives (if we are lucky) 3 weeks to respond to any variation in fees, there are no
consultative meetings along the way.

“That the Licensing Manager be authorised to appoint and remove trade representatives” Will the Licensing Manger
be given complete discretion, and how will the Licensing Manager be made accountable?

Chapter 7

Duration of Licenses

Under the Deregulation Act 2015 Aqua Cars understand that PCC have to offer a 3 year license for Drivers and 5 year
license for operators, my concern with the extended license is how PCC will implement a control mechanism, as an
example the DBS which is currently three yearly, PCC do not receive a copy unless the driver takes it to the licensing
Department, hence the onus is with the driver to show PCC. The licensing department has had issues regarding DBS
checks where they have chase drivers for renewals, | can see a repeat regarding 3 x years PH/HC licenses unless a
system is implemented to verify that a drivers driving license is valid and no endorsements added.

Page 180



In my experience drivers live day to day, they are not thinking 3 years in advance, saving 10% over 3 years will not
convince them, as since 2008 PH badges have increased by 65%.

This will be the first year that the 3 year license is available; can PCC inform us of what the take up was for the 3 year
license for 2016?

I understand that PCC licensing department is accountable for time used on PH/HC badge renewals, if the take up
the offer of a 3 year badge or a 5 year operator license, what will happen to the money saved over the three years
that an officer does not have to check an applicant’s details and wait in a queue for up to and sometimes over an
hour at the Licensing Department?

Chapter 8

The Test of “Fit and Proper”

2, Il “The use of drugs whether prescribed or not is simply not compatible with professional driving”

What will happen to those drivers who are insulin dependent, use drugs such as Warfarin will these drivers lose
their badges?

2, IV “The requirement to adopt a minimum entry age limit”, at present Insurance companies have controf whether
or not the driver can or cannot be insured as to their age, how long the candidate has held a full UK/European
License. Drivers can have 4 years’ experience driving given the fact you can pass your test at 17. At the age of 21
drivers can drive 44 tonne Lorry or drive a train, at 18 people can drive a Bus or Coach. Taxis drivers have medicals
that are same as LGV/Bus drivers, but under the new proposals any person wanting to drive a PH/HC vehicle will be
prohibited until they reach the age 25, this seems completely wrong.

2,V  “The need to establish mandatory NEW driver training” This will include English Language,
Disability/Wheelchair awareness and an eco-driving assessment.

In regard to drivers speaking/understanding English, Aqua Cars do adopt self-regulatory test with all new applicants.
| understand that at present Licensing officers have used their discretion to reject applicants who they feel do not
meet the criteria, why is there a need for a third party to be involved and of course another cost being added?

Aqua Cars have all Wheelchairs drivers undertake Midas training that includes loading/unloading, straps and
awareness. Am | to assume that All drivers whether they drive a Wheelchair vehicle or a saloon will have to
undertake the training regime and yet again another cost implication?

Driving assessment training, including eco-driving assessment, what actually will this entail and the associated cost
involved? | ask this as at present one of our leasing companies has taken it upon their selves to get all new foreign
drivers through a training scheme at their expense and | know it is expensive.

3,A “be authorised, appoint and to provide details of available courses, by no later than July 2016”.

There is no indication that the Taxis trade will have any input into how PCC have come to the decision of using Blue
Lamp Trust (registered charity) as the training provider, what the training will consist off and the reasoning behind
the training implementation, also the associated cost? | am mindful of the debacle of the NVQ scheme that was
implemented some time ago which was squashed as a vast some of money was given to training organisations such
as PDM, and Hertfordshire College of Technology who awarded numerous drivers Level 2 NVQ in Road Passenger
Vehicle Training for it all to stop.

3,b “be authorised to formally request and require existing hackney and private hire drivers”

To undertake disability and wheelchair awareness training together with driver assessment training following a
receipt of a complaint, what criteria will PCC adopt following a complaint from the general public, as not all

Page 181



complaints are valid and what would PCC deem appropriate? Aqua Cars has Midas training for wheelchair only
drivers currently in place, without this training drivers are not allowed to carry wheelchairs.

All training to be paid directly to the training provider chosen by PCC licensing department, how long will the
certificate (I assume that one will be issued) be valid for also has the licensing department taken into account a

budget for a licensing officer to check the quality of training on a regular basis or is this something that will be inbuilt
to the cost of training?

Chapter 11

Vehicle Testing Requirements

Has there been a huge increase in the amount of private hire vehicles that have failed their plate test? (Taken into
consideration lighting as we know bulbs can blow at any time)

What are the main reasons to carry out 2 vehicle inspection after 3 years, is their data that will back up the need to
make these changes?

Chapter 12

Vehicle Age Limits

Minimum age a 1 year old for a car to be Taxis appears to quite a stringent ruling, as much Council up and down the
country are a lot less lenient, and some Council allow vehicles to be up to 12 years old when their time is up.

Chapter 13

CCTV Provision in Vehicles

The concept of CCTV in PH/HC in all cars is a good step forward, Aqua Cars has quite a few cars that have already
installed camera systems which | hope will be allowed to stay in the vehicles that are already fitted?

72 hours is a long time for storage capacity as most memory cards even if they are 72g will not be able to hole that
amount of data.

Although Aqua Cars see the requirement for a review, many proposals will put ever increasing costs on PH/HV
drivers, who at present are having a tough time with the increasing competition with the likes of UBER arriving in
Portsmouth.

Yours sincerely

Mr Bruce Hall
General Manager

Bruce Hall
General Manager

Tel: 02392 616161
Fax: 02392 787060
Page 182



Email : |

Aqua Cars Limited

Driving the Great Waterfront City

Unit 12-13 The Partnership Business Park
Milton

Portsmouth

Hampshire

PO4 8DF

Registered Company : 2952913

5% Please consider the environment, do you really need to print this email?

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE: This message (including any attached files) is intended only for the
designated recipient(s). It may contain confidential and/or proprietary information and should be deemed as
being subject to applicable confidentiality protections. If you are not a designated recipient, you may not
review, use, copy or distribute this message. If you receive this message in error, please notify the sender by
reply e-mail and then delete this message. Thank you.

Page 183



Lee, Ross

From: Humphreys, Nickii
Sent: 05 February 2016 11:05
To: Lee, Ross

Subject: Fw:

From: MUSAMMOT BEGUM [1
Sent: 05 February 2016 00:45
To: Humphreys, Nickii
Subject:

Musammot R Begum

05/02/2016

DRAFT STATEMENT OF LICENSING POLICY

Dear Sir/Madam
| would like to offer my opinion on the following points.

HACKNEY CARRIAGES, DEMAND AND QUANTITY CONTROL

The council should opt for the survey to prove that there is no significant
unmet demand.

This would be funded by the trade and would only show that we as
drivers and the licensing dept. already know the answer “There is no
significant unmet demand”

The licensing dept have had numerous complaints about taxis over
ranking, namely Kings theatre, The harbour station, st georges square,
park road approach to gunwharf, and indeed gunwharf itself.

It is not uncommon for taxis to queue on a taxi rank for over an hour to
get a customer. The job is virtually untenable without assistance from the
benefit system. Taxi drivers don’t want to get rich, they just want to
earn a living.

| would estimate over a third of the hackney fleet are attached to radio
circuits, because it is very difficult to make a living without some PH work.

Page 184




The onset of mobile phones, phone apps etc has had a detrimental effect
on the traditional Hackney carriage in our city... why walk to a rank or hail
a cab in the street ???7? a couple of clicks on your phone and taxi/ph car
will be outside your door within a few minutes is the norm.

Many taxi/ph drivers now work excessive hours to try and make a living,
indeed working up to 15 hours a day is not uncommon. Working
excessive hours with not much sleep is bad for the driver, and bad for the
customer.

CHAPTER 8/ THE TEST OF “FIT AND PROPER”

Mandatory drug test every 3 years for all drivers......... over 65 to be
exempt( unless suspicions arise)

As highlighted drugs are SIMPLY NOT COMPATIBLE WITH
PROFESSIONAL DRIVING

No driver to apply for a licence if convicted of sex offence in last 10
years,

On other offences, the guidelines should have some flexibility and each
application dealt with on merit.

Chapter 6 trade representatives and consultation

| believe that consultative meetings should held on a 6 monthly basis,
however if there is nothing relevant for the agenda from either the trade
or PCC the meeting could be cancelled.

DRIVERS AGE

my view is that an applicant should have held a driving licence for 2 years
not 3.

| would personally permit drivers to be licensable from age 21... see
footnote (53)

Southampton and East Hants councils require drivers to be 21.

In certain circumstances with a CPC it is possible to drive HGV and PSV
vehicles at age 18

however the norm is 21 years old, at this age you can drive a 44 ton lorry
or a bus carrying 80 passengers.

As stated on page 51 of the report, only 9 of the 311 applicants were
under 25,

Therefore if an applicant is under 25 and prepared to get appropriate

insurance cover, no need to discriminate (I was 19 when | started)
Page 185



"| don't believe you will be inundated with applicants under 25,
As stated this tends to self regulate

Likewise no upper limit, providing driver passes medicals etc.
We have many drivers in their 70’s and even into their 80’s

Future driver licence applicants

Any future Taxi or PH drivers should be able to communicate in English
that is understandable, and be able to comprehend what is being said to
them, to have the ability to write some English is a must.

New applicants should be able to demonstrate they can drive to a
proficient standard of what the public would expect and deserve, it is
essential to have good knowledge of the highway code (don’t stop on ZIG
ZAG lines etc)

The present test for topographical knowledge falls far short of what the
“paying public” expect. There are far to many comments, complaints,
driver overcharged me, couldn’t understand what driver said, driver went
wrong way, driver could only say postcode.

Disability and wheelchair awareness training

If you want to drive a taxi or ph vehicle you should understand the needs
of all people with disabilities....It is fair to say that some drivers are loathe
to give assistance to people that need it. At times it is embarrassing to sit
behind a vehicle and watch the customer struggle to enter the car. Some
drivers should be ashamed of their actions, | am fully supportive of any
“customer relation” based scheme, similar to the “Pride in Pompey” we
had a few years ago..

The drivers who gave up their time to do this course were not the ones
who needed training, the ones who needed it didn’t attend.

Maybe 2 different tests

1/ this would benefit saloon car drivers, blind,deaf, zimmer frames, etc
2/ WAV'’s to include what’s in 1 and also wheelchair training

These are the sort of courses that need to be mandatory, maybe within 1
year of being newly licensed, so as not to put to much burden on new
applicant

EXISTING LICENCE HOLDERS
Page 186




If there are a minimum of 2 written “proven” complaints in a 2 year
period the driver to undertake corrective driving and /or awareness
training.

BULB/FUSE KITS

| am happy to agree for vehicles to carry a bulb Kkit,

But be aware you need a comprehensive toolkit to change some bulbs
fitted to modern day cars.

Where are the fuse boxes and how will “the driver” knows what to do. An
inexperienced person can do more harm than good.

| have noticed buses and police cars with “lights out” | doubt whether
these vehicles carry a bulb kit or indeed the driver would be expected or
know how to change a bulb... These vehicles would have bulbs changed
by their respective maintenance departments the following day

Most garages who look after the taxi and ph fleet are open 6 days a week
and are available on the Sunday if required. | supply and fit cheaper than
Halfords !!!!

AGE OF VEHICLES WHEN FIRST LICENSED

| think that a 1-year limit is to restrictive, possibly go for say up to 4/5
years old with 100,000 miles and proper service history.

The industry is very quiet, and when drivers have to replace their vehicles
funding a vehicle less than 1 year old is beyond the depths of some
peoples’ pockets.

AGE OF VEHICLES TO REMAIN LICENSED

As a starting point 8 year is reasonable, providing this is not set in stone.
Any proprietor who has a vehicle older than this, provided it has passed
all its previous depot tests, should be given the option of further
extensions with the committees approval.

TEMPORARY VEHICLES

| would propose temporary vehicles have to be less than say 3 years old,
| think that 1 year is to restrictive

CCTV CAMERAS

Page 187



| fully understand why PCC would want these installed, it helps to prove
or disprove any bad driving allegations, it helps with any road traffic
accidents, it would assist with any allegations of sexual assault, it would
give back up to the driver in the event of getting a “runner”. If the police
collared the person it would prove that the journey took place etc. in
some circumstances it is beneficial to the proprietor by way of reduced
insurance premium. | feel the requirement that a maifunction of
equipment rectified within 24 hours,, is far far to short a period.. In reality
it would have to be sent away, by post, repaired and sent back by post, |
think 14 days is far more realistic. These should be phased in over say 12
months, or earlier if proprietor changes vehicle. Full compliance by

30™ September 2016 is to soon.

VEHICLE TESTING REQUIREMENTS

The present vehicle testing is strict enough, if a vehicle is well maintained
with a good pass record at the depot, there is no need to insist on 2
vehicle inspections per year on vehicles over 3 years old... If some
vehicles have a bad track record test them accordingly, no need to
penalise those who maintain their vehicles.

At present if a vehicle reaches 6 years old local legislation requires 2
tests per year... why penalise a driver who has relatively low mileage and
has passed all previous tests. the council are fully aware of which
vehicles are in need of more tests.

DEPOT TESTS FAILURES

LIGHTING EQUIPMENT 55%. The figures haven’t highlighted whether
the vehicle failures are numerous bulbs(unacceptable) or a single bulb
(could happen on way to test)

EXHAUST FUEL AND EMISSIONS 23%.

Modern diesel engines need regenerating, (on a regular basis), this very
rarely happens due to congested streets and local traffic problems.
vehicles are sitting for long periods waiting on ranks etc,( engine running
to keep warm) not good for emissions

The congested roads and traffic in our city make it at times (during the
day) you could go several hours with barely getting out of 3" gear, all
these are contributory factors toward pollution.

VEHICLE BODY AND STRUCTURE 19% due to the narrow congested
roads and difficult parking, it is common to have small knocks and dents

in your vehicle.
Page 188



Please bear in mind when the interior of a cab is not to good, it's not the
driver that’s caused it

STEERING AND SUSPENSION 17% all the numerous humps and
bumps and traffic calming measures contribute to damaging suspension
and link arms etc.

In some of the side roads these humps are far to excessive.

DRIVERS VIEW OF THE ROAD 11% air freshners etc hanging from rear
view mirror...... hardly crime of the century

Sit in the driver’'s seat and check that there isreasonable view of the road
ahead, bearing in mind the original design of the vehicle

TYRES AND WHEELS 8% no excuses here, tyres available 7 days a
week,

Most drivers do not have to pay for them, just make the effort to ensure
you have enough tread on them. Tyres are available 7 days a week, it
makes sense to use your normal supplier on a normal day ( ie Monday to
Friday)... | help people with punctures on a Sunday, but if its bald on
Sunday it was bald 2 days before on the Friday ....NO

EXCUSE clamp down on bald tyres, if you rent a car it is not a
hardship to check your tyres,oil, screenwash, and bulbs, its all available
for free

TAXI RANKS

| fully endorse the authors objective “to review the provision of
hackney carriage stands and to bring any future proposals to the
attention of the highway authority and appropriate cabinet member
as quickly as possible”

urgent consideration could be given to the following

1/ The new Tescos in fratton way in front of bus stop
2/ A suitably located daytime rank in north end (London road)
3/ Kings theatre ( day time use) in pipeline | believe

4/ Liquid Envy ( we are still working on it) this rank has been useless
since first inception circa 7 years ago

Page 189



"5/ The positioning and the associated signage for the temporary rank at
The Hard falls far below what the trade and public would expect, its
virtually invisible from the stand-up area.Why was so much money spent
on all the signage for the buses ?

thank you

Page 190



Lee, Ross

From: Licensing Shared Email
Sent: 05 February 2016 08:43
To: Lee, Ross

Subject: FW: Draft taxi

From: Ali Cheraghi [mailto:;
Sent: 04 February 2016 21:uu
To: Licensing Shared Email
Subject: Draft taxi

Hi,,
| just broadly support the views of Chris dixon, myself, and other trade reps

Our views are based on many years experience, we have only put to the council which, in general, is
beneficial to the trade and Pompey people
Ali Cheraghi licence number 134
Yours Sincerely
Sent from my iPhone

Page 191



Lee, Ross

From: Licensing Shared Email

Sent: 03 February 2016 14:43

To: Lee, Ross

Subject: FW: My answers to questions

From: Aminur Choudhury [mailto::
Sent: 03 February 2016 13:22
To: Licensing Shared Email
Subject: My answers to questions

1) I am not happy with this proposal. Keep it as it is.

2) yes. There is enough vehicles

3) 21 is too young. Minimum age should be higher

4) I want some rank near tesco, fratton park. Liquid rank is not suitable. Please find an alternative rank.
5) keep it as it is

6) I am for having cctv In all vehicles

7) all drivers should be able to speak and understand English

8) happy with current system

9) keep as it is.

Yes there should be taxi marshalls and I would be happy to pay £3 a year.

Sent from Samsung Mobile

Page 192



Lee, Ross

From: Licensing Shared Email
Sent: 05 February 2016 08:42
To: Lee, Ross

Subject: Fw:

From: Mahibur Choudhury [mailto:
Sent: 04 February 2016 21:36

To: Licensing Shared Email
Subject:

After reviewing the new suggested licensing policy document | have some suggestions which is mention below:

1: The vihechle age should remain the same as what it is at the moment and the suggested change would be far to
much of a financial burdon on the Hackney carriage owner.

Also as a comparison to Southampton our closest city and a similar population they have no age restriction on the
vihechle.

2. I suggest as it stands there is no room whatsoever for any more licenses to be issued as there are no unmet
demands.

In fact it's quite the opposite.if you visit any taxi rank at any time of the day you will find that there are more
available taxis than passages willing to ride them .

3. My opinion, the age of drivers can be increased to 25 as | believe that a more mature driver will provide a better
service to passengers and will tend to have a better knowledge of the local area.

4.i think that the liquid rank should be moved a bit more forward as it's a little bit confusing at the moment or
perhaps on the other other side of the road. Also people tend to park there cars overnight on the rank and therefor
we cannot use the rank effectively.

5. 1 am thinking that the vihechle testing requirements should remain the same as they are already very thorough
and stringent , making them safe and reliable . Any further changes will just cause more financial burdon on the
driver, it seems that the council wants to just increase the cost of providing a taxi service without considering the
consequences.

6. The issue of providing cctv cameras should remain optional to the driver and if he wishes to partake in this project
then he or she can. It should not be compulsory.

7. | strongly recommend that the driver of a taxi should have a good level of English vocabulary as he or she is
providing a service which requires a good understanding of local knowledge and understangmding.
They should all be undertaking an English language test before aquiring a licence.

8.1 also belive that every driver should be fit for purpose and that means physical and mental. They should should
have a good physical health as they may be required for long distance jobs, and also previous offences should

impact the aquiring of a licence.

9.The Carrying a bulb kit and fire extinguisher should be compulsory and to my knowledge all cars already carry
these items and | don't know why you are wasting our time even mentioning this.

Page 193



Lee, Ross

From: Licensing Shared Email

Sent: 05 February 2016 08:45

To: Lee, Ross

Subject: FW: Taxi Draft Policy and Comments

From: Ebadur Chowdhury [mailto: ]
Sent: 04 February 2016 18:57

To: Licensing Shared Email

Cc: Khaled Bai; Forhad Al Mahmud

Subject: Taxi Draft Policy and Comments

Dear Sir/Madam,
I was able to look at the licencing committee’s Draft Policy Statement regarding possible changes for
Pottsmouth Hackney Taxi Vehicles.

I would like to put my comments forward on the Draft Policy. I hope you will consider my comments and help
the Hackney business to survive. Pottsmouth is a beautiful city with a population of 200,000. Unemployment
has been rising day by day. Thete is no security behind the stability of jobs and people are constantly afraid that
they might lose theit job. Hackney Taxi Trade is in the same boat. Hackney Taxi Trade has been suffering for a
long time. Just today T was waiting in the Iceland Taxi rank, 3* in the line, it took me a full 2 hours to get a job
and the job was to The Hard, which was £3.60.

I hope the licence Committee will make an appropriate decision, so the taxt drivers and owners do not suffer

from losing their livelihood. When a Taxi Drivers suffer their whole family suffets too as they are the
breadwinnets.

THE DRAFT POLICY and My comments

1/ AGE OF VEHICLES FOR 1ST LICENSING

THE COUNCIL ARE PROPOSING 1 YEAR OLD
IF YOU NOT HAPPY WITH THIS TELL THEM WHY

> The age of the vehicle should stay at 4 years old, but should be in good condition.

2/ NUMERICAL CONTROL OF HACKNEY CARRIAGES
DO YOU THINK THERE ARE ENOUGH

DO YOU THINK THERE ARE TO MANY

DO YOU THINK THERE IS ROOM FOR MORE VEHICLES
WHATEVER YOUR VIEW GIVE REASONS

> At the moment we have 234 Hackneys in Pottsmouth, I think we have enough Taxis. We are already
sttuggling to earn our livelihood. On Fridays and Saturdays Taxis struggle to find a place in the rank which
contributes to the loss to the trade and if mote plates are been issued there will be more suffering for current
drivers.

3/ AGE OF DRIVERS
Page 194



IS 21 YEARS OLD TO YOUNG?

» 1 think it is important that the driver who applies for a Taxi Licence needs to have a clean driving license,
showing that he/she has been driving for at least 3 years (providing insurance documents for the last 3 years).

4/ HACKNEY CARRIAGE STANDS (RANKS)
TELL THE COUNCIL WHERE YOU WANT THEM AND WHY

» The start of Liquid Rank needs to be moved forward so it is near the entrances, as the customers from the Club
cannot see the taxis immediately that are waiting at the rank. If they can see the taxi they will come to the rank
and use the services.

The new Tesco and ASDA should consider having a Hackney Rank, it is important that private hire and
hackney taxis should be treated equally. If thete is a rank there will be a chance for a hackney driver to get a
job.

Another ideal place for a taxi rank would be at QA Hospital. Thousands of people work at QA and othets visit

their loved ones daily. Itis only fair that Hackney Taxis should get its fair share of the business, as at the
moment only ptivate hire companies are benefiting from QA.

5/VEHICLE TESTING REQUIREMENTS

> I think that vehicle testing should stay as before.

6/ MANDATORY CCTV IN YOUR VEHICLES HACK AND PH
ONLY AIRPORT/ WEDDING CARS TO BE EXEMPT

» [ think it should be left to the individual Taxi driver/owner to decide.

7/SPEAK ENGLISH.... KNOW WHERE YOU ARE GOING... BE ABLE TO UNDERSTAND
ENGLISH

» I think it is importtant for drivers to speak and undetstand English well enough to drive Hackney or Private Hire
Taxis.

8/ ARE YOU FIT AND PROPER 7??
THE LICENSING DEPARTMENT IS HUMAN THEY ACCEPT MINOR OFFENCES.
WHAT ARE YOUR VIEWS ?

» DBS Check every 3 years for a taxi driver is appropriate.

9/ IT IS LUKELY TO BE MANDATORY TO HAVE A BULB KIT IN YOUR CAR
FIRE EXTINGUISHERS WILL NOT BE MANDATORY

> I think A Bulb Kit is not necessary, but having fire extinguishers is very important.
Thank you for allowing me to put my comments regarding the Taxi Draft Policy.
Kind regards

Ebadur Raza Chowdhury ( Hackney Taxi Drivet/Owner)

Page 195




Lee, Ross

From: Licensing Shared Email

Sent: 05 February 2016 08:45

To: Lee, Ross

Subject: FW: Draft Licenseing taxi documents

From: Mark Dewing [mailto:i <
Sent: 04 February 2016 18:53

To: Licensing Shared Email

Subject: Draft Licenseing taxi documents

Sent from my iPhonei | completely agree with Chris Dixon and Viv young views .

Page 196



o f:?) HOURCSERVICE 33The Hard
) NTRA

® PARCELS N Portsmouth PO1 3DT
® COURIER SERVICE Tel: 023 9283 3333
® AIRPORTS Fax: 023 9273 7733

(‘\\\h C:‘_[I/-H(L;\.

O

www.citywidetaxis.com

o
5

o Received %

Io)
- FEB 2015

Reply to Draft statement of Licensing Policy December

1) Introduction
We at City Wide understand the need to keep up to date with ever moving
technology and transport needs of the general public and are pleased to be able to

offer views on the document prepared by your licensing staff.

Hackney Carriages

The present Hackney carriages are finding it hard at the moment to sustain a
reasonable living with the growth of private hire and associated various app
companies such as Uber,Hailo,etc etc.

City wide has 35 hackneys on our circuit, that number has never been as high and we
have a waiting list with a further 10.

The hackney owner/driver will all tell you the same tell of doom and gloom, and we
believe the only way to know for definite is to carry out a survey to satisfy yourselves
and the general public.

Trade Representatives and Consulation

We feel that trade meetings should be held quarterly but we would like to think that
if something arose that needed urgent attention a meeting could be called within a
set reasonable period.

Duration of Licences

We totally agree with the length of the proposed new Badge and Private Operators
Licence. We would also like to see the introduction of dual badge system so if you
hold one type you can aslo purchase the other at the price of say 50% of the full
price which will enable drivers to work a Private hire vehicle if there hackney car was
off the road awaiting parts or body repair and also private hire drivers would be able
to drive a hackney car if needed | know a few drivers who would purchase them if

Page 197



they were available. This would be of great use to multiple garages who control large
fleets of mixed licences.

Test of Fit and Proper

The points which we are concerned about are the minimum age limit to rise to 25.
We believe that insurance companies set such a high premium that it usually governs
itself also at the age of 21 you can drive an HGV or a Bus so perhaps 25 is aiming a
little high.

The standard of drivers in Portsmouth needs looking at but we are delighted to see
the proposed introduction of the English language competency test It’s long overdue
and can only help the general public and aid drivers getting into language problems.
Disability training for drivers who drive the specialist wheelchair vehicles can only
make it safe for the disabled public and makes complete sense. The need for existing
drivers to undergo training if complaints are received should be after say 2 verified
complaints are received in a 12 month period.

Vehicles Testing Requirements

We cannot understand why a brand new car has to undergo an inspection at Adames
Morey. The savings to yourselves and us will be spent elsewhere in this document.
We also don’t support the need for 2 tests after the vehicle reaches 3 years. You
have at your disposal the means to inspect without notice any licensed vehicle and
can’t understand why you need to have the second test of which the cost will be
passed onto us. We agree that the fire extinguisher should go and we understand
why you want us to carry a bulb kit but most drivers are not capable of changing a
headlight bulb on modern cars we a have our own garages that are used to changing
them and they can take anything up to 10 to 15 minutes to do the job.

Vehicle Age Limit

We also don’t understand how you can possibly go from being able to put a car on at
present 6 years old to under 1 year most, local licensing authorities are between 3
and 5 years at first licence and then from 7 years to no age limit. It doesn’t make
economic sense for everyone to put a new vehicle on.

If the present policy is to change surely a vehicle 4 years old and mileage under
75,000 with full service history is good enough to fill the required spec.

We feel that by making us put new cars on it will financially ruin many owner drivers
and will result in many leaving the trade. We understand that this last year 40% of
vehicles licensed were new. This is because Hyundia targeted the trade with i40 and
i30s being offered at very competive prices the i40 may | add has proved to be very
troublesome and not up to the job and many of them have been replaced or
returned. Again a preplacement car having to be under the year old is just not viable
and would also like to see that up to 4 years old.

Page 198



CcC1v

We agree that CCTV is the answer to a lot of problems and would endorse your
proposals with a few added bits please. All vehicle owners be given 1 year to have
them installed to your spec and if found to be faulty the time span for repair or
replacement be 2 weeks, nothing electronic can be fixed in 24 hours these days. City
Wide will automatically carry spares if our owners stick to the same supplier or
maybe 2.

Licensing Enforcement

Again we support the proposed guidelines but feel that proprietors and operators
are being unfairly given points for thing out of there control i.e. Driver failing to
notify change of address 2 points each False declaration 4 points each Failing to
report motoring charges or produce documents 4 points the list long | hope you get
the gest.

Fees and Charges

We support what you are trying to do about costing and every department
supporting itself but please take on board a lot of the changes in this paper are going
to result in our fees increasing, the trade can only stand so many changes and costs.

Contact Information

We also feel that because of the ever increasing pressure being put on the trade that
the licensing office should be open on Saturdays perhaps a skelton crew till dinner
time to deal with problems that should otherwise have to wait until Monday and
result in the driver losing the week end.

Page 199




Mr Chris Dixon

z

Draft statement of licensing policy

Dear Members,

With assistance from Viv Young, along with consultation from other members of the
Hackney Trade & I am pleased to submit a response the draft statement of licensing
policy. Viv will also submit comments separately.

Chapter 1 page 3: Introduction (1.2) states, The determination of policy and
associated guidelines can be shaped by many elements but an

overriding emphasis of promoting a local policy

based on local needs and having due regard to

local knowledge and evidence for and from

local people is of paramount importance.

3.1 page 5 states Policy should be made (and based) on evidence
in order to formulate any local requirements

and should not be introduced without prior

consultation or on a whim.

I make no apologies for our response to the document regularly referring to the two
paragraphs above because they are fundamental to any changes in policy, which will
affect our way of life.

Chapter 2: Summary of recommendations will be responded to chapter by chapter.

] Chapter 3: Scheme of Delegation and Associated Responsibilities. In principle agree
but no mention of consultation with the trade prior to possible changes.

Chapter 4: Hackney Carriages —Demand and Quantity Control.

Portsmouth is well served by a diverse and well-stocked Hackney Carriage fleet. You
only have to look at the long queues at the viable taxi ranks to see there is
no obvious demand by way of members of the public seeking Hackney
Carriages to convey them. A reasonable way of confirming this would be to
commission a survey.

We would expect any future policy would take into account Chapter 1: Introduction
(1.2) states, The determination of policy and associated guidelines can be shaped by
many elements but an

overriding emphasis of promoting a local policy

based on local needs and having due regard to

local knowledge and evidence for and from

local people is of paramount importance.

3.1 page 5 states Policy should be made (and based) on evidence
in order to formulate any local requirements

and should not be introduced without prior

consultation or on a whim.

Page 200



Chapter 4 page 21 1.1 The committee has previously expressed concern about
hackney carriage plates (which remain the property of the council) changing
hands for tens of thousands of pounds. The Hackney Trade maintain this
completely legal practice and from memory the practice goes back to the times of the
Council allowing plates to pass onto widows and or partners, then ultimately being
either being sold or rented to usually, younger drivers. The Council had and still does
have in place recognised partnership rules on Hackney Carriage plates.

The main reason Hackney Carriage plates attract a premium in Portsmouth is
because the vehicle can work without choosing to run a Private Hire vehicle
on a radio circuit- Aqua, City-Wide etc . There are significant fees charged by
the radio circuit companies in the City. These fees are in excess of £5000 per
annum. Radio circuits companies operate shift systems with the driver having to
work when he or she is told and very importantly the radio circuit driver has less
security than that of a Hackney. The Hackney driver can work at times to best serve
the public and still have time for his family and recreation.

Any future issue of Hackney Plates should take into account local conditions
with consideration to unmet demand, by way of a survey and not on a whim.

The Hackney trade have previously, and will continue to offer any member of the
committee a guided tour of the City, in order to demonstrate the workings of the
Hackney trade in Portsmouth.

Chapter 4: Hackney Carriages —-Demand and Quantity Control. Continued

Before consideration to any further issue of Hackney Carriage licenses by way of
deregulation, the trade ask the committee to consider the following :

We have been there before — an unlimited issue of licenses took place
between 1990 and 1996. Anybody who wanted one or more Hackney licence
could come forward provided a strict quality control of wheelchair carrying
capability vehicles was met. Bill Brown, Ian Thompson and Bob Squires

came forward with wheelchair friendly vehicles and were issued multiple
licenses. 84 licenses were issued in this six-year period.

After 6 years of deregulation, applicants stopped requesting licenses. It was
clear for all to see the extra 84 Hackneys had overcrowded the ranks. The
Hackney fleet was comfortably serving Portsmouth’s taxi travelling public’s
needs. The Committee at that time quite rightly commissioned an
independent survey to see if there was an unmet demand. The independent
survey found there was no unmet demand for Hackneys in Portsmouth. No
further issues have taken place since 1996.

Lower than ever levels of Hackney work are now prevalent. We see less
“taxi” people on the streets, due to lower Portsmouth based Royal Navy
numbers, pub and club closures, less ferries coming into the Ferryport etc.
Indeed we are firmly in a period of finance draining austerity when it comes
to disposable income.

Cheap local Private Hire rates sees Portsmouth amongst the cheapest places
in England to get a Private Hire or Hackney vehicle. The Hackneys have not
had a fare rise for 5 years because the travelling public here are used to

Page 201



' getting cheap private hire fares . Use of free to use smart phone apps are
now making significant inroads into traditional Hackney work.

The long waiting times between fares is reflected by the obvious
overcrowded Hackney ranks. One job an hour is considered a good wait.

To be fair to our Hackney Trade, who are the people you members represent,
any future issue of licenses should be carefully researched by way of another
independent survey. We understand that any survey will incur costs to the
Hackney trade and the trade will pay for this.

We would expect any future policy would take into account Chapter 1: Introduction
(1.2) states, The determination of policy and associated guidelines can be shaped by
many elements but an overriding emphasis of promoting a local policy based

on local needs and having due regard to local knowledge and evidence for and
from

local people is of paramount importance.

3.1 page 5 states Policy should be made (and based) on evidence in order to
formulate any local requirements and should not be introduced without prior
consultation or on a whim.

Chapter 4 Hackney carriage demand. Initial response already submitted.
No obvious demand, please commission a survey.

Chapter 5 Hackney carriage stands -

Sadly the trade struggle to get even minor yet sensible changes implemented.
We wait with patience to get even simple tasks expedited, which will benefit
all. Albert Road, Willis Road, The Hard, Festivals etc. The current number of
rank spaces supports approximately only one third of the Hackney fleet. Some
of these ranks are very much dependant on Ferries, shoppers, Hovercraft etc.

Chapter 6 Trade representation - We struggle to get the
decision makers around the table - we welcome regular consultation.

Chapter 7 Duration of Licenses - No issues raised from the trade
Chapter 8 The test of fit and proper.
“The trade in Portsmouth only want fit and proper people in the job”.

Foreign drivers are being brought here, put up in illegal HOMO’s and
coached to pass the our knowledge test. In many cases these drivers
demonstrate a poor level of spoken English. Their ability to find their
way around town to destinations not contained within the knowledge
test is now a standing joke.

Portsmouth’s Topographical Knowledge Test has much merit but it is
fundamentally flawed. The questions are being learned by the trainers
who are running the oversees and local courses. These questions are
used to coach the applicants, therefore giving them a good chance of

Page 202



achieving a pass based on the knowledge gleaned from earlier
applicants experiences.

There are no off the cuff verbal questions in order to test the
applicant’s ability to demonstrate an ability to correctly navigate the
city from points A-B. I.e. describe to me the route you would take to
get from Granada Road to Gladys Avenue or Adair Road to Matapan
Road. Both these pick up and destination points are off main bus route
roads in the city.

We welcome Licensing’s proposal for mandatory tests of English language
competency, driving assessments along with disability and wheelchair
awareness training

Driver’s minimum age proposals and driving experience could be avoided,
provided a driving proficiency assessment was passed. There are few “young
driver” applicants coming forward but insurance company requirements
virtually self-regulate this area.

Chapter 9 Rehabilitation of Offenders Act. This is a good benchmark with
fair and proper recommendations. To be fair to everybody each case should be
considered on its own merit before a decision to refuse a license is made.

Chapter 1 page 3: Introduction (1.2) states, The determination of policy and
associated guidelines can be shaped by many elements but an

overriding emphasis of promoting a local policy

based on local needs and having due regard to

local knowledge and evidence for and from

local people is of paramount importance.

3.1 page 5 states Policy should be made (and based) on evidence
in order to formulate any local requirements

and should not be introduced without prior

consultation or on a whim.

Chapter 10 Vehicle specification requirements

Portsmouth’s vehicle specifications are sensible and have stood the test of
time. Any proposals to review the existing vehicle specifications should only be
taken in careful consultation with the trade and not on a whim by the head of
service.

Chapter 11 Vehicle testing requirements. Recommended changes in
testing periods, bulb kit, and fire extinguisher are acceptable. Repeated
failures should see suspension and or revocation enforced. (You know who
these people are — get them in for extra checks and punish them
appropriately).

Page 203



Chapter 12 Vehicle age limits.

To introduce a new under one-year-old vehicle entry age against the current 6
year old limit is causing much consternation. We are being told it is the older
vehicles that regularly fail tests and spot checks. (You know who these people
are - get them in for extra checks and punish them appropriately). An age
limit of 3 years should suffice - assuming the vehicle is suitable, with
reasonable mileage and fit for purpose.

Chapter 13. CCTV provision in vehicles. There can be few objections to
this recommendation We all know the value of CCTV for the driver, road
users, insurance companies, authorities, Police and customers alike. The trade
only wish only to have competent, safe and proper conduct from our drivers.
Mandatory CCTV will assist with driver and customer practices

Chapter 14 Conditions & Byelaws . Nothing to add.
Chapter 15 Licensing enforcement. Nothing to add

Chapter 16 Fees and charges. Hackney carriage fees in Portsmouth are already to
the best of our knowledge amongst the highest in the UK. Inevitable extra costs for
CCTV, more tests and envisaged higher enforcement costs will almost certainly see
an increase in our fees Before you recommend an under one-year-old vehicle entry
vehicle, we would implore you to consider how the increased costs will affect the
trade.

Chapter 17 . Law commission proposals. Trade groups are under the
impression that not all these proposals will be adopted as law.

Portsmouth has always had a fair and well though out Licensing policy.
Please do not try and fix something if it is not broken.

We would ask you to take into account reasons for change should take into
account; Local needs, local knowledge and evidence from local people, and not
on a whim,

Respectfully yours.

Chris Dixon - Hackney carriage trade representative

Page 204



Draft statement of licensing policy- continued

Dear Member,

Viv Young, along with consultation from other members of the Hackney Trade & myself
are pleased to submit the second part of our “bite size chunks” response to the draft
statement of licensing policy.

Chapter 4: Hackney Carriages —Demand and Quantity Control. Continued

Before consideration to any further issue of Hackney Carriage licenses by way of
deregulation, the trade ask the committee to consider the following :

We have been there before - an unlimited issue of licenses took place between
1990 and 1996. Anybody who wanted one or more Hackney licence could come
forward provided a strict quality control of wheelchair carrying capability
vehicles was met. Bill Brown, Ian Thompson and Bob Squires came forward with
wheelchair friendly vehicles and were issued multiple licenses. 84 licenses were
issued in this six-year period.

After 6 years of deregulation, applicants stopped requesting licenses. It was
clear for all to see the extra 84 Hackneys had overcrowded the ranks. The
Hackney fleet was comfortably serving Portsmouth’s taxi travelling public’'s
needs. The Committee at that time quite rightly commissioned an independent
survey to see if there was an unmet demand. The independent survey found
there was no unmet demand for Hackneys in Portsmouth. No further issues have
taken place since 1996.

Lower than ever levels of Hackney work are now prevalent. We see less “taxi”
people on the streets, due to lower Portsmouth based Royal Navy numbers, pub
and club closures, less ferries coming into the Ferryport etc. Indeed we are
firmly in a period of finance draining austerity when it comes to disposable
income.

Cheap local Private Hire rates sees Portsmouth amongst the cheapest places in
England to get a Private Hire or Hackney vehicle. The Hackneys have not had a
fare rise for 5 years because the travelling public here are used to getting cheap
fares. Use of free to use smart phone apps are now making inroads into
traditional Hackney fares.

The long waiting times between fares is reflected by the obvious overcrowded
Hackney ranks. One job an hour is considered a good wait.

To be fair to our Hackney Trade, who are the people you members represent, any
future issue of licenses should be carefully researched by way of another
independent survey. We understand that any survey will incur costs to the
Hackney trade and the trade will pay for this.

We would expect any future policy would take into account Chapter 1: Introduction
(1.2) states, The determination of policy and associated guidelines can be shaped by
many elements but an overriding emphasis of promoting a local policy based on local
needs and having due regard to local knowledge and evidence for and from

local people is of paramount importance.

3.1 page 5 states Policy should be made (and based) on evidence in order to
formulate any local requirements and should not be introduced without prior
consultation or on a whim.

Chris Dixon - Hackney Carriage trade representative,

Page 205



Draft statement of licensing policy- continued (part 3)

Dear Member,

Viv Young, along with consultation from other members of the Hackney Trade
& myself are pleased to submit the third part of our “bite size chunks”
response to the draft statement of licensing policy.

Chapter 4 Hackney carriage demand. Initial response already submitted.
No obvious demand, please commission a survey.

Chapter 5 Hackney carriage stands -

Sadly the trade struggle to get even minor yet sensible changes implemented.
We wait with patience to get even simple tasks expediated, which will benefit
all. Albert Road, Willis Road, The Hard, Festivals etc.

Chapter 6 Trade representation - We struggle to get the
decision makers around the table - we welcome regular consultation.

Chapter 7 Duration of Licenses - No issues raised from the trade

Chapter 8 The test of fit and proper.
“The trade in Portsmouth only want fit and proper people in the job”.

Foreign drivers are being brought here, put up in illegal HOMO’s and
coached to pass the our knowledge test. In many cases these drivers
demonstrate a poor level of spoken English. Their ability to find their
way around town to destinations not contained within the knowledge
test is now a standing joke.

Portsmouth’s Topographical Knowledge Test has much merit but it is
fundamentally flawed. The questions are being learned by the trainers
who are running the oversees and local courses. These questions are
used to coach the applicants, therefore giving them a good chance of
achieving a pass based on the knowledge gleaned from earlier
applicants experiences.

There are no off the cuff verbal questions in order to test the
applicant’s ability to navigate correctly navigate the city from points A-
B. i.e. describe to me the route you would take to get from Granada
Road to Gladys Avenue or Adair Road to Matapan Road. Both these
pick up and destination points are off main bus route roads in the city.

We welcome Licensing proposal to mandatory tests of English language

competency, driving assessments along with disability and wheelchair
awareness training

Page 206



Drivers minimum age proposals and driving experience could be negated,
provided a driving proficiency assessment was passed. There are few “young
driver” applicants coming forward but insurance company requirements
virtually self-regulate this area.

Convictions and other considerations recommendations proposed seem
straightforward. However, to be fair to everybody each case should be
considered on its own merit before a decision to agree or refuse a license is
made.

Chapter 1 page 3: Introduction (1.2) states, The determination of policy and
associated guidelines can be shaped by many elements but an

overriding emphasis of promoting a local policy

based on local needs and having due regard to

local knowledge and evidence for and from

local people is of paramount importance.

3.1 page 5 states Policy should be made (and based) on evidence
in order to formulate any local requirements

and should not be introduced without prior

consultation or on a whim.

Chris Dixon - ‘Hackney Carriage trade representative

= & -_———— ——— s e s s e A, s

Viv Young

Page 207



Draft statement of licensing policy

Dear Member,

Viv Young, along with consultation from other members of the Hackney Trade &
myself are pleased to submit the first part of our response to the draft statement of
licensing policy.

Given the review is a lengthy document with much to consider, I propose to submit a
concise response by chapter and in bite size chunks, which will hopefully be easier to
digest? The first part of the response follows: Should you prefer a paper reply in
future could you please let me know?

Chapter 1 page 3: Introduction (1.2) states, The determination of policy and
associated guidelines can be shaped by many elements but an

overriding emphasis of promoting a local policy

based on local needs and having due regard to

local knowledge and evidence for and from

local people is of paramount importance.

3.1 page 5 states Policy should be made (and based) on evidence
in order to formulate any local requirements

and should not be introduced without prior

consultation or on a whim.

I make no apologies for our response to the document regularly referring to the two
paragraphs above because they are fundamental to any changes in policy, which will
affect our way of life.

Chapter 2: Summary of recommendations will be responded to chapter by chapter.

] Chapter 3: Scheme of Delegation and Associated Responsibilities. In principle agree
but no mention of consultation with the trade prior to possible changes.

Chapter 4: Hackney Carriages —-Demand and Quantity Control.

Portsmouth is well served by a diverse and well-stocked Hackney Carriage fleet. You
only have to look at the long queues at the viable taxi ranks to see there is
no obvious demand by way of members of the public seeking Hackney
Carriages to convey them. A reasonable way of confirming this would be to
commission a survey.

We would expect any future policy would take into account Chapter 1: Introduction
(1.2) states, The determination of policy and associated guidelines can be shaped by
many elements but an

overriding emphasis of promoting a local policy

based on local needs and having due regard to

local knowledge and evidence for and from

local people is of paramount importance.

3.1 page 5 states Policy should be made (and based) on evidence

Page 208



in order to formulate any local requirements
and should not be introduced without prior
consultation or on a whim.

Chapter 4 page 21 1.1 The committee has previously expressed concern about
hackney carriage plates (which remain the property of the council) changing
hands for tens of thousands of pounds. The Hackney Trade maintain this
completely legal practice and from memory the practice goes back to the times of the
Council allowing plates to pass onto widows and or partners, then ultimately being
either being sold or rented to usually, younger drivers. The Council had and still does
have in place recognised partnership rules on Hackney Carriage plates.

The main reason Hackney Carriage plates attract a premium in Portsmouth is
because the vehicle can work without choosing to run a Private Hire vehicle
on a radio circuit- Aqua, City-Wide etc . There are significant fees charged by
the radio circuit companies in question are in excess of £5000 per annum.
Radio circuits companies operate shift systems with the driver having to work when he
or she is told and very importantly the radio circuit driver has less security than that
of a Hackney. The Hackney driver can work at times to best serve the public and still
have time for his family and recreation.

Any future issue of Hackney Plates should take into account local conditions
with consideration to unmet demand, by way of a survey and not on a whim.

The Hackney trade have previously, and will continue to offer any member of the
committee a guided tour of the City, in order to demonstrate the workings of the
Hackney trade in Portsmouth.

Chris Dixon - Hackney Carriage trade representative

Viv Young

Page 209



FTVL

Unit 5, Partnership Business Park, Rodney Road, Portsmouth, PO4SDF
Telephone 02392780666 Fax 02392 717400
Email Website FIVL.CO.UK

Licensing Service
Civic Offices
Guildhall Square
Portsmouth

Hants

POI12AL

4™ February 2016
RE: HACKNEY CARRIAGE AND PRIVATE HIRE DRAFT LICENSING POLICY
Dear Nickii Humphreys

In reply to your draft statement of licensing policy, we as the largest private hire plate
holders, strongly disagree with several points in your draft statement.

Chapter 8 — The Test of “fit and proper”

We recommend that this stays at one year, we believe that one year’s driving experience is
enough to become a private hire driver. We also disagree with lifting the age limit to 25,
we don’t understand your reason for changing this, we have had many good young drivers
that have caused no problems for us or you. Our insurance regulates as do most companies
the age of drivers, however we do have the ability to put younger drivers on with further
restrictions if we consider them suitable to become a private hire driver.

Regarding your proposal to bring in an English language competency test, we have our
own English ability test, Aqua Cars also require a certain standard of English.

Recruiting local English drivers is very difficult, and takes some time and is very costly,
with bringing another mandatory component i.e. driving assessment test, is going to make
the process even more difficult. This will increase the cost and time that it takes to obtain
your private hire licence, and we feel that it will drive people away from trying to apply for
a private hire licence.

Again the disability and wheel chair awareness course is another cost more time, and
another obstacle in the way of obtaining a private hire licence. I am sure you are aware
Aqua cars already have training for wheelchair access drivers with MiDAS, and regarding
disability awareness training, Aqua cars undertake some guidance in the introduction

handbook.

Page 210



FTVL

Unit 5, Partnership Business Park, Rodney Road, Portsmouth, PO48DF
Telephone 02392780666 Fax 02392 717400
Email pathan@ftvlcouk Website FTVL.CO.UK

Chapter 11 — Vehicle Testin Requirements

Your proposal to change your vehicle testing criteria for vehicles over 3 years old, firstly
would be very costly, and secondly we feel that this is not always necessary as a 3-year-old
vehicle that has been well maintained and looked after can be as good as a one-year-old
vehicle that hasn’t been looked after, and this is just another obstacle for the proprietor, and
any future proprietor.

Reverting back to the old age limit of 5 years old and one-year extension, is a step back as
vehicles are more capable and made to more exacting standards, if a vehicle is well
serviced and maintained then it should last the current age restrictions.

Chapter 12 — Vehicle age limits

We strongly disagree with your proposal for changing the age limit, there is no need to
change this as we think the current age limit works fine, your requirements as they stand
enable current and future proprietor to purchase suitable yet cheaper vehicles to run as a
private hire vehicle, and make a small profit margin, with the rising costs in insurance,
parts, tyres, and general garage costs, the profit margin is getting smaller.

Chapter 13 — CCTV Provision in Vehicles

From what your proposals are stating this will be an extremely costly system, the time you
are asking to be fitted for a large fleet will be virtually impossible, however we do agree
that cameras are a very good idea, and we would all benefit from having these in every

private hire vehicle.

To summarise we feel that most of your new proposals are unnecessary, and will just cause
further costs, and cause delays to future private hire licence drivers in obtaining a
Portsmouth private hire licence.

Yours Sincerely Yours Sincerely » /7 » 7
Tan Thomson Nathan Kidby
Director Director

Page 211



Lee, Ross

From: Licensing Shared Email

Sent: 04 February 2016 16:23

To: Lee, Ross

Subject: FW: My opinion about draft policy

From: Nazmul Islam [mailto:

Sent: 04 February 2016 15:46

To: Licensing Shared Email

Subject: Fwd: My opinion about draft policy

Begin forwarded message:

Date: 3 February 2016 14:01:32 GMT
To:;™ N
Subject: My opinion about draft policy

To
The Licensing Authority
Portsmouth City Council

Dear Sir

I am giving my opinion about draft policy.

1. Age of vehicle should be same as it is or should not any age restriction. Our nearest
council Southampton or Chichester have no age restriction.

2. It is not necessary to issue any more License, because it is very difficult to find a space in
Rank. For Albert Road or Gunwharf Rank driver have to wait or running sometimes 20-30
minute for find a space.

3. Age of Driver should be 25, because after 25 people goes another stage in life and more
sincere.

4. Liquid Rank should be moved to Commercial Road in front of Kens Fry Chicken or Willis
road, because in the moment no one can see the Rank. If the Rank move to Commercial Road
in front of Kens Fry Chicken for Midnight to 4:00 am, It will not hamper for Buses because
after midnight there is no bus services in that Rout. More over we can save money from
buying a Train Pass. in the moment maximum driver buying Train Pass only for Liquid
Customer.

5. Vehicle Testing Requirements should remain same as it is. Any further changes will cause
more financial burden for driver. Another thing: Major city Hackney vehicle run yearly

Page 212



50,000-60,000 mile a year. If we compare with Portsmouth City than we can see, Our vehicle
run average 20,000 a year. that's mean Vehicle Testing once a year is enough.

6. The issue of providing CCTV cameras should be remain optional to the driver. Another
thing, sometimes some problem happen with driver and passenger mostly for paying the
Fare. If the council agree with pay the cost than [ am agree.

7. A Taxi driver should have good English or local geographical knowledge.

8. Who are the fit or not. first every three year we are doing CRV test. secondly we send
report from GP. more over if any one unfit for driving GP will advice to refrain from driving.

9. Already we are carrying Fire Extinguisher and bulb kit.
Thank you very much.

Your Sincerely

Nazmul Islam

Plate 201

Badge no. 477

Address.
4pb

avast’ This email has been sent from a virus-free computer protected by Avast.
be fres  www.avast.com

Page 213



Lee, Ross

From: Licensing Shared Email
Sent: 05 February 2016 08:42
To: Lee, Ross

Subject: Fw:

From: Farshad Joolaee [mailto:
Sent: 04 February 2016 22:38
To: Licensing Shared Email
Subject:

Hi,,
| just broadly support the views of Chris dixon, myself, and other trade reps

Our views are based on many years experience, we have only put to the council which, in general, is
beneficial to the trade and Pompey people Many thanks F joolae Sent from my iPhone

Page 214



Lee, Ross

1
From: Licensing Shared Email
Sent: 04 February 2016 16:24
To: Lee, Ross
Subject: FW: enquiry

From: amanuel kahssay [mailto:
Sent: 04 February 2016 14:01
To: Licensing Shared Email
Subject: enquiry

Dear Sir/Madam

My name is amanuel Kahsay i drive my own taxi hackney carage. If you alaw me I would like to give my
opinion on some of the proposas you have putt , regarding hackney carraige taxi:

1, age of a vehicle for first licensing: based on the current job aveliablity i don't blieve that it is something
we could aford. this days to have one year car for taxi purpose is very expensive.

2, Numerical control of hachney carraiges,: i think there are already enough taxis on the road. we are
strugling to find a job on the rank within reasonable waiting time. There are times when we spend hours to
get one job. so it would be additional presure for us if you putt more cars on the road. on the top of that the
impact of the private hire taxi like UBER is also a huge presure. i think this is something need to be
considered before you come to decid.

3, As a taxi driver i would like to have more hachney carraige stands (rank) in some places such in QA
hospital, ASDA supermarket, the new tesco extra and on fraton park. these are the main points i have to say
and such as the importance of CCTV , i don't mind if it is mandatory, it is good for custor's and driver
safety. Driver's age , 1 think 21 years is reasnable age for first driver.

thank you for the apportunity

Kind Regard

Amanuel kahsay

Page 215



Lee, Ross

From: Licensing Shared Email

Sent: 05 February 2016 08:43

To: Lee, Ross

Subject: FW: Licensing draft proposals

From: Dovecote Executive Travel Services [mailto

Sent: 04 February 2016 21:19

To: Licensing Shared Email

Subject: Licensing draft proposals

To whom it may concern.

On the whole | agree with the content of the draft proposals apart from one section.

The section relating to the age of newly plated vehicles, the proposal that they should be less than one
year old is in my mind too restrictive and would almost certainly mean that | would be unable to continue
within the executive travel industry due to the added expense of having to purchase a newer vehicle than
I'd want to.

| would be happier with a three year age limit as a compromise.

Regards,

Jeremy Lambert

Dovecote Executive Travel Services

Sent from my iPhone

Page 216



Dear Nickii Humphreys,
Licensing Manager,
Portsmouth city council.

Re: Draft statement of licensing policy

In regards to your recent proposed policy we the hackney carriage owners and drivers of Portsmouth
city council have objections to certain policies as follows:

e Chapter 4 - hackney carriage demands and quantity control
In 2006 review committee turned down increase of hackney carriage plates/quantities
By that time the country was more economically stable then now in 2016.

Taxi trade in Portsmouth has gone down by 70% since then we the people believe it is nota
justifiable

Last five years about 9/10 taxi ranks has been revoked while current ranks using extra 30/40
spaces without the introduction zero ranks.

Issuing more plates will only overcrowd current taxi ranks. Licensing is aware that over rankings
are taking places around the city lack of business elsewhere. Drivers have many petitions to
create more rank spaces in gunwharf park road, Albert road, hard interchange and the
liquid/envy rank.

We think increase of hackney carriage vehicles will only overcrowd the city and bring chaos
among drivers and economy

e Chapter 5 - Hackney carriage stands
The movement of city life is not followed by taxi ranks/stand as night life has moved and
new supermarket has erected

We would like to propose the following:

* New taxi rank in Tesco’s Fratton way

* Introduction of feeder rank to gunwharf taxi rank (Propose) park road

* Extend Albert road taxi rank at night time after 10pm

* Modification of liquid/envy taxi rank as we are not visible to passengers.

e Chapter 10 - Vehicle specification requirement

Currently we can use 4/6 years old cars to plate wheelchair accessible vehicle

And saloon cars.

It will not be feasible for drivers to buy a year old car as current econamy will not allow such
a move and it will not be cost worthy for drivers and owners buy a new car or year old car as
cost will increase significantly while the earning will stay the same as we are already
struggling to earn a minimum wage.

Page 217



Chapter 12 - vehicle age limit

Should stay the same.

Wheelchair accessible car cost is almost double then the average saloon car

And made to run a long life as a purpose-built taxi, drivers will only be paying the finance
company off therefore not earning anything for themselves and will only be joining the long
line of unemployment.

Chapter 13 - CCTV provision in vehicles

CCTVS in vehicle should be introduced as required, it is driver’s safety and customer’s safety
to do so it would be time consuming for local council, police authorities and judicial system
in terms of any wrong doing occurs. Keeping in mind instalment of CCTV’S should be cost-
effective to drivers.

Chapter 8 - The test of Fit and Proper

Bringing quality to hackney trade therefore English language test, disability and wheelchair
training and driving assessment training should be introduced.

Thank you for listening to our opinion
Yours Sincerely,
Forhad Al Mahmud

Hackney trade rep

29™ January 2016

Page 218



Lee, Ross

From: Lee, Ross

Sent: 03 February 2016 13:38

To: ‘josephine carse’

Subject: RE: Draft statement of licensing policy December 2015
Dear both

Thank you for your comments - duly noted.
Regards

Ross

From: josephine carse [mailto:
Sent: 03 February 2016 13:33
To: Lee, Ross

Cc: Viv Young

Subject: Draft statement of licensing policy December 2015

Dear Ross

Thank you for the draft proposal provided by you, that we have read, and would like to make the following
comments upon.

In chapter1, paragraph 1.0, 1.2 and 1.3 the proposal includes both hackney and private-hire in the provision
of local transport, giving rise to the conclusion that PCC regard P/H as part of the public transport

system. Ifthis premise is the accepted one then the local transport system comprises buses, h/c and p/h
vehicles.

From the p/h perspective the recommendations are generally beneficial to the public. The problem that we
see is that ALL the recommendations come at a cost to the owners and drivers personally.

In the current economic climate, in a system administered by PCC, it seems most unfair that PCC will spend
money subsidising the buses, who only run a very limited service, will spend money on h/c ranks, both
permanent and temporary, but expect the p/h system, which is the backbone of the transport system in this
city, to be self-funding. P/H are the only true 24/7, 365 transport system in the city. The latest example of
the above is the proposal of charging p/h vehicles to use the bus lanes. This appears to be grossly unfair
when we should all be working for the benefit of the transport system as a whole.

We feel it is the duty of PCC to treat the whole transport system by the same parameters and by favouring
one system over another, it gives an unfair advantage and will destabilise the ability of the other parts to
function properly.

We look forward to reading the conclusions of the council with interest.

Yours sincerely

Josephine Maxwell-Carse and Clive Carse

Page 219



Lee, Ross

From: Licensing Shared Email
Sent: 28 January 2016 08:34
To: Ellam, Jason; Lee, Ross
Subject: FW: DRAFT STATEMENT OF LICENSING POLICY

From: Ergun Mersin [mailto:

Sent: 27 January 2016 19:57

To: Licensing Shared Email

Subject: DRAFT STATEMENT OF LICENSING POLICY

Hi everyone, this is Ergun mersin,

| like to say a few things about all this please ...
First, Most definitely we don't need any more hackney plates on streets of Portsmouth i think cause it's as

more then a 1000....

Secondly maybe more ranks we need in town such as new Tesco in Fraton or QA hospital ,legal rank after
football 1111

Third age of the cars that we can use as a taxi in Portsmouth which is 6+2 at the moment!!( don't know
why ) cause in other cities is much more them 6+2 ...... And if we get more years out of the cars we use
...then more and more proprietors might get better cars for our trade for example the Turkish drivers they
nearly all got Mercedes.so it's worth buying good quality cars ...cause we will know we can use it more
then 642 years ...

Fort and last liquid rank please please please don't make us buy station pass ...you guys easily put a rank
operational after midnight -until 6 am in commercial road where kens fried chicken is ....

Note : this rank will stop all the pirates to get illegal jobs and it will stop many other crimes cause we will
get them of the road as soon as they had their foods after clubbing....

Also uber ,aqua citywide and many andi cars now days are ranking there anyway ...@@@®
It will make our jobs little easier ,just saying

Best regards
Ergun Mersin

Sent from my iPhone

Page 220



Lee, Ross

From: Humphreys, Nickii
Sent: 05 February 2016 11:04
To: Lee, Ross

Subject: FW:

From: Babul Miah [mailto:
Sent: 05 February 2016 00:35
To: Humphreys, Nickii
Subject:

05/02/2016

Dear Sir/Madam
After reviewing the new suggested licensing policy document | have the following suggestions.

1: age of vehicle should remain the same as what it is at the moment and the suggested change would be far too much of a
financial burden on the Hackney carriage and private hire owner.
Also as a comparison to Southampton our closest city and a similar population they have no age restriction on the vehicle

2. 1 think as it stands there is no room whatsoever for any more licenses to be issued as there no unmet demands are.
In fact it's quite the opposite .if you visit any taxi rank at any time of the day you will find that there are more available taxis
than passages willing to ride them .

3. | think the age of drivers can be increased to 25 as | believe that a more mature driver will provide a better service to
passengers and will tend to have a better knowledge of the local area.

4. | think that the liquid rank should be moved a bit more forward as it's a little bit confusing at the moment or perhaps on the
other side of the road. Also people tend to park their cars overnight on the rank and therefore we cannot use the rank
effectively.

5 . | think that the vehicle testing requirements should remain the same as they are already very thorough and stringent,
making them safe and reliable . Any further changes will just cause more financial burden on the driver, it seems that the
council wants to just increase the cost of providing a taxi service without considering the consequences.

6. The issue of providing CCTV cameras should remain optional to the driver and if he wishes to partake in this project then
he or she can. It should not be compulsory.

7. | strongly recommend that the driver of a taxi should have a good level of English vocabulary as he or she is providing a
service which requires a good understanding of local knowledge and understanding

They should all be undertaking an English language test before acquiring a licence.

8.1 also believe that every driver should be fit for purpose and that means physical and mental. They should have a good
physical health as they may be required for long distance jobs , and also previous offences should impact the acquiring of a
licence.

9. Carrying a bulb kit and fire extinguisher should be compulsory and to my knowledge all cars already carry these items
and | don't know why you are wasting our time even mentioning this.

| hope you will made the right decisions that will benefit the city and the people of the city

Page 221



thank you

Page 222



Lee, Ross

From: Licensing Shared Email

Sent: 05 February 2016 08:43

To: Lee, Ross

Subject: FW: licensing around hackney carriages

From: ahmed miah [mailto::

Sent: 04 February 2016 21:5u

To: Licensing Shared Email

Subject: licensing around hackney carriages

Hello
Licensing issues around hackney carriages:
1. Age of vehicles for first licensing - I think the age of 1st licensing should be 3/4 years

2. numerical control of hackney carriages - I think theres more than enough hackney carriages, sometimes i
struggle to find jobs even after an hour and a half of waiting.

3. age of drivers - i think the minimum age should be 24 years

4. hackney carriage stands (ranks) - i think there should be more hackney carriage stands situated outside
QA hospital (portsmouth), St marys hospital (portsmouth), asda (portsmouth)

5. vehicle testing requirements - no comments fine as it is

6. mandatory CCTV in vehicle - 1 dont think this is necessary.

7. drivers should speak english - i think this is very important

8. I think its very important to have a fire extinguisher in the vehicle
I hope my feedback will be valuable to you.

Regards

Ahmed Miah (hackney driver)

Page 223



S eon

Lee, Ross
From: Mohammed Rahman < T
Sent: 04 February 2016 21:42
To: E

e

1

(

f

J

J

r =
Subject: Review of Draft Statement of Licensing Policy
Dear All,

After reading the draft of the new licensing policy document | have the following concerns/opinions that |
would like to inform you of:

1) Age of the vehicle(s) that are permitted to be used as a Hackney Taxi should still remain the same -
within the last 4/5 yrs. Reason for this is that the new policy would make it a financial burden on existing
and potential future Hackney carriage owners.

2) Currently there is no need for anymore addition taxis as already there is no demand for any more taxis,
in fact | believe there is an over-supply, because if you visit any taxi rank you will find there are more taxis
there than customer to go in them.

3) I agree with raising the minimum driver's age to 25, because the older new drivers are the more mature
and on road/driving experience the will have along with better knowledge of the city and the surrounding
area.

4) Liquid ranks should be moved because to people who are not aware of what they are it can create some
confusion especially as at night people tend to use them as parking spaces making them ineffective.

Which is why we demand a new taxi rank outside/near the new Tesco that's opened in front of Fratton
Park.

5) The current safety measures and test that are implement on all Hackney Carriage should remain the
same as they are already very thorough and any addition/tougher test would just add to a driver/owners
expenses - become a greater financial burden.

6) The point about having CCTV cameras in all taxis should not be compulsory instead solely the choice of
the driver.

7) | firmly believe that all drivers should have good levels of understanding English, so that they can
provide a good service to customers.

8) | strongly believe that ALL drivers should be fit - both physically & mentally.

9) Ensuring that all taxi drivers carry a spare bulb kit & fire extinguisher is not a necessary measure that
needs to be made compulsory as the majority of drivers already do carry these items.

Page 224



Thank you for reading this email regarding my concerns of the new licensing policy | hope you take these
into consideration.

Yours sincerely,

Mr Mohammed Rahman

Hackney Carriage Number 212
Hackney Carriage Badge 262

Page 225



Lee, Ross

From: Andrew Rogers <i

Sent: 03 January 2016 20:49

To: Licensing Shared Email

Subject: Hackney Carriage/Private Hire Draft Policy Consultation.

Mr A. J. Rogers

|

|

H/Carriage No 134

Dear Sir/Madam

Having read your daft consultation paper, | would like to add a few points of my own for your serious
consideration, having started driving, first Private Hire for Southsea Cars in 1985, then Hackneys up till
the present day, with over 30 years experience | feel well placed to have an informed opinion.

Firstly Chapter 12, Vehicle Age Limits..

I must admit that | didn’t realize that the current age limit for putting a new vehicle on the road was

6 years, as you would only get 2 years use that would appear to not be cost effective, but | must strongly
protest at the proposed 1 year.....

Example, I brought a Skoda Octavia 2012, with only 22,000 miles, for a very good price of £7000

in October just gone, thats virtually a brand new car with that milage, today | looked on Autotrader for
a similar make/model 1 year old, and the cheapest was £10,500 with 18,000 miles, that's £3,500 more
That's a 5 YEAR LOAN, instead of a 3 YEAR LOAN, please let us take advantage of the massive
depreciation on all cars over their first three years, regardless of milage,

May | respectfully suggest bringing saloons in line with wheelchair vehicle's, and making all new cars
under 4 years as an entry age..

| will be sending an email regarding Chapter 4, Demand and Quantity Control,
at a later date, when | have collated more information, can you very kindly send me conformation
that you have received this email, thanks

Regards Andy Rogers, Badge H/C 332

Page 226



Lee, Ross

From: Licensing Shared Email
Sent: 14 January 2016 07:52
To: ‘Andrew Rogers'
Subject: RE: TAXI DEREGULATION

Andrew, thanks for your comments - these will be forwarded to the Licensing Committee in due course.
Regards

Ross

From: Andrew Rogers [mailto:z
Sent: 13 January 2016 21:59
To: Licensing Shared Email
Subject: TAXI DEREGULATION

DEREGULATION REVIEW

Deregulation has proved to be a failure in almost every city it has been tried in, and in most cases in just a
matter
of years almost all citys REREGULATED its taxi market because:
Prices for taxi passengers increased.
Vehicle quality decreased.
Average age of vehicle increase
Fares become confusing and unpredictable
Drivers struggled to make a living wage.
Driver quality decreased.
Accidents increase due to an increase of inexperienced and/or poorly trained drivers.
Operators struggle to fund future business operations
Traffic in high density areas increased due to " cruising activity "
Rank space will be inadequate on all ranks.
Air Quality decrease.
Drivers refusing shorter journeys.
If you are still in any doubt read what happened in the Netherlands in 2000 when they deregulated, they
then reregulated again ( see University of Tilberg report ) on Wikipedia, under deregulation of taxis.

All I ask, is if you still think deregulation would be good for Portsmouth, issue say 12 plates, and see if
you
get 200 applications for them, we don’t need to go back to the days of ian thompson, and bill brown,
buying dozens of taxis to rent out, we don’t need every other car in our great city of Portsmouth to be a
taxi cab..
thanks for taking the time to read this

Regards Andy Rogers

Page 227



o2 Ll

Lee, Ross

From: Lee, Ross

Sent: 03 February 2016 07:52
To: ‘'rahmans72'

Subject: RE:

Received, thank you.

Ross Lee

From: rahmans72 [mailto:|
Sent: 03 February 2016 00:55
To: Lee, Ross

Subject:

Dear Sir/Madam,
After reviewing the new suggested licensing policy document I have the following suggestions .

1: age of vihechle should remain the same as what it is at the moment and the suggested change would be
far to much of a financial burdon on the Hackney carriage owner.

Also as a comparison to Southampton our closest city and a similar population they have no age restriction
on the vihechle.

2. I think as it stands there is no room whatsoever for any more licenses to be issued as there are no unmet
demands.

In fact it's quite the opposite.if you visit any taxi rank at any time of the day you will find that there are
more available taxis than passages willing to ride them .

3. I think the age of drivers can be increased to 25 as I believe that a more mature driver will provide a
better service to passengers and will tend to have a better knowledge of the local area.

4.i think that the liquid rank should be moved a bit more forward as it's a little bit confusing at the moment
or perhaps on the other other side of the road. Also people tend to park there cars overnight on the rank and
therefor we cannot use the rank effectively.

5 . I think that the vihechle testing requirements should remain the same as they are already very thorough
and stringent , making them safe and reliable . Any further changes will just cause more financial burdon on
the driver , it seems that the council wants to just increase the cost of providing a taxi service without
considering the consequences.

6. The issue of providing cctv cameras should remain optional to the driver and if he wishes to partake in
this project then he or she can. It should not be compulsory.

7. I strongly recommend that the driver of a taxi should have a good level of English vocabulary as he or she
is providing a service which requires a good understanding of local knowledge and understangmding.
They should all be undertaking an English language test before aquiring a licence.

8.1 also belive that every driver should be fit for purpose and that means physical and mental. They should
should have a good physical health as they may be required for long distance jobs , and also previous
offences should impact the aquiring of a licence.

Page 228



9. Carrying a bulb kit and fire extinguisher should be compulsory and to my knowledge all cars already
carry these items and I don't know why you are wasting our time even mentioning this.

Page 229



Scope / Leasing

Unit 17 Robinson Way, Portsmouth, Hants .PO3 55A
Tel: 02392665111  Fax: 023 92 665112
www.scopeleasing.co.uk

Dear Licencing
We have been asked to give our opinion on the proposed new policies.
Driver Age Restrictions

We would like to see the age rule for badges staying as it is. There seem to be no benefits in putting in place a Minimum
Entry Age restriction. Insurance companies have age restrictions endorsed on their policies. We feel that this is already
controlled and is not necessary to impose.

Driver Training

We welcome driver training but it’s going to add a considerable amount of cost’s on the process of getting a badge. 2015
was our worst year for recruiting and to add more training may put potential new drivers off.
Aqua already has a comprehensive training program, which could be adapted to meet the council’s requirements.

Driver awareness schemes are very expensive at £87 a time and with a pass/ fail element it could escalate the cost of getting
a badge and again put new drivers off.

Vehicle Age

We would like the age rule to stay as it is. It’s worked for our business and many others over the years. It gives us flexibility
on our purchasing of cars. The council car age rule has been in for a considerable time and although we look to improve and
make changes, this rule has served us and works. Sometimes things need to be left alone. If it’s not broke don’t try and fix
it.

The cost of a new car is around £12k (at least and this is with a bulk buy deal) .Scope can buy 3-4 year old cars at the
auctions for £4k. It serves us no purpose to buy new, but we do on occasions. Sometimes we buy to order, say an Automatic
car. That would have cost us £13-£14k for one driver. We purchased one for £4.5k. We also buy to order when a driver
starts. This would be costly in the event of a driver not starting or leaving after a short while.

The mention of the affordability of the finance for new cars at this time should not be a consideration for the age rule.
Interests rates can and will go up. We shouldn’t have new proposals brought in on financial assumptions.

Vehicle Testing

The top 3 failures in a plate test as shown in the council statistics are 1.Lights (Adjustment), 2.Emissions, 3.Bodywork. But
the council propose that three failures would result in a full test at the cost to the proprietor and then possibly up in front of

the committee.

Where will the funds come from to fund the mini tests? Would you not agree that pass / fail or advice is down to the
discretion of the tester?

Company Reg. No. 03373695 VAT Reg. No 754 7928 83

Page 230



Scope /" Leasing

Unit 17 Robinson Way, Portsmouth, Hants .PO3 5SA
Tel: 02392 665111  Fax: 023 92 665112
www.scopeleasing.co.uk

Camera’s In Cars

Camera’s in cars seem like a good idea but with the policy the council wish to bring in would make it a costly exercise. The
cost of a camera is about £199.99 plus fitting say £75.00 then the cost of an SD card that “might” record 72hours.

Then they would have to be maintained every month which isn’t a 5 minute job especially when it comes to a fleet.

Scope doesn’t mind putting camera’s in cars for its own use, and sharing information with licencing, but if the council
wish to bring in rules that make it compulsory then we would expect a 50% contribution towards the cost, installation and
mainfenance.

We are having trouble with the recording time. The largest SD card we can put into our camera is 32GB. We MAY get 72
hours on a single man car but not a double man. Remember that these cameras and recording front and rear, it doesn’t take
long to fill the SD card up.

We have mentioned to the council that more and more proprietors are using recording equipment in their vehicles without
any compulsory rules from the Licencing Dept. Could you leave it to the proprietor to make the decision if they want a
camera? Would it not be better to let people make their own decisions about what equipment would be best in their car and
let them maintain with no interference from the council? Would the council be stepping into a mine field by endorsing
recording equipment that may record sound without any knowledge? Would the council be calling a day driver in to look at
video footage of something the night driver had done? Day driver wouldn’t be happy.

Our cameras are there to investigate any accidents that get reported to us, also help find out who is at fault, and the
protection of the driver. They are not there to police the day to day dealing with the general public and we have no interest
in this. We have neither the time nor the staff to go through unnecessary footage.

Company Reg. No. 03373695 VAT Reg. No 754 7928 83

Page 231



Lee, Ross

From: Licensing Shared Email
Sent: 04 February 2016 16:25
To: Lee, Ross

Subject: FW: Draft taxi proposal

From: peter stothers [mailto:c
Sent: 04 February 2016 11:36
To: Licensing Shared Email
Subject: Draft taxi proposal

Hi,

I have a few concerns about the draft proposal.

1) the age of new vehicles I think what your proposing 1 year old will mean a lot of us taxi drivers will not
be able to afford or put us in a position of over the threshold of acceptable debt.

I think the council instead of using age should think about mileage ie 75000 for new vehicles 400000 end of
life of vehicle.

2) cctv cameras this should not be compulsory as in a private hire vehicle using a data head box every thing
can be traced perhaps compulsory for hackney taxis.

Regards

Pete Stothers

Page 232



Lee, Ross

From: Licensing Shared Email

Sent: 01 February 2016 08:40

To: Lee, Ross

Subject: FW: My Opinion: Plate no. 256 Badge no. 272

From: Syed muhammad Ali [mailto:

Sent: 30 January 2016 04:38

To: Licensing Shared Email

Subject: My Opinion: Plate no. 256 Badge no. 272

The Licensing Authority
Portsmouth City Council

Dear Sir

[ am giving my opinion about draft policy.

1. Age of vehicle should be same as it is or should not any age restriction. Our nearest council Southampton
or Chichester have no age restriction.

2. It is not necessary to issue any more License, because it is very difficult to find a space in Rank. For
Albert Road or Gunwharf Rank driver have to wait or running sometimes 20-30 minute for find a space.

3. Age of Driver should be 25, because after 25 people goes another stage in life and more sincere.

4. Liquid Rank should be moved to Commercial Road in front of Kens Fry Chicken or Willis road, because
in the moment no one can see the Rank. If the Rank move to Commercial Road in front of Kens Fry
Chicken for Midnight to 4:00 am, It will not hamper for Buses because after midnight there is no bus
services in that Rout. More over we can save money from buying a Train Pass. in the moment maximum
driver buying Train Pass only for Liquid Customer.

5. Vehicle Testing Requirements should remain same as it is. Any further changes will cause more financial
burden for driver. Another thing: Major city Hackney vehicle run yearly 50,000-60,000 mile a year. If we
compare with Portsmouth City than we can see, Our vehicle run average 20,000 a year. that's

mean Vehicle Testing once a year is enough.

6. The issue of providing CCTV cameras should be remain optional to the driver. Another

thing, sometimes some problem happen with driver and passenger mostly for paying the Fare. If the council
agreed with the driver that after fitted the cctv if any passenger don't pay the fare or after complain the
police driver doesn't get the fare, than Licensing Authority will pay that fare then I am agree to fit cctv.

7. A Taxi driver should have good English or local geographical knowledge.

8. Who are the fit or not. first every three year we are doing CRV test. secondly we send report from GP.
more over if any one unfit for driving GP will advice to refrain from driving.

Page 233



9. Already we are carrying Fire Extinguisher and bulb kit.
Thank you very much.
Your Sincerely
Muhammad Ali Syed
Plate no. 256
Badge no. 272
]
I,'c"-'f;Cll/ElSt!' This email has been sent from a virus-free computer protected by Avast.
"W wiee  www.avast.com

Page 234



THOUGHTS

ON THE

DRAFT STATEMENT
OF

LICENSING POLICY
DECEMBER 2015.
FROM

HENRY E S TAYLOR

P-H BADGE NO 275.

1

Page 235

S con

e .
/.[-'l'l."S e

e 18y,
A Dy

Y gy, .

2, Polasgy o
_.‘.‘. (%)

Gy




PAGE TWO HENRY E S TAYLOR

2 FEB 2016. P-H BADGE NO 2/5.
TO WHOM IT MAY CONCERN ;-

WHEN IN 1978 | STARTED PRIVATE HIRE DRIVING WITH SOLENT
TAX!IS IN QUEEN STREET, YOU COULD EARN A LIVING WAGE
WORKING 50 TO 60 HOURS A WEEK, NOWADAYS YOU NEED
TO WORK A 70 TO 80 HOUR WEEK IN ORDER TO EARN A
LIVING.

| AM NOW 79 YEARS OF AGE., AND THERE ARE A LOT OF OTHER
DRIVERS OUT THERE BOTH P/H AND H/C WHO ARE OF A
SIMILAR AGE OR APPROACHING iT, WHO WOULD FIND THE
iMPOSITION OF PURCHASING A VIRTUAL NEW VEHICLE A
SERIOUS iMPOSITION ON THERE EARNING POWER AND ALSO
THERE HOURS OF WORK. AS ALSO WE ARE DEPENDANT ON
BEING ABLE TO PASS THE YEARLY MEDICALS WE HAVE TO
UNDERGO.

| ONLY WORK ABOUT 45 HOURS A WEEK, AS PHYSICALLY THAT
IS ALL | CAN MANAGE, | DO THIS JOB BECAUSE I LIKE IT,AND IT
GETS ME OUT OF MY HOUSE, AND GIVES ME A LIFE IN AN
ENVIRONMENT THAT | ENJOY WORKING IN. AS IS THE CASE |

T HINK WITH MANY OTHER OLDER DRIVERS.

THE NEW VEHICLES MENTIONED IN THE REPORT ARE | BELIEVE
1

Page 236



SO ANY DRIVER WHO IS CAPABLE OF WORKING THESE LONG
HOURS MAY FIND IT ADVANTAGEQUS TO PURCHASE SUCH A
VEHICLE,BUT FOR THOSE OF US WHO HAVE AN UNKNOWN
WORKING LIFE LEFT, SUCH AN UNDERTAKING COULD CAUSE
SOME UNFORESEEN FINANCIAL DIFFICULTIES, AND ALSO
UNDUE STRESS THROUGH HAVING TO WORK LONGER HOURS.

THEREFOR THE ABILITY TO PURCHASE A THREE OR FOUR YEAR
OLD VEHICLE GIVES A MUCH BETTER RANGE OF CHOICE, BE IT A
SALOON, MULTI OR A WHEELCHAIR TYPE VEHICLE, WHICH IS
WHAT IS NEEDED FOR THE PEOPLE OF PORTSMOUTH. IT ALSO
MEETS THE CRITERIA OF THOSE OF US THAT HAVE A LIMITED
SCOPE OF EARNING CAPABILITIES BECAUSE OF AGE.

SURELY THE SOLE CRITERIA FOR VEHICLE SUITABILITY SHOULD
BE ON ITS APPEARANCE AND ITS MECHANICAL STATE AS
DETERMINED BY THE COUNCILS AUTHOQURISED VEHICLE
EXAMINER.

IN ALL THE YEARS THAT | HAVE BEEN P/H- H/C OWNER DRIVER,
| HAVE NEVER HAD VEHICLE FAIL A COUNCIL MECHANICAL
EXAMINATION.

AS TO THE BUYING AND SELLING OF H/C PLATES, WHEN YOU
BUY AN H/C PLATE, YOU ARE BUYING A BUISINESS FOR WHICH

YOU HAVE TO PROVIDE THE NECCESSARY VEHICLE WHICH
MUST MEET COUNCIL APPROVED CONDITIONS.

AS TO THE OFFLOADING OF JOBS BY A PORTSMOQUTH P/H FIRM

2

Page 237



)
"? 0

TO AN OVER THE BORDER P/H FIRM, THEN SURELY TH Loufw@ oy %
Wy

THERE OWN LICENSING ARREAR.

WOULD IT NOT THEREFOR BE ADVANTAGEOUS TO ASK THE
LOCAL POLICE AUTHORITY TO ASK A POLICE OFFICER-POSSIBLY
NEARING RETIREMENT AGE, IFF THEY WOULD LIKE TO BE
SECONDED TO THE COUNCIL LICENSING DEPARTMENT TO
FACILITATE THE STOPPING OF ALL P/H AND H/C VEHICLES THAT
ARE SEEN TO BE PICKING UP WHITHIN THE CITY BOUNDARY.
THE COST TO BE BORN POSSIBLY BY THE P/H AND H/C TRADE.

4

YOURS FAITHFULLY

L

HENRY E S TAYLOR P/H BADGE NO 275.

3

Page 238



C con

Lee, Ross

From: Licensing Shared Email

Sent: 05 February 2016 15:44

To: Lee, Ross

Subject: FW: Comment for the new proposal

From: kibrom tekle [mailto:

Sent: 05 February 2016 14:5o

To: Licensing Shared Email

Cc: Viv Young

Subject: Comment for the new proposal

Dear sir /madam

[ am writing regarding your new proposal

1. 1st time licensing one year old car I think it is hard no one can afford it

2 . there are more taxis even some time no enough rank in some places

3.it could be great to have taxi rank in Goldsmiths avenue near Pompey foot ball stadium

Regards
Kibrom teclehamanot

Page 239



Lee, Ross

From: Lee, Ross

Sent: 29 January 2016 07:45
To: ‘uddin.shahed’
Subject: RE:

Received and noted.
Thank you.

Ross

From: uddin.shahed [mailto:

Sent: 29 January 2016 01:5¢

To: Lee, Ross; Vernon-Jackson, Gerald (Member)
Subject:

From shahed uddin
Trade repressive of Hackney carriage

After reviewing the new suggested licensing policy document I have the following suggestions .

1: age of vihechle should remain the same as what it is at the moment and the suggested change would be
far to much of a financial burdon on the Hackney carriage owner.

Also as a comparison to Southampton our closest city and a similar population they have no age restriction
on the vihechle.

2. I think as it stands there is no room whatsoever for any more licenses to be issued as there are no unmet
demands.

In fact it's quite the opposite.if you visit any taxi rank at any time of the day you will find that there are
more available taxis than passages willing to ride them .

3. I think the age of drivers can be increased to 25 as I believe that a more mature driver will provide a
better service to passengers and will tend to have a better knowledge of the local area.

4.i think that the liquid rank should be moved a bit more forward as it's a little bit confusing at the moment
or perhaps on the other other side of the road. Also people tend to park there cars overnight on the rank and
therefor we cannot use the rank effectively.

5 . I think that the vihechle testing requirements should remain the same as they are already very thorough
and stringent , making them safe and reliable . Any further changes will just cause more financial burdon on
the driver , it seems that the council wants to just increase the cost of providing a taxi service without
considering the consequences.

6. The issue of providing cctv cameras should remain optional to the driver and if he wishes to partake in
this project then he or she can. It should not be compulsory.

7. I strongly recommend that the driver of a taxi should have a good level of English vocabulary as he or she

is providing a service which requires a good understanding of local knowledge and understangmding.
They should all be undertaking an English language test before aquiring a licence.

Page 240



8.1 also belive that every driver should be fit for purpose and that means physical and mental. They should
should have a good physical health as they may be required for long distance jobs , and also previous
offences should impact the aquiring of a licence.

9. Carrying a bulb kit and fire extinguisher should be compulsory and to my knowledge all cars already
carry these items and I don't know why you are wasting our time even mentioning this.

Sent from my Samsung device

Page 241



UBER

Unit 10,
Ground Floor,
Building 1000,
Lakeside,
North Harbour,
Western Road,
Portsmouth,
PO6 3EZ
Mr Ross C Lee
Licensing Officer
Portsmouth City Council
Civic Offices
Guildhall Square
Portsmouth
Hants
PO1 2AL
12.01.2016
Dear Ross,

Thank you for giving us the opportunity to share our views on the proposed changes to the taxi and
private hire driver policy in Portsmouth. At Uber we believe very strongly in making cities more
efficient, promoting high quality service and improving safety in the industry, and I'm delighted that
we share the council’s ambitions in this regard. We're also thankful for the chance to outline what
we think are ways that PCC can better promote competition through improved Private Hire Licence
policy.

A more competitive Private Hire market in Portsmouth is essential. It would allow more innovation,
open up a greater choice for existing private hire drivers, deliver a better service for consumers
and create new opportunities for the unemployed. With this in mind, we would like to respond to a

number of the recommendations in the consultation and submit a few proposals to your
consideration.

In summary, we recommend:

Third party DBS processing is allowed

The council test just spoken English and not written English skills

The local topographical knowledge test is removed

Vehicle licensing costs are calculated ‘pro rata’ for cars licensed outside January
The council do not implement mandatory driver assessment training or
qualifications

The council make it optional to install CCTV in all Private Hire Vehicles and cap the
cost of installation

7. We recommend the Council allow private hire vehicles to use Bus Lanes to further
reduce traffic across the city

bl i ed el B

Page 242



Detailed response on our recommendations:

1. We recommend allowing DBS processing by 3rd parties

Ch 8. 8.1 Criminal Record Checks

To further reduce barriers to the private driver license application process, we recommend that
PCC considers allowing applicants to provide an Enhanced DBS disclosure from a 3rd-party, or
moves to an electronic DBS provider.

Many electronic providers are able to produce Enhanced DBS checks in under a week and, in the
majority of cases, within 48 hours. This would considerably reduce the current average lead time of
8 weeks for DBS checks. We have seen lots of other councils take this initiative. For instance, Bury
Council accept an Enhanced DBS (with update service) that has been produced externally, and
Liverpool use a 3rd-party electronic provider who are able to turnaround checks with exactly the
same level of rigour very quickly.

2. We recommend the Council test just spoken English and not written English skills too

Ch 8. 12.5 The ability to both speak and write in clear English is essential.

Uber broadly supports a more stringent English language requirement for private hire drivers. We
recognise that the trade is at its core a public service industry and participants must be able to
communicate effectively with passengers over the course of providing their service. For that
reason, we broadly support PCC's recommendation that a English language test is included as
part of the driver licensing process but that, unlike the proposals suggested in this consuitation, we
believe that the assessment should only focus on the ability of the applicant to talk to their
customers, rather than written skills.

3. We recommend removing the local topographical knowledge test

Ch 8. 13.1 the commiltee considers that both sides of the trade should be subject to local
knowledge testing by way of formal examination.

We believe that the local knowledge test is a blocker in the application process, which pushes
potential applicants towards obtaining their licences in other - out-of-town jurisdictions - or from
driving altogether. Removing the test would encourage more people to consider this career and
would help increase economic opportunities in Portsmouth, whilst ensuring the city's locals
predominantly obtain licences from PCC.

With the huge advances in technology over the last 10 years, and the widespread adoption of GPS
navigation and real-time mapping, the requirement to have an extensive local knowledge in order
to take the customer on the shortest / quickest route is simply no longer required (indeed, mapping
apps such as Google Maps and Waze redirect drivers in real-time based on live traffic and speed
information). As statistically robust analysis of 0.5 million trips across 7 UK cities showed that in
practice, drivers prefer to use technology to identify the best routes around their city. The data
showed 96% of all UK Uber partners-drivers, regardiess of having taken a Knowledge Test or not
relied on in-App Navigation to help them find the best route for their trips. Nationally the use of
GPS navigation in Private Hire Vehicles has grown 10% pa since 2009 and this competency is now
trialled as part of the National Driving Test. Furthemore, like the Law Commission, the Competition

Page 243



& Markets Authority (CMA) in a recent analysis of the Private Hire market was unconvinced that
such tests are still appropriate.’

We believe that passing the local area knowledge test is no longer a strong indicator of the quality
of a trip - this assertion is, in fact, supported by our own data: Uber partners licensed without a
knowledge test in Newcastle (where since May, no knowledge test has been required) have the
same ratings from our customers as our national average. On a side note, it is worth noting that
Newcastle has seen applications increase by 4 times since the removal of their knowledge test,
which was also in response to non-Newcastle-plated vehicles working in Newcastle-upon-Tyne.

We feel that the knowledge test should be removed to follow the forward-thinking example set by
Newcastle

4. We recommend that vehicle licensing costs are calculated ‘pro rata’ for cars licensed
outside January

Ch 11. Vehicle testing requirements

Currently all vehicle licenses must be renewed in January, regardless of when they were last
licensed. This acts as a barrier for new partner-drivers has they incur a substantially higher cost if
they wanted to join September - December (the busiest times of the year). We recommend that if
the Council keeps the mandatory January renewal of vehicles the fees are offered 'pro rata’ during
other months. This means that those wishing to license at other times in the year are not
penalised. Currently the existing system favours large operators with existing fleets and
disadvantages smaller operators that laok to plate cars all year round. Ultimately this stifles
innovation and competition in the market leading to a worse deal for new and existing private hire
drivers and riders.

5. We recommend that the Council do not implement mandatory driver assessment training
or qualifications.

Ch 8. 14.4 all new drivers (and, in due course, existing drivers) attend and complete approved and
prescribed driver training courses

The addition of further driving assessments and tests will act as a further barrier to entry; restricting
supply of drivers and potentially favoring larger operators that can invest in subsidising drivers
through the assessment process. There is also no evidence from our data that these tests deliver
better service levels. Our data shows that cities with few or no mandatory qualifications for private
hire drivers, deliver a quality of service on par with cities that have increased barriers to entry.
Advances in technology provide much more effective means to assess and improve driving
standards. Two examples of this are:

A requirement for all private hire drivers to hold a UK DVLA license will allow penalty points to be
checked quickly via the electronic counterpart to ascertain a driver's performance upon signing up
to an operator (and quality standards to be enforced).

In addition, Uber’s platform captures feedback on every trips, with riders able to flag unsatisfactory
driving when it occurs. In this way corrective action to improve driving standards {coaching,
relevant feedback, etc) can be provided to those that need it in a timely, relevant and more

'hitps:/iwww.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/481450/CMA_response_ta_Tf
L.pdf

Page 244



effective manner. Mandatory assessments at point of application are unlikely to change driver
behaviour and will be long forgotten once on the road.

6. We recommend the Council make it optional to instal CCTV in all Private Hire Vehicles
and take measures to cap installation costs

Ch 13. 4.2 Recommend the formal introduction of a condition for respective hackney carriage and
private hire vehicle licences to require the mandatory use of CCTV in most working vehicles.

CCTV does have its merits, but its value is diminished with the advent of new technology and it will
add a significant barrier to new drivers becoming licensed and effective competition for existing
drivers and vehicles in the market. A driver wishing to switching vehicles will incur higher costs and
smaller vehicle providers looking to establish themselves may not be able to do so because of the
cost. This measure favours large established vehicle providers and operators. Less competition will
be detrimental to drivers and riders of Portsmouth and prevent innovative new firms with new
technologies that improve safety entering the market. Given significant barriers exist in the market
already should be approached with caution. If CCTV is made mandatory significant steps should
be taken to cap the costs of CCVT (similar to MOT tests) from a central, independent supplier.

7. We recommend the Council allow private hire vehicles to use Bus Lanes to further reduce
traffic across the city

Ch 1. 7.3 Up to 90,000 inbound vehicle movements are recorded in any one 24 hour period and
previous census data indicates 397 vehicles per 1000 people in Portsmouth

Many would agree that traffic is a problem in Portsmouth. The Council estimate that traffic growth
is predicted to generally rise between 19% and 55% by 2040. Studies across multiple cities in
Europe and the US have shown that an average of 30% of traffic within city centres is looking for
street parking, with motorists spending around 10 minutes look for a space.? Uber removes the
need to park and so can dramatically reduce the number of cars on the road in the most crowded
areas. With average ETAs in Portsmouth less than 3 minutes, there’s no need for riders - or the
partner-driver - to be waiting around for a ride. We believe that allowing private hire vehicles to use
bus lanes will further increase the efficiency and viability of private hire as a real alternative for
individuals choasing to use their own car, reducing traffic in the city.

Creating economic opportunities in Portsmouth

Car ownership is decreasing and demand is dramatically growing for cheap, safe and reliable
transport solutions. We believe that the option of becoming a Private Hire Driver could be an
amazing offering for those still seeking employment in the city of Portsmouth.

Driving with Uber - and services like it - not only provides options for those looking to fill the gap
between two jobs, but the flexibility to work when and how you want can be tremendously valuable
for students, those fitting their career around childcare or even those coming to the end of their
working life.

We are confident that, if our recommendations are implemented, the private hire market in
Portsmouth will improve for the better and create better economic opportunities for the people of
the great waterfront city.

2 http://iwww.accessmagazine.org/articles/spring-2011/free-parking-free-markets/

Page 245



Promoting competition and innovation for the benefit of the Council, drivers and riders in
the City

Finally, we understand the current law and practice regarding ‘use of hearsay is admissible’ in
relation to the fit and proper test for both licence grant and suspension/revocation. We wanted to
highlight that here are many rumours, myths and common misconceptions of new technologies in
the private hire market. It is imperative that facts - not hearsay - is basis of decisions here. In
addition, we also wanted to highlight that competition in the Portsmouth Private Hire market has
had a colourful history. There is widespread belief - true or not - of intimidation and physical
violence to persons and property of competing Private Hire Operators, Drivers and affiliated third
parties in Portsmouth. This legacy of hearsay is restricting fair competition in the market, ultimately
at the disadvantage of riders and drivers in the city. As such we believe that any policy
recommendations that create further barriers to competition without a clear and empirically proven
case to support wider benefits should not be implemented.

By adopting the proposed solutions above which will remove and lower barriers to fair competition
we believe that we could, in partnership with the city council, help make Portsmouth a safer, more
mobile and more prosperous city ready to embrace new technology.

We look forward to hearing the feedback from the consultation and hope that you have found our
views and suggestions helpful. Please do not hesitate to get in touch if you would like to discuss

our proposal, or any of our comments in more detail.

Yours sincerely,
A

Frad Jones
General Manager, Uber Portsmouth

Page 246



Lee, Ross

From: Licensing Shared Email
Sent: 05 February 2016 14:47
To: Lee, Ross

Subject: FW: Licensing policy

From: Sadettin Yalcin [mailto::
Sent: 05 February 2016 13:51
To: Licensing Shared Email
Cc:

Subject: Licensing policy

Hackney 80

Badge 47

| have been taxi driver for nearly 3 years, it is a big problem with little work. | have wife and not get
benefits.. It is wrong i have to work to many hours, sometimes 70 or 80 hours.. | support everything viv
says

Sadettin yalcin

Tel :

Page 247



Viv young

i —— — AA

DRAFT STATEMENT OF LICENSING POLICY 3rd February 2016

Dear Licensing manager,
I would like to offer my opinion on the following points.

My observations come as a hackney carriage proprietor
A private hire proprietor

An approved taximeter supplier/fitter

A garage owner

40 years involvement in the Pompey cab industry

HACKNEY CARRIAGES, DEMAND AND QUANTITY CONTROL

The council should opt for the survey to prove that there is no significant unmet demand.

This would be funded by the trade and would only show what we as drivers and the licensing
department already know the answer to.. “There is no significant unmet demand”

The licensing dept have had numerous complaints about taxis over ranking, namely Kings
theatre, The harbour station, st georges square, park road approach to gunwharf, and indeed
Gunwharf itself.

It is not uncommon for taxis to queue on a taxi rank for over an hour to get a customer. The job
is virtually untenable without assistance from the benefit system. Taxi drivers don’t want to get
rich, they just want to earn a living.

Indeed many Taxi/ph vehicles are “parked up” looking for drivers ( as can be verified by
licensing dept. and some councillors who are copied into my emails)

| would estimate over a third of the hackney fleet are attached to radio circuits, because it is
very difficult to make a living without some PH work.

The onset of mobile phones, phone apps etc has had a detrimental effect on the traditional
Hackney carriage in our city... why walk to a rank or hail a cab in the street ???? a couple of clicks
on your phone and taxi/ph car will be outside your door within a few minutes is the norm.
Many taxi/ph drivers now work excessive hours to try and make a living, indeed working up to
15 hours a day is not uncommon. Working excessive hours with not much sleep is bad for the
driver, and bad for the customer.

The fares in Pompey are very cheap, the last taxi fare rise was 2010...

Ask yourself that question, would you feel comfortable being driven by someone who has
been at work for 15 hours ??

There is an acute shortage of viable rank space day and night, which | can demonstrate at a later
date. What benefit is there to the public by having even more taxis on the road ?

Licensing committee members, the offer is there to be driven around and shown from a taxi
drivers perspective how it really is. | have an 8 seater taxi minibus and am available 24/7.

Call me

Remember the old saying “ you must retain quantity to retain quality”

Page 248



CHAPTER 7/ DURATION OF LICENCES

I am fully supportive of the 3 year licence, with the opportunity to purchase 1 year licence
depending on circumstances.

CHAPTER 8/ THE TEST OF “FIT AND PROPER”

Mandatory drug test every 3 years for all drivers......... over 65 to be exempt( unless suspicions
arise)

As highlighted drugs are SIMPLY NOT COMPATIBLE WITH PROFESSIONAL DRIVING

No driver to apply for a licence if convicted of sex offence in last 10 years,

On other offences, the guidelines should have some flexibility and each application dealt with on
merit.

Chapter 6 trade representatives and consultation

| believe that consultative meetings should held on a 6 monthly basis, however if there is
nothing relevant for the agenda from either the trade or PCC the meeting could be cancelled.

The points system

Several issues here.

(1)drivers chop and change their addresses on a regular basis, should the proprietor or operator
be penalised if driver doesn’t inform

(4a.4b.4c.4) only if proven, not hearsay...... please take into consideration the majority of
motorist’s hate taxi drivers, and go out of their way not to let cabs out.. they race you to prevent
YOu re-joining main carriageway from a bus lane etc

(19) Who/ where would we report lost property to ?? police stations shut etc etc

(26) | personally keep “white books” in my vehicles, but is it not better to keep white book at
home with log book, insurance, compliance etc

(23) Accident damage within 72 hours, it’s a bit harsh on the proprietor if the driver doesn’t tell
the proprietor

(31) Meter seals. It is common practice to have time adjustments, calendar updates on meters
is it practical for these meters to have to be resealed each time.. | supply meter/tariff calibration
certificates for Fareham/Gosport/ Eastleigh... | am authorised to seal meters for Chichester
something that maybe Ross and Nickii could look into

(33) who makes the decision faded top light or livery.... Bit of a grey area

(35) the full time driver is responsible for the cleanliness of vehicle

(36) illegal tyres, is full time drivers responsibility The tyres are free

(37) proprietor supplies bulb kit in vehicle, driver is skint and sells it....... No exaggerating this is
what will happen, same as selling fire extinguishers, and swapping tyres etc etc etc

(38) we are taxi drivers, not cctv technicians.... How would we know if it was defective ?

(43) unauthorised livery. Option given to renfd@@a! P4 oints



DRIVERS AGE

my view is that an applicant should have held a driving licence for 2 years not 3.

| would personally permit drivers to be licensable from age 21... see footnote (53)
Southampton and East Hants councils require drivers to be 21.

In certain circumstances with a CPC it is possible to drive HGV and PSV vehicles at age 18
however the norm is 21 years old, at this age you can drive a 44 ton lorry or a bus carrying 80
passengers.

As stated on page 51 of the report, only 9 of the 311 applicants were under 25,

Therefore if an applicant is under 25 and prepared to get appropriate insurance cover, no need
to discriminate (I was 19 when | started)

| don't believe you will be inundated with applicants under 25,

As stated this tends to self regulate

Likewise no upper limit, providing driver passes medicals etc.

We have many drivers in their 70’s and even into their 80’s

Future driver licence applicants

Any future Taxi or PH drivers should be able to communicate in English that is
understandable, and be able to comprehend what is being said to them, to have the
ability to write some English is a must.

New applicants should be able to demonstrate they can drive to a proficient standard of
what the public would expect and deserve, it is essential to have good knowledge of the
highway code (don’t stop on ZIG ZAG lines etc)

The present test for topographical knowledge falls far short of what the “paying public”
expect. There are far to many comments, complaints, driver overcharged me, couldn’t
understand what driver said, driver went wrong way,driver could only say postcode.

Page 44 3.10
“PHV’S are not legally available for immediate hiring in the same way as taxis.To hire a

PHV the would-be passenger has to go through an operator, so the driver will have an
opportunity to check the details of a route before starting the journey”

This is not strictly correct

Examples are

PUB...... see the staff

RESTAURANT............. See the staff or table 6

HOTEL........... see the staff or room 45

DOCTORS SURGERY............. Mr smith or Mrs jones

CUSTOMER ............. When stating destination just says Hilsea, north end, Southsea etc
As you will appreciate there are 100’s of instances where destination is not known.
This highlights that ph drivers should have a comprehensive geographical knowledge.

WHAT IS HAPPENING WITH CROSS BORDER HIRING MAKES A COMPLETE MOCKERY
OUT OF ANY DRIVER OR VEHICLE CONDITIONS THAT PCC IMPOSE

Page 250



Disability and wheelchair awareness training

If you want to drive a taxi or ph vehicle you should understand the needs of all people with
disabilities....It is fair to say that some drivers are loathe to give assistance to people that need it.
At times it is embarrassing to sit behind a vehicle and watch the customer struggle to enter the
car. Some drivers should be ashamed of their actions, | am fully supportive of any “customer
relation” based scheme, similar to the “Pride in Pompey” we had a few years ago..

The drivers who gave up their time to do this course were not the ones who needed training, the
ones who needed it didn’t attend.

Maybe 2 different tests

1/ this would benefit saloon car drivers, blind,deaf, zimmer frames, etc
2/ WAV’s to include what’s in 1 and also wheelchair training

These are the sort of courses that need to be mandatory, maybe within 1 year of being newly
licensed, so as not to put to much burden on new applicant

EXISTING LICENCE HOLDERS

If there are a minimum of 2 written “proven” complaints in a 2 year period the driver to
undertake corrective driving and /or awareness training.

BULB/FUSE KITS

| am happy to agree for vehicles to carry a bulb kit,

But be aware you need a comprehensive toolkit to change some bulbs fitted to modern day cars.
Where are the fuse boxes and how will “the driver” know what to do. An inexperienced person
can do more harm than good.

I have noticed buses and police cars with “lights out” | doubt whether these vehicles carry a buib
kit or indeed the driver would be expected or know how to change a bulb... These vehicles
would have bulbs changed by their respective maintenance departments the following day.
Most garages who look after the taxi and ph fleet are open 6 days a week and are available on
the Sunday if required. | supply and fit cheaper than Halfords 111

AGE OF VEHICLES WHEN FIRST LICENSED

| think that a 1-year limit is to restrictive, possibly go for say up to 3 years old with 70,000 miles
and proper service history.

The industry is very quiet, and when drivers have to replace their vehicles funding a vehicle less
than 1 year old is beyond the depths of some peoples’ pockets.

AGE OF VEHICLES TO REMAIN LICENSED

As a starting point 8 year is reasonable, providing this is not set in stone.

Any proprietor who has a vehicle older than this, provided it has passed all its previous depot
tests, should be given the option of further extensions with the committees approval.... | was
thinking more about the expensive multi seat wheelchair vehicles and minibuses etc

Many other local authorities permit older vehicles, only in December | was doing meter work on
a 2002 Citroen Picasso. Many surrounding areas allow far older vehicles.

Page 251




TEMPORARY VEHICLES

| would propose temporary vehicles have to be less than say 3 years old, | think that 1 year is to
restrictive

CCTV CAMERAS

| fully understand why PCC would want these installed, it helps to prove or disprove any bad
driving allegations, it helps with any road traffic accidents, it would assist with any allegations of
sexual assault, it would give back up to the driver in the event of getting a “runner”. If the police
collared the person it would prove that the journey took place etc. in some circumstances it is
beneficial to the proprietor by way of reduced insurance premium. | feel the requirement that a
malfunction of equipment rectified within 24 hours,, is far far to short a period.. In reality it
would have to be sent away, by post, repaired and sent back by post, | think 14 days is far more
realistic. These should be phased in over say 12 months, or earlier if proprietor changes vehicle.
Full compliance by 30" September 2016 is to soon.

VEHICLE TESTING REQUIREMENTS

The present vehicle testing is strict enough, if a vehicle is well maintained with a good pass
record at the depot, there is no need to insist on 2 vehicle inspections per year on vehicles over
3 years old... If some vehicles have a bad track record test them accordingly, no need to penalise
those who maintain their vehicles.

At present if a vehicle reaches 6 years old local legislation requires 2 tests per year... why
penalise a driver who has relatively low mileage and has passed all previous tests. the council
are fully aware of which vehicles are in need of more tests.

DEPOT TESTS FAILURES

LIGHTING EQUIPMENT 55%. The figures haven’t highlighted whether the vehicle failures are
numerous bulbs(unacceptable) or a single bulb (could happen on way to test)

EXHAUST FUEL AND EMISSIONS 23%.

Modern diesel engines need regenerating, (on a regular basis), this very rarely happens due to
congested streets and local traffic problems.

vehicles are sitting for long periods waiting on ranks etc,( engine running to keep warm) not
good for emissions

The congested roads and traffic in our city make it at times (during the day) you could go several
hours with barely getting out of 3" gear, all these are contributory factors toward pollution.

VEHICLE BODY AND STRUCTURE 19% due to the narrow congested roads and difficult parking, it
is common to have small knocks and dents in your vehicle.
Please bear in mind when the interior of a cab is not to good, it’s not the driver thats caused it

STEERING AND SUSPENSION 17% all the numerous humps and bumps and traffic calming
measures contribute to damaging suspension and link arms etc.
In some of the side roads these humps are far to excessive.

DRIVERS VIEW OF THE ROAD 11% air freshners etc hanging from rear view mirror...... hardly
crime of the century
Sit in the driver’s seat and check that there is reasonable view of the road ahead, bearing in

mind the original design of the vehid®age 252



TYRES AND WHEELS 8% no excuses here, tyres available 7 days a week,

Most drivers do not have to pay for them, just make the effort to ensure you have enough tread
on them. Tyres are available 7 days a week, it makes sense to use your normal supplier on a
normal day ( ie Monday to Friday)... | help people with punctures on a Sunday, but if its bald on
Sunday it was bald 2 days before on the Friday ....NO EXCUSE _ clamp down on bald tyres, if
you rent a car it is not a hardship to check your tyres,oil, screenwash, and bulbs, its all available
for free

TAXI RANKS

| fully endorse the authors objective “to review the provision of hackney carriage stands and to
bring any future proposals to the attention of the highway authority and appropriate cabinet
member as quickly as possible”

urgent consideration could be given to the following

1/ The new Tescos in fratton way in front of bus stop
2/ A suitably located daytime rank in north end (London road)
3/ Kings theatre { day time use) in pipeline | believe

4/ Liquid Envy ( we are still working on it) this rank has been useless since first inception circa
7 years ago

5/ The positioning and the associated signage for the temporary rank at The Hard falls far below
what the trade and public would expect, its virtually invisible from the stand-up area.Why was
so much money spent on all the signage for the buses ??? What happened here cannot be
allowed to happen again..... disgraceful

Take onboard the trades expertise and knowledge of the best sightings for ranks, which will then
operate in an efficient manner for both drivers and customers

[t is imperative that measures are put in place to prevent the regular abuse by private motorists
who park on taxi ranks. This is well documented with PCC licensing/parking dept’s

vehicle specification

please note these are my personal opinions only

Vauxhall zafira type vehicles should not be licensed for 6 persons

PCC should consider “rear loader” WAV’S

“rear loaders” would be beneficial in some of our cities narrow roads( not
enough room to extend side door ramps)

PCC uses “rear loaders” for “dial a ride” etc, other licensing authorities
permit the use of these and they afe@ga@53! in the taxi trade magazines.



I would also like to suggest that the livery on the vehicles is “freshened up”
to promote our city... eg the spinnaker tower, or ferryport to name but two.

| work 7 days a week and am “hands on” whether it be driving a cab, fixing a
meter,fixing a taxi, changing tyres, fitting bulbs, going to taxi meetings, etc
etc. | talk to many taxi/ph drivers everyday, | know what is happening in
our city, whatever we talk about | empathise with them.

Any decisions you make must be in the best interests of Portsmouth
people, visitors and taxi drivers.

As | stated earlier taxi drivers “don’t want to get rich, they only want to

make a living” be mindful of any decisions that will have a negative effect
on this.

Kind regards

Viv young hackney plate 101
Taxi trade rep

Page 254



Lee, Ross

— —
From: Licensing Shared Email
Sent: 08 February 2016 10:05
To: Lee, Ross
Subject: FW: No more taxi plate

From: samirghafor [mailto::
Sent: 08 February 2016 09:04
To: Licensing Shared Email
Subject: No more taxi plate

Sir
My name Samir Ghafor I am a Taxi driver I would like don't give any more taxi plate because there is

more than enough taxi in the city.
Thanks
Yours faithfully samir

Sent from Samsung Mobile

Page 255



Lee, Ross

From: Licensing Shared Email
Sent: 05 February 2016 08:43
To: Lee, Ross

Subject: FW:

From: pompeycar [mailto:
Sent: 04 February 2016 20:22
To: Licensing Shared Email
Subject:

Abdul Haque

03/02/2016

DRAFT STATEMENT OF LICENSING POLICY

Dear Councillor,

I would like to offer my opinion on the following points.

HACKNEY CARRIAGES. DEMAND AND QUANTITY CONTROL

The council should opt for the survey to prove that there is no significant unmet demand.

This would be funded by the trade and would only show that we as drivers and the licensing dept. already
know the answer “There is no significant unmet demand”

The licensing dept have had numerous complaints about taxis over ranking, namely Kings theatre, The
harbour station, st georges square, park road approach to gunwharf, and indeed gunwharf itself.

Page 256



It is not uncommon for taxis to queue on a taxi rank for over an hour to get a customer. The job is virtually
untenable without assistance from the benefit system. Taxi drivers don’t want to get rich, they just want
to earn a living.

[ would estimate over a third of the hackney fleet are attached to radio circuits, because it is very difficult to
make a living without some PH work.

The onset of mobile phones, phone apps etc has had a detrimental effect on the traditional Hackney carriage
in our city... why walk to a rank or hail a cab in the street ???? a couple of clicks on your phone and taxi/ph
car will be outside your door within a few minutes is the norm.

Many taxi/ph drivers now work excessive hours to try and make a living, indeed working up to 15 hours a

day is not uncommon. Working excessive hours with not much sleep is bad for the driver, and bad for the
customer.

CHAPTER 8/ THE TEST OF “FIT AND PROPER”

Mandatory drug test every 3 years for all drivers......... over 65 to be exempt( unless suspicions arise)
As highlighted drugs are SIMPLY NOT COMPATIBLE WITH PROFESSIONAL DRIVING

No driver to apply for a licence if convicted of sex offence in last 10 years,

On other offences, the guidelines should have some flexibility and each application dealt with on merit.

Chapter 6 trade representatives and consultation

I believe that consultative meetings should held on a 6 monthly basis, however if there is nothing relevant
for the agenda from either the trade or PCC the meeting could be cancelled.

DRIVERS AGE

my view is that an applicant should have held a driving licence for 2 years not 3.

[ would personally permit drivers to be licensable from age 21... see footnote (53)
Southampton and East Hants councils require drivers to be 21.

In certain circumstances with a CPC it is possible to drive HGV and PSV vehicles at age 18

however the norm is 21 years old, at this age you can drive a 44 ton lorry or a bus carrying 80 passengers.

Page 257



As stated on page 51 of the report, only 9 of the 311 applicants were under 25,

Therefore if an applicant is under 25 and prepared to get appropriate insurance cover, no need
to discriminate (I was 19 when I started)

I don’t believe you will be inundated with applicants under 25,
As stated this tends to self regulate

Likewise no upper limit, providing driver passes medicals etc.
We have many drivers in their 70’s and even into their 80’s

Future driver licence applicants

Any future Taxi or PH drivers should be able to communicate in English that is understandable, and be able
to comprehend what is being said to them, to have the ability to write some English is a must.

New applicants should be able to demonstrate they can drive to a proficient standard of what the public
would expect and deserve, it is essential to have good knowledge of the highway code (don’t stop on ZIG
ZAG lines etc)

The present test for topographical knowledge falls far short of what the “paying public” expect. There are
far to many comments, complaints, driver overcharged me, couldn’t understand what driver said, driver
went wrong way, driver could only say postcode.

Disability and wheelchair awareness training

If you want to drive a taxi or ph vehicle you should understand the needs of all people with disabilities....It
is fair to say that some drivers are loathe to give assistance to people that need it. At times it is embarrassing
to sit behind a vehicle and watch the customer struggle to enter the car. Some drivers should be ashamed of
their actions, I am fully supportive of any “customer relation” based scheme, similar to the “Pride in
Pompey” we had a few years ago..

The drivers who gave up their time to do this course were not the ones who needed training, the ones who
needed it didn’t attend.

Maybe 2 different tests

1/ this would benefit saloon car drivers, blind,deaf, zimmer frames, etc

2/ WAV’s to include what’s in 1 and also wheelchair training

Page 258



These are the sort of courses that need to be mandatory, maybe within 1 year of being newly licensed, so as
not to put to much burden on new applicant

EXISTING LICENCE HOLDERS

If there are a minimum of 2 written “proven” complaints in a 2 year period the driver to undertake
corrective driving and /or awareness training,

BULB/FUSE KITS

I am happy to agree for vehicles to carry a bulb kit,
But be aware you need a comprehensive toolkit to change some bulbs fitted to modern day cars.

Where are the fuse boxes and how will “the driver” knows what to do. An inexperienced person can do
more harm than good.

I have noticed buses and police cars with “lights out” I doubt whether these vehicles carry a bulb kit or
indeed the driver would be expected or know how to change a bulb... These vehicles would have bulbs
changed by their respective maintenance departments the following day

Most garages who look after the taxi and ph fleet are open 6 days a week and are available on the Sunday if
required. I supply and fit cheaper than Halfords !!!!

AGE OF VEHICLES WHEN FIRST LICENSED

I think that a 1-year limit is to restrictive, possibly go for say up to 4/5 years old with 100,000 miles and
proper service history.

The industry is very quiet, and when drivers have to replace their vehicles funding a vehicle less than 1 year
old is beyond the depths of some peoples’ pockets.

AGE OF VEHICLES TO REMAIN LICENSED

As a starting point 8 year is reasonable, providing this is not set in stone.

Any proprietor who has a vehicle older than this, provided it has passed all its previous depot tests, should
be given the option of further extensions with the committees approval.

Page 259



TEMPORARY VEHICLES

I would propose temporary vehicles have to be less than say 3 years old, [ think that 1 year is to restrictive

CCTV CAMERAS

I fully understand why PCC would want these installed, it helps to prove or disprove any bad driving
allegations, it helps with any road traffic accidents, it would assist with any allegations of sexual assault, it
would give back up to the driver in the event of getting a “runner”. If the police collared the person it would
prove that the journey took place etc. in some circumstances it is beneficial to the proprietor by way of
reduced insurance premium. I feel the requirement that a malfunction of equipment rectified within 24
hours,, is far far to short a period.. In reality it would have to be sent away, by post, repaired and sent back
by post, I think 14 days is far more realistic. These should be phased in over say 12 months, or earlier if
proprietor changes vehicle. Full compliance by 30™September 2016 is to soon.

VEHICLE TESTING REQUIREMENTS

The present vehicle testing is strict enough, if a vehicle is well maintained with a good pass record at the
depot, there is no need to insist on 2 vehicle inspections per year on vehicles over 3 years old... If some
vehicles have a bad track record test them accordingly, no need to penalise those who maintain their
vehicles.

At present if a vehicle reaches 6 years old local legislation requires 2 tests per year... why penalise a driver

who has relatively low mileage and has passed all previous tests. the council are fully aware of which
vehicles are in need of more tests.

DEPOT TESTS FAILURES

LIGHTING EQUIPMENT 55%.The figures haven’t highlighted whether the vehicle failures are
numerous bulbs(unacceptable) or a single bulb (could happen on way to test)

EXHAUST FUEL AND EMISSIONS 23%.

Modern diesel engines need regenerating, (on a regular basis), this very rarely happens due to congested
streets and local traffic problems.

vehicles are sitting for long periods waiting on ranks etc,( engine running to keep warm) not good for
emissions

Page 260



The congested roads and traffic in our city make it at times (during the day) you could go several hours with
barely getting out of 3™ gear, all these are contributory factors toward pollution.

VEHICLE BODY AND STRUCTURE 19% due to the narrow congested roads and difficult parking, it is
common to have small knocks and dents in your vehicle.

Please bear in mind when the interior of a cab is not to good, it’s not the driver that’s caused it

STEERING AND SUSPENSION 17% all the numerous humps and bumps and traffic calming measures
contribute to damaging suspension and link arms etc.

In some of the side roads these humps are far to excessive.

DRIVERS VIEW OF THE ROAD 11% air freshners etc hanging from rear view mirror...... hardly crime
of the century

Sit in the driver’s seat and check that there is reasonable view of the road ahead, bearing in mind the
original design of the vehicle

TYRES AND WHEELS 8% no excuses here, tyres available 7 days a week,

Most drivers do not have to pay for them, just make the effort to ensure you have enough tread on them.
Tyres are available 7 days a week, it makes sense to use your normal supplier on a normal day ( ie Monday
to Friday)... [ help people with punctures on a Sunday, but if its bald on Sunday it was bald 2 days before
on the Friday ....NO EXCUSE _ clamp down on bald tyres, if you rent a car it is not a hardship to check
your tyres,oil, screenwash, and bulbs, its all available for free

TAXI RANKS

I fully endorse the authors objective “to review the provision of hackney carriage stands and to bring
any future proposals to the attention of the highway authority and appropriate cabinet member as
quickly as possible”

urgent consideration could be given to the following

1/ The new Tescos in fratton way in front of bus stop

2/ A suitably located daytime rank in north end (London road)
Page 261



3/ Kings theatre ( day time use) in pipeline I believe

4/ Liquid Envy ( we are still working on it) this rank has been useless since first inception circa 7 years
ago

5/ The positioning and the associated signage for the temporary rank at The Hard falls far below what the
trade and public would expect, its virtually invisible from the stand-up area. Why was so much money spent
on all the signage for the buses ?

Kind regards

Abdul Haque

Sent from my iPhone

Page 262



Lee, Ross

From: Licensing Shared Email
Sent: 17 January 2016 09:57
To: Lee, Ross

Subject: FW: My views on the draft

From: Khaled Hammad [mailto:
Sent: 14 January 2016 22:26

To: Licensing Shared Email; Viv Young
Subject: My views on the draft

Dear sir/ madam

Many thanks for asking for our opinions in that matter. Please find some suggestions. I haven't been in
business for a long time, However, I feel obliged to give my opinion in case I bring something important to
your attention. Please forgive me if I sound inexperienced.

1- T suggest that the age of the vehicle remains open as long as the vehicle meets your requirements in terms
of safety and performance. So if you really need it to be one year old at the First License, why not give older
vehicles a more in-depth test like the test for the 2 years extension. That way, the council makes some extra
money, and at the same time we allow more drivers to buy more affordable cars which contributes to the
economical cycle in our city.

2- in terms of Hackney licences, I have a suggestion that might upset my Hackney colleagues, however, I
think it's better for the trade. I was interested to know why the council doesn't issue anymore Hackney
licenses which makes the plates very expensive to buy from individuals who own them. I was told once that
it's because there are no enough ranks for anymore Hackney in town. So why don't the council issue a new
license that has the advantage of a Hackney taxi with a white Hackney plate and allow them to have a taxi
sign and a meter with Hackney prices but not silver in colour. May be open it to be any colour and not allow
them to pick up from the rank!

[ think the council can charge a decent amount of money for that license as the driver will be able to pick
passengers from the road!

3- I really think and believe from my experience that a decent dvr (cctv camera) should be compulsory in
Hackney and ph vehicles. And I think that it should be on all the time and the customer must see it as it
makes a huge difference in the way some customers behave in the taxi.

Taxi drivers are vulnerable and alone with some times 8 guys in a multi seater. Even two guys could
overpower one driver and steal his money or his car if they want to and we've read about so many stories
like this. I think it's about time that we give some protection to those drivers and the dvr will work as a
deterrent

I have to say I would be much happier if the council finds a good deal for a solid system and get an
independent company to fit them and make sure that they're properly installed and working as opposed to
leaving that to the drivers as its not very easy to find a reliable system out there.

4- 1 don't have anything against drivers who are 21,however, it's very hard to insure them and also

expensive. I run a small fleet and from my experience, a restricted policy to 25 or older is much cheaper
and easy to find. So I will always recruit drivers who are only 25 or older

Page 263



Thank you again for allowing a platform for drivers to express their opinions and forgive me if you find my
ideas waste of your time

Kind regards
Khaled Hammad

The Gully Gully Man

Page 264



Mr Barrie Holmes

Mobile No ( Email ¢

FAO Licensing Manager
Portsmouth City Council

Dear Nicki
Draft Statement of Licensing Policy

| have been in the private hire and hackney carriage trade since 1968 and | feel that it is necessary
to put forward my views regarding this draft statement.

Chapter 4: Hackney Carriage Demand and Quantity Control

When | started in the trade there were 85 hackney carriage plates in Portsmouth and | have seen
this increase, over the years, until it peaked at 234 plates in 1990 which created a mixed fleet of
saloon cars, estate cars and multi seater and/or Wheelchair accessible vehicles.

A mixed fleet is most definitely the best way to provide the best service to the people of
Portsmouth.

The work for hackney carriages has been consistently falling over the last decade or so for various
reasons:

e Cut backs in the Navy and the loss of hotels and entertainment facilities along the seafront
have reduced the need for taxis.

e Due to the economic climate over the past few years, most people have had to cut back on
luxuries and taxis are one of these.

e A massive increase in the use of mobile phones over the last twenty or so years, which has
detracted from the amount of work for hackney carriages. Why walk along a road in the
wind and rain when you can phone for a taxi to pick you up from where ever you may be?

The decline in work is evidenced by the amount of taxis that are queuing on the ranks, both night
and day, and sitting there for up to, and sometimes longer, than an hour.

Many more hackney carriages are attached to radio circuits, mainly Aqua Cars and Citywide, as they
need to supplement their income from the ranks.

Quantity does not always equate to quality!

| would therefore request that serious consideration be given to Option 1 — to retain the existing
numeric limit and instruct a suitably qualified independent transport consultant to carry out a survey
to assess if there is any significant unmet demand, taking in to consideration certain factors such as
peaked demand.

Such survey costs to be funded by the trade as a one off payment.

Page 265



Chapter 6: Trade Representatives and Consultation

It is noted that the recommendation is to vary the Terms of Reference to reduce the meetings of the
trade representatives to one a year.

I would suggest that the current policy of two meetings per year be retained, but with the proviso
that, if neither side have any relevant items to discuss, one meeting per year may be cancelled.

Chapter 7: Duration of Licences

Provided there is an option to purchase a one year licence, if the applicant so wishes, and the cost of
a three year licence is a reduction on that of three separate years licence to reflect the reduction in
the administration of the licence then this is an acceptable recommendation.

It is also a sensible proposal to have DBS checks brought into line with renewal dates, although some
drivers may argue that this is adding a further burden on their finances with having to find the extra
cost at the time of renewal.

Does the DBS check the status of a person’s right to work in this country and is it able to check
foreign nationals criminal records as in depth as that of a British citizen?

Chapter 8: The Test of “Fit and Proper”

Drug Testing — Agree with proposals, mandatory tri-annual check, with random testing at the
discretion of the licensing staff.

Medical Fitness — Agree with proposals, applicant/current driver must use his/her own GP as they
have access to that person’s medical records.

Minimum Entry Age — Whilst 25 is a reasonable age for a person to become a licensed driver there is
very little reason to change this policy as few drivers start under this age due to the almost
prohibitive cost of insurance for young drivers.

Immigration — All necessary steps must be taken to ensure that the applicant has permission to work
in this country, it was noted that the badge holders National Insurance Number has been included
on the application form and this can only be a good thing, provided it is checked as valid, as no
National Insurance Number means no right to work in this country.

Driver Training — A reasonable standard of the English Language is essential, but it should also be
taken into consideration that, not only must the applicant be able to speak it, the listener must be
able to understand them.

Driving Assessment Training — This could become mandatory for new applicants, with existing drivers
being asked to complete a course if it is apparent that there are problems or persistent complaints
over their driving, with their badge suspended until they have passed the taxi driver test.

Knowledge Test — Agreed that all applicants should take this test. If an applicant needs to resit the
test for what so ever reason then it should not be the same test paper as previously sat. As far as |
am aware no other exams would allow this.

Disability Awareness Training — If this becomes mandatory, it would be difficult to differentiate
between a test for a saloon car driver and those of wheelchair accessible vehicles as a driver may
originally be driving a saloon car and then, for whatever reason, change to drive for another
proprietor that has a wheelchair accessible vehicle.

Page 266



Chapter 9: Rehabilitation of Offenders

Whilst | understand that many applicants may have committed offences in the past and may now be
perfectly acceptable in many professions, including ours, there should be reservations against those
that have committed sex offences and/or are on the Sex Offenders Register and should not be
allowed to hold a badge.

Chapter 10: Vehicle Specification Requirements

Vehicle Specification requirements — Paragraph 4.5 states “The council may change, substitute or
vary vehicle specification guidelines at any time”. This should be done in consultation with the trade
representatives to ensure that all proprietors, both hackney carriage and private hire, are aware of
the proposed changes and any cost implications that may arise.

Corporate Livery — There was a standard livery decided on in the 2001 Options for Change and | have
noticed, particularly over recent months, that variations to this have started to creep in with newer
company’s logos being larger than was originally agreed or the use of magnetic door stickers which
have not been allowed in the past, it is also noticed that there are some hackney carriages driving
around with smaller top signs than the agreed specification. Therefore | respectfully request that any
change to Corporate Livery is adhered to by both aspects of the trade and that Licensing Officers
ensure that this is done.

Residency — Paragraph 4.3 states “As a prerequisite, the council would expect that the proprietor of
any hackney carriage should either reside in Portsmouth or within five miles of the boundary or, if a
company, have an operating base or registered office within Portsmouth”, surely this should also
apply to a proprietor of a private hire vehicle as well?

Chapter 11: Vehicle Testing Requirements

It is very disappointing to note that 55% of vehicle inspections failed due to Lighting Equipment but
not unexpected to find that 85% of vehicles over 9 years of age failed, there is very little difference
between hackney carriage and private hire failure rates.

Paragraph 4 recommends that all vehicles over 3 years old be subject to @ minimum of 2 vehicle
inspections during the year. | would like to propose that this should only apply if the vehicle has
failed its annual test.

Paragraph 5 recommends that all licensed vehicles over 5 years old be subject to a minimum of 2 full
vehicle inspections, | disagree as | would like the present 6 year age limit before extension retained.

Fire Extinguishers — It is already a requirement to carry a working fire extinguisher, however it is not
possible to test these as that would render them unusable, which generally carry diagrammatical
instructions as to how to use them.

Replacement bulb and fuse kit — although | agree that it is a good idea to carry these, how many
drivers are actually competent enough to change them? Do other professional drivers, eg bus
drivers, have to do this?

Page 267



Chapter 12: Vehicle Age Limits

Recommendation 2 states that all vehicles shall be under 1 year of age at first licensing. This is a very
harsh recommendation and places major financial burdens on all proprietors. A vehicle has the
biggest depreciation in the first two years its life and it is therefore more economical for the
proprietor to purchase a good used vehicle of 2 — 3 years old.

Over the years the maximum age for licensing a vehicle has risen over the years from under 3 years
on first presentation to under 6 years of age, which means that the vehicle may have a very short
“shelf life” before going on extension.

It would be more acceptable to revert to the older policy of allowing cars under 3 years old to be
licensed and to be able to remain licensed until 8 years of age, subject to meeting the required
testing and exemptions for certain types of vehicles. Any changes should allow time for a proprietor
to adjust to the change and not brought in immediately.

Age Limits for Wheelchair Accessible Vehicles — There appears to be an anomaly between Hackney
Carriage and Private Hire vehicles here. | was one of the trade representatives at the time of Options
for Change in 2001 and it was agreed that, as there were a lot of new style wheelchair vehicles being
introduced to the market, that only (at the time) PCCO approved vehicles would be licensed for a
maximum of 12 years and all other vehicles would only be licensed for a maximum of 8 years.
However, due to some confusion, the agreed minute reduced all vehicles to a maximum of 8 years.
This minute was subsequently amended in 2006 and increased all wheelchair accessible vehicles
maximum life to 12 years.

At that time, as far as | was aware, this policy was meant to apply to both hackney carriage and
private hire vehicles that met the appropriate specification, therefore this policy needs amending to
remove the anomaly and give equal length of use to both sides of the trade.

Chapter 13: CCTV Provision in Vehicles

CCTV in vehicles, not just those used in our trade, appears to be a very useful tool in helping the
police and insurance companies in deciding who is at fault in road traffic accidents and can also be a
deterrent to the driver being subject to abuse or robbery. |, therefore, fully endorse the use of these.

Thanking for taking the time to read this.
Yours sincerely
Barrie Holmes

Hackney Carriage plate number 68

Page 268



Mrs Carolvn Holmes

Mobile No ( Email ¢ T

FAO Licensing Manager
Portsmouth City Council

Dear Nicki
Draft Statement of Licensing Policy

As a hackney carriage proprietor for more than 40 years | feel that it is necessary to put forward my
views regarding this draft statement.

| have only made comments on the issues that | feel are contentious, so it can be accepted that any
other items that are recommended are acceptable.

Chapter 4: Hackney Carriage Demand and Quantity Control

When | started in the trade there were 85 hackney carriage plates in Portsmouth and | have seen
this increase, over the years, until it peaked at 234 plates in 1990 which created a mixed fleet of
saloon cars, estate cars and multi seater and/or Wheelchair accessible vehicles.

Having been working in a Taxi Office for over 25 years and answering phones calls from the general
public | am asked far more frequently for a saloon style taxi rather than “one of those big things as |
can’t get in them dearie!” so a mixed fleet is most definitely the best way to provide the best service
to the people of Portsmouth.

The work for hackney carriages has been consistently falling over the last decade or so for various
reasons:

¢ Due to the economic climate over the past few years, most people have had to cut back on
luxuries and taxis are one of these.

e A massive increase in the use of mobile phones over the last twenty or so years, which has
detracted from the amount of work for hackney carriages. Why walk along a road in the
wind and rain when you can phone for a taxi to pick you up from where ever you may be?

The decline in work is evidenced by the amount of taxis that are queuing on the ranks, both night
and day, and sitting there for up to, and sometimes longer, than an hour.

Many more hackney carriages are attached to radio circuits, mainly Aqua Cars and Citywide, as they
need to supplement their income from the ranks.

Quantity does not always equate to quality!

| would therefore request that serious consideration be given to Option 1 —to retain the existing
numeric limit and instruct a suitably qualified independent transport consultant to carry out a survey
to assess if there is any significant unmet demand, taking in to consideration certain factors such as
peaked demand.

Such survey costs to be funded by the trade as a one off payment.

Page 269



Chapter 6: Trade Representatives and Consultation

It is noted that the recommendation is to vary the Terms of Reference to reduce the meetings of the
trade representatives to one a year.

| would suggest that the current policy of two meetings per year be retained, but with the proviso
that, if neither side have any relevant items to discuss, one meeting per year may be cancelled.

Chapter 7: Duration of Licences

Provided there is an option to purchase a one year licence, if the applicant so wishes, and the cost of
a three year licence is a reduction on that of three separate years licence to reflect the reduction in
the administration of the licence then this is an acceptable recommendation.

It is also a sensible proposal to have DBS checks brought into line with renewal dates, although some
drivers may argue that this is adding a further burden on their finances with having to find the extra
cost at the time of renewal.

Chapter 8: The Test of “Fit and Proper”

Drug Testing — Agree with proposals, mandatory tri-annual check, with random testing at the
discretion of the licensing staff.

Medical Fitness — Agree with proposals, applicant/current driver must use his/her own GP as they
have access to that person’s medical records.

Minimum Entry Age — Whilst 25 is a reasonable age for a person to become a licensed driver there is
very little reason to change this policy as few drivers start under this age due to the almost
prohibitive cost of insurance for young drivers.

Immigration — All necessary steps must be taken to ensure that the applicant has permission to work
in this country, it was noted that the badge holders National Insurance Number has been included
on the application form and this can only be a good thing, provided it is checked as valid, as no
National Insurance Number means no right to work in this country.

Driver Training — A reasonable standard of the English Language is essential, but it should also be
taken into consideration that, not only must the applicant be able to speak it, the listener must be
able to understand them.

Driving Assessment Training — This could become mandatory for new applicants, with existing drivers
being asked to complete a course if it is apparent that there are problems or persistent complaints
over their driving.

Knowledge Test — Agreed that all applicants should take this test. If an applicant needs to resit the
test for what so ever reason then it should not be the same test paper as previously sat. As far as |
am aware no other exams would allow this.

Disability Awareness Training — If this becomes mandatory, it would be difficult to differentiate
between a test for a saloon car driver and those of wheelchair accessible vehicles as a driver may
originally be driving a saloon car and then, for whatever reason, change to drive for another
proprietor that has a wheelchair accessible vehicle.

Page 270



Chapter 9: Rehabilitation of Offenders

Whilst | understand that many applicants may have committed offences in the past and may now be
perfectly acceptable in many professions, including ours, there should be reservations against those
that have committed sex offences and/or are on the Sex Offenders Register and should not be
allowed to hold a badge for a period of at least 10 years after their conviction is spent.

Chapter 10: Vehicle Specification Requirements

Vehicle Specification requirements — Paragraph 4.5 states “The council may change, substitute or
vary vehicle specification guidelines at any time”. This should be done in consultation with the Trade
Representatives to ensure that all proprietors, both hackney carriage and private hire, are aware of
the proposed changes and any cost implications that may arise.

Corporate Livery — There was a standard livery decided on in the 2001 Options for Change and | have
noticed, particularly over recent months, that variations to this have started to creep in with newer
company’s logos being larger than was originally agreed or the use of magnetic door stickers which
have not been allowed in the past, it is also noticed that there are some hackney carriages driving
around with smaller top signs than the agreed specification. Therefore | respectfully request that any
change to Corporate Livery is adhered to by both aspects of the trade and that Licensing Officers
ensure that this is done.

Residency — Paragraph 4.3 states “As a prerequisite, the council would expect that the proprietor of
any hackney carriage should either reside in Portsmouth or within five miles of the boundary or, ifa
company, have an operating base or registered office within Portsmouth”, surely this should also
apply to a proprietor of a private hire vehicle as well?

Chapter 11: Vehicle Testing Requirements

It is very disappointing to note that 55% of vehicle inspections failed due to Lighting Equipment but
not unexpected to find that 85% of vehicles over 9 years of age failed, there is very little difference
between hackney carriage and private hire failure rates.

Paragraph 4 recommends that all vehicles over 3 years old be subject to a minimum of 2 vehicle
inspections during the year. | would like to propose that this should only apply if the vehicle has
failed its annual test.

Paragraph 5 recommends that all licensed vehicles over 5 years old be subject to a minimum of 2 full
vehicle inspections, this can be considered a good thing but is placing yet another financial burden
on the proprietor of the vehicle, however if this is used in conjunction with recommendation 2,
Chapter 12, where the vehicle can remain licensed for 8 years and committee minute 37/1991 is
abolished, this would imply that there will no longer be a charge for vehicles on extension as this will
not be applicable.

Both of our neighbouring councils of Fareham and Havant have a “no maximum age” policy provided
the vehicle meets the mechanical and visual tests. Portsmouth already has one of the most stringent
policies in our locale.

Fire Extinguishers — It is already a requirement to carry a working fire extinguisher, however it is not
possible to test these as that would render them unusable, which generally carry diagrammatical
instructions as to how to use them.

Replacement bulb and fuse kit — although | agree that it is a good idea to carry these, how many
drivers are actually competent enough to change them?

Page 271



Chapter 12: Vehicle Age Limits

Recommendation 2 states that all vehicles shall be under 1 year of age at first licensing. This is a very
harsh recommendation and places major financial burdens on all proprietors.

Over the years the maximum age for licensing a vehicle has risen over the years from under 3 years
on first presentation to under 6 years of age, which means that the vehicle may have a very short
“shelf life” before going on extension.

It would be more acceptable to revert to the older policy of allowing cars under 3 years old to be
licensed and to be able to remain licensed until 8 years of age, subject to meeting the required
testing and exemptions for certain types of vehicles. Any changes should allow time for a proprietor
to adjust to the change and not brought in immediately.

Age Limits for Wheelchair Accessible Vehicles — There appears to be an anomaly between Hackney
Carriage and Private Hire vehicles here. | was one of the trade representatives at the time of Options
for Change in 2001 and it was agreed that, as there were a lot of new style wheelchair vehicles being
introduced to the market, that only (at the time) PCCO approved vehicles would be licensed for a
maximum of 12 years and all other vehicles would only be licensed for a maximum of 8 years.
However, due to some confusion, the agreed minute reduced all vehicles to a maximum of 8 years.
This minute was subsequently amended in 2006 and increased all wheelchair accessible vehicles
maximum life to 12 years.

At that time, as far as | was aware, this policy was meant to apply to both hackney carriage and
private hire vehicles that met the appropriate specification, therefore this policy needs amending to
remove the anomaly and give equal length of use to both sides of the trade.

Chapter 13: CCTV Provision in Vehicles

CCTV in vehicles, not just those used in our trade, appears to be a very useful tool in helping the
police and insurance companies in deciding who is at fault in road traffic accidents and can also be a
deterrent to any miscreants inside the vehicle. |, therefore, fully endorse the use of these.

Thanking for taking the time to read this.

Yours sincerely

Carolyn Holmes

Hackney Carriage plate number 18

Page 272



Lee, Ross

From: khaledi

Sent: 05 February 2016 L/:0U

To: Licensing Shared Email

Cc: .
Subject: About licensing draft policy

Dear Sir/Madam,

| have been working in the taxi industry under Portsmouth City Council for over 15 years now.

As the market for our service grows, it only seems to get harder to make a reasonable
earning. Since 2010 the council had suggested that taxi drivers push this cost onto the
consumer by raising fare prices. Not only would this have incredibly dissatisfied our
customers but almost definitely decrease the demand for the service we provide. How
can the council expect us to increasing expenses and deal with decreasing demand?
We, the people who live and work in Portsmouth entirely depend on our jobs to provide
for ourselves, our families and our community. We have tried our best as of yet to do
our part by refusing your request to increase fare.

After viewing the new suggested licensing policy draft i have the following suggestions:
Numerical control of Hackney carriages

Issuing more plates will only overcrowd current taxi ranks. Licensing is aware that over-
rankings are taking places around the city, lack of business elsewhere. | do not own a
plated vehicle, | drive for someone else, but still i am opposing the issuing of more plates. If
you do that, it will completely destroy the Hackney trade which is at the brink at the
moment.

Vehicle age

Age of the vehicle should remain the same as what it is now. The suggested change would be far
too much of a financial burden on the Hackney carriage owner. Also as a comparison to
Southampton our closest city and a similar population, they have no age restriction on the vehicle.

Hackney carriage stands (ranks)
We would like to propose the following:

-New taxi rank in Tesco's Fratton way

-Introduction of feeder rank to Gunwharf taxi rank (propose) park road
-Extend Albert road taxi rank at night time after 10pm

-Modification of liquid/envy taxi rank as we are not visible to passengers

Page 273



Vehicle testing requirements

| think that the vehicle testing requirements should remain the same as they are
already very thorough and stringent, making them safe and reliable. Any further
changes will just cause more financial burden on the driver, as it seems that the council
wants to just increase the cost of providing a taxi service without considering the
consequences.

Mandatory CCTV

The issue of providing cctv cameras should remain optional to the driver and if he
wishes to take part in this project then he/she can. It should not be compulsory.

On behalf of the people | speak for, we think the council must review this request they
have given us,

Lastly | just want to touch upon the matter of trust. | think we must work to retain the trust between
the council and the community. This is very important to us because you are the people who
represent us and our city and it is importance, that we can place trust into your hands to make the
right decisions, not just for yourselves but for everyone. | hope the council can take the contents of
this letter into consideration and make the right decisions for everyone.

Thank you for taking the time to consider this.
Kind Regards
Khaled Nazrul Islam

PCC Hackney Carriage Driver
Badge No 172

Page 274



uth Cj, X

Y o
Rasih i
€cCeived 2

- 5 FEB 2015

o
RS
=

Stuart Hogg

Dave Johnson
Paul Weeks

PDS Autos Limited

Please find below my opinions with regard to some of the issues outlined
within the draft statement of licensing policy.

Chapter 4 Hackney Carriages- demand and quantity control

Section 1.1 refers to “hackney carriage plates (which remain the property
of the council) changing hands for tens of thousands of pounds”.

This statement indicates that the committee is under the impression that a
physical entity owned by the council is being underhandedly sold. The reality
is that the proprietorship of the licence is being transferred for a sum of
money, enabling the purchaser to operate a taxi independently as a stand-
alone business not reliant on big business to provide the operators umbrella
radio network. This saves the independent operator upwards of £5,000 per
annum in radio fees and frees him of the regulatory yolk of the company rules.

An increase in the number of hackney carriage vehicle licences would affect
this practice in one of two ways:

If and it is a big IF the increase had no detrimental effect on the
amount of public hire work therefore income available, then the status quo
would continue, with the independent philosophy still carrying an inherent
value.

The more likely scenario being the elimination of the independent
operator completely due to the increased number of vehicles reducing the
available public hire work and income to a low level forcing all licensees into
the hands of the private hire firms as without the use of a radio network the
business would be un-viable.

The statement says “issuing further licences could allow new blood to
enter the trade and thus increasing the freedom of choice for the
travelling public”

This statement gives the impression that ‘new blood’ is somehow being
denied access to the trade which is fundamentally untrue, as a quick check
around the various ranks would show a glut of available hackney drives for
any ‘new blood’ to enter the trade in. New drivers have never entered the
trade as proprietors first as a policy of checking the trade out has always been

Page 275




prevalent and the current climate being as it is existing proprietors are hiring
drivers to rent their vehicle on an opposite shift to make ends meet.

An increase in numbers would in no way facilitate an increase in the freedom
of choice of the public as it offers nothing different just more of the same. A
fare paying customer can only travel in one vehicle of which there are many
available night and day at this time.

Section 3.0 Best Practice Guidance on quantity restriction, when referring to
the conduct of the survey states that key points are:

“the length of time that would-be customers have to wait at ranks”

Providing the times and location of the ranks concerned are relevant this is
an indicator of unmet demand but if the evidence of the drunk man waiting at
the public rank outside of Cosham station at 04.00 is considered it can skew
findings heavily as in that case | would suggest his wait would be
considerable.

“waiting times for street hailing’s and for telephone bookings”

This is no longer a relevant consideration as with the advent of mobile
telephones street hailing has practically ceased. Waiting times for telephone
bookings are a consideration for the Private Hire side of the trade and not
relevant to hackney carriage numbers as public hire availability is an instant
consideration.

“latent demand”

This is an arbitrary consideration as it relies on anecdotal information given by
‘people who do not use taxis’. The old adage that it is almost impossible to
prove a negative holds in this regard.

“peaked demand”

This is a fair consideration when assessing unmet demand but overall
commercial considerations must be taken into account. It is not economically
possible to operate a taxi based on ‘rush hour’ trade only and a long working
day is necessary to achieve a working wage. An excess of vehicles caused by
consideration of ‘rush hour’ unmet demand would overload ranks and streets
at non peak times making the commercial viability of the trade obsolete. It
should also be noted that other forms of public transport do not overload the
available vehicles on any given route highlighted by the amount of
passengers left at bus stops and with standing room only available on trains
at ‘rush hour’.

Page 276



“consultation”

Limited credence should be given to train operators as their desire to see their
passengers onward journeys running smoothly are nothing other than
commercial as indicated by the selling of station passes for taxis to rank at
their sites.

Equally consideration of other groups should only be considered where the
opinions expressed relate to public hire and NOT to evidence of waiting in
regard to private hire bookings.

“publication”

This speaks for itself.

“financing of surveys”

This speaks for itself.

Section 5.3 states “nevertheless, it is accepted that the taxi fleet would
increase”

It is my contention that the increase in the taxi fleet would reduce drastically if
not totally the number of independent operators as all proprietors would
require the use of a private hire radio network. This would drastically reduce
the number of taxis at any given rank as they would be doing private hire work
not public hire.

Section 5.4 states “the advantages of removing numeric restrictions
would allow the market to operate freely with no barriers and promotes
1 Benefits to customers

2 Reducing waiting times

3 Creating more customer choice

4 Stops a culture of creating a premium for taxi licenses with a resultant
buying and selling scenario”

| believe the opposite to be true in all of the above bar the last one. | fail to
see how the driving of the hackney carriage fleet into the arms of the private
hire firms’ benefits customers in any way as | believe waiting times at ranks
would increase due to the diminished numbers of vehicles using them
creating less customer choice not more. If it is the committee’s intention to
eliminate the independent hackney carriage operator then an increase would
promote point 4 above.

Section 5.0 The Way Ahead talks of ‘quality control measures’ as previously
imposed after the previous de-regulation. Whilst the requirement for new
issues to be wheelchair accessible is entirely agreeable it is surely time for

Page 277




rear loading wheelchair accessible vehicles to be allowed in the Portsmouth
area.

In chapter 1 7.3 the document refers to “up to 90,000 inbound vehicle
movements are recorded in any one 24hour period and previous census
data indicates 397 vehicles per 1000 people in Portsmouth” and that
“traffic growth is predicted to generally rise between 19% and 55% by
2040”

Within the city already it is very difficult to find safe kerbside parking in a
maijority of streets. To allow disabled passengers who need the vehicle ramps
to disembark from a taxi drivers are having to drop passengers further away
from their destination than they would like and often on street corners causing
obstructions in the process. Rear loading wheelchair access would allow the
passengers to disembark at their required destination safely and although a
temporary obstruction would be caused by the vehicle it would be of a far
safer nature than that which exists at present. In most cases when a customer
hires a wheelchair taxi at a rank at present the driver has to move his vehicle
to facilitate the loading of the wheelchair, so having to move to clear the rear
of a rear loading vehicle would be no different. This problem is only going to
increase in magnitude with the expected traffic/ vehicle ownership increases
in the future.

Chapter 5 Hackney Carriage Stands.

| believe a complete review of taxi ranks and their suitability is required.

Chapter 6 trade representatives and consultation.

| don’t believe that the Licensing officer should appoint and remove trade
representatives. Who represents the trade should be for the trade to decide
and the committee to appoint.

Chapter 7 Duration of licences.
| agree

Chapter 8 The test of ‘fit and proper’.

The licensing committee are the best people to decide on this with regard to
all the facts.

Section 3.0 Best Practice Guidelines 3.6 age limits states “applicants should
be assessed on their merits” | don'’t believe setting an age limit of min 25
years is necessary. Some 24 year olds are home owning family people who
could have 7 years driving experience. The insurance companies will insure
under 25 in some cases and | think licensing should do likewise. Age should
not be a governing restriction.

Page 278



Chapter 9 Rehabilitation of Offenders

The licensing committee are the best people to decide on this with regard to
all the facts.

Chapter 10 Vehicle specification requirements.

2.0 Best Practice Guidance states “normally, the best practice is for local
licensing authorities to adopt the principle of specifying as many
different types of vehicle as possible. Indeed, local authorities might
usefully set down a range of general criteria, leaving it open to the taxi
and PHV trades to put forward vehicles of their own choice which can be
shown to meet those criteria. In that way there can be flexibility for new
vehicle types to be readily taken into account” and section 3.0 states “the
committee agrees with the general views expressed in the best practice
guidance and, in particular, with the sentiments shown in bold”

It is surely time for rear loading wheelchair accessible vehicles to be licensed
in Portsmouth.

Chapter 11 Vehicle testing requirements.

Section 3.0 refers to the licensing authority holding a “Certificate of
Exemption” with regard to licensed vehicles. The DVLA are moving towards
road tax renewals being carried out online or by direct debit neither of which
are available to the trade without MOT certificates. At present road tax can be
renewed at Post Office but in the event of this ceasing, which is the ultimate
intention of this policy, where will this leave trade members and what is being
done to address it.

Section 6.1 shows vehicle test results for the calendar year 2014 to be PHV
61.75% failure and HCV 66.5% and subsequently shows a breakdown by
vehicle age.

Section 6.3 then shows the results after in depth analysis listing 55% of all
failures being lighting and 11% driver’s view of the road. As these types of
failure are in no way age dependant | believe they skew the evidence when
assessing vehicle age suitability. Most lighting failures | would suggest are
headlight alignment as this is not done at most back street garages and
driver’s view failures are satnav, air freshener etc. When removed from failure
numbers PHV 20.6% and HCV 22.2% failure rate for items that are more age
related is not so damning.

The increased testing requirements are to be welcomed with two full tests
being in my opinion the requirement for vehicles over 3 years old. A double
manned car from new is likely to have 150,000miles by its third anniversary.

Page 279



Chapter 12 Vehicle age limits.

This chapter recommends first licensing of vehicles under 1 year old. | believe
this to be unfair as it effectively is a policy of brand new cars only and if that is
the intention it should say so. Available vehicles UNDER 1 year old are almost
non-existent as most are renewed on the registration mark anniversary which
makes them 1 year old when they are traded in so with the exception of
demonstrator models almost no vehicles are available. The test failure data
with regard to age is flawed as outlined above and due regard to the councils
own Transport Fleet Manager’s opinion should be given. Chapter 11 6.8
“maintaining a vehicle is of great importance. A well maintained older
vehicle will undoubtedly be less harmful to the environment than a badly
maintained newer vehicle, particularly in high mileage/inner city journey
cycles”

Although | agree that newer vehicles will undoubtedly provide better figures at
the outset less emphasis on age and more emphasis on maintenance should
be made. All new vehicles come with a 3 year/ 100,000 mile manufacturer’s
warranty which almost guarantees compliance with manufacturer’s
maintenance guidelines. The Ministry of Transport deem a vehicle to be
mechanically sound for its first 3 years and not to require an MOT irrespective
of its mileage therefore any vehicle up to 3 years old is generally sound and |
believe should be considered for first licensing.

The recommendation for temporary vehicle licence applications in respect to a
vehicle under 1 year old is | believe sound, as they are supplied by the claims
management companies at a huge cost to insurers and should be new or
nearly new vehicles.

Chapter 13 CCTV provision in vehicles.

| agree.

With regard to all other chapters there is nothing on which | wish to voice an
opinion.

Thank you for the opportunity to comment on the proposals in the draft
statement of licensing policy.

Stuart Hogg David Johnson Paul Weeks

Page 280




Local 18

Government
Association

Taxi and
PHV Licensing

Councillors’ Handbook
(England and Wales)

Handbook



Page 282



Foreword

Taxis and Private Hire Vehicles (PHVs) are vital to our communities; whether it's the iconic
black cab in our cities or the flexible minicab in a rural district. As elected members, we are
responsible for ensuring the public travel safely and receive a good level of service, and that
our systems attract good, reputable drivers.

Our critical responsibilities in licensing these drivers and vehicles have been highlighted by
recent examples of licensed vehicle drivers and or operators being involved in the sexual
exploitation of children. Taxis are regularly used to transport children during the school run.
Elderly and disabled users also rely heavily on the door-to-door service taxis and PHVs
provide, as it is often the only way for many residents to access local services. Clearly, drivers
must therefore command the highest level of confidence before they can be entrusted with
this responsibility. It is essential that we take seriously our responsibility to determine whether
someone is a ‘fit and proper’ person to hold a licence.

There are economic benefits too in enabling visitors to move quickly and safely through your
area. Taxis and PHVs have a particularly important role in the night-time economy, ensuring
the public return home safely, and can be helpful in ensuring that people disperse quickly and
peacefully after events.

Unfortunately, the existing licensing system is outdated and needs urgent reform. One of the
main pieces of legislation dates from 1847, which means it predates even the earliest motor
vehicles, let alone online and mobile booking apps. The LGA is lobbying for a Taxi and PHV
Licensing Reform Bill which will modernise the governance system for taxis and PHVs and
better protect passengers from the many and varied risks which now exist. Until then, it is
incumbent on us to do the best we can with the tools at our disposal.

We have developed this handbook to help you use these tools and understand some of the
key issues concerning taxi and PHV licensing. It is intended to be used as a starting point to
explain some of the difficulties that can arise in this complex area of business regulation, but
of course is not a replacement for training provided by your own authority.

We hope you find it useful.

Councillor Tony Page
LGA Licensing Champion, Safer and Stronger Communities Board

r L g

P
Taxi and PHV Licenising — Councillors’ Handbook (England and Wales) 3



Page 284



Contents

The regulatory framework for taxis and PHVs 06
Role of councillors 10
The ‘fit and proper’ person test 14
Public protection and enforcement 19
Special considerations 33
Checklist for councillors 37
Glossary 39

L g

Fa
Taxi and PHV Licen%ng — Councillors’ Handbook (England and Wales) 5



The regulatory framework
for taxis and PHVs —
an overview

Terminology

Taxis are referred to in legislation, regulation and common language as ‘hackney carriages’,
‘black cabs’ and ‘cabs’. The term ‘taxi’ is used throughout this handbook and refers to all
such vehicles.

Private hire vehicles (PHVs) include a range of vehicles such as minicabs, executive cars,
limousines and chauffeur services. The term ‘PHV’ is used throughout this handbook to refer
to all such vehicles.

Councils are only responsible for the licensing of vehicles which carry up to a maximum

of eight passengers. Vehicles with a seating capacity of more than eight passenger seats,
which can include some stretch limousines, are licensed by the Traffic Commissioners, who
are appointed by the Transport Secretary.

Legislation

Taxi and Private Hire Vehicle (PHV) legislation is primarily concentrated in the Town Police
Clauses Act 1847 (the 1847 Act) and the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act
1976 (the 1976 Act). The legislation provides a broad framework for the licensing of drivers,
vehicles and operators but the detail of how this is done, including standards and conditions,
is the responsibility of individual councils. There are a number of other Acts which also have
an impact; for example the Equalities Act 2010, which enables regulations to improve disabled
access 1o taxis.

This mix of legislation is widely regarded as outdated and in 2014 the Law Commission
published the results of a three year study into consolidating and updating the laws governing
both taxis and PHVs into a single piece of legislation.” The Government has yet to respond to
the report, although two clauses were brought forward early in the Deregulation Bill 20152, A
third clause, permitting anyone to drive a licensed vehicle when it was ‘off-duty’ was removed
after lobbying from the LGA and other stakeholders.

The LGA, in consultation with our member councils, does not fully agree with all the Law
Commission’s proposals, but feel that it does provide a sound basis for the reform that is very
urgently needed. The LGA will therefore be lobbying for a Taxi and PHV Licensing Reform Bill
to be brought forward in the next Parliament.

1 The full report can be found on the Law Commission’s website: http://lawcommission.justice.gov.uk/areas/taxi-and-private-hire-
services.htm

2 This Bill had not received Royal Assent at the time of writing, but is expected to successfully complete its passage through
Parliament in early 2015. It will enter legislation as the Deregulation Act 2015, and references to it in the Handbook should be
read as such once that has happened.

| L | Page 286
6 Taxi and PHV Licensing — Councillors’ Handbook (England and Wales)


http://lawcommission.justice.gov.uk/areas/taxi-and-private-hire-services.htm
http://lawcommission.justice.gov.uk/areas/taxi-and-private-hire-services.htm

Facts and figures:

In England and Wales, there were around 78,000 taxis and 153,000 PHVs licensed as at the
end of March 2013.

There are an estimated 297,000 licensed taxi and PHV drivers in England and Wales.

Taxis and PHVs together account for just over one per cent of all trip stages per person per
year in Great Britain. This is about 600 million trip stages or around 3 million miles a year.

An estimated 58 per cent of all taxis are wheelchair accessible in England and Wales.

Differences between taxis and PHVs

One of the key differences between the vehicles is that a PHV, unlike a taxi, cannot ply for hire,
which means that all journeys must be pre-booked in advance through a licensed operator.

It is an offence for PHVs to pick up passengers from any location unless pre-booked. Local
councils can, if they wish, also regulate the fares charged by taxis, whereas there is no power
to do so with PHVs.

Taxi Private Hire

Ply for hire

Pre booked

Operating from a rank

Fare meter required

Fare tariff set by council
Number of vehicles may be
restricted by councils

Taxis require two types of licence: Hackney carriage proprietors
(vehicle) licence

Hackney carriage drivers

X X X X X

licence
The provision of a private hire service requires three Private hire operators licence
types of licence: Private vehicle licence

Private hire drivers licence

Council role in taxi and PHV licensing in England
and Wales

Taxi and PHV licensing in England and Wales is undertaken by district and unitary councils
(‘licensing authorities’), which have the responsibility for ensuring the public travel in safe, well
maintained vehicles driven by competent drivers, as well as providing a fair and reasonable
service for the taxi and PHV trade.

In London, taxi and PHV licensing is the responsibility of Transport for London and delivered
by London Taxi and Private Hire, which is accountable to the Mayor of London and responsible
for delivering the Mayor’s Transport Strategy. Local councils in London have no direct role in
licensing taxis and PHVs.

L g

P
Taxi and PHV Licen%ing — Councillors’ Handbook (England and Wales) 7



To deliver their responsibilities, councils’ core functions in taxi and PHV licensing can be
summarised as:

* setting the local framework, which can include fares, vehicles standards or limits on vehicle
numbers

+ considering applications and issuing, reviewing or revoking licences
» undertaking inspection and enforcement activities.

Taxi and private hire licensing may be undertaken within a single department but usually sits
within one of the council’s regulatory services such as environmental health or legal services. It
is often also combined with other licensing functions.

In providing the licensing function, the council, under the provisions of the 1976 Act, is entitled
to levy fees to recover the reasonable cost associated with:

» the administration and issue of licences

+ the inspection of vehicles for the purposes of determining whether any such licence should
be granted or renewed

+ the provision of hackney carriage stands and administrative or other costs in connection with
the control and supervision of hackney carriage and private hire vehicles.

With the exception of drivers’ licences, the council is required to consult upon the fees it
intends to levy through a public notice procedure. In determining the fees to be charged it
would be reasonable to do so with a view to achieving full cost recovery.

Licensing income from these schemes must therefore be ‘ring-fenced’ in that licensing fees
and charges cannot be spent on other areas of council activity — even other areas of licensing
business. It is important to ensure that applicants and licensees receive value for money. As

a councillor you should ensure that your authority’s budgets can stand up to scrutiny by the
District Auditor and under the Freedom of Information Act, which has been increasingly used in
recent years by licensees and trade associations.

There are no statutory timescales or performance measures for taxi/PHV licensing, unlike
some other licensing regimes. However many councils use internal targets to measure the
service being provided to customers. A periodic review of the licensing service’s processes
and procedures can help to improve this. One council, for instance, subjected its licensing
procedures to a LEAN business review and succeeded in reducing the time taken to process
vehicle licences from 45 days to just one day.

Department for Transport’s role (DfT)

DfT’s role is that of regulatory ownership and maintenance of the regulatory framework for
taxis and private hire vehicles. The DfT provides non-statutory guidance to local councils as
to how to discharge their duties under the regulatory framework. The Department collects
and publishes statistics on a regular basis and produces guidance to assist local councils in
carrying out their taxi and PHV licensing functions. The guidance is considered to be ‘best
practice’ and addresses a number of issues where inconsistency of approach exists in taxi
and private hire licensing in England and Wales.

| L | Page 288
8 Taxi and PHV Licensing — Councillors’ Handbook (England and Wales)



Strengths and weaknesses of the current system

Councils have a wide-range of powers that can be used to regulate taxis and PHVs, protecting
the public and supporting local economies; but there are also some anomalies within the
existing system.

Local councils have the power to attach conditions to taxis, PHVs, and the licences of PHV
drivers, but not the licences of taxi drivers. They can also influence the local context in which
vehicles operate, and a range of licensing policies have been developed to do this by councils,
but they vary from relatively relaxed to very strict regimes. Many councils have also adopted
local bylaws under the 1976 Act that regulate driver conduct, which can helpfully provide some
of the otherwise missing influence over the conduct of taxi drivers.

However, over time this has created differing standards with little co-ordination within regions
or nationally. The result is varying standards of service for passengers, particularly disabled

users; confusion for taxi and PHV businesses; some types of vehicles operating unregulated;
and taxis working in areas in which they are not licensed to do so. This is far from ideal.

Nonetheless, taken together these policies and bylaws offer a reasonable standard of
influence when it comes to assessing applications to the licensing committee. The situation for
enforcement activities is much less positive.

» First and foremost, councils have no ability to stop vehicles, which leaves them only able
to intervene when a vehicle is stopped, and unable to do anything if it drives off — only the
police may stop a vehicle.

« Secondly, a council may only take action against a vehicle or driver that it has licensed,
meaning that there is absolutely nothing that a council can do if a vehicle or driver licensed
elsewhere is operating in their area.

This is why the issue of cross-border hiring is perhaps the most acute problem facing many
councils today. In one recent example, a driver applied to a council for a licence only to be
refused after the police presented concerns to the licensing committee; the driver then applied
to the neighbouring council, which was given the same information by the police but chose to
licence the driver. The driver now operates in the first council’s area and there is nothing they
can do to stop it.

This poses a risk to communities everywhere, as well as the reputation of local
government as a whole. Every council should be mindful of its opportunities to protect
communities outside of its immediate responsibility.

The best councils will meet or communicate regularly with licensing committees and officers in
neighbouring councils to ensure critical information is shared and that there is a consistency
and robustness in decision-making. By working together, local government can make sure that
this vital service is safe, respected, and delivering for local communities.

The following sections of this handbook set out guidance on how councils can deliver the best
possible licensing regulation.

L g

P
Taxi and PHV Licenising — Councillors’ Handbook (England and Wales) 9



Role of councillors

Councillors and the council’s regulatory/licensing
committee

Councils will usually operate with a regulatory/licensing committee which may be made up of
non-executive/cabinet councillors, and sub-committees made up of councillors of the parent
committee. Apart from setting taxi fares and ranks, taxi/PHV licensing is a ‘council’ and not an
‘executive’ function.

The role of the parent committee is to consider and propose policy, including setting the overall
approach of the council, conditions and standards for vehicles and drivers.

There is no requirement to create a single licensing statement or policy for taxi and PHV
licensing in the way that there is for the Licensing Act 2003 and Gambling Act 2005. However,
the LGA strongly encourages licensing authorities to create a unified policy that brings together
all their procedures in one place; this could include policies on convictions, determining the ‘fit
and proper’ person test, licence conditions, and vehicle standards.

Creating a single, unified policy that is reviewed on a regular basis will provide clarity for
drivers and operators, as well as strengthening the council’s position if there is a challenge
against a decision in court.

For the purposes of simplicity, the rest of this document will refer to a single licensing
statement, even though a licensing authority may choose to retain separate policy documents.

It is important to take account of the views of the trade and of customers, as well as other
stakeholders, when establishing policy in the same way that other areas of council business
are developed.

Decision-making in respect of individual cases, whether applications for licences or where
matters are brought to the attention of the council following the grant of a licence (for example
breach of conditions, convictions, driving endorsements etc), are often made by a regulatory/
licensing sub-committee. This sits as a quasi-judicial body and therefore must follow the rules
of natural justice — anyone affected by a decision has a right to be heard and no one should
be a judge in his own cause. All decisions should be made without ‘fear or favour’, however
difficult they may be.

Sub-committees have a range of options available to them including:

* in the case of licence applications, to grant a licence, with or without conditions
* in the case of licence applications, to refuse a licence

* in the case of existing licences where matters are brought to the council’s attention, to do
nothing

| L | Page 290
10 Taxi and PHV Licensing — Councillors’ Handbook (England and Wales)



- suspend a licence
- introduce conditions on a PHV driver’s licence
- revoke a licence.

Suspension can be particularly helpful in improving standards or addressing complaints. For
instance, a licence can be suspended until such time as the driver can undergo additional
driver training or receive other improvement support. However, you cannot suspend a licence
as an interim measure pending a final decision on a court case — it must always be used as a
final decision.

Councils may attach conditions to licences — either standard ones that apply to every licence
or specific ones bespoke for individual applicants. In either case the conditions must not:

» exceed the council’s powers set out in the controlling legislation (‘ultra vires’)
* be unreasonable or disproportionate

* be beyond the applicant’s powers to comply with

* be for an ulterior motive and

* must be clearly stated in order that they can be properly understood to be complied with
and enforced.

Decision-making may also be delegated to officers, and is an important tool where a
serious offence is committed and immediate revocation is needed. All councils should
consider having a delegation system in place for this contingency; the chief executive or
deputy is often nominated for this role.

Both applicants seeking new licences and the holders of existing licences will have the right
of appeal to the local magistrates’ or crown court if they are aggrieved by the decision of the
council. In all cases where a licence is suspended or revoked, reasons must be given for that
decision. Drivers must reach the standard of a ‘fit and proper’ person with each case being
dealt with on its own merits, normally with reference to an objective policy published by the
council. The overriding consideration is the safety of the public which may, in some cases,
outweigh the right of the applicant to hold or continue to hold a licence.

Training of councillors

No councillor should be permitted to sit on a committee or sub-committee without having
been formally trained. As a minimum, training should cover licensing procedures, natural
justice, understanding the risks of child sexual exploitation and disability awareness as
well as any additional issues deemed locally appropriate.

It is important that training does NOT simply relate to procedures, but also covers the making
of difficult and potentially controversial decisions, and the use of case study material can be
helpful to illustrate this.

All training should be formally recorded by the council and require a signature from the
councillor.

In addition to in-house training, there are a number of independent training providers,
including the professional bodies — the National Association of Enforcement and Licensing
Officers (NALEQO), and the Institute of Licensing (loL). The LGA has also made available a free
online module on regulatory services for all councillors to use http://Iga.learningpool.com

| rage 291
Taxi and PHV Licensing — Councillors’ Handbook (England and Wales) 11



Appearance of bias

While third party lobbying of elected members is legitimate and certain members may make
representations to the licensing committee on behalf of ‘interested parties’, it is crucial for the
licensing authority and its committee to ensure that there is neither actual nor an appearance
of bias in its decision-making. It should also be remembered that concerns about political
lobbying were the basis of the concerns which lead to the first Nolan Committee on Standards
in Public Life.

Section 25 of the Localism Act 2011 does not prevent members from publicly expressing a
view about an issue or giving the appearance of having a closed mind towards an issue on
which they are to adjudicate. However it is recommended that to avoid an appearance of bias
the following advice should be observed:

+ No member sitting on the licensing sub-committee can represent one of the interested
parties or the applicant. If s/he wishes to do so s’he must excuse him/herself from
membership of the sub-committee which is considering the application. Case law has
also established they should not be in the room for the hearing once an interest has been
declared.

* |If a member who sits on the licensing sub-committee is approached by persons wishing
to lobby him/her as regards the licence application then that member must politely explain
that they cannot discuss the matter and refer the lobbyist to his/her ward member or the
licensing officer who can explain the process of decision making. If the member who sits
on the licensing sub-committee wishes to represent them then s/he will need to excuse
him/herself from the licensing sub-committee.

* Members who are part of the licensing sub-committee must avoiding expressing personal
opinions prior to licensing sub-committee decision. To do so will indicate that the member
has made up his/her mind before hearing all the evidence and that their decision may not
be based upon the licensing objectives nor the statement of licensing policy.

 Political group meetings should never be used to decide how any members on the
licensing sub-committee should vote. The view of the Ombudsman is that using political
whips in this manner may well amount to findings of maladministration. It may be advisable
that the chair of the licensing sub-committee should state, during proceedings, that no
member of the sub-committee is bound by any party whip.

» Councillors must not be members of the licensing sub-committee if they are involved in
campaigning on the particular application.

+ Other members (ie those who do not sit on the licensing sub-committee) need to be careful
when discussing issues relating to matters which may come before the licensing sub-
committee members as this can easily be viewed as bias / pressure and may well open that
sub-committee member to accusations of such. While a full prohibition upon discussing such
issues with committee members by other members may be impractical and undemocratic,
local authorities are advised to produce local guidance for members on how such matters
can be dealt with.® Such guidance could include a definition of what is viewed as excessive
e.g. attempting to obtain a commitment as to how the member might vote.

3 “ltis undemocratic and impractical to try to prevent councillors from discussing applications with whomever they want; local
democracy depends on councillors being available to people who want to speak to them. The likely outcome of a prohibition
would be that lobbying would continue but in an underhand and covert way.” (Nolan Committee Report into Standards in Public
Life 285 p. 72)

, L | Page 292
12 Taxi and PHV Licensing — Councillors’ Handbook (England and Wales)



Members must also be aware of the need to declare any pecuniary or non-pecuniary
interests in matters that may come before them, whether these relate to policy issues or to
specific applications.

Members must not pressurise licensing officers to make any particular decisions or
recommendations as regards applications.

Member behaviour is also governed by the member’s code of conduct which you
should have regard to, and most authorities also have a member/officer protocol which
governs how members and officers should interact and the differences in their roles and
responsibilities.

Members should consult their monitoring officers for further advice where necessary.

L g Ly

P
Taxi and PHV Licenising — Councillors’ Handbook (England and Wales)

13



The ‘fit and proper’
person test*

Passengers should be at the centre of a licensing authority’s taxi licensing policies and
processes, and there is no area where this is more important than in the application of the
‘fit and proper person’ test.

A licensing authority must not grant a taxi or PHV driver’s licence unless it is satisfied that
the applicant is a fit and proper person to hold such a licence. This is very different to the
Licensing Act 2003 or Gambling Act 2005, where the presumption is to permit a licence
application.

A licensing authority is also entitled to suspend or revoke a taxi or PHV driver’s licence if there
is evidence to suggest that the individual is not a fit and proper person, and specifically®:

* if he has been convicted since the grant of the licence of an offence involving dishonesty,
violence or indecency

 for non-compliance with the licensing requirements of [the 1847 Act or the 1976 Act] and
related legislation, or

 for any other reasonable cause.

Properly applying the fit and proper person test is essential for ensuring a robust
licensing scheme that protects safety and commands the confidence of the general
public.

On receiving an application, councils should first make use of the Home Office’s free service
to check the applicant’s right to work. This ensures that applications are not heard where the
applicant has no legal right to work in the UK. Once this is established, an inquiry into an
applicant’s fitness to be licensed is likely to include enquiries into his health, local knowledge
and understanding of the responsibilities of a licensed driver. However, character is usually
investigated first.

Most councils have adopted a formal statement of policy about relevant convictions and how
this will determine whether an applicant is fit and proper. While each application must be
determined on its individual merits, the statement may set out a recommended minimum period
free of conviction for offences falling into broad categories to act as a guideline to licensing
committees.

The statements adopted by English and Welsh councils tend to be broadly similar and are
based on Government guidance issued in the early 1990s. The LGA is recommending that
all councils review their policies, and update them as required.

4 The text in this section draws heavily on an article by lan de Prez, Solicitor Advocate for Suffolk Coastal District Council, in Local
Government Lawyer magazine. We are grateful to Mr de Prez and Local Government Lawyer for their permission to reproduce
the points from the article.

5 S60(1)(a)(b)(c), Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976
The service can be contacted at EvidenceandEnquiry@homeoffice.gsi.gov.uk

, - , Page 294
14 Taxi and PHV Licensing — Councillors’ Handbook (England and Wales)


mailto:EvidenceandEnquiry@homeoffice.gsi.gov.uk

Convictions policy

It is important to set out how your sub-committee will view convictions, spent or otherwise, and
ideally include it as part of your consolidated taxi licensing policy. DfT has previously issued
advice on the period of time that should lapse between certain types of conviction and the
issue of a licence, but the most recent Best Practice Guidance in 2010 removed references

to this, so councils should feel empowered to make their own decisions. The old advice is
available, but councils should treat the recommendations as minimum standards.

The LGA has produced a sample policy which is available to assist officers in drafting this
crucial part of your approach to licensing taxis and PHVs. You should ensure this is not directly
replicated, but use it to inform your own discussions at your committee.

In particular, the LGA encourages councils to take a strong stance on indecency offences,
such as those relating to sexual assault or rape. While each case must be considered on

its own merits, the default position should be that if an applicant has a previous conviction for
these offences, a licence will not be issued.

It is important to remember that your decisions need not, and should not, be based
solely on convictions. Licensing committees are able to take into account soft intelligence
provided by the police and other partners. You are also able to take full account of the
applicant’s responses in the committee hearing. The evidential threshold for licensing
committees is based on the balance of probabilities, and not the ‘beyond reasonable doubt’
standard which is the criminal standard of proof for criminal trials.

In short, if you are 51 per cent certain that the applicant is not a fit and proper person then you
areable to, and should, refuse the licence. You could also take proportionate steps to further
test a candidate’s suitability by issuing a licence for a short period of time, such as a month,
before reviewing it, and issuing it for longer and longer periods of time as the applicant proves
they are a fit and proper person. However, the provisions of the Deregulation Bill 2015, which
create a presumption for licences to be issued for the full three years, means this approach
may only be justified in exceptional circumstances and not adopted as a routine practice.

Where you have refused a licence, or granted a licence subject to strict conditions or criteria,
or for a shorter period than three years, then you must set out these reasons in writing.
Applicants have a right of appeal to the magistrates’ court against those decisions and it
aids both applicants and the court to understand the nature of the decision being appealed
against.

If licensees are obliged under their licence to inform the local authority of their arrest or
conviction and they fail to do so (or where they fail to notify the police that they hold a licence),
this should be viewed particularly seriously as it prevents the local authority from taking that
information into account when protecting public safety. This is also a breach of condition and
can be actioned by the authority on that basis.

L g

P
Taxi and PHV Licenising — Councillors’ Handbook (England and Wales) 15



A licensing authority can take into account any spent conviction but of course must do so in

a fair and proportionate way, following the authority’s policy. It is still appropriate to note the
distinction between spent and unspent convictions when considering an application, and there
will be many cases in which a particular spent conviction is no longer relevant. Sometimes an
applicant/driver will assert that he was wrongly convicted, or only pleaded guilty to get it over
with, to shield a family member or to avoid the risk of a more severe sentence. However the
licensing authority should not go behind the existence of the conviction in an attempt to ‘re-try’
the case.’

Councils have a very broad discretion when refusing to grant a licence, providing the decision
is reasonable, proportionate and — ideally — in line with a published policy. If the decision
departs from the policy, then the council should state the reasons for this in writing to the
applicant.

A decision to revoke, suspend or refuse to renew a licence will engage the licensee’s rights
under the Human Rights Act 1998 (the 1998 Act) by providing a right to a fair hearing and a
right to an independent and impartial appeal tribunal (in this case the magistrates’ court). It
may also engage the licensee’s rights not be deprived of their underlying economic interests in
the licence unless that can be justified in the public interest and is proportionate.

There have been a number of challenges to decisions to suspend or revoke licences on the
basis that a licence is a personal piece of property, and therefore revocation infringes the
driver’s human rights. However, case law has established that a decision maker dealing with a
currently licensed driver should not regard the licence as a piece of property under the 1998
Act.®

When making decisions at both the application stage or in a disciplinary situation with
an existing driver, the sole deciding factor should be the safety of the travelling public.
Exceptional mitigation may be relevant to assessing the risk to the travelling public if it shows
that the driver/ applicant acted out of character, so that the misdemeanour is unlikely to be
repeated — but personal circumstances are not a factor to weigh in the balance against the
safety of passengers.

Anecdotal evidence suggests that some authorities have been reluctant to attach much weight
to non-conviction information, and in some instances have even doubted the propriety of
reporting it to members. However, there is no doubt that this information can be taken into
account and may sometimes be the sole basis for a refusal, a suspension or revocation.

When dealing with allegations rather than convictions and cautions, a decision maker must

not start with any assumptions about them. Allegations will have been disclosed because

they reasonably might be true, not because they definitely are true. It is good practice for the
decision makers with the help of their legal adviser to go through the contents of an enhanced
disclosure certificate with an applicant/driver and see what they say about it. If, as sometimes
happens in practice, admissions are made about the facts, that provides a firm basis for a
decision.

It will not be possible to give a comprehensive list of points that will be considered as part of

the fit and proper person test, but each council should set out in writing, preferably as part of
its licensing statement, an outline of how the council intends to approach these decisions and
what factors will carry the most weight.

7  Nottingham City Council v Farooq 1998 EWHC Admin 991
8 Cherwell DC v Anwar [2011] EWHC 2943 (Admin)

| L | Page 296
16 Taxi and PHV Licensing — Councillors’ Handbook (England and Wales)



PHV operator responsibilities

Taxi and PHV licensing is not an area where there is much scope for self-regulation, but
PHV operators do have a key role in ensuring that the drivers they employ are fit and proper
persons, and are properly trained in their roles.

Your policy should therefore cover the responsibility of PHV operators for ensuring that their
drivers are fit and proper persons; as part of the process of granting and monitoring an
operator licence, you may wish to require operators to demonstrate what steps they are taking
to ensure that their drivers are fit and proper persons, as well as appropriately trained.

This responsibility will be even more important when, and if, the Deregulation Bill receives
Royal Assent and operators are able to sub-contract bookings to other providers. There are
existing obligations on operators who seek to pass on a booking and the first operator will
always retain overall responsibility for its fulfilment. However, there is scope for councils to
enhance this responsibility by placing conditions on an operator’s licence to require them to
set out how they will handle sub-contracting and ensure consumer protection.

This is an area that has not yet been explored and, once the relevant legislation is passed,
offers a fertile ground for those innovative councils who wish to make full use of their powers
to protect their communities. We encourage councils to explore this, and to share their new
practice with the Local Government Association and other licensing authorities.

Monitoring complaints

All councils should have a robust system for recording complaints, including analysing trends
across the whole system as well as complaints against individual drivers. Drivers with a high
number of complaints made against them should be contacted by the council and concerns
raised with the driver and operator (if appropriate). Further action must be determined by
the council, which could include no further action, the offer of training, a formal review of the
licence, or formal enforcement action.

The licensing committee should review the complaints procedure and records on at least a
yearly basis, and always before a review of the licensing policy. The committee should also
have oversight of the council’s ‘mystery shopping’ and test purchasing checks on licensed
vehicles to ensure that the council is properly carrying out its enforcement responsibilities.

r

P
Taxi and PHV Licen%ing — Councillors’ Handbook (England and Wales) 17



Penalty points enforcement system: Rother District Council

When taxi and PHV drivers contravene conditions of their licence the only sanctions available
to members of taxi licensing committees is that of revocation or suspension. For minor
infringements, such as not displaying a name badge at all times, revocation or suspension
can be too harsh a punishment. Drivers who make an error in judgment on any given day,
with a previous unblemished career, may face all or nothing decisions by members if they
are reported to committee following a complaint from a member of the public.

Also once drivers are licensed there is limited information available to continually assess
whether they are fit and proper persons, and as such for members to have a clear view of
their past conduct when drivers are called to committee for hearings.

In light of this Rother District Council decided to develop a ‘penalty points enforcement
scheme’, where drivers can carry a fixed number of points for minor matters of misconduct
that would allow the driver to continue driving until such time as they either reached the level
set by members, or if officers decided that the nature of the complaint against a driver was
too serious to deal with under the scheme.

Rother found that on the whole the trade agreed that the process led to improvements in
behaviour, especially by those drivers who tend not to take their role as licensed drivers too
seriously. The trade appreciated that the scheme is transparent and clear, and removes any
ambiguity about whether officers or members felt that a matter was serious, or when the
driver thought it was very minor.

The penalty points enforcement scheme gives councillors a more influential role in the
licensing process, and it allows drivers to understand that members make the decisions on
fitness and propriety and not officers. However, it is worth noting that the accumulation of
points cannot automatically lead to a sanction and that the ‘fitness’ or otherwise of a licensee
has to be dealt with separately and in its own way.

Many other councils have introduced similar schemes and there has been a noticeable
improvement in both standards of behaviour and standards of compliance.

Scrutiny

Public scrutiny is an essential part of ensuring that government remains effective and
accountable, and this is especially true of quasi-judicial systems like licensing. Scrutiny
ensures that executives and committees are held accountable for their decisions, that their
decision-making process is clear and accessible to the public and that there are opportunities
for the public and their representatives to influence and improve public policy.

There are a number of aspects of taxi and PHV licensing that are suitable for a scrutiny
investigation, ranging from a review of the policy and framework, including how it contributes to
a wider transport policy, its success in delivering accessible transport for disabled users, or the
handling of complaints; to more specialist subjects such as the setting of fees, provision of taxi
ranks, or the age and maintenance of the fleet.

The Centre for Public Scrutiny® provides guidance on how to hold effective scrutiny, and also
has a number of case studies from councils that have already held scrutiny enquiries into their
taxi and PHV licensing systems.

9  http://www.cfps.org.uk

| L | Page 298
18 Taxi and PHV Licensing — Councillors’ Handbook (England and Wales)


http://www.cfps.org.uk/

Public protection
and enforcement

Partnership working

Effective partnership working between local licensing authorities, the Driver and Vehicle
Standards Agency (DVSA), police, other council services such as trading standards and
environmental health as well as the local trade is vital to ensuring effective taxi and PHV
regulation.

It is particularly important to join up enforcement operations with the police as taxi licensing
officers do not have powers to stop and search vehicles. Similarly, licensing officers may
only take action against drivers and vehicles that they have licensed, which is why the issue
of cross-border usage is so problematic (see below). You should ensure your council taxi
licensing officers meet regularly with their local police force and develop good relationships.

As a councillor, you are well placed to shape and influence how this crucial partnership
relationship between your council and other bodies works and develops. There are many areas
across England and Wales where these partnerships are working well.

It is particularly important to have effective intelligence sharing protocols in place with the local
police force. The police have powers to disclose information under common law, which enables
them to share information about relevant investigations with licensing teams even before an
arrest or conviction is made.

There has also been a formal ability to share information under the Notifiable Occupations
Scheme, but this has been challenged and is no longer used by many police forces. A
replacement is being developed, but in the meantime all licensing authorities should use their
local relationships to continue the flow of information. Councillors should seek the support of
their local police and crime commissioner if necessary.

r

P
Taxi and PHV Licenising — Councillors’ Handbook (England and Wales) 19



Sharing intelligence: Norfolk councils and Norfolk Constabulary
Safeguarding information sharing process

What is the issue?

Licences are issued by the local authority for a wide variety of purposes. For example, a
licence is required to drive either a licensed hackney or a private vehicle (a dual licence
allows a driver to drive a hackney carriage vehicle or private hire vehicle) and must work for
a licensed taxi operator. When a licence is refused, suspended or revoked by the licensing
authority or there are any other concerns raised which may be considered a safeguarding
issue it has been agreed that the licensing authority will notify the police for intelligence
pUrposes.

Why is this necessary?

Licence holders can operate in positions of trust and it is vital that any relevant information
about safeguarding issues is shared so that individuals are blocked from becoming taxi
operators or holding any other kind of licence in different council areas across the county/
country. Without effective information sharing, there is a real risk of unsuitable people being
granted licences to operate which puts people at risk.

How will this work?

When a licence is refused/suspended/revoked due to a ‘safeguarding’ issue then licensing
authorities are to complete a template and submit it the police electronically via secure email.
The referral template should also be used to report any safeguarding concerns about any
licence holder. The police will create an intelligence report (IR) which becomes disclosable
as part of any subsequent DBS check undertaken anywhere in the country, thereby reducing
the risk of unsuitable persons being granted a licence.

What is a ‘safeguarding issue’?
Physical — Including hitting, slapping, pushing, kicking, restraint or inappropriate sanctions

Sexual - Including rape and sexual assault or sexual acts to which the vulnerable person
(including any young person) has not consented, could not consent or was pressured into
consenting

Psychological — Including emotional abuse, threats of harm or abandonment, deprivation of
contact, humiliation, blaming, controlling, intimidation, coercion, harassment, verbal abuse,
isolation or withdrawal from services or supportive networks

Financial — Including theft, fraud, exploitation, pressure in connection with wills, property or
inheritance or financial transactions, the misuse or misappropriation of property, possessions
or benefits

Neglect/failure to act — Including ignoring medical or physical care needs, failure to provide
access to appropriate health care, social care, education services or misuse of medication,
adequate nutrition or heating

Discriminatory — Including racist, sexist behaviour and harassment based on a person’s
ethnicity, race, culture, sexual orientation, age or disability, and other forms of harassment,
slurs or similar treatment

Institutional abuse — This can sometimes happen in residential homes, nursing homes or
hospitals when people are mistreated because of poor or inadequate care, neglect and poor
practice that affects the whole of that service.

| L | Page 300
20 Taxi and PHV Licensing — Councillors’ Handbook (England and Wales)



Person has licence refused, suspended
or revoked by licensing authority
(including any referral from County Council)
or
Information received concerning
individual holding a licence

Is the refusal, suspension, revocation
or information as a result of a
‘safeguarding’ issue identified?

Complete police referral form template
and submit to
informationsharing@norfolk.pnn.police.uk

Is there an existing record of the
investigation/incident on police - —
systems?

Police administrators complete Licensing authority
intelligence report on Police Crime and
Intelligence System (currently CIS)

Police

e 501
Taxi and PHV Licenising — Councillors’ Handbook (England and Wales) 21



Police Referral Form Template

(submit to informationsharing@norfolk.pnn.police.uk)

Local Authority

Disclosing
Officer

Role

Driver/Applicant/Subject

Surname

Forename(s)

Date of Birth

Home Address

Telephone

Type of License
Application
(if applicable)

Vehicle Details
(if known/
applicable)

*include
registrtaion /
make / model

Information/Intelligence

Refusal

Yes/No

Suspension | Yes/No | Revocation

Yes/No

Information

Yes/No

Date of refusal
| suspension

| revocation /
information

Circumstances *

(must include
any relevant time
/ date / location
information)

Additional
Information

* Circumstances should provide sufficient summary information to identify threats and risks

associated with the applicant / driver. Full records of any investigation need not be disclosed

on the IR as these will be retained locally by relevant authority

22 Taxi and PHV Licensing — Councillors’ Handbook (England and Wales)

Page 302




Joint operations: Blaenau Gwent Council

Blaenau Gwent Council’s Licensing Team co-ordinated roadside checks on taxis and private
hire vehicles to make sure Blaenau Gwent pupils travelled to school safely.

On the morning of the school run the Council’s licensing team, officers from the Council’'s
school transport division and technical experts from DVSA checked 16 buses and eight taxis.

The school run checks were followed up with detailed safety inspections that resulted in one
notice and a number of warnings.

» One deferred prohibition notice was issued for a defect. The company was told to carry
out the repairs within a time period.

» Four drivers were given advice regarding minor defects.
» Six warnings were given for not wearing seatbelts.

» Four enquiries were made by Blaenau Gwent Council’s education division about school
contracts operating logistics.

During the day, Gwent Police traffic officers gave out 16 fixed penalties for no seatbelts, two
fixed penalties for using mobile telephones while driving and ordered repairs for a cracked
windscreen.

Chair of Blaenau Gwent Council’s Licensing Committee, Councillor Jim Watkins said:

“We are committed to maintaining and improving the standards of the home-to-school
transport service provided by independent operators and those contracted to us. Our
regular check-ups are important. We have to thank our partners in Gwent Police and the
DVSA, and the operators as well, for their cooperation.”

Managing cross border hiring

Cross border hiring is a term to describe when a taxi is lawfully used for PHV purposes in a
district outside which it has been licensed to operate. This is a problem in many areas because
there are disparities in conditions on licences; a prospective driver in one council district

may apply to be licensed as a driver in another district because there are lower standards in
driver testing, cheaper licence fees or less rigorous/fewer pre-licence checks. The term ‘cross
border’ is also used when a PHV in one district picks up a passenger from another district. This
is currently legal, provided the driver, vehicle and operator are all licensed by the first district,
although the Deregulation Bill will make it possible for an operator to sub-contract a booking to
an operator licensed in another council area, if it passes into law.

This is also problematic, because when a taxi is being driven for PHV purposes in another
district, the local council has no powers to intervene if the driver contravenes any condition of
the licence or provides a poor service to the passenger. It is also unfair on the trade in the local
area, as they may face competition from drivers who may have paid cheaper licence fees or
undergone less rigorous checks elsewhere.

As a councillor you can take some simple steps to ensure that your local authority is not
having a detrimental impact on other authorities and their communities. Ask your taxi and
PHV licensing service whether they have a high enough standard of conditions (see councillor
checklist) and consider where an applicant intends to work when issuing licences. You do have

Lg Ly

Taxi and PHV Licenising — Councillors’ Handbook (England and Wales) 23



the legal right to refuse to issue a licence if the applicant does not intend to work mainly in your
area and should recognise that the reputational impact to your council of knowingly licensing
taxis to operate elsewhere could severely limit your ability to develop partnership working with
neighbouring authorities.

If you seek to include a section on this in your licensing policy, then it is important to remember
that a ‘hackney carriage’ cannot ‘work’ or ‘operate’ as a PHV. The law simply allows them to

be used for ‘private hire purposes’. This may sound like semantics, but has been tested in the
courts and means that you cannot use your greater power to condition PHV driver licences

to regulate the driver of a hackney carriage, even though they may at times be working in the
same manner as a PHV driver (ie making pre-booked journeys, rather than plying for hire).

The most notable piece of case law on cross-border hiring was between Newcastle City
Council and Berwick Borough Council. Between 2006 and 2008, Berwick’s licensed fleet had
grown from 46 taxis to 672. Many of the fleet were not operating in Berwick but had applied
there as a result of a less stringent application process and were operating in neighbouring
or nearby areas.

In his judgment, the judge rejected Berwick’s arguments that it is obliged by law to issue a
hackney carriage licence to any applicant, so long as they and their vehicles are fit.

Commenting on the potentially ‘undesirable consequences’ of Berwick’s stance, he said the
council is having to carry out its enforcement powers from a distance and faces difficulty in
keeping its licensed cabs under observation.

He said: “It seems to me that it must be desirable for an authority issuing licences to hackney
carriages to be able to restrict the issuing of those licences to proprietors and drivers which
are intending to ply for hire in that authority’s area.”

He said the intention of the licensing system is that “it should operate in such a way that the
authority licensing hackney carriages is the authority for the area in which those vehicles are
generally used.”

The judge added: “If the hackney carriages are used in areas remote from Berwick-upon-
Tweed, enforcement will be very difficult and impracticable.

“It seems to me it is very difficult to exercise proper control over hackney carriages which are
never, or rarely, used in the prescribed area.

“It is also undesirable for authorities to be faced with a proliferation of hackney carriages
licensed outside the area in which they are being used and therefore not subject to the same
conditions and bylaws as apply to those vehicles licensed in the area.”

Judge Symons said he would leave it to the judgment and common sense of the borough
council to decide how to react to his ruling, that it does have a ‘discretion’ to refuse to licence
taxis if there is no ‘unmet demand’ for cabs in Berwick itself.

“While | cannot at the moment conceive of it being rational to grant a licence to those who
intend to operate their hackney carriages remotely from Berwick-upon-Tweed, | am not
prepared to say that it is bound to be unlawful,” he concluded.

| L | Page 304
24 Taxi and PHV Licensing — Councillors’ Handbook (England and Wales)




Until the Law Commission’s proposals extending an authorised officer's powers are enacted,
the protocol' below could be used by authorities to ensure rogue drivers and vehicles are
prevented from hiding ‘over the border’ or routinely operating outside the reach of enforcement
by their licensing authority. It allows councils to authorise officers from other councils to use
enforcement powers on their behalf. This enables those councils to then take action against
vehicles which are licensed by the other authority when they cross over council boundaries.

This practice was recently highly commended by the Transport Minister Baroness Kramer,
citing some of Merseyside councils’ practices since 1995. Transport is also often one of

the issues identified as a priority by Combined Authorities. These new structures will make
sharing enforcement powers increasingly attractive and could pave the way to extending your
regulatory reach beyond your borders. In time, a shared framework similar to Transport for
London could evolve.

The protocol is suggested as an easy way forward for those authorities wishing to consider
such joint authorisations of officers.

Protocol:

1. All authorities agree what level of expertise/qualification/skills is the minimum for approval
of authorisation of each individual.

2. All authorities establish, via their own schemes of delegation, what procedural steps need
to be taken to validly authorise (ie chief officer’s report, sub-committee or full committee
decision).

3. All authorities agree the form and wording of the ‘letter of authorisation’ and ‘photo warrant
card’ to be issued.

4. Each ‘requesting council’ formally requests authorisation of named individual officers.

5. Each ‘receiving council’ obtains authorisation and provides a ‘letter of authorisation’ in
respect of the other authority’s officers.

6. Each employing authority provides its own officers with a photo warrant card specifying
that for the purposes of [specify Acts of Parliament] that officer [name] is a duly
authorised officer of [list all authorising councils].

7. Each authority provides all officers with copies of appropriate byelaws, conditions and
agreed methodologies/reporting mechanisms for dealing with defective vehicles and other
issues from other areas.

8. Each authority seeks political and financial approval for pre-planned joint operations both
with each other and also police/HMRC Customs & Excise.

9. Data sharing protocols, as required, be established between authorities, including
standard incident reporting templates/operation logs to be used by all for consistency and
scheme recording.

10 The relevant enabling legislation is Section 32 Part | of the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976
32 Power of local authorities to execute works outside their areas. Any power to execute works which is conferred on a local
authority by any enactment may, unless the contrary intention appears in that or any other enactment, be exercised outside as
well as inside the area of the authority.

Lg

Taxi and PHV Licenising — Councillors’ Handbook (England and Wales) 25



Protecting vulnerable people

Councils can help to protect some of their most vulnerable residents through effective
licensing regimes, including children at risk of sexual exploitation. Sadly, both licensed
premises and licensed vehicles have been used as opportunities to sexually exploit children,
as recent high profile cases have underlined.

We know that many victims of exploitation are too traumatised for investigations to proceed to
court, meaning that issues do not always show up through disclosures. This makes additional
intelligence from all other sources critical to licensing deliberations.

A detailed exploration of tackling child sexual exploitation (CSE) is outside the remit of this
guide, but all councillors and officers, across all services, should familiarise themselves with
the LGAs guides on CSE, which can be found at http://tinyurl.com/CSEguide.

It is important to recognise that this is a subject that needs to be sensitively handled to avoid
drivers feeling that they are being treated as potential criminals. However, the sensitivity around
the subject must not mean that the issue is not discussed or that training is not provided.

Your local safeguarding boards also have an important role to play in licensing and you
should ensure that safeguarding boards understand the role that licensing can play in their
discussions. Your licensing officers should also be fully engaged with relevant safeguarding
discussions.

This is particularly important in two-tier areas, with licensing located in the districts and child
protection in the county council. A number of serious case reviews have highlighted a failure
of communication between the two-tiers of local government as a contributing factor to child
exploitation going undetected.

If allegations of CSE or other serious offences are made, then your council should have in
place procedures to allow a rapid response from the council. In the most serious cases, it will
not be appropriate to wait until a licensing committee or sub-committee can be held.

Safeguarding training: Scarborough Borough Council

Working together, Scarborough Borough Council and North Yorkshire Police identified that
working with taxi drivers was key to safeguarding practices linked to the local night-time
economy (NTE), particularly in helping to prevent sexual exploitation, and in accessing the
information and intelligence drivers held which they’d been reluctant to share with agencies.

An opportunity to capture those individuals arose when Scarborough Borough Council’s
Taxi Licensing Policy was renewed, introducing mandatory safeguarding training for taxi
drivers wishing to obtain or retain their licences.

This comprises a two-hour tailored session, written and delivered by Sandra Rees, the
Council’'s Community Safety and Safeguarding Manager and Sgt Rachel Wood, both of
whom have operational experience in the NTE. It was essential, for the package to have
maximum impact, that it had to be delivered by people who were not only passionate about
safeguarding, but also had credible operational experience working in the NTE. The training
covers safeguarding children and vulnerable adults, making referrals, signposting to relevant
agencies, domestic violence, child sexual exploitation and ‘hate and mate’ crime.

| L | Page 306
26 Taxi and PHV Licensing — Councillors’ Handbook (England and Wales)


http://tinyurl.com/CSEguide

As well as delivering this training to drivers, it gave an opportunity to establish closer working
relationships with drivers going forward. Local taxi officers are now allocated a named

PCSO to visit them on a weekly basis to share information and concerns. In addition to this,
having listened to drivers’ concerns, stickers with ‘zero tolerance on abuse to drivers’ were
printed and distributed to all taxis, and information cards with relevant agency numbers were
produced and given to all taxi companies for distribution by their drivers.

With perseverance and careful delivery, the outcomes have been very positive; forging closer
relationships with drivers and impacting on their decisions to report concerns. For instance,
it has led to a greater number of reports to police regarding drugs information.

Operation Sanctuary

Operation Sanctuary is an investigation into allegations of a series of sexual offences
predominantly within Newcastle, but also in other local authority areas, involving a number of
men from a range of communities and vulnerable female victims, including teenagers and
young adults.

Operation Sanctuary is about targeting men with appalling attitudes towards vulnerable
teenagers and women, and stopping their behaviour.

“These crimes are happening behind closed doors, in local streets and it is likely that
people living nearby recognise the behaviour we describe. It may be groups of men going
into properties with teenage girls or one or two women. They might see women under the
influence of drink or drugs who might appear distressed in some way. We need them to
report this to us. If it is innocent then nothing will happen to them. But this allows us to check
and may avoid someone else becoming a victim.

We also know some of these girls and women may frequent certain businesses which brings
them into contact with these men so we will be visiting the premises and speaking to those
who work there and those who hang around.

We also believe that the victims are transported in taxis to the different addresses — again
we will be speaking to all taxi firms to ask for their help if they spot anything that appears
suspicious or fits the description of what we are looking at.

To date 30 people have been arrested for conspiracy to rape women (28 men and 2 women).
Those arrested come from a range of communities and backgrounds.”Operation Sanctuary,
Northumbria Police

As part of Operation Sanctuary, officers have been delivering leaflets in Newcastle city
centre to taxi drivers, hotels, and other businesses.

The leaflets advise them of the ongoing operation, how it affects them and what to look out
for to identify any potential vulnerable girls or young women.

It is another way we are keeping people informed and updated about the operation and how
everyone has a part to play in ensuring information is reported to police.

Lg

Taxi and PHV Licerising — Councillors’ Handbook (England and Wales) 27



Information
for faxi drivers
and taxi firms

What is Operation Senctucry?

Operation Sanctuary & about engurng our
towng and ctes are safe places for women
and s % ive, work and vst. In partevar
112 about everyone workng together, the

police, local asthortes, businesses and 3l bz

communties t ensure thze who may be
wherable i some way are protected from
anjone who seeks to take advartage of them
by commting s2xual crmes agandt them

These crimes can range from thoze cffenders
who defibarately set out o target specic
women and grs over a long period of tme
10 thoze who comma such crmes when they
COME aeras 20meane ih & vunerable state

& a resut of beng undar the influence of
#cohol drugs or for other reasons.

Only by working together can we male ow
communttes safe and we a have a part

20 pla 1t 15 the rezponsiity of evaryone

to be viglant and identfy such criming
behaviowr and to contact police 1 thay have
any concens I you witnass something that
dosin't ok right oe feel rght then we need
10 kmow about

W have had tremendous supgort from the
public and we need thiz to contue, Only
then can we stop such emes and bring
offenders o justee

\
*

Toxs are a very safe and relable way to get around the oty and we wart
to keep t that way

We know that some victms are transported in tax to addresses where they
are then sealy assauted or raped \We ako know that some men have posed
5t drvers and picked up women who have then been assaufted or raped

We need the help of al legtimate taxi drivers to help us stop this crming
behaviour f you spot anything that appears suspiious or fits te descrption
of what we are lookng for please take action and cortact police

What fo look out for:

v Females whoappeartobena ¢ Unlcensed vehicles hangrg around
werable e st macee weas where theve we el to e
drnk or drugs. women I a vulneradle state

lookng for tacs 10 go hom

v Female passengers who are il
accompanied by a man when inths  We are also encouragng passengers
state and don't know where they 1o take  photo of tax fcence
e gong plates of the vehicles they get o -

reputable drivers have nothing fo

v Passengers beng dropped of be verrad o :
it a locabon which causes you
concern. Contact polce
mmedately

We have dready recenved ‘

b o fom e Ifyousae

publc hat hs heped to keep ”Mmg'

women and grls safe We need |18

this to continue. You are the saywmm

eyes and ears in the communtty

and can heip stop this

TSl NORTHUMBRIA
VERA BAIRD::
VERABARD: ‘@ POLICE

To see a higher resolution version, please visit:
www.northumbria.police.uk/advice_and_information/operation_sanctuary/downloads/index.asp

e 308
28 Taxi and PHV Licensing — Councillors’ Handbook


http://www.northumbria.police.uk/advice_and_information/operation_sanctuary/downloads/index.asp

Liaison with Children’s Safeguarding: Torfaen County Borough Council

In Torfaen, licensing officers are regularly called in to a case conference by their children’s
services when they become aware that they are dealing with a licensed taxi driver. In the last
five years there have been seven occasions where they have been invited to attend a case
conference by children’s services; not all result in action being taken as it is down to the
meeting to decide how to respond.

However, there have been two notable occasions where formal action did result from these
meetings.

At the case conference it was alleged that while not working a male taxi driver invited
a 10 year old girl, a neighbour, into his home as she was waiting outside for her parents
to return.

The girl alleged in a specialist interview that while in the man’s house, he fondled her
breasts and displayed other inappropriate behaviour. At the case conference it was
accepted that there was insufficient evidence for the CPS to prosecute him.

The police had conducted an investigation which included a recorded interview with the
girl. This information was released to the council who took immediate action to revoke the
driving licence on the grounds of public safety. The driver was not prosecuted.

2. Information about a man who was on the register for inappropriate sexual activity with
family children was discussed at the case conference. The man was no longer a taxi
driver as he had not renewed his licence, however his new partner was a driver with the
company he worked for and he was being used by the private hire company as an escort
on an education contract.

The council could not take any action against the subject as he no longer held a licence,
however, they approached the operator on a confidential basis with agreed information
that could be disclosed to make them aware.

Lg

Taxi and PHV Licenising — Councillors’ Handbook (England and Wales) 29



Rapid response to serious issues: Breckland Council and South Holland Council

+ All intelligence will be from a creditable source only and is restricted to the police or
a qualified medical officer. Cases could include charges of rape, other sexual related
incidences, violent attacks or medical related issues which means the driver no longer
meets the DVLA group 2 standard.

* Reports of a serious nature by a member of the public will always be referred on to the
police, in addition to recording by the council. For less serious reports, an investigation will
be completed and taken to a committee panel for final decisions.

* On receipt of information from the police or medical practitioner the driver will
be contacted by an officer to be made aware of the allegation and requested to attend the
office to discuss the report and put forward his/her case - all reasons will be recorded in
writing.

* A minimum period of two hours will be provided for this meeting and all methods of
communicating the appointment will be explored, including telephone calls, voice mails,
text, a visit to the home or a combination of these methods. All interviews are to be
conducted in the council offices and only in extreme medical situations the officer should
attend their home, accompanied by another member of staff.

+ All discussions with the driver will be conducted by two members of staff and, if felt
relevant due to the nature of the incident, with the police to ensure no-one is placed in any
danger.

« |f the driver decides not to attend the meeting, the matter is still dealt with in their absence
and will not delay the decision-making process - this decision needs to be recorded.

» A decision would be made by the licensing officer or assistant licensing officer, a senior
officer (licensing manager or head of service), a member of CMT and the chairman or
vice chairman of the licensing committee.

» Once the decision has been agreed by the appropriate person, the licensing officer or the
licensing manager has the relevant delegation to sign any revocations required.

» All decisions and actions should be taken within 48 working hours and ideally within 24
hours of receipt of the information.

* If a driver’s licence is revoked under these procedures but later investigation clears the
driver of the offence, then it will be a priority to get the licence re-instated. If there is a
period of time left on the licence at the point of revocation, this will be the time reinstated
on the licence issue and the department will not charge for such a licence.

| L | Page 310
30 Taxi and PHV Licensing — Councillors’ Handbook (England and Wales)



Taxi marshals: Watford Borough Council

Since 2005, taxi drivers servicing the late night economy in Watford, Hertfordshire have
benefited from a taxi marshal scheme.

On three nights of the week — and other identified occasions — two taxi marshals work on the
Rickmansworth Road rank, getting passengers in an orderly queue. Passengers who are
excessively drunk, are eating or smoking, appear to be violent, don't know their destination or
don’t have enough money for their fare are refused carriage.

A third marshal at a remote feeder rank is radioed when more taxis are needed at the main
rank.

The scheme is not cheap, and taxi drivers have been reluctant to contribute. Over the years,
funding has principally come from licensed premises who make annual contributions, and
grants from Hertfordshire County Council — who also fund taxi marshals in five other towns in
the county. Money has also been obtained from Watford Borough Council, the Safer Watford
Partnership, and from the Home Office’s now-defunct Tackling Violent Crime programme.

An independent study by The Centre for Public Innovation in April 2008 found that:
“Stakeholders agreed that the taxi marshal schemes were having a positive impact on both
anti-social behaviour and certain crimes — although they were unable to quantify the extent
of the impact. They also noted that the taxi marshal schemes played an important role in
influencing perceptions of the night-time economies, sending out a clear message that
councils were listening and responding to residents’ concerns about the effects of the night-
time economies.”

Licensing Manager Jeffrey Leib says: “The scheme is generally welcome by many
participants in our night-time economy. We have enhanced drivers’ safety even further with
marshals using CCTV and recording passengers’ details before they get into a cab, to
reduce the risk of attacks on drivers while en route.”

Installing CCTV in cabs

A number of councils require CCTV to be installed in taxis, as a way of reducing crimes and
providing evidence to support prosecution. This approach can benefit both passengers and
drivers, who can equally be the subjects of assaults, abuse or fraud.

However, it is important to weigh up the frequency of such instances against the cost of
installing such equipment, which can be an issue for drivers. Consultation with your driver
community will help determine a suitable approach; it is also possible to permit drivers to install
CCTV without a requirement for all drivers to install it. You should always require voluntary
installation to be notified to the council and check that it meets appropriate standards.

It is important to be aware of surveillance and data protection issues when considering the use
of CCTV, particularly with regard to the recording of conversations.

The Information Commissioner’s Office (ICO) has said it is not normally justified to use CCTV to
record conversations between members of the public as “it is highly intrusive”, but have also
stated that council applications to install cameras in cabs are likely to be acceptable because
of the number of crimes being committed in taxis.

, Page 311 |
Taxi and PHV Licensing — Councillors’ Handbook (England and Wales) 31



“As well as assessing the impact on privacy, we have accepted they [councils] can take
into account factors such as the likelihood of crimes being committed against drivers and
passengers; the vulnerable one-to-one situation; the fact that taxis are travelling all over the
area at different times of day; and CCTV can protect both the driver and passengers.”""

It is therefore essential that licensing authorities take account of people’s right to privacy
when deciding whether to impose CCTV as a licence condition for taxi drivers. Whether the
installation of CCTV is mandatory or voluntary it is essential that the local authority has a strict
specification for permissible systems to ensure that there are adequate safeguards, such as
who can access the footage.

It is also important to note that the use of CCTV inside and outside the vehicle are treated
differently, and that once a passenger is inside a vehicle that they have hired they have a
right to privacy. This means that they must be notified that the vehicle has a CCTV system in
operation.

Some councils have chosen to specify that audio recording should only be activated when
there is a specific threat, in the same way that a panic button could be used.

Transport for London, acting on advice from the ICO, recommend:

* Where recording is triggered due to a specific threat, eg a ‘panic button’ is utilised.
Where this audio recording facility is utilised a reset function must be installed which
automatically disables audio recording and returns the system to normal default
operation after a specified time period has elapsed.

* The time period that audio recording may be active should be the minimum possible
and should be declared at the time of submission for approval of the equipment.

Any specified company, organisation or individual vehicle owner who has a CCTV system
installed in a licensed vehicle must register with the ICO (‘notification’) and obtain documented
evidence of that registration. This documentary evidence may be required to be presented to
an official of Taxis and Private Hire team (TPH) at any time during the term of the TPH vehicle
licence. The notification requires renewal on an annual basis, and payment of the appropriate
fee.

Due to the complexity of surveillance and privacy legislation and case law, this information
is provided only as a summary. Councils wishing to explore this further should seek their own
legal advice.

11 The Information Commissioner’s Office, https://ico.org.uk/about-the-ico/news-and-events/news-and-blogs/2014/10/ico-warns-
cctv-operators-that-use-of-surveillance-cameras-must-be-necessary-and-proportionate/
https://ico.org.uk/media/about-the-ico/documents/1042192/ico-annual-report-201213.pdf at page 39

, L | Page 312
32 Taxi and PHV Licensing — Councillors’ Handbook (England and Wales)


https://ico.org.uk/about-the-ico/news-and-events/news-and-blogs/2014/10/ico-warns-cctv-operators-that-use-of-surveillance-cameras-must-be-necessary-and-proportionate/
https://ico.org.uk/about-the-ico/news-and-events/news-and-blogs/2014/10/ico-warns-cctv-operators-that-use-of-surveillance-cameras-must-be-necessary-and-proportionate/

Special considerations

Driver training — disability awareness

93 authorities (30 per cent) have a requirement for disability awareness training for taxi drivers,
compared to 75 having a requirement for PHV drivers.

It is important that your drivers are fully aware of their responsibilities to the public and their
community.

The Equality Act 2010 sets out obligations for public bodies to advance equality of opportunity
among people and eliminate discrimination. Taxi and PHV drivers need to have regard to this
responsibility when they are operating, and also need to understand how to safely make use of
their vehicles’ ability to transport wheelchairs. Media stories relating to extra or over-charging
for users of wheelchairs have appeared with some frequency in 2014, so councils should
make clear to drivers that they cannot charge a disabled passenger more than any other
passengers.

There are few training opportunities available to drivers, so many councils have chosen to
provide their own training support. Not only does this ensure that your taxis and PHVs are fully
compliant with the law, but it adds a roving network of eyes and ears in your area who can help
identify and tackle issues such as child sexual exploitation and drugs misuse.

At a time when council enforcement and discretionary travel resources are heavily under
pressure, engaging with your driver community in this way should not be underestimated and it
repays the small investment needed.

Training packages: Telford and Wrekin Council

Telford and Wrekin Council have developed a one-hour training package which includes a
number of subjects aimed to increase drivers’ knowledge of the role and improve their level
of service.

A presentation is given which explains which acts are unlawful such as PHV drivers loitering
in places of public resort without prior booking, drivers charging excessive fares, and drivers
smoking in their vehicles.

The training includes useful tips on how to best assist disabled people, including the
conveying of wheelchairs and having awareness of the different types of disability. The
is also a section on drivers looking after themselves such as being aware of attacks and
considering their overall health and fitness.

At the end of the training session the drivers are required to complete a multiple-choice test
paper which contains 25 questions based on the driver training package and 52 questions
based on street knowledge.

, FPage 313 |
Taxi and PHV Licensing — Councillors’ Handbook (England and Wales) 33



Promoting equality awareness: Stockport Metropolitan Borough Council

Stockport Council’s Licensing Team has worked in partnership with Disability Stockport to
produce a brochure that includes:

+ the contact details of licensed drivers who have successfully completed disability
awareness training provided by Disability Stockport and Solutions SK, funded by
Stockport Council

* information to enable disabled passengers to book transport with providers who best suit
their needs

* guidance to passengers on the types of licensed vehicles available for hire in Stockport

» guidance to disabled passengers on how to hire a licensed vehicle in Stockport and what
service they should expect

* advice to licensed drivers on how to assist disabled passengers

» guidance to licensed drivers on what is expected of them further to their disability
awareness training

* Information on how to improve the service and awareness of it.

The guide has been recognised as good practice by the Government’s Accessible Britain
Challenge. The guide can be found at http://tinyurl.com/stockportdisability

Quantity restrictions

Quantity restriction is a term used to describe a local council imposing limits on the number

of taxi licences within its area. This is often seen as a controversial issue because in those
areas that continue to impose quantity restrictions, the taxi trade is often a strong advocate of
keeping a ‘restricted fleet’. Currently only 88 councils in England and Wales continue to restrict
numbers. The decision to restrict taxis is left to the local council, but the LGA suggests that
councils consider the DfT’s view and state your reasons for departing from it when setting out
your licensing policy.

“Most local licensing authorities do not impose quantity restrictions; the Department regards
that as best practice. Where restrictions are imposed, the Department would urge that the
matter should be regularly reconsidered. The Department further urges that the issue to be
addressed first in each reconsideration is whether the restrictions should continue at all. It

is suggested that the matter should be approached in terms of the interests of the travelling
public.” DfT Taxi and PHV Licensing Best Practice Guidance on quantity restrictions

| o | Page 314
34 Taxi and PHV Licensing — Councillors’ Handbook (England and Wales)


http://tinyurl.com/stockportdisability

Restricting the number of taxis: Stockport Metropolitan Borough Council

Local councils which limit the number of taxis within their fleets should regularly produce an
unmet demand survey. The survey reviews the consumer demand for taxis and considers
factors such as the length of time customers wait at ranks and waiting times for street
hailings and telephone bookings.

In 2008 Stockport Metropolitan Borough Council carried out an unmet demand and public
opinion survey, which indicated that there was no significant unmet demand. Stockport
licensing committee agreed to maintain a limit on the number of taxis currently licensed by
the authority. To ensure this was a balanced decision Stockport considered the guidance
issued by the DfT in relation to maintaining limits and various consumer reports which
indicate that a general increase in the number of taxis is beneficial for consumers. While
maintaining a limit the Committee also agreed to increase that limit by five licences per year
over the next three years.

They further committed to reviewing current rank facilities including creating new ranks,
particularly night-time ranks in busy areas. The policy is kept under continuous review, with
the most recent survey in late 2014 determining that there was no unmet demand and that
restrictions should be maintained, although there is scope for providing additional ranking
facilities.

Lifting quantity restrictions: Salford City Council

Salford City Council previously had a policy of limiting taxi licence numbers. An unmet
demand survey had been carried out in 2004 which recommended an increase in the issue
of one licence which brought the total number of taxis in Salford to 79. If the council wished
to retain this limit, an additional unmet demand survey would have been required in 2007
costing the council additional resources. It was recognised that a complete review of taxi
and private hire licensing functions was required.

The decision to delimit was based on a number of factors:

+ the Office of Fair Trading (OFT), now the Competition and Markets Authority (CMA), market
study into ‘The Regulation of Licensed Taxi and Private Hire Services in the UK’ and the
Department for Transport’s Taxi and Private Hire Best Practice Guidance’ which called for
the removal of quantity restrictions

» the National Consumer Council campaign which also called for the removal of quantity
restrictions

* representations from certain members of the taxi and private hire trades that the
wheelchair users were unable to hire taxis at certain times of the day or in certain areas of
the City

» feedback following consultation with the public, business community, wheelchair users,
elected members and the taxi trade as to taxi availability.

Following adoption of the policy to delimit taxi numbers an interim injunction was served on
the Council, on behalf of two taxi proprietors who operated a total of 18 vehicles, preventing
implementation of the policy pending a judicial review.

The case was heard in the High Court where the judge ruled that none of the grounds put
forward by the claimants were properly arguable for the purpose of judicial review, and the
Council were awarded their costs in full.

, Page 310 |
Taxi and PHV Licensing — Councillors’ Handbook (England and Wales) 35



Stretched limousines

Many of these vehicles were built in America and do not comply with British requirements for
a vehicle of this passenger capacity. This is also true of many other novelty vehicles, which
should always be considered on a case-by-case basis. The recent Law Commission report
proposed bringing all such vehicles within a standard licensing scheme and the LGA supports
this proposal.

Limousines with up to eight passenger seats

These vehicles should be licensed by your council. To become ‘road legal’ vehicles must meet
certain standards before they can be licensed. Vehicles that meet these standards and operate
unlicensed pose a risk to public safety.

Limousines with over eight passenger seats

The DVSA licenses vehicles over eight seats such as buses and HGVs, and as such any
stretched limousine which has a seating capacity of over eight passenger seats cannot be
licensed by councils as a PHV.

Stretched limousine enforcement: Basingstoke District Council

In 2006 following concerns from the trade and parents, Basingstoke District Council
developed a strategy to stop unlicensed stretched limousines plying their trade. Unlicensed
vehicles are often in a dangerous state of disrepair and extremely unsafe for the public to
travel in, and drivers who are not checked may have a prior serious criminal record.

Enforcement activity was targeted by writing to all secondary schools within the Borough to
ask where and when their summer balls were to be held. They provided the schools with an
advisory letter, which gave advice to parents about ensuring that the limousines they booked
were properly licensed and what evidence to look for.

Basingstoke carried out over 16 joint enforcement operations at the summer balls over the
next three years with local traffic police and DVSA checking over 100 vehicles and drivers.

The checks were carried out to ensure the safety of the pupils, and Basingstoke arranged
private hire companies to be on standby if necessary and take any affected pupils home as
a priority.

The majority of limousines checked were unlicensed by local councils or DVSA, and some
drivers had serious criminal records, no DVLA licence and no insurance.

Where there had been serious issues such as unlicensed vehicles or drivers arrested the
parents who booked the vehicles were advised in case they wished to claim back costs from
the company and so they could also avoid using them again in the future.

| L | Page 316
36 Taxi and PHV Licensing — Councillors’ Handbook (England and Wales)



Checklist for councillors
in England and Wales

This list is intended to help you gauge your council’s effectiveness in providing a competent
taxi and PHV licensing service. The answers should help you determine the quality of the
service your council delivers, and whether changes should be made.

Are the needs and safety of passengers placed at the centre of your licensing system?

Are drivers assessed against agreed and appropriate standards to ensure they are it

and proper’ and entitled to hold a licence? Many councils require applicants to undertake
group 2 medical checks, enhanced Disclosure and Barring Service (DBS) checks and local
knowledge tests before they are licensed to carry the public.

Are your drivers provided with training on disability awareness, spotting child sexual
exploitation and other locally relevant issues?

Does your council have a taxi and PHV licensing policy document, which has been subject
to regular review and has regard to the Department for Transport’'s Best Practice Guidance
(last issued March 2010) and has been consulted on with the trade and user groups?

Do your taxi licensing officers have a regular dialogue with neighbouring councils, with
a view to adopting consistent standards, developing a common approach and to share
relevant information?

Do you have sufficient information and understanding to challenge or defend your council’s
taxi and PHYV licensing activity in the context of an overview and scrutiny committee?

Does your council have a multi-agency enforcement programme with the police, DVSA and
neighbouring councils? Such operations help ensure the public remain safe.

Does your council have adequate numbers of accessible taxis — to ensure people who are
vulnerable in society such as disabled users can utilise the service?

Does your council have effective consultation methods with taxi and PHV representatives
and taxi users? Many councils have taxi liaison forums which meet on a regular basis.

Are vehicles subject to agreed and routine stringent testing to ensure they are mechanically
safe and suitable to transport the public?

Are your licensing fees and charges sufficient to provide the resources for an efficient
licensing service but which does not create a surplus? If there is a surplus, is this returned
through a reduction in future fees?

Does your council license stretched limousines under eight passenger seats? Many vehicles
are operating unlicensed and unchecked as some councils refuse to license such vehicles.

, Page 317
Taxi and PHV Licensing — Councillors’ Handbook (England and Wales) 37



Glossary

1847 Act — Town Police Clauses Act 1847
1976 Act — Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976

1998 Act — Human Rights Act 1998. This Act transposed the European Convention on Human
Rights into UK law.

CSE - Child Sexual Exploitation. Sexual exploitation of children and young people under 18
involves exploitative situations, contexts and relationships where young people (or a third
person or persons) receive ‘something’ (eg food, accommodation, drugs, alcohol, cigarettes,
affection, gifts, money) as a result of them performing, and/or another or others performing on
them, sexual activities.

DVSA - The Driver and Vehicle Standards Agency is an executive agency of the Department
for Transport and is responsible for setting and improving standards for driving, including the
roadworthiness of vehicles.

DVLA — The Driver and Vehicle Licensing Agency is an executive agency of the Department
for Transport and maintains registers of drivers and vehicles in Great Britain.

Hackney carriage — See Taxi

loL — The Institute of Licensing is a membership body for licensing officers, licensing lawyers
and the licensed trade

NALEO - The National Association of Licensing and Enforcement Officers is a professional
body for licensing officers.

PHV - See Private hire vehicle
Ply for hire — To be hailed in the street to pick up a passenger. This can only be done by taxis.

Private hire vehicle — Private hire vehicles (PHVs) include a range of vehicles including
minicabs, executive cars, limousines and chauffeur services. They must be pre-booked and
cannot be hailed by people on the street.

Taxi — Taxis are referred to in legislation, regulation and common language as ‘hackney
carriages’, ‘black cabs’ and ‘cabs’. They can be hailed in the street, but can also be pre-
booked.

Page 318
38 Taxi and PHV Licensing — Councillors’ Handbook (England and Wales)



Page 319



Local 18

Government

Association

Local Government Association
Local Government House

Smith Square

London SW1P 3HZ

Telephone 020 7664 3000
Fax 020 7664 3030

Email info@local.gov.uk
www.local.gov.uk

© Local Government Association, March 2015

For a copy in Braille, larger print or audio,
please contact us on 020 7664 3000.
We consider requests on an individual basis.

L15-87 Page 320



	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the previous meeting held on 15 January 2016
	4 Town Police Clauses Act 1847 and Part II, Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976 - Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Matters - Draft statement of Licensing Policy
	Hackney Carriage  Private Hire Licensing Policy (r)
	Draft Polilcy - Table of Amendments - APPENDIX 1c
	Appendix 2 - representations
	Binder1
	Binder1
	Redacted HC PH Reps1_Redacted
	Citywide page 3

	Ebador Chowdhury Supplement

	Binder2
	Various redacted responses
	PDS AUTOS LTD

	LGA - Councillors Handbook (2)




